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FY 17/18 highlights

£2.2bn

£77.1m

Adjusted operating profit'*

{FY 16/17: £2.1bn) {FY 16/17: £52.0m)

£2.2bn £89.6m
revenue® Reported operating profit/(loss)*

(FY 16/17: £2.1bn) {FY 16/17: £{6.3)m)

4.0p £4.5bn

Dividends per share Ovdar boolk*

(FY 16/17: 4.0p) {FY 16/17: £4.4bn)

£193.5m

Net debt (at period end)
{FY 16/17: £147.2m)

£286.1m

Net debt (sverage)

{FY 16/17: £335.9m)

® positive adjusted revenue’ growth

& aAdjusted operating profit*? in line with our expectations

* Good performance from Mitie’s market-teading core businesses
& Connected Workspace now in deploymert

* Transformation programme progressing well

® Higher transformation cost savings, with associated higher cost
of change

® On track to exceed three-year cost savings targets
* [nvestmemts made In customer service and internal capability

* Commercial recrganisation and finance transformation largety
compiete; IT ankl Engineering Services workflow technology
transformation begun

For further information
. Visik our corporate webslte o hitps://ereraslinkedin.com/
miie.com/investors company/mitie/
o Follow us on twitter ° Waich our istest content
@wearemitle youtube.com/userfmitisgrouppic
Onthe cover
1. To ensble an effertive comparison of aur
per J d ryvenue any adjusted
ing profit are p d for both FY 17/18
and £Y 16/17 as Altsrnative Performance
Measures (APMs). FY 17/18 adjusted numbers
e presented on pre-AS 15 basis, FY 16/17
Image removed djusted numbers are p d as per last

Vicky
Housekeeper,
Cleaning

year's APM, for continuing operations.

1. Before athet tems.

3. FY 17/18 reported on post-iFRS 1S basis and FY
16/17 on a reported basis.

4, The ordes book & presented in Sine with IFRS 15
requirements for both FY 17/18 and FY 16/17,




Our purpose

Our expertise, care, technology
and insight create amazing work
environments, helping our customers
be exceptional every day.

Opportunities

i § 11
Free to make
decisions Our promise to A personal prid
our people in our work
Reward for A place to work where
great work you can thrive and be Closer working
best every day - relationships
Trustand o Our promise to
respect > our customers Briliant
A trusted partner focused on basics
adding valus to your bottom
Kne, while creating exceptional intelligent use
environments for your of technology
customers and people
insights that
make a difference

Our Vision and Values are built on the simple premise
of ‘The exceptional, every day’ — our overarching
commitment to both our customers and to our colleagues.

The excaptional, everyday | www.mitie.com 1
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We are
One Mitie

image removed

We work as one to deliver a
seamless, unrivalled service.
We are all in it together,

if we can help a customer
or colleague in any way, we
will. We are One Mitie.

Miriam
Reception Supervisor,
Front of House

The exceptional, everyday | www.mitie.com



AT A GLANCE

Delivering the exceptional

through a range of services...

Delivering the basics brilliantly gives us the solid foundations
on which to create, build and tailor solutions that anticipate

and meet our customers’ needs.

Adjusted revenue FY 17/18

Property Managemant

£237.9m

Enginsering Servicas

£833.8m

Catering

£137.1m

Care & Custody

£62.3m

Environmental Services

£405.5m

Professional Sarvices

£90.8m

Security
| £431.7m

...to a blue-chip customer base.
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OUR INVESTMENT CASE

Six reasons to invest in Mitie

We work in partnership with organisations to deliver long-term savings, managing
and maintaining some of the nation’s most recognised landmarks for a range of
blue-chip public and private sector customers. We are the UK's largest Facilities

Management company employing 49,000 people across the country.
We are changing the future of FM through the pioneering development
of Connected Workspace technology. We are ambitious for the future

and for those who work for us.

key strength
» Intelligent use of smart tachnology

= No reliance on any single or group

N N AV

Exceptional dients and a High retention rates and Proactive Group
broad range of services significant order book management

* Broad chent base across both the * Long-term relationships as a trusted « Creation of One Mitle through a
private and public sectors partner supporting our single employing entity and the

» Professional Services provide astomers’ strategies simpiification of the group structure
strategic differentiation « NPS soore of -10 sets the basaline — + Commitment to strong and

» Dur ability to seff-deliver Is a a+17 points improvement over past transperent financlal management

12 months  Strong covenant headroom

¢ Stable order book at £4.5bn reported
under IFRS 15 gukiglines

* Realigned dividends to
undarlying performance

of customers
« 35%in public sector work and 65% in
private sector contracts
innovation and Transformation Winning
technology capabilities programme culture
= Major investment in technology to + Dneyear into three-year = New Purpose, Vision and Values to
underpin next generation FM programme, progressing well deliver ‘The pxceptional, every day’
« Data anstytics and insight enable and + Discovery done, how in + One Mitie approach to
enhance austomer delivery phase doing business
workplace performance « Majority of back-office « A place to work where our
+ Connected Workspace offering transformation well advanced employees can thrive and be their
incraasingly important to » investing to genarate optimum best every day
customer proposition operating mode! s We recognise great work, reward and
» Pioneers in FM Innovation = C.£50m of overall run-rate savings by celebrate it
» Partnership with market leaders such March 2020 * A 10.7% improvement in staff
a5 Microsoft and Vodafone turnover In a transformational year

I —
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Chalrman’s statement

Focused transformation
in a challenging market

Derek Mapp, Chairman

“it has been a year of good progress
at Mitie, though not without its

challenges.”

Dear Mite Shareholder,

Overview

| am defighted to be presenting my first annual review to you as
Chairman of Mitle Group pic (Mitie).

This has been a year of discovery, transformation and change for
Mitie, ull set against a chailenging snd, at times, difficult market.
The outsourcing sector has been in the spotlight with the demise
of Carillion, and the challenges faced by many other firms across
the wider sector.

Outsourcing and, more specifically, Faciiities Management, Is a
relatively new industry where the sarly benefits derived from
economies of scale and expertise have now, largely, been eroded
away. Third, fourth and even fifth generation contracts have
resuited In low margins for providers and few cost give-aways for
customars, However, technology and scale remaln opportunities
for the sector and what has become clear is that these need to
be delivered In tandem with a wholesale industry-wide
correction In the pricing of risk; contracts need to correctly
account for price, quality, certainty and imeliness of delivery.
The collapse of Carillion, the challenges faced by almost every
other industry participant, as well as the fallure of many other
individual contracts to be delivered an budget, on time or at the
quality required, show that wholesale sector recalibration is
needed for the economics of FM to continue to be sustainable.
‘We are pleased to see that this is alreacly happening: as we
engage with governmant, prospective customars and existing
clients, the focus is moving subtly away from Just cost and
towards value,

6 wwwmitipcom | The exceptional, every doy

Strategy

Mhe is a strong resillent business, with a broad and diverse
client base, and a frontline workforce with spedafist skills,
expertise and experience. It is also now one year into a major
three-year transformation programme undér the stewardship of
CED, Phil Bentiey. All discovery work has been completed and
the business is now firmly in execution and delivery moda.

The four-pillared strategy launched in June 2017 is shaping the
direction of the Group and the business is continuing to make
significant nwvestments in technology, smart analytics and
data-fed insight.

Operationally the business has made major strides forward in
the last 12 months, removing complexity, duplication, upgrading
and simpiitfying processes, professionalising and understanding
the true drivers and levers of the business.

The accounting review completed in June 2017. Recommended
changes to reporting and the control eavironment are
progressing and being monitored by the Audit Committee.

The Financlal Reporting Councit's (FRC) Corporate Reporting
Review of the annual report and accounts of Mitie for the year
ended 31 March 2016 completed in November 2017, with no
furthar action required of the Company. Although the FRC
continue, under the Accountancy Scheme, to investigate
Members formerly involved with Mitie, Including Deloitte (the
Company’s former auditors), neither the Group nor curvent
management are the subject of this investigation.

We have also provided extensive material for the Financial
Conduct Authority {FCA) investigation in connection with the
timeliness of a profit warning announced by the Company oh
19 September 2016 and the manner of preparation and content
of the Company’s finandial information, position and results for




the period ending 31 March 2016, We are continuing to
co-operate with the FCA, but at this time have had no Indication
as to when thelr investigation may be conduded.

People & Community

1 would like to acknowledge that this has been a challenging year
for many of the people working at Mitie, especially for those
Interacting every day with our customers. Our own
transformation programme, the volatility in the share price and
wider sector turbulence have fuelled the uncertainty that comes
with change. Yet, daspite this, the team at Mitie have
demonstrated an Uunwavering commitment to providing
exeptional customer service and to going the extra mile, and 1
wouid like to persanally thank them for their dedication and
hard work. The Board and | all joined the Mitle management
team in going ‘back-to-the-floor’ for a shift in one of our
businesses, and we were Incredibly impressed by the
commitment and passion our colleagues have in all they do.

The Mitie Foundation, our charitable operation focusing on
employability, has had 2 good year. We continue to excel jn
getting those in our soclety that are hard to reach, with
disabilities, with criminal convictions and with significant barriers
to employment, back into work. For the communities In which
we work the Foundation plays a very Important role, and our
people and our customers can see the major iImpact it can have,
bath on the Hives of the individuals finding a job and on thase
who are engaged in the process. During the year we have
extended our programme with Lioyds Bank plc in Scotland, we
hawve engaged with the Co-op and look forward to working In
partnership with them to support wiinerable people, and we
have continued to work with a number of schools, prisons and
other charities. We belleve that the Foundation Is vitally
important to the sustainabilty of our business and the
continuing role that we wish to play In our communities,

Results

Adjusted revenue grew by 2.8% ~ a soiid resuit in the first year of
transformation, reflacting the good quality of our core business,
our markat-leading poskions and the strength of our broad
offering. Adjusted operating profit before other items, although
lower than the comparable FY 16/17 result, was in line with our
expectations and guidance, We delivered cost savings whilst
investing back into our core capabilities and customer service.
We continue to operate comfortably within our debt covenants
and our order book [s strong.

Dividends

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 2.67p, taking
the total dividends for the year to 4.0p. Going forward we expect
the interim dividend to be approximately one third of the
previous full-year dividend. We expect to hold the dividend flat
until, at least, completion of the transformation programme
when we will review the dividend policy.

Board and Corporate Governance

Since the commencement of my role as Chalrman in July 2017,
the compesition of the Board has been further reviewed, leading
to several key appointments during the year.

In July 2017, we announced the appointments of Jennifer
Duvalier and Mary Reilly as Non-Executive Dinectors, joining the
Board in July and September respectively. In November, we
welcomed Paul Woolf as Chief Financial Officer and Philippa
Couttie as a Non-Executive Direcror,

Additionally, as announced in February 2018, we appointed
Roger Yates as a Non-Executive Director with effect from

1 March 2018. Roger will succeed Larry Hirst as Senlor
Independent Director upon Larry’s retirement from the Board

at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) In July 2018 after more
than eight years’ service. § would like to thank Larry for his long
service to Mitie. Mark Reckitt will stand down from the Board at
the 2018 AGM after three years’ service. | would aiso like to
thank Mark for his contribution to Mitie. Mary Reilly will succeed
Mark as Chalr of the Audit Committee.

Our new appointments have sighificantly strengthened and
widened the areas of expertise and experience on the Board.

Outiook

It has been a year of good progress at Mitie, though not without
Its challenges. The magnitude of the Intemal restructuring ancd
the number cf things that have needed to be ‘fhwed’ are far more
significant than was earller anticipated. However, much of the
heavy-lifting is now complete, and we are moving through each
stage of our transformation methodically and systemically.

As the Fadilities Management sector slowly steadies itself, | am
confident that Mitle is increasingly welt placed 1o be an active
and significant participant in the future of the industry. Our clear
strategy, our focus, our strong Mmanagemant team, our scale and
our market leading positions all play to our advantage. We are
pioneers in the roli-out of technglogy, and this is further
strengthening our leading positlons in UK FM.

We expect to report modest top-line growth (pre-IFRS 15) next
year and we remain committed to medium-term margin
Improvemant to around 4.5%-5.5% in the future. We remain
confident In our ability to build shareholder value.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Further resding:

Market review on pp. 10-11

Our investment case onh p. 5
Defivering on our stretegy on p. 15
Chief Executive’s review on pp. 12-14

People & Community on pp. 38-31
Finance réview on pp. 44-49
Board of Directors on pp. 60-63
Nomination Commitee on pp. B4-87
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Business mode!

How we deliver value

to our stakeholders

We take care of the essentials brilliantly, so that our

customers can deliver the exceptional every day.

WHAT SETS US APART FROM QUR PEERS

WHAT WE DO

Engineering

@ Our people and culture

@ Our specialist UK focus

@ Our nation-wide
reach and full range

of services
@ Our service self-delivery

(?) our fexibility, offering
tallored services

Our proprietary
technology approach

T

to innovation

Property

@ The breadth and diversity Management

of our client base

We are the UK’s leading

FM business with market-
leading positions, scale

and a broad customer base.
Our expertise, care, technology
and insight create amazing
work environments, helping
our customers be exceptional
every day.

O

PMease see At a glance on p. 4 for the range of services Mitie
provides and Operating review on pp. 22-31 for infermation on
owr operational performance during FY 17/18

Furthar reading:

Sowegyinactiononpp. 1819 KPis on pp. 15-17

wastment case on pp. 5 Culturs and valuss on pp- 1and 38
Markit review on pp. 20-11 Risk oo pp. 3057

s
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Employees

We develop a great working environment where
our employees can thrive and be their best every day. We are proud
of our people, our diversity and the opportunities we offer for
career development.

Customers

We take care of the essentials brilllantly so that our customers can
deliver the exceptional every day. We save our customers money,
give them data-led Insight and build close working relationships
with them.

Shareholders

We are a businass In tumaround with strong management, an
excellent customer base and a clear strategy. We are committed to
strong financial management and the creation of shareholder value,

Communities

Through the Mitle Foundation we pravide opportunities for learning
and employment; we employ 49,000 people in the UK and are
proud of the scale and diversity of our workforce and the breadth of
skills and expertise our employees offer to our clients.

Suppliers

We are committed to the heaith of our supply chain;
through partnership, sustainabllity and the opportunity
to share our values,

The exceptional, everydoy | www.mitie.com S



Market review

A world of opportunity

We focus on self-delivery across the UK and are increasingly introducing
smart technology in our offering.

I

10

KEY MARKET DRIVERS

HOW WE ARE RESPONDING

FM industry

The UK remains Europe’s largest and most mature FM
market, as well as ks most sophisticated. As growth slows,
new opportunities are becoming more fimited and
confined 10 specialised services. Customers are focusing
on more flexible services and delivery options and are
showing a growing Interest in technology, sustainability
and employee wellbeing. As a result, there remains a
significant opportunity in the UK FM sector with an
estimated addressable opportupity of £45bn,

The past 12 months have been turbulent for the FM
industry with the fiquidation of Carillion, Caphta’s
announcement of its transformation programme, and
helghtened scrutiny into public sector outsourding
more generally,

Mitie Is the UK's largest facilities manager but with only a
4% market share, We are leaders in the development and
application of Connected Workspace technology and are
pioneers of next generation FM services,

Outsourcing is typically shielded from economic cycles,
benefiting from increased customer cost-cutting focus in
time of economic slowdown, and from contract expansion
In economic uptums. We believe our national footprint
and multi-service propasition remain compelling and a
clear differentiator.

Mitie has actively engaged with its customers and
stakehoiders during the last 12 months, providing context
and assurances. We have seen limited impact on our
operational business as a resuit of competitor or industry
activity, and we remain fully focused on our transformation
programme and the execution of our strategy.

www.mitlecom | The exceptionol, every day

UK economy

Brexit continues to generate uncertainty within the UK
economy. UK real GDP growth slowed from 1.9% in 2016
10 1.7% in 2017, the weakest since 2012 as consumer
spending siowed and businesses held back on investment.,
The expeacted growth in 2018 is 1.5%.

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development forecasts that economic growth in the UK
Is to remain modsst at 1.4% in 2018 and 1.3% in 2019,
owing to high uncertainties about the outcome of Brexit
negotiations. There is little slack in the economy following
years of strong growth, and unemployment is projected
1o remain below 5%. Infiation is projected 1o fall gradually
to slightly above the 2% target of the Bank of England by
the end of 2019.

Patential Brexit impacts are expected to be minimal at
Mitie, though could be felt in wage inflation and we have
budgeted for increasing remuneration costs In FY 18/19. In
Catering, our only business-to-customer division, we have
seen some impact from food price inflation. We have
responded to these pressures by offering menu variety
and a wellbeing focus.

More broadly, across the Group, we are reshaping our
business with a laser-focus on our key value drivers:
customers, costs, technology and people. The transformation
programene Is beginning to deliver significant cost savings
and efficiency gains, which will help us protect our margins.
Publie sector services constitute ¢.35% of Mitle’s business,
with our biggest client being the Home Office through

the recently won Detention & Escorting contract.

We believe there are further opportunities for Mitie

i the public sectar.




Customer expectations

Customer expectations are evolving with a growing
Interest in sustainabhiity, welibeing and technology,
reducing costs and improving the working environment
and employee satisfactian and health. Customers continue
to want different FM service options including single-line,
bundled, integrated and managed services.

Customers are Increasingly looking at fiexible workspace
solutions and demanding real-time data, analysis and
insights which potentially lead to improving the
performance of their estate as well as the performance
and wellbelng of their people,

We are developing and embedding across our own and
our customers’ businesses our Connected Workspace
technology. This includes an open source platform which
can integrate with multiple systems and data sources,
perform advanced data analytics and deliver solutions
through easy-to-use customer interfaces. We are
future-proofing the business thraugh technology and
have a number of Connected Workspace partnerships
aiready deployed.

Our nation-wide fiexible offering remains attractive and
the self-delivery model coupled with the smart use of
technology ensures that service expertise and consistent
delivery are at the core of every customer interaction.

We are ambitious for the future of the FM industry, our
customers and our emplovees. We have set out a clear
strategy to deliver growth and to pioneer next generation
facllities management.

Legislation

As a major employer, we have to comply with the
developing legal and regutatory frameworks in areas such
as taxation, the National Minimum Wage (NMW) and the
National Living Wage {NLW), the Apprenticeship Levy and
the Modern Slavery Act.

The NLW for workers aged 25 and over increased by 4.4%
from £7.50 to £7.83 from April 2018. The NMW and NLW
are essential baseline protections for all workers, and the
government remains committed to ensuring that all those
who are due the NMW or NLW receive it

The Apprenticeship Levy is required from UK employers to
fund new apprenticeships and charged at a rate of 0.5% of
an emplover’s payroll. By law all employers must offer a
workplace pension schemne to eligible employees.

Pressure oh margins for our core UK FM business will
likely continue as fabour costs increase {driven by rising
NMW, NLW, the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy
and increases in employer contributions for pension
auto-enrolment). The majority of our existing contracts
already contain a change-of-faw clause. However, goling
forward all our new contracts will contain such a provision,
helping us protect our margins. We are looking to utilise
the Apprenticeship Levy for frontline staff training and
deveiopment. We are also moving beyond a Tabour-plus’
model towards more value-added services. At the same
time, technology plays an increasing role in Mitie's future.

We paid £4m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in
FY 17/18.

The impact to Mitie from workplace pension scheme was
£4min FY 17/18 and in FY 18/19 it Is expected to be £8m.

The exceptiond), everyday | www.mitie.com



Chief Executive’s review

A year of discovery
and transformation

Phii Bentiey, Chief Executive

Dear Mitie Shareholder,

| am very pleased to be updating you on my first full year as CEQ
of Mitle Group pic. k has been a year of discovery, simplification,
transformation and significant change. And | firmly believe we
have made much progress in the last 12 months, buliding the
foundations that will ensure Mitie continues to be at the
forefront of the UK Fadilities Management industry.

1 have two primary roles as a CEO. The first is to lead and inspire
an incredible Mitie workforce of 45,000 peopie the length and
breadth of the country. From gritting the roads overnight when
the winter snows fall, to cleaning and polishing the floors of
some of the UK's most iconic institutions, to providing
sophisticated security schemes for high street retailers, to
feeding Britaln’s himgry workforce — | have been Impressed,
and occasionally humbied in the last 12 months by my Mitie
colleagues going that extra mile.

The second is to bulld a business that is fit for purpose and fully
responds ta the needs of our customers. We need to be true
partners to our cllents, sharing in value creation, benefiting
together from advances in technology and together, aspiring to
be truly exceptional in all that we do. That means me getting out
there talking with our customers and In the last year, | have
visited a huge number of them. So important ks the work of our
frontiine staff for our customers, that this year | tasked the
100-strong Mitle Group Leadership Team 2 each undertake s
frontline shift in our operstions. Listening, learning, hearing
about the Wdeas our staff and customers have for how we could
do better Is invaluable in shaping our future.

1 believe if the strategy s right, our staff are engaged and our
customers are happy — we have the recipe for success. This will
then deltver long-term shareholder value.

12 wenimitiecom | The exceptional, every doy

“We are Implementing a major
transformation programme,
addressing challenges and
opportunities as they arise, whilst
focusing on our medium-term
strategic goals.”

Strategy and transformation

The strategy that we set out this tdme last year has provided a
strong framework for our actions in the last year. We are
executing a wholesale transformation of the Group in a
chaflenging market. We are actively engaging with our private
and public sector customers, our regulators and our other
stakeholders to help bring about the changes our sector needs
to thrive, and there are a significant number of projects and
deliverables that we are driving forward. By using the four
strategic pillars of our overarching strategy — customer, cost,
technology and people —we have remalned focused on the task
in hand and | am confident in our abllity to deliver on

our ambitions,

» Putting our customers st the heart of our business
We have put a major facus on our customers. Mitle has a diverse
and impressive list of over 3,000 major clients and we firmly
helleve making them happy will drive our own business success.
Historically Mitle engaged with its customers in a somewhat
fragmented way, creating confusion for them and making client
servicing as well as cross-selling for us, more difficult. To address
this, we have undertaken a full sudit of our customer portfolio;
we have centralised the commercial and sales function so that
our customers have ane primary point of contact with the
business; we have implemented one CRM system that gives us
valuable, accurate insight across our business units; and we are
deploying a standardised intemal approach to angagement,
datafiow and reporting. We have also centralised our bid
processes and have initiated a formal New Business Commitiee
for ali commercial opportunities. And we have rofled out a
Group-wide Net Promoter Score programme to understand
what our customers really think. The outcome of this is that we
have more efficient, less costly, more customer-focused teams;




and our customers are increasingly enjoying simpler access, ease
of navigation around Mitie and greater visibility of their account
team. We have more stil to do but we expect to reap further
benefits from these actions in the year ahead. Our Net Promoter
Score 3Cross our top 100 accourntts grew by 17 points and the
revenue from our top 40 customers grew 9% year-on-year.

P> Transforming our cost base

In June 2017, we launched Project Helix, to kick start changing
the DNA of Mitie. This ambitious three-year programme wolves
the simplification of our structure, the standardisation of
internal processes, the rationallsation of our systems and the
removal of spans of management and tayers of inefficiencles.
We knew that there was considerable work to be done, but we
also knew that it would deliver significant cost savings and
operational upside, The scale of the task Is larger than we
originaily anticipated, but we belleve the upside will be
greater t00.

We have aimnst completed the full transformation of our
Finance functijon, including outsourcing our back-cffice
processes to Genpact in Kolkata. We are near completion of our
HR restructure with a new centralised HR organisational
structure and a new Group-wide HR operational system (SAP),
replacing muktiple legacy systems. We have fully coltapsed the
highly fragmented ‘Mitie earn-ouwt model’ and we are intending
to move from over 50 jegal entities towards one operational
reporting entity In FY 18/19, greatly simplifying our internal
processes and systems, reducing intemal recharging and
streamiining aimost every aspect of the business. We have built
a small dedicated transformation project office, tasked with the
sequencing and coordination of the Group's turnaround.
Working closely with the Executive Leadership Team, they will
focus in the year ahead on our IT and Engineering Services
technology transformation programmes.

As at March 2018, this programme has delivered annualised cost
savings of £13 2m, and we expect this to rise to annualised cost
savings of £50m by Manch 2020.

We are one year Into our three-year programme and we have
more to do here but our ambition remains to be the most
efficient, value-focused technology-led company In our industry.

P> Building 3 winning culture and developing and

retaining our people
Mitie is a people business, and our aim s to build a company
where each of us can thrive and be the best that we can be,
every day.
We have launched our new “Vision, Purpose, Promises and
Values' acrass the organisation under the banner headline of
The exceptional, every day. This articulates and embodies who
we are, what makes Mitie great and where we are taking the
company. R recognises the importance of cur people, our
culture, o customers, the role technology plays In our future,
and the Journey we are on. They articulate the giue that binds
us. This is an important step forward as we seek to deliver ‘One
Mitie’. Looking ahaad we wili be embedding these new values in
all aspects of pur organisation, including our annual
performance review, our recruitment, in all our marketing and
customer communications and in our external engagement. You
can find further information on our new Vision, Purpose,
Promises and Yalues on pages 1 and 38.

In the last year, we relaunched our Group Leadership Team
Forum and we have overhauled our internal communications
programme. We were also delighted to partner with Salary
Finance, aunching an innovative new loan scheme for our staff,
which has had a significant uptake with over 1,400 empioyees
benefiting, helping our people with financial management and
removing the need for staff to use pay day lenders. As part of
the HR transformation, we have appointed a leading third-party
provider to manage the end-to-end process for hiring temporary
resources. We expect efficiency improvements as well as cost
savings from using the new provider. Looking forwand we will be
rolling out a new Learning and Development programme, an
executive mentoring and development scheme and we will be
looking to simplify reward and recognition across the Group.

In April 2018, we partnered with Aon Hewitt to run Mitie’s 2018
People Survey to set the baseline of our employee engagement,
} am pleased to say that the completion rate was 30% against
19% the year before ~ almost 15,000 Mitle employees have
responded to the survey. In a period of significant change,
employee engagement improved, but only marginally, and we
have much more to do here. We have evaluated the results and
identified the priorities and will be implementing action plans to
drive the change needed to become a great place to work.

Mitie champions apprenticeships, and this year we employed
555 apprentices across the Group, 540 of whom were supported
through the Apprenticeship Levy. We believe we are well

placed to offer exceptional opportunities for those seeking
apprenticeships in a wide variety of roles, and we are planning
to increase the number and variety of apprenticeships that

we offer.

P> Iinvesting In technology to make Mitie the sasiest
company to do business with

Technology will be a core enabler for Mitle and its customers in

the future. The FM industry ks yet to capitalise fully on the

benefits of better technology, but Mitie is at the forefront of

early adoption.

Our Connected Workspace technology — our ‘smart’ proposition
— helps buildings and peopte perform better. it ploneers the
combined use of sensors, data, expertise and intelligent insight
to give our customers information that Is irvaluable, helping
them to Improve the performance of their estates and their staff.
In the last 12 months Connected Workspace has been part of
29 successtul Mitie bids and there are 44 further connected
workspace propasitions In the pipeline. Becoming a technology-
enabled business through our Connected Workspace offering,
we believe, will be transformational for Mitie. See more on the
Connected Workspace on pages 18 and 19.

Leadership

Our Executive Leadership Team Is now almost complete with the
appointment in the last year of a new Group CFO, Group HR
Director, Group Director of Corporate Affairs & Investor
Relations, Group Marketing & Strategy Director and new MDs
for our Engineering Services and Cleaning & Environmental
Services businesses. These appointments have brought valuable
blue~chip and change skills to the senior team, We have also
attracted a number of experienced senior managers to the
Group Leadership Team during the year and the business Is
benefiting from their expertise, knowledge and diversity.
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Chief Executive’s review continued

Business performance

This, undoubtedly, has been a year of significant change for
Mitle. We are implementing a major transformation programme,
addressing challenges and opportunities as they arise, whilst
focusing on our medium-term strategic goals. This has all been
set against the backdrop of a challenged industry in the
spotlight. Despite this, we have grown our revenues, reduced
our average dally net debt position and won some major new
customers and contracts.

We are part way on our joumey and we are making good progress,
Adjusted revenue was 2.8% up at £2.2bn on the prior year,
although adjusted operating profit before other items reduced to
£77.1m from £82.0m. The order book grew 2% to £4.5bn and is
reported under IFRS 15 guidelines which mandate us to include
only fored-term contracted work and ewciude variable work.

Carg & Custody has been the stand-out division this year, winning a
notable £525m 10-year contract to provide Detention & Escorting
setvicas for tha Home Office. Engineering Services and Security
have also had a good year In terms of revenues and contract wins.
Ceaning & Environmental Services, pleasingly too, has stabilised
sales after a recent decline. Property Management has not
performed as well as hoped, though this has in part been a resuft
of the distraction of a tesminated sales pracess; the business is
beginning now to focus on key sockal housing opportunities.

Professional Services continues to win consuitancy and project
management work, though this has in part been offset by the
full-year impact of waste contract Josses in the previous year.
Of particular note is the traction we are how seeing in our

Connected Workspace proposition, moving from pilot phase into
expansion of initial engagement with a number of customers,
such as a European financial services company, an energy drink
company and a finandal services group. Our Technology and
Remote Operating Centre in Bracknelt opened this year and
provides a perfect forum to showcase pur pwn smart, connected
technology to clients.

Balance sheet management has been a core focus for us this year
and will continue to be going forward. We are committed to
reducing our customer Invoice discounting, nonmalising debtor and
creditor days, asking clients for falr payment terms, streamilining
our billing processes and dellvering faster cash collection. Our
efforts have seen a notable dedline in average daily net debt and
we ane operating comfortably within our debt covenants.

Looking ahead

Change and transformation are never easy or without challenges.
Mitie is fundamentally a strong business, with great customers,
outstanding staff and a real opportunity ahead of it. We want to
be shaping the AM industry as it cantinues to evolve, using our
unrivalled expertise, our pioneering technology and our ambition
10 propel ourselves forward. We have more to do, but we are on
track and | am pleased with the progress to date. With an uptick
in revenue, a normalising balance sheet, a good order book, a
focused execution plan and experienced leadership, | belleve
Mitie is well positioned for growth in the upcoming years.

Phil Bentley
Chiet Engcutive

Net Promoter Score (NPS)

NPS overview

The NPS methodology uses direct customer feedback to measure
the willingness of customers to recommend a company’s
products or sefvices to others. We are commitied to delivering
excellent customer experience in support of our purpase to
help our customer be axceptional every day. InFY 17/18,

we started embedding NPS into our operations as one of our
primary customer-focused Kpls.

Qur approach

We conducted research between January and March 2018
with our top 100 customers {who account for over 50% of
our aggregate revenues), asking them to fill in a short online
survey to help us understand thelr opinions and to capture
an NPS rating for Mitle overall.

How likely would you be to recommend Mitia to a friend or colleague?

NPS score 12
months ago

Current
NPS score

Year-on-year NPS
performance

+17 o Detractor

Our performance: overall Group NPS score

Our NPS is a negative 10; however, it ks an improvement
of 17 points in the last 12 months — a meaningful shift in
customers’ views of Mitle and a testament that we are on
the right track to have a positive Impact on pur customers.

Outlook and next steps

We will roll out a more extensive programme to cover a wider
and deeper section of our customer base. We anticipate that
achieving improvements in NPS will become increasingly
challenging but it is an essential part of our customer
engagernent strategy, NPS will be bullt Into our tralning plans,
ensuring our people are informed and empowered to
consistently deliver a great customer experience.

- O
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Stratagy

Delivering on
our strategy

Our four strategic imperatives frame our objective of growing customer lifetime value
by offering compelling propositions and delivering the basics brilliantly.

Customer

People

Image removed

* We put our customers at the heart of our
business and have introduced a Net
Promoter Score programme to track our
performance

» We build dose working relationships with
customers to understand their needs and
deliver lifetime value

+ We deliver the basics brilliantly so we can
then cross-seli, create, build and tailor
compelling offerings for customers

Image removed

+ We are transforming Mitie Into a place to
work where our employees can thrive and
be thek best every day

¢ We offer opportunities for individual
leamning, development and progression and
reward great work

+ We empower our pecpie to be free to make
decislons that improve our customer service,
every day

Trust and respect among all our
employees Irespective of thelr seniority
are an essential cornerstone for our success

Cost

Technology

Image removed

¢ Project Helix Is changing Mitle’s DNA to
make it the most efficient company in our
industry, with the lowest cost base

+ We are embedding the Mitle Way of
doing things consistently across
the Group

* We are instilling the ‘One Mitie” culture to
deltver an unrivalled service

Image removed

+ We are creating standardised platforms
and applications across our business and
for our customers

= We are using predictive analytics and
algorithms in a unique way to generate
new insights and opportunities for our
customenrs

= We are focused on developing tailored
seamless customer interfaces

+ We are pioneers in the delivery
of next generation FM

The exceptional, every day | wwwanitie.com
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Key Performance indicators

Monitoring our progress

Adjusted revenue® growth (%)

Description
Revenue growth reflects the
heaith of our order book, our

2.8%

£2,140m £2,199m

How we did it

We are one year into our three-year
transformation programme to

Outiook

Our plan Is to achieve
3%-4% revenue growth in

ability to upsell, pipeline of re-engineer Mitie’s DNA. We are the medium term.
potential opportunities, our bullding a workd-class commercial
win and retention rates and tearn, investing In customer service
:‘uerbroader reputation in andt:chndosvnd ::dﬂvemwe
sector. retention and winh rates. are
FY16/17 FYA7/A8  ambedding One Mitie approach to
waorking with our customers and
winning new business.
Adjusted operating profit™? margin (%)
Description 3Ob Howwadid it Outlook
The UK FM industry Is a - ps Our unwavering focus i on achieving Our medium-term plan is
mature market characterised 3.8% 35% internal cost savings through our o improve operating profit
by low margins. Historically, Project Helbx. In FY 17/18, whilst we Margin to 4.5%-5.5%.
Mitle has not been disciplined achieved some of the cost savings we
when bidding for contracts or had targeted, we also invested some of
with s own costs. this back Into customer service and
Internal capabiiities.
FY16/17 FY17f18
Average dally net debe (Em)
Description £50 How we did It Outiook
Our balance sheet health is m ‘We reduced the average daily net debt Proactive management
of paramount importance to £336m try £50m due to the £24m benefit from wifl be an ongoing theme.
the long-term sustainability of £286m higher average invoice discounting and Over the medium term,
our business. Improved working capital performance, we aim to continue to
reduce our average daily
net daix.
FY16/17 FY17/18
Net debt/EBITDA (x)
Description <3 OO Howwe did it Outioak
Period end net debt/EBITDA . x The period-end net detrt increased by Our objective is to bring
ratio ks one of the debt 1.76x 1.98% £46.3m to £193.5m as we focused on average net debt/EBITDA
covenants used to assess our . normalising working capital and to within 2x over the
financlal position. reducing the use of involce discounting medium term.
at the end of the financlal year. We
continue to operate comfortably within
our debt covenants.
FY16/17 FY17/18
1 WWMMWH:Mmm»uhuﬂlrfﬂm-ﬂiﬁndﬂ:ﬂﬂpqpﬂuryunu.
1 Belore ftems.
3. Order baok for both yesrs reported under (FRS 15 guidelines which mandate us to induds only fwed-term o weork and exchudk work.
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In the first year of our three-year transformation programme, the year

of discovery, we reviewed and identified relevant indicators to drive

the execution of our strategy and create value for all our stakeholders.

Order book® (Em)

Description 2 4(y How we did it Outiook

We are reporting the order . (o) The order book grew 2.4%: ES order We expect our order book

book under IFRS 15 guidelines £4.352m £4,495m book remained stable while the order to grow moderately

for both FY 17/18 and Fy f book within Care & Custody grew as we embed our

16/17. This requires us to significantly on the back of the Connected Workspace

include only fixed-term Detention & Escorting contract win. offering in bids and

contracted work and excludes These more than offset declines in contracts and drive our

variable work, such as catering order books in other divisions. core businesses forward.

point-of-sale, FY16/17 FY17/18

Net promoter score (index)

Description + 17 How we did it Outiook

NPS Is a2 measure for gauging Movement of +17 points Is a significant This will be a core focus

the customer’s overall improvement and is testament to the and we will be further

satisfaction with a company’s - significant investmant we have made developing our CRM

product or service and the in our customers this year. programme, our customer

customer’s loyalty to -10 communications and our

the brand. engagement this year.

FY16/17 FY17/18

Staff turnowver (%)

Description 1 0 7(y How we did it Outiook

We measure the number of - . o Our voluntary turnover has reduced In FY 18/19, we will buiid on

empioyees leaving us 27.5% year-on-year due to investment in our the work to date, introduce

voluntarlly over a 12-month frontiine managers; we are getting better technology to engage

period against our 16.8% better at hiring to common standards with our employees, roll out

overall headoount. and introducing SAP Success Factors a naw leaming platform to
has improved our onboarding continue to develop talent
experience leading to a mone Informed and streamiine hiring.

FY16/17 FY12/18  induction. We have launched new We Wil be refiacting our
common values. new values in a new set of
Mitie ‘behaviours’,

Leamning and development spend (£/per head)

Description How we did It Outiook

Our jearming and development Using the Apprenticeship Levy We will use a ‘Levy First’

spend per head covers a we have invested more in our people approach to fund training,

combination of compllance year-on-year providing development utilising the new Learning

training and development opportunities aligned to our Hub to facilitata digital

training using internal and NOT career pathways. learning and ensuring we

external resources. can increase the

AVAILABLE
FY16/17 FY17/18

FY 16/17: Data unavailable.

The exceptional, everyday | www.mitie.com
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Stratagy in action

Shaping the future of a
technology-led Facilities Management

company

Technology, customers and the Connected Workspace

The world of Facilities Management is evolving fast. The sector
has faced a number of recent challenges, but with those
chaflenges we believe comes Immense apportunity as the
Industry takes stock, recallbrates and moves forward, Mitie is
ambitious for its future, its customers and Its employees and has
set out a clear strategy to deliver growth and to ploneer next
generation facllities management. The Group's strategy focuses
on four key pillars, customers, people, costs and technology. All
will play a critical role in differentiating our business. Mitie’s
vision i to defiver the exceptional, every day, through
outstanding customer service, supporting and motivating our
excellent people and, critically, the application of

advanced technology.

We strongly batleve that technology will be the comerstone
upon which our business delivers long-term, sustainable value
for our shareholders and astomets. By focusing on our
technology developmert, we are improving our own efficlency
and systems, indirectly enhancing our service delivery as well as
developing leading-edge technology-enabled propositions
directly for our customers. Mitle is proud ta be at the forefront
of technology-enabled next-generation FM,

Our Connected Workspace philosophy Is already being
embedded across our own business and across our client
proposition. We are beginning to see the Initlal benefits of this
approach as the Connected Workspace has been a core
component of 10% of our significant iIFM or multi-service wins.
And we sre beginning to see how deployment of this smart
technology is dramatically changing our own, and our clients’
working environments. Connected Workspace Is helping
organisations creste high performance work environments by
improving the performance of their buildings and the weltbeing
and performance of thelr people.

18 www.nltlecom | Tha exceptional every day

At Its core, Connected Workspace Is a technology platform of
linked products and services. It includes:

* a‘data take’ that collects, combines and processes data from
multiple sources and business functions. Advanced analytics
are then applied to this pool of data to provide new Insights,
improving bullding performance, people praductivity, the
working environment and cost to deliver. it is open sourced so
non-Mitie apps, portais and data sources can aiso be
connected to the piatform;

= an analytical portal through which information, analytics and
insights are managed, communicated and acted upon. This
provides real-time visibliity and management of often large
complex operational estates — in a way that has before now
not been possible; and

» user apps which provide the abliity for buliding users to
interact with their environments.

Mitie’s development of the Connected Workspace technology
platform is market-Jeading. it is designed to allow connection to
any external data or workflows, is highly scalable, is purpose-
built for the specific needs of the FM and Corporate Real Estate
industries and has been developed with world-class technology
pantners such as Microsoft.

By harnessing data, creating insights and applying those insights
to improve the performance of bulldings and peopie, the
Connected Workspace technology platform is demonstrating
significant benefits for both Mitie and our customers through:

* improving cost control and reducing downtime: decisions
become real-time, data-driven and predictive which reduces
the cost to setve and increases the performance and
resilience of facities;

= greater efficiency and higher productivity: previously hidden
data and insights enable processes, systems and resources to
be fine-tuned to optimise efficiency and productivity;

= talent attraction and retention: people are empowered to
adjust their working environments and services to suit their
own personal preferences. Life is mate easler as friction is
removed from everyday activity; and

» improved governance, compliance and reduced risk:
transparency of information radically improves govemance as
information, processes and performance are easy to locate,
monitor and evidence.




Image removed

InFY 17/18, Mitle was awarded a three-year contract with
the Co-op following a competitive tender process. Co-op’s
support centre in Manchester, One Angel Square, is one of
Europe’s most sustainable buildings and is built to a
BREEAM ‘outstanding’ rating, achieving a record BREEAM
score on opening. Demanstrating s commitment to
working with the Co-op, Mitie will make a significant
Investment in implementing its Connected Workspace
technology at One Angel Square. Co-op and Mitie will
collaboratively Implement tailored technology to capture
and manage building usage data. This includes monitoring
a number of environmental elements such as temperature
and occupancy. Mitie will hamess this data and use the
insight to make both the Co-op’s buildings smarter and the
working {ives better for its employees. The initlatives will
improve space utilisation for workstations and meeting
rooms, and enhance employee wellbeing through active
environment control and wellbeing monitoring.

Connected Workspace has been part of 29 successful Mitie bids
and there are 44 further Connected Workspace propositions in
the pipetine. Further, Mitle cumently has nine dedicated pilots
deployed, with a further 14 in the planning stage. 5,000 sensors
have been installed providing two million messages a day into
the data lake.

Following the announcement in June 2017 that we were
working with Microsoft to delfiver on Mitie's vision for the
Connected Workspace, the relationship has deepened.

Microsoft has provided the expertise, skills and technology
infrastructure to support the development and roll-out of the
core Connected Workspace technologles. We have accelerated
the development of Mitie’s Azure-based data lake, the ingestion
of data from both Internet of Things (IoT) devices and
operational platforms.

Mitle and Microsoft teams have collaborated to ensure
Connected Workspace design and architecture are both open by
design and secure by design, enabling Mitie to integrate with
many buliding management systems and loT device
manufacturers, as well as acting as an integration platform on
Azure. This strong and strategic coflaboration will aliow the
Connected Workspace to enable a safe secure dient experience
for all of our customers.,

Becoming a technology-enabled business through our
Connected Workspace offering, we believe, will be
transformational for Mitie and for the industry as a whole. We
are comimitted to continuing to reduce costs for our customers,
improve thelr employee experience, reduce our own cost to
serve and improve the margin structure of our business. We are
excited about a technology-enabled FM sector, and we are
committed to being at the forefront of the future of Facliities
Management.
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We are built on
integrity and trust

Integrity and trust are at
the heart of all we do.

Our employees are the face
of the company. We treat
others as we would like to
be treated. Our people are
proud to work for Mitie.

Joshua
Groundskeeper,
Landscapes
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Operating review

Operating review

To enable an effective comparison of our performance, adjusted
revenue and adjusted operating profit are presented for both FY
17/18 and FY 16/17 as Alternative Performance Measures
{APMs). FY 17/18 adjusted numbers are presented on pre-JFRS
15 basis. FY 16/17 adjusted numbers are presented as per last
year's APM, for continulng operations, restated to reflect
changes in management reporting implemented in 2018 for
certain business unit activities transferving between segments,
The order book is presented for continuing operations in line
with IFRS 15 requirements for both FY 17/18 and FY 16/17.

Engineering Services

Mitie Engineering Services (ES) Is a leading provider of
enginecring services in the UK, defivering technical and bullding
maimenance services across a wide range of sectors and real
estate assets.

We focus on customer experience, providing the best
technology-integrated solutions and building long-term
customer relationships. To complement our core offering, the
division also supplles specialist services In heating, cooling,
lighting, water treatment and buliding controls.

Performance
£m 1718  FY16/17 Chonge, %
Revenue Reported” 840.7 789.1 6.5

Adjucted® 8338 8037 3.7

Operating profit/{loss)
before other ittems Reported’ 458  {4.5) am

Adjusted® 355 330 76

Order book® 2064220952  (15)

1. FY 17718 reported on post-iFRS 15 besis and FY 16/17 o # reported besis,
2. Proganted on an Aternative Performance Mewsure (APM) basis: FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 par prior yasr APM.

3. Order book for both yeaws reported under IFRS 15 guidelines which
mandate us to Inckade only fived-derm contracted work and exckide
varisbie work,

Key stats
= W look after 2.5m assets for our customers.

* Wa handie c.1m reactive calls every year within ES.
* 2,700 engineers.
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Operational performance

in FY 17/18, we enhanced the quality and efficiency of the service we
provide to customers by creating more effective operational teams
and streamniining Internal processes; in FY 18/19 we will be further
irvesting in state-of-the-art technology to continue this progranwna.
As part of the overall re-shaping of the Engineering Services business,
we have focused an reducing layers and increasing spans of cortrol.
As part of our One Mitie approach we have centralised our Group
Sales team, who service our key national acoounts, to ensure our
customers receive the highest quality of care and service.

During the yeag, we continued to invest in our key dient

relationships. We also introduced Cllent Operations Bxecutive roles

(aligned with the sales structure) to drive dear acoountabliity for the

overall performance for our largest and mast vakuable customers.

To support our growth strategy, we have embarked on a

multi-year transformation as part of the Mitie-wide Project Helix

programime and we are already beginning to see the benefits of

this. In FY 17/18, we faced a number of challenges in our

operational delivery, but we are now starting to see major

impravements in engineer utilisation and service delivery.

We have made notable progress In the following focus areas:

« clearty defining our core operational metrics;

s sharing best practice on-job planning for our moblie workforce;

» redesigning the organisation for consistency and
standardisation; and

* listaning more to customer feedback.

Engineering Services in action

Image removed

We have seen impressive iImprovements within our Fleet
aperations, where we reduced our hire vehicles by 247,
resulting in a 33% cost reduction. We have seen cost savings
of £100,000 through rigorous monitoring and Improvement
plans, which resulted In fewer accldents and insurance
claims. We won the ROSPA award in 2017 for the health and
safety record on two of our big contracts. We have also seen
2 20% reduction in RIDDOR Accident Incident Rate per 1,000
employees over the past 12 months.




As part of the Engineering Services transformation programme,
we launched Mitie Innovats, which was introduced at the end of
2017. A pilot reglon in London was chosen to test and improve
initiatives before roliing thern out to the rest of our national
team, As part of the initial roll-out, we conducted 20+ ride-
alongs with our mobile and sike-based engineers to understand
how they went about their day and how we could help provide a
better experience for customers and our frontline teams. In the
eight-week period following the launch of Mitie Innovate, we
saw significant improvements In operational KPis from the
frontline; for example, our engineers were 6% more productive
(completing more jobs per productive hour), with some
sub-regions improving by 20%. Their travel time raduced by 12%
with some sub-regions showing a decrease by 30%; and the
first-time fix rate improved by 4% with some sub-regions
improving the first-time fix rate by 13%.

The Integration of our core workforce has created a highly
flexible and skilled team with optiral support systems.
Workfiow management for scheduling, tasking and billing will
start to be introduced In FY 18/19 and our engineers will receive
enhanced training and tools to enable thern to continue to
deliver the highest quality of service.

In the future, technology will be 3 key enabler for Engineering
Services. it will be deployed to link eutputs to the Connected
Workspace, genensting actionable data insights and providing
the most responsive and valued secvice In the market. By using a
combination of existing bullding systems and environment sensors,
along with energy, asset and workplace data, we are providing
tallored solutions to satisfy sach client’s unique requirements.

This year, Engineering Services won a multi-year contract for ail
Co-op’s corporate sites, a 5.5-year extension with Heathrow
Alrport and further work with the Scottish Government. We also
retalned a significant contract with an NHS Trust. These wins and
adensions offset the previously announced loss of a top-20
contract and of another, due to a merger.

Financiaf performance

The Engineering Services division reported adjusted revenue
of £833.8m, an increase of 3.7% on the prior year of £803.7m,
driven by good performances from bath its core customer
contracts {growth of 3%} as well as growth in its projects
business_ Adjusted operating profit before other items was
£35.5m (FY 16/17 £33.0m) reflecting revenue growth and higher
€705S margins on net new contract wins versus losses. Cost
savings from Project Helix were largely reinvested back into
Improverment in customer service levels, staff training

and technology.

Notwithstankiing the loss of an Important top 20 contract, the
outlook remains positive. We achieved a number of contract
extensions and new business wins during the year, meaning the

order book remaing relstively stable at £2.1bn (FY 16/17: £2.1bn).

The business is also planaing a major investment into its
workflow technology over the next couple of years which will
improve the experience of our customers whilst also simplifying
the business enabling a reduction In costs to serve,

Outlook

The significant focus within the Engineering Services division for

FY 18/19 will be on our ongoing transformation, We have

commenced the sooping phase, looking into asset and workflow

scheduling. We are coming to the end of the discovery phase for

the workflow transformation programme.

The objective of this stage of the transformation is to fully

upgrade our end-to-end service delivery, from job recelpts to

billing, via process re-engineering, operational restructure and

technology implementation. This will:

+ improve first-time fix and customer experience by having the
right detalls at enquiry;

= increase efficiency through better resource planning by
matching right-skilled resource to the job;

« protect revenue and increase bitling accuracy through
automating time-sheeting and proof of work;

¢ improve delivery through better engineering capacity
planning, upsidlling labour and supply chain management; and

» better engage, inspire and manage our people.

Security

The Security division comprises Security Management, Front of
House, Document Management, and our empioyee vetting
business, Proclus.

Performance

em PYIZ/AR Fy 15117 Chonge, %

Revenue Reported* 4320 4037 70
Adjusted® 4317 4037 &9

Operating profit

before other kems  Reported® 25 178 545
Adjusted” 25.2 216 167

Order bool® 6408 7243 (11.5)

1. FY 17/18 reported on post-FRS 15 basis and FY 16/17 on u reported basls.

2. Presantad on an ARnrmative Performance Measure (APM) basis: FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior year APM.

3. Ordher book for both years reported under RS 15 guidelines which mendate
us b0 Include anly fomd-wrm contsacted work and ssciude variable work.

Key stats

* We monitor 23,000 lone worker devices at MiTac

« c.7m visitors welcomed by our Front of House teams.
» 13,000 security personnet.
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Operating review continued

Operational performance

Our Security business Is one of the market-leaders in the UK. The
combination of security-refated businesses within a single division
allows 15 to develop our technology capabiiities and solutions ina
collaborative and integrated way. Our goal i to bulld upon and
strengthen our mariet position; continue to Influence buying
behaviours; and develop fonger-term strategic partnerships with our
customers through Innovative and technology-led operating models.

Our strategy Is to provide a sustainable, high-quality service to our
customess that mitigates the risks they face through empiaying
highly skilled personnel, enhanced and supplemented by integrated
technologies. This enables our services to fiex and be deployed to
meet our customers’ Individual risk profiles at any given time.,

By providing innovative proprietary tachnology to drive a
risk-based deployment model, we save management time and
increase efficiency. This results In effective front-line security
deployment, complemented by the tatest technology. Our
clients benefit from 8 greater retumn on investment, excelient
customer service and an improved risk frrmework

We are currently the second largest secusrity services provider in
the UK with 2 €.12% market share. We integrate and deliver a
full suite of services and products, inchuding security personnei,
emergency moblle response solutions, fire and security systems
Inclusive of CCTV/alarm installation, and maintenance and
remote monhtoring from our convergence security operations
centre (MiTec). This sulte of services is supported by a risk-based
approach and industry-leading risk tools. We are the market
leading provider in the Transport, Aviation and Retall sectors,

in FY 17/18, Mitie’s Securlty division has renewed or expanded
several major contracts, induding with DP World Southampton,
a major transport sector client, a8 major London Alrport, Fujitsu,
Durham University, Springfieids Fuels Limited and TNT. Customer
retention rate improved to 93.5% against 84% In the prior year
Notable new contract awards in FY 17/18 include a UX retalier, a
global delivery services company and The Roval Academy of Arts.

Document Management has had another robust year with dlilent
retention running at 98% and good organic growth. Key new
customers include a3 global investment bank and an imternational
Iaw firm. We have seen the document management business
recognised with two national PFM awards for work with our
clients, PwC and Linklaters. Document Management [aunched
two new product lines in FY 17/18: document production and
eaminer services, both focused on servicing the legal sector.
The business has continued to develop its national coverage and
now has a full-service offering ranging from managed print
solutions and cutsourcing of mail room activities, to a complete
custornised restructuring of document workflows and processes.

Our Front of House business, Signature, has had a good year,
refocusing its market offering. The business has progressed
under new leadership and moved towards a closer alignment
with our wider security buciness, an example of this being the
award of The Royal Academy of Arts contract. Our new identity,
Signature, signifies a clear change in both the culture and future
direction of the business and ts underpinned by several
impactful progremmes to drive growth and sustainability,
particularly in new business wins and client retention.
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Security Services In action
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In 2017, Procius, our vetting services business, completed an
Impressive number of checks for the Aviation industry customers,
vetting 736 pllots, 2,508 cabin crew and 925 ground staft,

Procius, our employee vetting business, which & one of the UK's
largest vetting providers, and the leader in the Transport and Avtation
Sectors for pre-employment screening and criminal records checking
services, continues to deliver strong growth. in FY 17/18, we saw
increasing demand for our services across existing key customers in
the Aviation Sector dlong with good contract wins, inckiding a
market leading logistics company, a leading company in the travel
and tourism sector and a Premier League football chub.

The security market remains highly competitive, We continue to
focus on delivering sustainable growth through strong customer
engagement, the provision of a comprehensive service offering
and the promotion of the benefits of risk-based technology-led
solutions. We strive to attract and retain cur customers through
the provision of exceptional service.

Financial performance

The Security division grew its adjusted revenue by 6.9% in

FY 17/18 to £431.7m. This was achieved through new sales wins
and record low contract terminations (with a retention rate

of 93.5%). Adjusted operating profit before other items
Increased 16.7% 1o £25.2m with operational efficiencies and the
growing use of technology adding to the impact of the improved
top-line performance. Outside the maln securfty businesses,
good performances from Document Management and Front of
House also contributed to the overall profit growth.

Innovation remains a core focus in Security. in FY 17/18 we
developed and expanded our contract with a leading
supermarket chain, with the introduction of SMART risk

. tachnology and 5,000 lone worker devices, alding the full

implementation of a risk-based deployment model.




Technology-driven accounts now miake up £.12% of the business.
The order book is £640.8m, down from £724.3m, as the unwinding
of large multi-year contracts more than offset new wins.

Within tha Security business, technology and the Connected
Workspace play an Increasingly important role for both our
existing and future customers. We have secured several excellent
technology-enabled contracts from developing existing and new
customers, inchuding contract wins with an engineering company
and a major UK retailer. The control centre for the 10-year Home
Office Detention & Escorting contract won within Care & Custody
will be jocated at MiTec in Belfast. We saw continued growth of
contracts with legacy Fire customers, a telecommunications
comparny and a leading finandial services customer, and we also
secured new maintenance customers in the NHS and with Rexel.

Outiook

We are optimistic and ambitious for the year ahead. Our focus
continues to be on growing our Security business, offering
custorners talored solutions, Increasing the use of technology to
ensure a safe environment and provide seamiess operations and
utilising dats and analytics generated through our proprietary
Connected Workspace offering.

Professional Services
Professional Sesvices (PS) brings together Mitie’s consultancy
services. This includes our Energy, Water and Sustainability
business, our Waste and Environmental consultancy and our
Corporate Real Estate and Risk and Resillence operations. it ks also
developing our Connected Workspace offering for the Group.

Performance

£m WA1IA8 FY16/17 Change X

Revenue Reported® 902 966 {6.6)
Adjuste® 908 966 (6.0)

Operating profit

before other tems  Reported: &5 67 {30
Adjusted® 70 93 (24.7)

Order book® 755 815 (7.4)

1. FY 17/18 reported on past-IFRS 1S basts and FY 16/17 on a reported basis.

2. Presented on an Alternative Parformance Measure (APM) basts: FY 17/18
Pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 pet prior year APM.

3. Order book for both years reported undar IFRS 15 guidelines wivich mandate
S to inchude only fieed-term contracted work and exciude variable work,

Key stats
* Over 1,000 customer bulidings connected to ROC.

* Oyear 3,000 anergy surveys conducted.
* £1.1bn-worth of energy bifls validated each yesr.

Operational performance

Energy, Water & Sustainability develop smarter ways to procure,
manage, comply, govern and optimise consumption. Waste &
Environmental focus on a sustainability-led ‘resource, not waste’
approach: understanding how waste is created and then looking
at how to avoid producing it in the first place. Corporate Real
Estate Services provide property and real estate services to
deliver exceptional, flexible working enwvironments for our
clients. Risk & Resillence focuses on threat, risk and resliience
consultancy to help our clients manage their risks.

Connected Workspace customer solutions work to develop and
deliver tachnology that uniocks workspace potentisl by harmessing
data to make buildings smarter and working lives better,

During the year, within our recently established Professional
Services (PS) division, the focus has been to bring together and
align a number of businesses and service offerings, combining
technical skills and teams to lay the foundations for future
growth. This has included bringing in new senior leaders for our
Occupler Services, Risk and Resillence and Connected Workspace
businesses, In addition, we have added senior business
development staff to heip drive sales actively across the division.

The division started FY 17/18 with the headwing of two contract
losses in Waste Management and the iImmediate focus was on
replacing these revenues, Contract wins during FY 17/18, most
significantly with two major manufacturing clients ensured that
the Wasts Management business revenue returned to growth in
2ZH 17/18. Notwithstanding the revenue impact from the prior
year, the Waste Management team has delivered improved
opersting profit through a drive to simplify its cost structure and
focus on profitable reveres,

The Energy component of our Sustainablility business has
performed well with significant wins, including a contract witha
major telecommunications provider and a ground-source
heat-pump project delivering significant carbon and cost savings
to an engineering client. Consequently, it grew revenue by 16%,
also demonstrating growth in operating profit and margin.
Within the year we have brought our Water Management
business into the PS division to complement our Sustalnability
offering. We are restructuring this business to return It to growth
following the completion of a Mitie earm-out and the departure
of the previous managerment team at the end of FY 16/17.

We continue to win real estate consultancy and project
management work as demonstrated by the award of two new
significant international project managemem frameworks with
global technology businesses,

Our Connected Workspace offer has moved from early pllot into
deployment stages with a number of cllents across Mitie and we
are pleased to report that we have opened our innovation
Centre in Bracknell. Furthermore, we have agreed and
implemented strategic partnerships with various world-class
technology partners, including Microsoft and Vodafone. Working
across the Group, the PS division continues to define, design,
trial and sell our Connected Workspace technology sojutions and
capabliities to assist our clients in improving the performance of
their buildings and people,
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Operating review continued

We have seen significant interest from existing and potential
customers In all areas of our husiness in our Connected
Workspace offering. We are now running nine live pilots at
customer sites, with another 14 currently in the pipeline. 5,000
sensors have been deployed providing us with two mitlion
readings each day which are fed into our data lake informing
insight into building and peopie performance and offering
tangible solutions to our customers to improve results and
SBVe Ioney.

Mitie's commitment to transforming and Improving customer
experience and service is further demonstrated by the
investment in consulting services and support by the PS division,
During the year, our professional services colleagues were
deployed to work with our account management teams to drive
Iimprovement in the customer experience and service for maty
of our large FM clients. Given the work carried out to date, we
do not expect the same volume of imvestment in internally
focused engagement 1o be required in FY 18/19,

Financial performance

The two major Waste contract losses in the prior financial period
saw the PS division start the year from a lower base, and overall
the PS division reported adjusted revenue of £90.8m, down
6.0%. Adjusted operating profit before other items dropped to
£7.0m {FY 16/17: £9.3m], with good performances in Waste &
Sustainability driven by operational efficiency measures more
than offset by Investment in internal capabifities and in customer
service. During the year the business also built Real Estate, Risk
Management and lnternational service capabilities further
enhancing our consultancy offering.

The order book stands at £75.5m against FY 16/17 of £81.5m
with this reduction driven mainly by a re-evaluation of our Water
Management order book and the unwinding of large multi-year
contracts, which have more than offset new wins.

Outlook

The division has recorded a number of contract wins at highey
margins during FY 17/18 and, with an energised sales drive to
generate new business in the year ahead, the division has closed
the year with strong momentum, The revenue pipeline in our
Real Estate Occupler Services consuftancy, Connected Workspace
and International service ines has begun to show encouraging
growth; and our technology-led Connected Workspace strategy
continues to support growth opportunities across Mitie.

This momentum has defivered fourth quarter FY 17/18 revenues
8.9% higher than thosa in the first guarter, providing a better
trajectory into next year.

Our focus Is to act as a trusted partner to our dients, creating
exceptional environments for their customers and people and
adding value every day, With the provision of world-class
professional services, alled to intelligent use of technologies in
our iIndustry-leading Connected Workspace solutions, we create
insights and solutions that make a difference.
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Connected Workspace in action

Image removed

We are now runhing nine live pliots at customer sites, with
another 14 currentfy in the pipefine. 5,000 sensors have been
deployed providing us with two milion readings each day.

Cleaning & Environmental Services

We are one of the largest cleaning services providers in the UK,
offering a full suite of cieaning services as well as speciafist
servioes, such as pest control, landscaping and

heatthcare services.

Performance

£m Pr17/A8  FY 16/17 Change, %

Revenue Reported' 4064 395.6 2.7
Adjusted” 4058 3992 16

Oparating profit

before other tems  Reported® 2.5 65 2308
Adjusted? 198 209 (53)

Ordar book® 6613 7360 (10.1)

1. FY 17/1E reported on post-{FRS 15 basis snd FY 165/17 on 2 reportad basls.

2. Presented on an Altamative: Performance Measurs (APM) basis: FY 17/18
pre-iFRS 15; FY 16/17 par prior year APM.

3. Order book for both yeers reported under IFRS 15 guldefines which mandate
us to include ony flwsc-term contracted work snd echude varietds work.

Key stats

* Ton drone flight pliots across the country.
= We supply 9.6m tollet rolis per year.

* 22,000 cleaning operatives.




Operational performance

Within Cleaning Services we offer commerdial and technical
cleaning. Landscape Services comprise commercial grounds
maintenance, hard landscaping, interfor plants and winter gritting.
Pest Control Services consist of pest managerment and control.
Heslthcare Services include deaning, retall catering, security,
reception and the provision of helpdesks at healthcare faciities,

This year the Cleaning & Environmental Services (CES) division
has stabliised following a period of decline; though it continues
to face significant structural headwinds from service
commoditisation, low barriers to entry and price competition.

" During the second half of the year, we appointed a new
Managing Director for the division, Matthew Thompson, who
has wide industry leadership experience, including eight years at
Compass Group where he was Managing Director of the UK
Sports & Leisure business, covering sector services, from
catering to cleaning. The division is undergoing a significant
restructuring, and we expect it to stabilise further this year and
see steady improvement thereafter.

Despite a difficult trading year, the business continued to secure
comracts with high-profile customers, inciuding a new major
muiti-service contract with a major UK retailer and the West
Hertfordshire Hospital NHS Trust and taking on the cleaning
services from Cariliion at Heathrow TS, This major contract was
mobilised smoothly at extremely short notice.

The new multl-service contract with the West Hertfordshire
Hospital NHS Trust, worth £55m over a five-year term with an
optional extension of a further two years, builds on Mitie’s
existing strong portfollo of NHS dients. As part of the contract
Mitie will be investing in new technology, including new digital
software to enable the helpdesk to communicate more
effectively across its four sites, we witl also be utiising
‘Moptimus Prime’, the next generation In robot cleaning.

As part of the thwee-year integrated facliities contract with the
Co-op, Mitie will be providing cleaning and landscaping services.

Our dlient retention rate for FY 17/18 was below expectations,
Our NPS score tells a similar story and, though showing an
improvement against the previous period, is still negative
overall. The margin challenge n Cleaning Services has been
exacerbyted by an unfavousable change in contract mix during
the year, Wa lost some high-margin contvacts and at the same
time mabllised material new contracts. In the short term this
had an impact on the overall profitabiity of the business.

In response to the challenging deaning sector market
environment, we are simplifying our management and overhead
structure; focusing on delivering our basic service well; and
introducing improved technology for better workforce
management. We are in the process of implementing
Workplace+, a handheid-enabled, all-in-one operations portal
for scheduling, payslips and supplies. The wide adoption of
Workplace+ will allow the business to better commumnicate with
our employees, measure and analyse productivity pattems, and
enable rapid rol-out of best practices.

Financlal performance

The CES diision reported adjusted revenues of £405.5m (FY
16/17: £399.2m) and adjusted operating profit before other
items of £19.8m (FY 16/17: £20.9m). After a period of decline,
overall revenue was up 1.6% versus prior year, but the operating
profit was down by 5.3%.

The industry backdrop for our core Cleaning business is one of
general margin pressure. In FY 17/18, we saw this in several new
contract wins which, whilst revenue enhancing, were margin
difutive. We expact to reverse this trend through Project Helix
cost savings together with improved execution under

new management.

Our Landscape Services business had a good year with both
adjusted revenue and adjusted operating profit Increasing.

The business retained existing contracts, and acquired new ones,
with particular success in the retall sector which has been a core
target over the past two years.

The Pest Control and Healthcare Services businesses also had a
solid year. HealthGare Services is a multi-service Mitle business,
providing not just cleaning servicas, but portering, helpdesk,
in-patient and retall catering. During the year, the Healthcare
business addressed a number of difficult contracts, so we expect
it to show growth over the coming years.

The CES order book stands at £661.3m (FY 16/17: £736.0m) as
the unwinding of large multi-year contracts more than offset
new wins,

Qutlook

We belleve that by focusing on the basics of delivery, simplifying
the division’s structure, implementing new technology that will
enable us to improve our overall efficiency and communicate
better with our frontline, we will further stabllise this business
over tha coming year. Wa are focused on delivering profitable
growth in the future. Cleaning is a highly competitive low-margin
mass-market business, but we belleve that we can enjoy slightly
better margins than we have today. We also view cleaning as a
cornerstone of our FM offering in buikling our client
relationships and successfully introducing the breadth and depth
of our services, including our speclalist services.

The exceptional, every day | www.mitle.com )



Operating review continused
Care & Custody

Our Care & Custody business delivers a range of public services
for vulnerable people in secure environments on behalf of the
UK Government.

Performance
£m FIT/18  FY16/1T Chenge %
Revenue Reported! 59.9 464 291

Adjusted® 623 454 M3

Operating profit
before other items  Reported! 19 2.2 {116}

Adjusted? 3.2 29 103

Order book® 670.1 2104 2185
L FY 17/12 reportad on postFRS 15 basis and FY 36/17 on a reported basis.
2 on an Altmrnative Perf h (APM) basis: FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior yaar APM.
3. Order book for both yeers rep: undar FRS 15 @ whict
15 to inchude only fomd-term d work s echud, work.
Key stats

* 1,300 detalness In our care on any given day.
» Leading provider of FME services in England and Wales.
» 2,100 custody professionals, Incl. doctors and nurses.

Operational performance

Our services include managing immigration removal centres for
the Home Office, Forensic Medical Examiner {FME) services,
custody support, sexual assault referval centres and Baison and
diversion services for police forces across England and Wales.
We 2lso provide offender healthcare provision in two prisons on
behalf of NHS England and FM Services for the Ministry of
Justice in three secure facllities.

in December 2017, we were pleased to report that Care &
Custody had been awarded a 10-year Detention & Escorting
contract with the Home Office to provide Immigration services.
It s the largest ever contract for Care & Custody, worth an
estimated £525m. The award of such a significant contract
reinforces Mitle’s role as the largest supplier of immigration
detention services to the UK Government and wilt double the
division’s size in FY 18/19.

Mitie wifl be responsible for escorting immigration detainees,
both within the UK and overseas. The contract, which started on
1 May 2018, also includes the management of 3 number of fined
facilities throughiout the UK, including airport holing rooms,
reporting centres and two short-term holding facilities.
Technology development programmes will be at the heart of the
partnership with the Home Dffice, to transform the way that
Immigration escorting services are delivered. This focus on the
use of new and emnerging technologies will modernise working
and operational practices to improve efficiency and de-

risk removals.
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in order to defiver high-guality services, Care & Custody needs to
attract and retain high quality and talented people; it is therefore
important we seek to create specific career paths and provide
access to training and education. For example, we have crested

a new nurse-led police Forensic Medical Examiner delivery
model where our lead nurses train 1o undertake over 90% of the
role previously delivered by general practitioners, This opens up
an opportunity for great career paths for our nurses and at the
sarme time our police dients have highly guaiitfied clinical
professionals located permanently at their custody suite sites.
This has the added benefit of dramatically reducing the waking
time for detzinees before their healthcare needs are assessed,
creating batter outcomeés for the service user and the police.

The business has secured c.£520m of new arders in the year, As
well as the significant Home Office Datantion & Escorting
contract win, Care & Custody secured new contracts with several
police farces, inchading Cleveland, West Mercia, Warwickshire,
staffordshire and Nottinghamshine, further cementing Care &
Custody’s position as the leading supplier of services in police
FME and related areas.

In FY 17/18, Care & Custody was awarded a three-year contract
by Nottinghamshire Police. Care & Custody will provide medical
support services across two custody suites in the county. A 24/7
team will operate at both Bridewell and MansReld sites, which
Include aver 100 custodial cefls. The speclalist Mitie team will
provide clinical assessments, address the Immediate health
needs of detainees and provide patients with onward referral
pathways for ongoing health and weltbeing following custody.
Care & Custody already delivers these services to 13 police
foroes across the UK. These include six Sexual Assault Referral
Centres and a Short-Term Hokling Facility in Northern (refand.
Care & Custody’s speclalist teams conduct over 180,000 medical
interventions every year in 62 police custody facllities. This
expertise was instrumental during the Nottinghamshire Police
tender process, with scenario responses and the overall value of
its proposition setting Care & Custody apart from

the competition.

Not only does this contract bulid on the Care & Custody team's
strong track record, this new work with Nottinghamshire Police
establishes an East Midlands hub of expertise as It borders with
another existing Care & Custody contract in Leicestershire.

In March 2018, two of Care & Custody’s employees were
awarded Butier Trust Awards at St James’ Palace. Dorathy
Coomber and Jackle Smart received certificates from HRH, The
Princess Royal. These awards recognise the achievements of
people working In prisons, probation, detention centres and
community and youth Justice settings across the UK.

Dorothy Coamber, Learning and Regimes Manager at Campsfleld
House Immigration Removal Centre, was recognised for the
significant contribution she has made towards the mental and
emotional wellbeing of detainees since joining Mitle In August
2013. Jackie Smart, Equality, Diversion and Inclusion Manager at
Colnbrook tmmigration Removal Centre, has been recognised for
the support she has given to detainees and officers since 2009,




Financial performance

Care & Custody had a good year, delivering growth of 34.3% in
adirsted revenue, up from £46.4m in the previous year to
£62.3m. This significant growth is a resuit of a solid stream of
contract wins in custodial and Forensic Medical Examiner
services throughout the year, as well as the mobilisation of the
Home Office Detention & Escorting contract. As the contract
only went live in May 2018, the main benefits will be realised In
FY 18/19 and beyond.

Adjusted operating profit before other items grew to £3.2m (FY
16/17: £2.9m}. The growth was driven by the new contract wins
whiist the operating margin was diluted by business
development costs as we invested In butkding future growth.

The order book increased significantly to £670.1m [FY

16/17: £210.4m) following the transformational Detention &
Escorting contract which will double the size of the Care &
Custody division,

Outlock

Our sales pipeline remains positive, There are major
opportunities with central government through the second haif
of 2018 with decisions due in early 2019. Care & Custody is well
placed to secure further growth as our scale and reach increase
and with few experienced competitors in our markats.

The success of the business is bullt upon our ability to deliver
outstanding value-for-money public services ta the people in our
care, whilst maintaining the confidence of our commissioners,
inspectars, regulators, govemment and the general pubfic. Our
leadership team is highly experienced, well-respected In the
market and focused upon buliding long-term relationships,
ensuring we have a clear understanding of our clients’ needs, so
we can develop service design solutions that meet and exceed
thelr expectations. We recognise that our policies and processes
must reflect and respond to relevant legisiation, and actively
embrace externatl regulatory scrutiny, We underpin these
principles by promoting a culture of openness, transparency
and high performance.

Care & Custody in action

Image removed

Mitie currently manages two immigration Rernovai Centres {IRCs)
on behalf of the Home Office, Campsfleid House and Heathrow
IRCs. Together these currently have the capacity 10 house over
1,200 detainees.

Catering

Our Catering division comprises Gather & Gather, our business
and industry catering brand, and Creativevents, our specialist
indoor and outdeor event catering business.

Performance

£ PYA7/t8 PV 18/17 Changs, X

Revenue Reported® 1371 1343 2.1
Adusted® 1871 1327 3.3

Operating profit

before other items  Reported* 5.6 4.7 19.1
Adjusted? S0 53 {57)

Order book? 347 2294 180

1. FY 17/1% reporied on post-FRS 15 basks and FY 16/57 on & reported basis.

2. Prusented on an Alternative Performance Measure (APM) besls: FY 17/18
pra-IFRS 15: FY 16/17 per prior yaar APM.

3. Order book for both years reportad under IS 15 guldelines which mandste
us %0 Indlude only foed-term contracted work snd exciude vertable work.

Key stats

* 150,000 customers per day.
* 147,000 Witres of usad caoking ol converted into biofuel,
« We process 1m app purchases per year.
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Operating review continued

Operational performance

Gather & Gather provides companies and organisations with
in-house catering services directly for employees, In restaurants,
cnffee shops and within corporate hospitality settings —
enhancing dients’ workplaces through tts founding mission of
‘bringing food and people together'. Crestivevents ks a speciallst
venye and event catering business providing bars, restaurants,
café and haspitality services 10 a wide range of prestiglous
clients across the UK.

Agalnst the backdrop of continuing challenging sector dynamics,
including the continued Impact of food price and labour
inflation, as well as a general reduction in discretionary spending
acrass the hospitality sector, our Catering division has dellvered
sofid revenue growth, deveioped (s pipeiine and secured some
key new contract wins during the period.

Gather & Gather continues to offer a differentisted proposition
within a market which has undergone further consolidation over
the last 12 months. We continue to be a distinctive quality
atternative to the large corporate caterers who dominate the
mass market. Specifically, our market-leading technology
continues to drive consumer behaviour in our contracts, and as
testament to this, we were delighted to be recognised with a
Best Use of Technology Award by the Restaurant Marketer &
Innovation Awards in January 2018. Gather & Gather ks also
proud to have re-secured the maximum three-star rating from
the Sustainable Restaurant Association, recognising our positive
progress In three areas of sourcing, society and the environment,

During FY 17/18, Catering won a contract with a major onfine
retaller in Yreland, as well as contracts within our Integrated FM
offerings, such as the three-year Integrated facilitles contract for
all the Co-op’s corporate sites to provide tallored catering
through Mitie’s Gather & Gather business.

Mitie was awarded the three-year contract with the Co-op
following a competitive tender process. The contract covers
cleaning, landscaping, engineering services, security, front of
bhouse, catering and waste. These services will be delivered in 2
manner to fully reflect the Co-op’s commitment to sustainability
and empioyee welibeing.

Gather & Gather offers a fresh approach to food, working closely
with independent and local suppliers to stay ahead of market
trends. tts focus on sustainable sourcing and value for money
aligns with the Co-op’s sustainability and diversity ambitions.
Gather & Gather will introduce pop-ups and food truck events in
partnership with local suppliers to bring innovation and variety
to lunchtime breaks. Further investments in technology will
enhance the experience for Co-op colleagues purchasing
beverages on stte with a launch of a pre-order service through a
mobile app, as well as a dally menu microsite.
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After two difficult years’ trading, it s notable that Creativevents
has been successful in re-securing some prestigious and
long-standing clients such as RHS Chelsea Flower Show and
Roval Ascot. The business unit was also successful in winning
some high-volume concert and festival work at the end of
April 2018,

Post the year-end the division won an exditing contract to
provide bar and food services at BBC Music’s The Biggest
Weekend, Four festivals took place at four sites over the four
days of the Jate May Bank Holiday weekend {25-28 May 2018).
The Biggest Weekend saw BBC Radio 1, BBC Radlo 2, BBC Radio
3 and BBC Radio 6 Music stations bring live music to crowds of
over 175,000. The financial impact of this contract will be
reported in FY 18/19,

Financial performance

Adjusted revenue grew by 3.3% to £137.1m (FY 16/17: £132.7m)
driven by the full-year impact of new contract wins in lreland,
volume increases In new events at Creativevents, partially offset
by a shortfall in Gather & Gather UK.

The gross margin remained stable after a series of cost saving
measures were taken to offset food and labour input price
inflation. These included menu changes and tighter

staffing schedisies,

Whitst the business turned around and exited less profitable
contracts in Creativevents and Gather & Gather ireland, the
division’s adjusted operating profit before other ltems decreased
by 5.7% to £5.0m (FY 16/17: £5.3m).

The order book for the Catering division incressed from £29.4m
In FY 16/17 to £34.7m In FY 18/19 driven by contract wins.

Outlook

Having attracted some experienced new talent to the team,
momentum for the next 12 months ks bullding. We continue 1o see
opportunities for organic growth through our customisable,
modemn and high-quality offer, complemented by our market-
leading approach to wellbeing arxd our unique understanding

of workplace dynamics and the role of food and hospltality in
boosting staff morale, engagement and productivity. As a

key component of Mite’s Connected Workspace strategy, the
insights and data we collect and recetve are invaluable in helping us
understand how best to add value to our customers” working day.




Property Management

The Property Management division provides a wide range of
mainténance services in the UK, predominantly to clients in the
soclal housing sector. it is also the largest painting and
commercial roofing refurbishment provider in the UK.

Performance

£m Lo Y/ 1) FY16/17 Change, %

Revenue Reported! 2374 2577 {7.9)
Adjusted? 2379 257.7 (7.7)

Operating profit/{lass)

before other tems  Reported! 73 (45 nm

_ Adjusted® 79 123 (358)

Order book® 348.7 5150 {32.3}

1. FY 17718 reported on post-IFRS 15 basks and FY 16/17 on a reported basis,

2. Prasented on an ARernative Parformance Measure (APM) basis: FY 17/18
Pre-iFRS 15; FY 16/17 par prior year APM.

3. Order book for both years reported under IFRS 15 guidelines which mandate
us to include only fed-term contractad work and sciude variabie worl.

Key stats

* Wy look after 250,000 local authority homes.
= UK #1 commarcial roofing refurbishment business.
* UK's #1 comwnerclal peinting business.

Operational performance

£Y 17/18 has been a challenging year for Property Management.
The management team’s attention was diverted whilst the
division was considered for sale; It was iater withdrawn from
sale In December 2017. Now back in the Mitie portfolio, we have
Inchuded Property Management within our overall
transformation programme.

Within ks core maintenance services operations the business
has focused on investing in people, and delivering the best
quality service to customers at the right cost.

Over the course of FY 17/18, Property Management was
successful in winning a number of new contracts in Scotiand,
tpanding its operational and geographical footprint. Of
particular note was a contract with was Aberdeenshire Councll
as part of their Housing kmprovement Plan, with a four-year
strategic objective to improve the housing stock In line with
Scottish Housing Quality Standards and the energy Improvement
objectives under the Energy Efficiency Standard for Social
Housing. Mitie Is focused on delivering services worth £40m
over the four-year term. Other notable contract wins included:

& Matyhil! Housing Association in Glasgow. This contract will see
Mitle deliver a range of reactive repairs and maintenance
works over the three-year contract, which has an optional
tWo-year extenslon;

« North Lanarkshire Coundil, with a contract valued at £3.1m
per annum;

= The renewal of a partnership with Oak Tree Housing
Association will see Mitie deliver the second phase of
maintenance services to 300 properties; and

» A Paisley-based housing assoclation, Williamsburgh, and
Sanctuary Scotland adding to our growing list of social housing
customers. Williamsburgh is a four-year contract worth £2.8m.

Our goel Is to differentiate cur offering in a relatively

commead tised market, by creating long-term, sustainable
partnerships that offer our customers innovative solutions and
services. We have identified four key focus areas based upon
dient needs: tackiing fuel powverty, fire safety, innovation, and
cost planning efficiencles.

Technology has been an integral part of our integrated and
partnership offerings, as it brings efficiency and dedsion-making
benefits to our dients. The focus ks on leveraging the Group’s
technology capabilities to support our unique asset
management solution for Property Management, using it to
bulid bespoke solutions to reduce call handiing requirements,
associated costs and to Improve customer experience.

Financial performance

Property Management reported adjusted revenue of £237.9m
{FY 16/17: £257.7m), down 7.7% year-on-year. This reduction
dropped through to adjusted operating profit before cther
items which was down 35.8% to £7.9m (FY 16/17: £12.3m).

In addition, there was a bad debt charge relating to a prior year
contract of £1.4m. The division was impacted by a shortfalt in
capital spend by major clients and lower high-margin project

revenue.

In the post-Grenfell environment, one of our large customers
has delayed planned investment In its housing stock with the
expectation that funds will be diverted to risk and compliance
related improvements. This also impacted the

division’s performance.

Difficuit trading conditions defined by continued spending
cuts by customers impacted the order book which declined to
£348.7m (FY 16/17: £515.0m).

Outlook .

Market conditions remaln challenging and the main focus for the
next 12 months Is to re-energise the business, get the basics
right, continue to invest in our people, defiver the highest quality
service to customers — at the right cost - and to invest in the
communities in which we work.

In FY 18/19, Mitie Property Management’s businesses,
comprising roofing, painting and sodial housing, will be
Integrated into £ngineering Services. There are considerable
synergistic benefits to be achieved by combining Property
Management imto Engineering Services which will enhance
efficiency and customer service.
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Our diversity
makes us stronger

We are very proud of our
rich and diverse cuiture

and backgrounds. Our
diversity creates ideas and

Image removed

insights. Everyone at Mitie
has a voice and is treated
as an equal.

Rebecca
Gallery Assistant,
Security
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Corporate Responsibifity and Sustainability

Sustainability

We are one of the UK’s largest facifities management providers
with a nation-wide reach and a blue-chip customer base.

Our business provides facilities management, consulancy,
project management and a range of specialist services.
importantly, we focus on self-delivery of our services, giving us
ciose control over quality and customer retationships.

More than five million people pass through the doors of the
workplaces we manage and maintain, and our colleagues work
hard each day to dellver the basics brilkantly giving us the solid
foundations on which to create, build 2nd wailor solutions that
antidpate and meet our customers’ needs. Service that Is
recognised time and time again by our clients; the best of UK
public and private businesses.

Foreword

Image removed

The following report outlines our approach to bullding a robust
and sustainable business, while embrading the contribution from
and Impact on our employees, our environment and the
communities In which we work.

Mitie has a strong heritage of entrepreneurship and
collaboration, and many aspects of sustainabillity are integral to
the way we do business. It Is a culture of shared values; of
putting customers at the heart of our business; of developing
and retaining the bast people; of operstional excellence and
embracing innovation and new technologhes that set us apart.

We employ 49,000 people, who engage with hundreds of
thousaneds of customers every day across the UK. We recognise
the potentia| of this reach, and whilst historicalty we have met
our sustainability goals, we recognise that the opportunittes to
drive these in the future are substantial. In Waste, Energy,
Occupational Health and Safety in particular, our ambition is to
lead the FM industry.

34 www.nitis.com | The exceptional, every day

Mitie is one year into a three-year transformation programme,
As part of this we are undertaking a strategic review of our
sustainability offering and we have established a Sustainability
Working Committee that will be reporting into a Sustainability
Steering Committee mandated to critically assess Mitie's
performance against international best practice, including the
UN Sustalnabifity Goals.

This review is now underway and whilst we would like to have a
more detailed assessment for this report, our ambition Is to set
truly achievable targets for our business, improve measuremernt
of our activities, utilise latest technologies to monitor
performance, and increase transparency.

Going forward, we will focus on positively influencing our people
- the driving force behind our long-term success — our
customers and our communities, growing revenue, reducing cost
and mitigating potential risk.

To Mitle, sustainabllity is mone than just an agenda add-on, it is
Integral to the way we do business. During 2017, we have
undertaken research to understand what our future
sustainability strategy will focus on. Our people, products and
services are integral to our ablilty to defiver long-term
sustainable solutions for our business and our customers.

Our Sustainability Working Group was re-aligned In 2017 to
represent our diverse business and expertise, and includes a
cross-functional group of sublect matter experts with people,
environmenta! and operational skills, in FY 18/19, this group will
set and agree our ‘2030 Sustainability Vision”.

The Sustainability Working Group reports into the Sustainability
Steering Committee that will report directly to the Board and
ensure our plan Is fully embedded in and correctly resourced
within the business.

Mitie continues to measure and target our carbon footprint. In
2010, we made a commitment to reduce our carbon footprint by
35% by 2020. To date our organisational carbon intensity has
decreased by 34.7% against our 2010 baseline year and a further
5.4% against prior year.

Chmate change is one of the biggest environmental challenges of
our generation, and we are committed to ensuring that our
business faces these challenges and tackles our impacts.




Key initiatives undertaken in FY 17/18 were:

* we performed Cimirte Change risk and opportunities
assessment;

* we are reducing our impact on the environment from our
travel, especially from our predominantly diese! fleet;

* we [aunched a SpendSmart campaign to chalienge
unnecessary business costs and consider efficient
resource management;

¢ we consolidated our real estate resources, specifically our
property footprint in London;

¢ we are detighted to have malntained the Carbon Trust
Standard for Carbon, achieving a8 qualitative score of 81% - an
improvement from 77% previously;

* we are currently implementing an ISO50001 energy
management system within our Energy 8 Water business to
continually improve the carbon reduction (nitlatives and
Energy Management Standards and engage our people inour
journey; and

* we are ensuring that our suppliers and our customers are
treated with respect. Operational sustainabllity and supply
chain management are important elements of our business
operations. Mitie is committed to being a reliable and
trustworthy corporste citizen and, specificaffy, in refation to its
suppiters — to fair payment terms. We work with a large
number of small and mediunv-size enterprises across our
supply chala. integrity and trust are at the heart of all we do.

Climate Change risk and opportunities assessment
Following guidance from the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD), our Sustainabliity Wocking Group
have developed a risk and opportunities assessment for our
business to ensure we tackle risks and plan for opportunities.
Our biggest risks are potential future health Impacts to our
peopie, especially those who work outdoors, as a resuft of
warmer summers and ocolder winters. We will therefore be
mitigating these risks, through control measures, re-design of
tasks and training and awareness. Similarly, increased Inddence
of ficoding and heat strein on assets we manage for our
customers mean we need to adapt our business to
accommodate additional service requirements and upskill our
people to be competent to deliver these services safely.

Reducing the impact of our fleet

Improving the sustainable credentials of the Mitie Fleet means
taking a multidisciplinary approach to both our vehicies and the
people who drive them. From consolidating and updating our
vehicie stock, to educating sur drivees to Improve safety, we alm
to reduce the fuel expenditure and poliutant emissions created
by our 6,300 vehicle fieet. In FY 17/18 we have looked into the
following areas:

* we are continually adding more fuel-efficient vehicles to our
fleet, representing significant cost and environmental savings
for Mitie;

+ we have undertaken a successful hydrogen vehicle trial and
are actively seeking business cases to extend our Electric
Vehicle (EV) ratio; and

+ we have introduced telematics and tracking squipment to
ensure the safe performance of all our drivers,

Mitie vehicles operate on a8 rolling four-year lease agreement
through our strategic fleet partner. By outsourcing fleet
procurement, Mitie can take advantage of the most efficient
technology, resulting in notable fuel savings across the business.
For eample, many of our mobile engineers operate out of
Vauxhall Astra estate cars. Since 2014, the fuel effidency of
these vehicles has improved significantly, with current

2018 models travelling approximately 10.8% further with every
tank of fuel, whilst emitting 10% fess CO, emissions.

Within our company car fieet, we have se-Imposed a vehicles
emissions cap of 130g/km of CO,, This applies to #ll non-
commercial vehicles. Most of our flest deflivers emissions figures
lower than this level, with some vehicles producing Just 89g/km
of 00, Vehicles with fower emissions attract iess taxation for
emgpioyees and lower national insurance contributions for the
business, representing a financlal iIncentive to reduce fleet
environmental impact. We continue to review our commercial
fieet, introducing the most efficient light commercial vehicles
available on the market. Ouwr commercial fleet has also
experienced significant environmentsi savings with new Vauhall
Vivaro vans that are 11% more fuel efficient than the vehicles
they replace. Using Start/Stop and Adblue technology, these
new vans cut NOx emissions by 72% over previous madeis,
aligning them to EURO & emissions legislation.

Mitie has explored fleet options beyond convertional fuel, with
electrical vehicle and alternative fuel vehicia trials run at
contract sites across the estate. Currently backed by government
grants, there are significant benefits to introducing EVs to our
business, including reduced tixation, fuel casts, and Soope 1
carbon emissions. Following a trial at a large intemational teavel
hub, Mitie has ordered a full-time EV van, which should save
over 20% in fuet casts over the diesel vehicle it replaces,

Introduction of widespread driver education and telematics on
all our vehicles has resulted in a significant reduction in
Inefficient driving practices acrass both our commercial and
company fleet. With safer eco-driving techniques, we expect to
reduce our expenditure on fuel, whilst alsc redicing our
transport risk. A 20mph decrease in speed, from 70mph to
50mph, can increase fuel efficiency by up to 20%, cutting
unnecessary respurce waste. The number of traffic accidents
recorded for our fleet reduced by 18.7% in FY 17/18.
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Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability continued

SpendSmart — campaign to reduce resources use

Mitie has an overarching commitment to both customers and
colieagues to individually and collectively be the best we can be.
Our purpose Is to create amazing work erwironments, helping
our customers and colleagues to be exceptional every day.

Spendsmart is an internal campaign that highlighns the
importance of careful and considered spending. Launched

in March 2018 as part of ‘One Mitie’, its aimns are to chalenge
unnecessary business costs and consider efficient resource
management. In reducing the usage of resources and
operational costs, Mitie creates greater business value through
social, economic and environmental principles of sustainability
Into Its business decisions.

Since launching the campaign in March 2018, Mitle Group has
seen a 33% reduction In employee expenses. This has been
supported by an updated expenses policy and regular expense
auditing. The most recent communications inchide tangeting
unnecessary costs associated with trave! and colour printing.

Initiatives inciude questioning the need for air and rall travel
when technology such as video conferencing and Skype would
be viable alternatives to reduce our carbon Impact on the
planet. As a result of the campaign, Mithe will also see
emvirormental benefits with a reduction in waste production,
energy consumption and carbon emissions.

The overarching aim of the Spendsmart campaign is to target
employee expenses by cutting £1 in every £10 to enable a
sustainable business. This equates to a 10% reduction of
employee expenses; however, the campaign Is not all about
stopping spend but aims to highlight opportunities to eliminate
unnecessary or avoidabls spend, providing an opportunity to
invest elsewhere and remain sustainable — meeting the neads of
the business without compromising Mitie's ability to

maintain profit.

The Shard - consolidating our resl estate portfolio

As part of our ongoing transformation prograrmme we took the
decision to consofidate our London offices nto one single city
hub based in The Shard. Historically we operated out of three
separate buildings covering 45,000 square feet. A single more
efficient and flexible 30,000 square foot office replaced this
estate, reflecting our ongaing business needs and that of

OUr cUStomers.

The Shard was chosen because it aligned with our sustainability
vision to minimise our onganisation’s environmental impact and
provide an ervironment where our employees could thrive. A
particular draw was that the building Itself achleved 3 BREEAM
‘Excellent’ sustainabifity rating for its low carbon designand is
expected to use 30% less energy than a typical conventional
building of its type. We have an ambitious target to reduce our
carbon footprint by 35% by 2020 and this move is a key step to
achleving this.

Our fit-out also Incorporated a number of additional initiatives
which helped to further reduce carbon emissions and also have
a positive impact on the heakth and wellbeing of our pecple:

« all areas of the office are fitted with LED lighting and lighting
controls to reduce enetgy demand, We have incorporated
octupancy, temperature and CO, sensors in desks and
breakout areas to optimise settings based on actual
occupancy and comfort levels. This forms part of our
Connected Workspace offering which uses advanced anaiytics
to identify efficencies;

= the installation of sit-stand desks for all fined working areas.
These help to reduce sedentary behaviour which, as research
shows, presents a 2% increasad risk of all-cause mortality
{even after physical activity Is taken into acocount);

* active design — a circular walking route within the workspace
and the placement of particular social areas off this circuit
nudges peopie into conducting regular physical activity
throughout the day; and )

* maximum utlfisation of the natural daylight — the perimeter
glazing provides a high level of natural Rght. We designed the
space to ensure employees have maximum exposure to this.

Ancther key elernant of this move was to shift from a fixed desk
working model to a more flexible hot desk approach, which
would encourage remote working and avoid unnecessary
business travel when not essential. We have also invested in our
IT systems 1o improve remote working through conference and
video calling technology to allow staff to attend meetings,
workshops and tralning events from home.

From an operational perspective our energy use In the new
London hub fell by 76% when comparing consumption against
the previous estate for the same period last year (1 January to
31 March) as denoted in the tabie below.

(ondon b~  Lonson Hub -

warious oifices tha: Shard athuction Amshachion, X
Energy consumption {(kWh) 153,389 36,364 117,025 76%
Carbon emissions (tC0,e) 4.9 139 55.0 80%
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We will comtinue to review our performance and provide further
updates on our savings once we have a full year's worth of
consumption data. We are currently reviewing our UK-wide real
estate portiolio, iooking at usage, sustainabiiity and

operational effickency.

Carbon Trust certification

The Carbon Trust provides independent verification and
certification services that recognise real achievements in
sustainability and identify improvernent opportunities. This year
we renewed our certification for the external verification and we
are delighted to have obtained the Carbon Trust Standard for
Carbon with a qualitative score of 81%. Mitle was able to show
an absolute reduction In greenhouse gas emissions of 5.7%
across the certification period - more than 2,400 tonnes of
carbon dikixide equivalent. This certification renewal underpins
our commitment towards reducing our carbon footprint and
enhancing our sustainability joumney.

Mitle has an ambition to be recognised as a sustainability leader
inthe FM sector, demonstrating the commercial value in
Improving environmental performance. Our clients have
increasingly high expectations of us and they regularly ask what
environmental accreditations Mitie holds, We are proud to be
able t say that in addition to our 15014001, certification we have
also been certified to the Carbon Trust Standard, a certification
that recognises organisations for making real reductions in
carbon emissions.

Mitie continues to reduce its emissions through a number of
fleet initiatives, such as increased use of telematics, encouraging
eco-driving and efficient vehicle selection. Several triais of
alternative fuelied vehicles such as plug-in hybrid, EV and
hydrogen are helping us to develop a future fleet strategy to
make further reductions In carbon for the Group.

Following on from this success, Mitie is currently iImplementing
an 15050001 energy management system within its Energy &
Water business to continually Implement the carbon reduction
Inftlatives and position lself as a suppller of cholce,

Engaging cur people

We recognise that our pecple are our greatest assets and we
have a duty of care to ensure they are equipped to make the
best decisions at work or home. One of our core promises is to
our employees: to provide a place of work where they can thrive
and be thelr hest every day. We have been bullding our health
and wellbeing capabilities and continue, for example, to equip
our peopie with menta) health awareness tools and fact sheets.

For & number of years, we have collaborated with sustainabiiity
learning speciatists to deliver personalised training programmes
for our staff and customers. A core component of this
partnership is the provision of the accredited ‘ResourceAware’

elearning piatform. This programme helps organisations
manage retources more efficiently and effectively. The training
helps reduce carbon, waste and water usage and is accredited by
CPO UK, The Energy institute and The Future Water Association.

Effective behaviour change programmes are at the heart of high
performing sustainability strategies. Mitie believes that benefits
can be substantial in environmentai, sociai and governance
terms; from reducing or improving our impact on the
environment, to delivering financlal savings and enhanced profit
margins. Employes engagement programmes also create a sense
of community and inspire collaboration amongst colleagues.
Mitie continues to promate the ResourceAware programme
throughout the organisation as part of its commfitment to
consistently deliver tangible savings.

Mitie Foundation

Mitie has presence across the UK. And as a responsible business,
we strive 10 create long-term benefits for the communities in
which we operate. The Mitie Foundation Is central to our
commitment to engage with and positively influence our people,
our customers and our communities.

Employee engagement ks an essential part of Mitle's business
strategy — community Involvement and yolunteering play an
important role in our colleagues’ working lives. in addition, joint
volunteering opportunities with dients and supply chain
partners — supporting their community engagement and
corporate responsibility objectives —is a positive way to enhance
long-term relationships.

The Foundation had 2 very good year — existing programmes
with Lioyds Bank pic were strengthened and a new partnership
developed with the Co~op. Strong relationships with schools,
prisons and other charities were enhanced. The flagship
programme Ready2Work sustained fts remarkable record of 70%
of work experience attendees being offered a paid job over the
last five years.

During the year:

* Mitie colleagues recorded over B50 volunteering days;

* 24 people found work through our Ready2Work programme;
and

s the Foundation delivered 88 employablility events,
supporting c.8,500 students, in partnership with 76 schools
and academies.

Mitle has 3 broad and diversa dient base, and a frontline
workforce with specialist skills, expertise and experience. By
working in close collaboration with Mitie, the Foundation Is
strongly positioned to support peaple who are furthest away
from the job market. The Foundation will continue to play a vital
role in our own business sustainabifity and the major role that
we wish to play in sotiety.
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People & Community

Building One Mitie

The exceptional, every day

Our Vision and Values are built on the

simple premise of ‘The exceptional, every day’
- our overarching commitment to both our
customers and our colleagues.

In 2017, we consulted with our colleagues on what makes Mitle
differernt and spacial. The cutput of these discussions became
our Vision and Values, and our Purpose and our Promises,
which we shared with everyone at Mitie:

* Oyr Vision and Values are built on the simple premise of
‘The exceptional, every day’ — our overarching commitment
to both our customers and to our colleagues.

* Underpinning ‘The exceptional, every day’ is our Purpose:
our expertise, care, technology and insight create amazing
work environments, helping our customers to be exceptional
every day.

« Our Promise to our peopie is to create a place to work where
We at Mitie can afl thrive and be our best every day. Our
Promise to our customets ks to be a trusted partner creating
exeptionsl environments for our customers and people,
atiding value every day.

* Our Values set out how we all should behave at Mitie,
what we should expect from our colleagues, and what our
customers can expect from us.

We view this as a differentiator for Mitie, This new mindset goes

well beyond delivering to the letter of the contract by focusing

on the ultimate outcomes — amazing environments and adding
value every day.

“What does ‘exceptional, every day’
really mean? it means individually and
collectively being the best we can be.”

Phil Berwtiay
Chief Bmoutive
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Our culture:
our core values and
how we behave

We are
One Mitie

We are built

on integrity
and trust

We go the
extra mile

Our diversity
makes us
stronger

Our customers’
business, is
our business




Developing a diverse
team

Mitie is a diverse organisation
that engages and develops its
people, at all levels, and
seeks to demonstrate the
benefits of its social value.

Our diversity Is a major part of who we are

— we all have different skills, insight, styles,
expertise and experiences to bring to the table,
We are beginning to share a common vision,

a common approach and a comman language
through our new Purpose and Values and our
DOne Mitle culture. Togethes, we helleve that Is 2

Gender pay gap reporting

In line with mandatory requirements,
Mitie reported in March 2018 that as at

5 Aprii 2017 it had 3 mean average gendler
pay gap of 16% and a mean bonus gap of
71%. The bonus differential Is in part due to
the way In which bonuses are classified
acrass the Group.

Mitie is a diverse and complex business, and
gender representation can differ depending
on job type. We also recognise that in many
of our businesses we have a higher
proportion of men inmore senior positions
and bonuses are more typically paid to those

® 49,

000

Employees

Women on the Soard

4

15«

Women on the ELT
powerful combination. In senior roles.
Across Mitie's 49,000 employees, we have gver  We recognise that there is more to do across
130 nationalities; a diverse workforce carrying  the organisation and intend to put in place a
out a large variety of roles. Engender s Mitie's  8rading framework that gives parity across 40%
programme to promote education and all backgrounds and helps individuals to be C .
awareness of diversity internally and across the  the best they can be.
industry, with four networks focused on LGBY, Female employees
disability, ethnicity and gender.
Mitie Group
Mucion o,
Pay 20 00%  160%
Bonus gap 77.4% 71.0%
Men Weman
% employees receiving bonus 12% 10%
by pey quartie Wen Wemen
Upper 75% 25%
Upper middie 656% 34%
Lower middle S8% 429%
Lower 45% 559%

Singe June 2017, we have welcomed four women to our Board of Directors (women: 4; men: 7) and women now accgunt for
15% of our Executive Leadership Team (up from 0% —women: 2; men: 11} and 24% of our Group Leadership Team {up from
20% — women: 23; men: 73} as at 31 Manch 201&. Across Mitie Group female employees account for c.40% of our workforce

{women: 20,100; men: 28,900).
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People & Community continued

33%

Engagement store

W30

Engagement

Mitie is a diverse organisation that engages and
develops its people, at all levels, and seeks to
demonstrate the benefits of Its social value.
This year, we have partnered with Aon Hewitt to run Upload —
Mitie’s 2018 People Survey — to assess employee engagement.
30% of employees completed the survey and our engagement
score was 33%. Mitle Is one year into our three-year
transformation programme and, inevitably during such
challenging times, we need to work much harder to listen to and
engage with pur people. We are doing some things well, but we
certainly have work to do when It comes to employee
engagement, This year we have a dear benchmark for
improvement and plans in place to work hard (o drive positive
engagement with our employees. Our three key focus areas for
2018 wili be: leadership capability, reward and recognition,
efficiency and process improvement through

technological investment.

mitiefoundatiog

The Mitie Foundation was established in
2012 with a vision to support people
with bartiers to employment and to
improve social mobility. Its focus Is on
employment, education and enterprise.
More information can be found

at the Mitie Foundation website
www.mitiefoundation.com.

As a significant UK employer, Mitie seeks to support the physical,
mental and financial wellbeing of its workforce. December 2017
saw the successful launch of an employee loan scheme run in
partnership with Salary Finance. This scheme helps provide
education and support asound the financial wellbeing of ouwr
frontline workforce. To date, more than 1,400 Mitie employees
have benefited from obtalning a Joan from Salary Finance with
an average loan size of £2,200. As well as offering loan products
the Salary Finance hub provides financial education and financial
tools to assist our colleagues.

Mitie belleves everyone should have opportunities to progress,
from working with amazing customers to individual learning and
development. This year saw the creation of a ‘one stop shop’ for
all development at Mitie called ‘the Leaming Huly, bringing
together a vast array of apprenticeship programmes, technical
accreditations and leadership training. In FY 17/18, 555
apprentices were envolled into a range of programmes from
business and administration, to digital and hosplRality.

‘ Collaborated with 76
schootls and scademias to

employabiity prospects

frnage rernoved

Image removed

Entreprensurship lies at the heart of Mitie,
The Foundation goes beyond volunteering,
to engaging talent and enhancing long-term
relationships with cur custormers, our
supply chain and our communities.

Enterprise
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Policies

Mitie’s Code of Conduct has been designed to
help employees understand our core values
and the behaviour expected of them to support
these values.

Our Code of Conduct applies to the Mitie Board, senior
management and all employees, and aims to ensure that at
every level of the organisation, at all times, employees conduct
themselves in an ethical way. This includes their dealings
Internally and externally with third parties to ensure the highest
standards of honesty, integrity and faimess and to foster an
environment based on such standards, as well as complying with
all related lagisiation,

The Code emphasises that every Mitle employee must be
aligned to the achievernent of Group goals. A copy of the Code,
aswell as a full list of Mitie’s policies, is avallable for downioad
on the Company's websie www.mitle.com.

Mitie is undergoing a Group-wide GDPR readiness programme
and met Its deliverables for the regulatory deadfine. All business
units are engaged in the effort to ensure regulatory compliance
and sound data privacy practices, Mitie Is cornmitted to ensuring
privacy is at the forefront of our technologies and processes,
This s institled through policy, architecturai design, controls

and assurance.

Our new, independent whistlie-blowing hotline service was
introduced in September 2017. 139 reports were logged via the
service, The majority of these related to HR matters or
grievances and were passed onto our HR teams for resolution,
Other reports are investigated by the Legal, QHSE, internal Audit
or Enterprise Risk teams as appropriate.

24 people found work
Fwough o » Image removed
programme
o Thefoundation { Mitie employees
Image removed defivered 88 Image removed completed 850
) employabliity events volurteering days
Mite volunteers the time and Ready-to-work is Mitle's Ragship
Educaﬂon expertise of its workforos ta support Employab“‘ty programme that gives candidates
peaple of dissdvartaged backgrounds eight-weeks of work experience within a
towards inproved career chances, Mitie or partner business, with the goal of
through sharing skilis in isadersivp, helping them to secure full-
resfiience and critical thinking. time employment.
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We go the
extra mile

Whether it’s keeping things
running smoothly in a safe
environment, looking for
new ways to do things
better or fixing problems,
going the extra mile for our
colleagues and customers
and keeping our promises is
in our DNA.

Zak
Barista,
Catering
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Finance review

Finance review

Image removed

“Culturally and operationally we
are moving towards a One Mitie
way of delivering our products
and services.”

We are pleased with progress one year into our three-year
transformation programme. Culturally and operationally we
are moving towards a3 One Mitie way of delivaring our products
and services. This has enabled us 1o simplify and streamline
operational and financial processes across the organisation.
We have reduced ongoing costs by delayering management
infrastructures and centrallsing support functions such as IT,
Finanoe and HR.

Adjusted opersting profit before other kems was impacted by
the invastment of transformation cost savings Into improved
customer service levels, technology and internal capabilities.
These are the buliding blocks of our future growth plans.

To deliver these transformation changes we have incurred a
number of costs which are shown in other itemns, siong with
various impairments and other one-off charges,

We are operating comfortably within our financial covenants.
In particular, our leverage ratio has remained below 2,
notwithstanding a material reduction In our customer
Invoice discounting programme and an Improvement in our
supplier payment performance.

We have taken the decision to early-adopt IFRS 15, using the
cumutative retrospective method, which means we have
restated opening reserves rather than restating the prior
year comparatives.
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Following on from the Accounting Review undertaken last year,
Mitie implemented a serfes of measures to strengthen its
financial control environment. Management now operates a
structured process for ldentifying material accounting
Judgements and a2 number of new internal Group accounting
policies were put in place In areas such as trade recelvables and
accrued Income provisioning. As part of converting to IFRS 15,
Mitie has adopted a conservative contract asset acoounting
approach which will only enable certain strictly defined assets to
be recognised on the balance sheet, with the remainder being
expensed. We are also increasing the size of our internal audit
team to enable a broader selection of areas to be audited

each year.

During the year we have moved our finance transactional
procassing operations to our partner Genpact. This entailed
the consolidation of activities in multiple locations across the
UK into a single operations centre In Kolkata. Genpact have
deep experience in improving efficiency, streamfining processes
and codifying controls for a glohal blue-chip customer base.
We expect to benefit from all these areas in the coming months
once the initial transfer Is fully bedded down.




Reported finandial performance
Reported revenue and reported operating profit are set out below:

Restated
£m FY37/38  FY16/17 Change, %
Revenue 22037 21234 38
Operating profit/{loss) before

ather items 89.6 (63} {1,522.2)
Other items 978) (366) 1675
Operating loss {8.3) {42.9) {80.7)

Reported revenue was £2,203,7m compared with £2,123.4min

FY 16/17. The Group reported an operating profit before other

items of £89.6m compared with a loss of £6.3m in FY 16/17

mﬁ:tchwamnsewenoe of the Accouriting Review carmied out
year,

Note that the prior year comparatives have been restated due
to an accounting error In respect of an under accrual of costs
with a corresponding increase in accrued income and revenue.
There was no impact on total net assets ar operating profit.
We have disclosed the impact of the restatement In Note 1 to
the financial statements.

Reported balance sheet

£m FY17/18  FY16/17 Change, %

FY 17718 APMs: Mitie has adopted the IFRS 15 revenue recognition
accounting standard from 1 Apri 2017 using the cumulative
retrospective method. This leads to an adjustment to reserves on the
date of adoption rather than a restatemant of the comparative
periods presented. As a consequence, unless ctherwise stated, 2k
figures presented in the Strategic Report and Govermnance sections of
this Annual Report and Accounts are presented pre-{FRS 15 adoption,
n order to retain comparability with prior year results. We have
distlosed the impact of IFRS 15 for each line item in the financial
statements in Note 1 to the consolidated finandial statements on
pages 14010 142, The FY 17/18 APMs adjust for the kmpact of IFRS 15.

FY 16/17 APMAS: as a result of the Accounting Review In FY 16/17,
which led to asset write-downs of a non-recurring natuna, the FY
16/17 APMs have been provided to facliitate a comparative
assessment between FY 17/18 and FY 16/17. The FY 16/17 APMs
adjust for one-off items.

Adjusted finandal parformance

£m FY17/18  FY16/17 Change, %
Revenue 2,199.1 2,1400 28
Operating profit before

other kems 773 820 (6.0}
Operating margin 3.5% 3.8% {03ppt)

Goodwiil and intangible assets M7 3971 (124)

Property, plant and equipment 336 N3 4.0
Working capital batances (1982} (1520 30.4
Netdebt (1935) (1472) 315
Retirement benefit iabiikies {S68) (742) [235)
Deferrad tax 358 ni 70.1
Other net assets 71 12,7 (4a.1)
Total net (Rabilities)/assets {24.0} 898 (126.7)

The Group had reported net liabllities at 31 March 2018 of
£24.0m (2017; net assets £89.8m). The £113.8m reduction &
primarily deiven by the adoption of IFRS 15, which is explained in
more detal later in this review.

Basls of comparatives — Alternative Performance
Maeasures (APMs)

To enable an effective comparison of our year-on-year
performance, FY 17/18 is shown pre-IFRS 18 and FY 16/17 5
shown for continuing operations on the previously reported
APMEs, per fast year's published Annwual Report and Accounts, as
restated. The APMs are referred to as “adjusted revenue’,
‘adjusted operating profit’, ‘edjusted other items’, ‘adjusted net
assets’ and ‘adjusted cash flows’. Further details can be found In
Note 1 1o the financial statements on pages 136 to 142 and the
Appendix on pages 204 and 205.

Adjusted vevenue was £2,199.1m {2017: £2,140.0m),
representing growth of 2.8% during Mitie's first year of
transformation. Adjusted operating profit before other items of
£77.1m represents a drop of 6.0%. This reduction is a
consequence of investment in customers, technology and
capability more than offsetting growth In the profitability of
contracts and cost savings from the transformation programme.

Adjusted balance sheet

£m FY17/14  Fr16/17 Change, %
Goodwill and intangible assets 3488 3971 (12.))
Property, plant and equipment 3138 323 4.6
Working capital balances {83.8) (1520} (449}
Net debt {1935 (1472} 315
Retirement benefit liabilities (56.8) (742) (23.5)
Deferred tax 169 23 {199)
Dther net assets 43 12.7 {66.1)
Total net assets 9.8 89.8 {22.3}

The Group's adjusted net assets reduced at 31 March 2018to
£69.8m (2017: £89.8m). The £20.0m reduction is primarily driven
by impairmer and amortisation of goodwill and other intangible
assets of £58.5m and an increase in net debt of £46.3m, partly
offset by Intangible asset additions of £10.1m, a working capital
movement of £68.2m, and a reduction in the net deficit on
defined benefit pension schemes of £17.4m. These movements
are exphined in more detail iater in the report.
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IFRS 15
NO IMPACT KEY AREAS OF ADJUSTMENT
To ¥Hatima revenue or + Derecognition of accrued income assets previously recognised on long-term complex contracts
Metime profitability following the elimination of percentage of completion accounting
of contracts = Derecognition of mobilisation assets not meeting the more stringent criteria under IFRS 15
« Deracognition of work in progress assets where control of output is yet to pass to the customer
on contracts where revenue is recognised over time
To cash flows of contracts + Higher defermed income recognised from customer payments macde in advance of delivering

oontract outcomes and where significant contracted discounts including extansion discounts have

been offered

The Group has early adoptad IFRS 15 effective from 1 April 2017
In line with Its goal to simplify the business and improve
transparency. The sdoption of IFRS 15 improves the alignment of
financial results with the cash flows of contracts. The effect of
adopting IFRS 15 Is a reduction of £108.2m in the opening net
assets as at 1 April 2017 and an increase of £12.5m in reported
operating profit before other ibems for FY 17/18.

Our adoption process followed the principles set out in the
standard’s five-step model:

identify the contract{s) with a customer;

Identify the parformance obligations in the contract;

determine the transaction price;

allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in

the contract; and

= recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its
performance obligations.

This process identified the following sbx key areas of adjustment

discussed in more detall below:

percentage of completion accounting;

mobifisation assets;

design and development and other upfront fees;

contract assets;

work in progress; and

contracted discounts including extension discounts.
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IFRS 15 gives rise to changes in the timing of revenue and cost
recognition but does not impact the Iifetime profitability or the
cash fiow of contracts. The main changes for Mitie from the
adoption of the accounting standard are on s long-tarm
contracts. In particular:

« revenue is rore evenly matched over the life of contracts in
line with the delivery of outcomes to clients and, consequently,
the timing of profits is re-profiled;

* In certain cases, there will be lower profits, or even losses, in
the aarly years of contracts where there are significant upfront
restructuring or mobilisstion costs, with a compensating
increase In profits in later years;

« the overall impact on the income statement at Group level is a
function of the balance of contracts in the early or late stage of
thelr ifecyde. For FY 17/1B, the impact bs a £12.5m increase in
operating profit before other tems;

* a number of contract related assets have been derecognised,
comprising of the accrued income balance associated with
percentage of completion accounting, work in progress where
control ks yet to pass to the client and cannot be reliably
estimated, and the elimination of certain deferred mobilisation
costs that do not meet the more stringent criveria of
recognition as an asset under IFRS 15;

+ the Groug's balance sheet under IFRS 15 indudes Emited
contract assets created in the process of mobilising and
transforming services;

+ there is an increase in the level of deferred income in relation
to contracts where advance payments have been received
from clients to undertake work prior to the recognition of
revenue and planned outoomes being delivered. Deferred
income will unwind gver the {ife of contracts; and

= due to the changes in the pattern and timing of revenue and
cast recognition under IFRS 15, and the resulting adjustment to
opening reserves on 1 April 2017, the principles of IAS 12 give
rise to a movemnent in deferred tax, primarily an increase in the
deferred tax asset recognised.




The impact on reported net assets as at 1 April 2017 and on the
reported revenue and reported operating profit before other
itemns recognised for the year ended 31 March 2018 for the
Group are as shown in table 1.

Divislonal breakdown of adjusted financial performance
The Group’s adjusted revenue Increased in the year, from
£2,140.0m to £2,199.1m as shown in table 2. This was principally
due to good revenue growth in Security, Care & Custody

and Engineering Services offset by significant volume

dedlines in Property Management and a smaller reduction

in Professional Services.

Adjusted operating profit before other items fell by 6.0% in the
year from £82.0m to £77.1m as shown in table 3, reflecting
investments made to enhance customer services, investment in
technology and capability in Professional Services and corporate
centre, and the volume declines in Property Management, partly
offset by solid growth from both the Security and Engineering
Services divisions.

Adjusted other items before discontinued operations
Adjusted other items before tax total £103.0m (2017: £36.6m).
£34.6m {2017: £15.0m) relates to impainment of the Property
Management goodwill which Is further described below. £47.3m
(2017: £14.9m)} is related to organisational change, to support the
Group’s cost efficiency snd transformation programmes, and
specifically relates to consultancy and project management for
the change process, redundancy and double running costs,
property cosure costs, and assets written off as a function of the
transforrmation programme. Of this, £34.7m relates to Project
Helbx. £8.4m {2017: £6.7m) relates to the amortisation of
acquisition related Intangible assets, business acquisition costs
and costs assockated with the aborted disposal of Property
Management. Other exceptional items of £12,7m include £3.3m
for settiement of a contractual dispute, £3.1m n relation to
contract terminations and extensions, £2.3m in relation to costs
assoclated with various regulatory enquiries, £1.9m relating to
pension curtaliments, £1.3m for property dilapidations, and
£0.8m of IFRS 15 adoption costs. The tax credit on other items
was £11.7m (2017: £4.1m) resulting in other items after tax of
£51.3m (2017: £32.5m). As noted above, as a result of the
Accounting Review, a number of one-off items in the FY 16/17
financial statements were included in the loss before other items
rather than in other iterns, and adjssted through the APMs to
provide a more meaningful comparison.

Table 1
Operating
Net proft
axsets before
1 Agril Ravenue other tems
£m 2037 FY 17/18 FY 17/18
Pre-FRS 15 898| 2,199.1 771
IFRS 15 adjustments:
Percentage of completion {50.2 7.6 76
Mobilisation assets {24.9) (0.6) 44
Design and development and  (30.1) 31 3
Accrued income and contract - - 10
Work in progress (26.5) {e.) (4.6)
Contracted discounts {1.5) 06 08
Tax 250}
Total IFRS 15 adjustrents (108.2)] 46 125
As reported under IFRS 15 {384)] 2,203.7 896
Table 2
Adjusted revenue, £m FY17/18 FY 16/17 Change, %
Engineering Services 8338 8037 3.7
Security 4317 4037 69
Professional Services 90.8 96.6 (6.0)
Cleaning & Environmental 4055 3932 16
Care & Custody 623 a64 M3
Catering 1371 1327 a3
Property Management 237.8 257.7 {7.7)
Total 2,299.1 2,400 28
Table 3
Adjusted cperating profit/{loss)
befiore other tems, £m FY17/1% FY16/17 Change, X
Englineering Secvioes 355 33p 7.5
Security 252 2186 16.7
Prafessional Services 70 93 247
Ceaning & Environmental 198 209 153)
Care & Custody 32 29 103
Catering Y] 53 (5.7
Property Management 79 123 {358)
Corporate centre (268) (233) (137
Total 77.1 82.0 {6.0)
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Tax contribution

The Group manages both direct and indirect taxes to ensure that
it pays the appropriate amount of tax in each country whilst
respecting the applicable tax legislation, where appropriate
wtilising any legislative reliefs avallable. The strategy is reviewed
regularly and Is endorsed by the Board.

Mitie s a significant contributor of revenues to the UK Exchequer,
paying £481.2m in the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
£534.4m}. This comprised £452.8m of indirect taxes including
business rates, VAT and payroll taxes paid and collected, less an
£11.6m refund of UK corporation tax. The tax refund was due to
the utilisation of losses resulting from the accounting
adjustments in the prior year’s accounts. As Mitie’s business Is
primarily based in the UK, the effective tax rate should track the
UK statutory tax rate. Losses reported as a consequence of the
adjustments to the balance sheet following the adoption of IFRS
15 will reduce the Group’s corporation tax payments over the
next few years,

Discontinued operations

Following a strategic review of the operations of the Group
earller In the year, a sale process was inftiated in connection with
the Property Management business. It was therefore classified as
a discontinued operation in the half-yearly financial report for the
six months ended 30 September 2017. On S December 2017,
Mitie confirmed that it had withdrawn the Property Management
business from sale, as none of the indicative offers received were
at an acceptable level.

It has therefore been classified as a continuing operation as at 31
March 2018 and will now be integrated into the Engineering
Services division.

On 28 February 2017, the Group completed the sale of its
Healthcare division following the Board’s decision to withdraw
from the doeniciliary healthcare market. As a result of the
disposal, the Healthcare business was classified as a discontinued
operation for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Dividends

The full-year dividend is 4.0p per share (2017: 4.0p per share),
comprising an interim dividend of 1.33p per share and a final
dividend recommended by the Board of 2.67p per share.

Mitie Model

As previously signalled, the Group has ceased its past practice of
creating Mitie Mode! jointly held companies, with specific eam
out targets, and all remaining minority sharehoider interests have
been bought out during the year.
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Adjusted goodwill and intangible assets

Adjusted goodwill and other intangible assets of £348.9m
{2017: £397.1m) were heid on the balance sheet at 31 March
2018. As part of s annual review of impairment the Group has
updated its estimats of the recoverable amount of the Property
Management cash-generating unit (CGU), principally due to
changes In broader market conditions, which has resulted in
an impairment charge of £34,6m being taken In other kems.

In addition, other intangible assets impairment charges, mainly
relating to software development assets that are no longer

in use, were £10.4m, and other intangible assets amortisation
was £13.5m.

Other goodwill balances have been maintained and there were
no aoquisitions during the year giving rise to goodwill.

Adjusted cash flow

The Group took steps to strengthen its balance sheet during the
year, induding normalising s working capital position. Utilisation
of non-recourse Involoe discounting was reduced at the year-end
and supplier payment performance was improved. Although this
negatively impacted cash flow during the year, it resultedin a
stronger underlying balance sheet position and an iImproved
position for suppliers.

The adjusted aperating cash inflow, before movements in
working capkal, was £49.6m (2017: £9,1m). This Includes a cash
outflow of £27.5m relating to other kems charged to the income
statement in FY 17/18.

Adjusted cash used in operations during the year wes £6.6m
{2017 cash generated £151.1m), as a result of a working capital
outflow of £56.2m (2017: inflow £142.0m). The working capital
movement is axpiained in more detail below.

After paying interest of £13.5m (2017: £12.7m) and corporate tax
receipts of £11.6m (2017: pald £15.3m) the adjusted net cash
outflow from operating activities was £8.5m (2017: inflow
£122.8m). Capltal expenditure reduced by £0.8m compared to
the prior year, to £26.1m {2017: £26.9m). Dividends of £4.8m
were paid in the year {2017: £37.4m), Other net cash outflows
totalled £6.9m, including the settiement of amounts owed in
connection with the disposal of Healthcare of £9.7m (2017:
£27.4m, including share buybacks of £24.4m).

Overall, this resuited in an increase in the Group’s net debt of
£46.3m (2017; £31.1m decrease) to £193.5m (2017: £147.2m).




Adjusted working capital

As highlighted above, the Group took steps to normalise its
working capital balances as part of a series of measures to
strengthen s balance sheet. There were two main drivers
explaining the working capital movement of £56.2m in FY 17/18.

Firstly, the Group reduced its non-recourse customer invoice
discounting by £34.4m to £756.3m. The invokce discounting
facilities are netted off against trade and other recelvables within
the balance sheet and therefore led to 2 working caphtel outflow
from receivables of £34.4m (2017: £28.5m inflow). Excluding the
impact of invoice discounting, there was an underlying decrease
in receivables of £4.3m and total working capital increased

by £21.8m.

The second factor was the measunes taken to improve our
supplier payment performance at the year end. Tota) payables
reduced by £30.3m over the year as the Group improved lts
supplier payment days to 58 days {2017: 72 days).

Net debt

The Group's net debt increased by £46.3m to £193.5m as at

31 March 2018 {2017: £147.2m). However, average borrowings of
£286.1rm were £49.2m lower than the pricr year (2017 £335.9m),
of which £23.6m can be attributed to higher average Invoice
discounting (in contrast o the lower year-end position}]. As noted
above, this increase in net debt can be attributed to the measures
taken to reduce the year-end use of Invoice discounting and to
improve supplier payment performance. The Group is focused
on continuing to drive further sustainable improvements to its
average borrowings.

Liquidity and covenants

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had £466.5m of committed
funding arrangernents (2017: £526,.8m}, compared to net debt
of £193.5m (2017: £147.2m). The £275m multi-currency
Revolving Credit Facliity {RCF) matures in July 2021. The £191.5m
of US Private Placement notes are spread over three maturities:
Decernber 2019 £40.0m; December 2022 £121.5m; and
Decamber 2024 £30.0m. in December 2017, £60.2m of US
Private Placement notes matured and this was funded as
anticipated through existing facilities.

Mitle's two ey covenant ratios are leverage (ratio of net debt to
covenant EBITDA to be no more than 3 times) and interest cover
{ratio of covenant EBITDA to net finance costs to be no less than
4 times). At the year end, we were operating comfortably within
these ratios at 1.98 for leverage and 6.8 for interest cover.

Mitie’s Intention s to consistently maintain adequate headroom
within its committed facilities. In addition to its committed
funding, the Group utllises ancillary facilities, including invoice
discounting of £76.3m (2017: £110.7m}. The Group’s trade
creditors include amaunts due to UK suppliers which make

use of supply chain finance arranged by Mitie of £45.1m

{2017: £39.5m).

Retirement benefit schemas

The net defined benefit pension Rability at 31 March 2018

was £54.8m (2017: £70.7m) for the Mitle Group scheme.

The reduction in the deficit is principally due ta 2 Sbps Increase
In the discount rate driven by improvements in corporate bond
rates since 31 March 2017. On 14 November 2017, the Group
closed the final salary section of the main Mitie Group scheme
to future accrual and the resulting annualised savings to the
Group from FY 18/19 are expected to be in the region of £0.8m
per annum. The latest valuation of the Mitie Group scheme
a3 at 31 March 2017, indicated an actuarial deficit of £46.6m
{31 March 2014: £6.0m), largely due to a fall in discount rates
since 2034. The Group has negotiated, subject to final approval,
a deficit recovery plan with the Trustee totaling £58.0m over
10 years, of which £3.0m was pald in Fy 17/18.

The Group also makes contributions to customers’ defined
benefit pension schemes under Admitted Body arrangements as
well a3 to other arrangements In respect of certain employees
who have transferred to the Group under TUPE. At 31 March
2018, Mitle’s net defined benefit pension kability in respect of
these schemes, which it is committed to funding, amounted ta
£2.0m (2017: £3.5m).

in addition, the Group also participates in four industry mufti-
employer defined benefit pension schemes, including the
Plumbing & Mechanicat Services (UK) industry Pension Scherne.
These schemas are accounted for as defined contribution
schemes, either because the assets and Habilltles cannot be
apportioned among employers or the amounts involved are not
significant. Contributions to these schemes for FY 18/19 are
expected to be approximately £0.1m. The Group is exposed to
Section 75 employer debts in respect of two of these schames,
These Habilities crystallise when the Group ceases to have any
active employees in the schemes, Further detalls can be found in
Notes 34 and 37.

Conclusion

In line with recent Rinancial Reporting Councll guidance, we wilt
continue to simplify our operational and financial processes as we
increasa transparency and improve our internal control environment.
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Principal risis snd uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties

We have performed a robust and systematic review of those risks that we believe could seriously affect Mitie’s performance, future
praspects, reputation or its ability to deliver against its priorities. Our process for identifying and managing risk Is set out in more
detail on pages 69 and 70 of the corporate governance report. The following table and subsequent pages set out our principal risks
and eamples of controls and mitigating factors.

The risks identified do not comprize all of the risks associsted with our business and are not set out in priority order. Additional risks
not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also have an adverse effect on the business.

: Crtgey s

1 Strategic Ineffective bidding for contracts and poor mobilisation and delivery processes, resulting In onerous
contract terms, financial loss and damage to our customer relationships

2 Strategic Uncertainties in the economic, political and regulatory landscape which may have a negative
impact on the demand for our services and our access to resources

3 Strategic Poor sentiment towards the outsourcing sector could lead to fewer opportunities, increased
scrutiny and an adverse effiect on our reputation

4 Strategic Failure to deliver our transformation programme leading to lower benefits than anticipated,
highar costs and weaknesses in operational processes

5 Operational Faillure to maintain appropriate controfs in and avalfabllity of critical IT systems leading to major
contract delivery issues

6 Operational Inadequate controls over confidential and customer data and/or failure to comply with data
protection legislation could lead to reduced confidence in our abilities to protect data and fines
from reguiators

7 Operational Failure to adhere to sufficiently high standards in health, safety and environmental management
resulting in harm to our employees, fines and damage to our reputation

8 Operational inability of our business to attract and retain sufficent talented resources with a resultant
detrimental effect on our operational and finandial performance

9 Operational inability to maintain access to sources of funding due to concerns over our finandal strength could
have a significant impact on our performance and client relationships

10 Finandal Failure of a significant counterparty (e.g. supplier, banker) to deliver contractual requirements
resutting in financial penalties and reputational damage

1 Regulatory Non-compliance with emerging legal and regulatory frameworks leading to fines, prosecutions and

damage to our reputation
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Risk Number: 1

Ineffective bidding for contracts and poor mobilisation and
delivery processes, resulting in onerous contract terms, financial
loss and damage to our customer relationships

impacts on:
. Customer
@ cost

itis critical to our business mode! that we are able to develop
competitive and profitable bids, and mobilise and deliveron a
variety of contracts which are often over long periods and highly
complex. In onder to do this, we need to have a compeiling and
differentiated market offering, and balance the cost and margin
prassures that are an important factor in our industry. Fallure to
do so would impact our ability to retain clients and secure new
contracts, with a detrimental effect on our financial performance.

We need to fairly balance risk and reward, as well as contractual
terms in our bids, and have suitable monitoring mechanisms to
ensure this s achieved. it is important to make sure we ¢an
deliver the services In a contract, by fully understanding the risks
irwolved and having the appropriate skills and resources
required. incorrectly assessing the risks may result in onerous
contracts, penaities and early termination of contracts.
Falluve to properly mobilise a contract may result In breaches of
terms and corditions, additionsl unanticipated costs and
problems with operational performance. in addition, the
delivery of each contract must be dosely monitored so that we
understand our performance against the contract obfigations
and Key Performance Indicators (KP1}, and that any changes are
propesly assessed and monitored.
¥ we are unable to deliver the services as agreed in the conftract,
this could have a negative impact an our customer relationships
and reputation and lead to legal disputes with our customer and
termination of the contract. We have a number of (arge
contracts and major service spedfic contracts, the
loss of any of which would have a significant financial impact.

Controls and mitigations

* Strategic account management

+ Revised group-wide Sales & Bid process rolled out

* Centralisation and standardisation of pricing models

* Executive management bid cormnmittee approval for complex bids

* New Sales and CRM teams in place

* Development of Connected Workspace and capability in
professional services

* Use of specialist mabllisation teams for complex contracts

Detalled contracting guldelines developed and rolled out

Revised and reissued delegated authorities register

Risk registers in place for large-scale contracts

KPL/SLA formal reviews with customers

Improved CRM capabilities with active relationship management

* Focus on Net Promoter Score

Future plans

* Dngoing review 1o redefing and optimise the way we use our
CRM tool {SalesForce), 1o ensure best practice Is shared across
all client teams

* introducing new Sales Academy

* & 8 & @

Risk Number: 2

Uncertainties in the economic, political and regulatory landscape
which may have a negative impact on the demand for our
services and our access to resources

Impacts on:
@ customer @ People
@ Coxt @ Technology

The performance of our business may be affected by general
economic conditions and other financial and political factors
outside its control. A downturn In the economic cyde usually
results in decreased project work and discretionary spand by
customers, which can lead to a fall in our finandal performance.

Mitle drives maost of Its revenue from a client base in the UK,
with limited exposure to the wider giobal economy. We continue
10 monitor the results of negotiations resulting from the decision
of tha UK to exit the European Union, commonly referred to as
‘Brexit’. This may result in changes to the regulatory framework
in which we operate, and could place restrictions on the mobility
of individuals and hence availability of vesources.

We need to be able to respond ta variations in particular sectors
by providing service solutions that are competitive and
profitable. Our diverse business portfolio also belps provide
resillence to aconomic uncertainty.

Controls and mitigstions

= Mix of long-term contract portfolie in both the public and
private sectors

* Development of professional services, Connected Workspace
and new and innovative solutions

« Focus on higher margin growth opportunities

« Regular reviews of the sales pipeline

* Increasing spread of client base, reducing refiance on
individua) customers

* Strateglc account management

* Project Hefix transformation programme

Future plans

= Continue to source Connected Workspace technology
platform to provide next generation FM services that increase
customer stickiness, improve win rates, increase retention and
provide opportunities for higher margins

+ Significant increase in our customer retention focus through
better understanding customer needs (NPS), improving
operational efficiency and develaping expertise and capability
within our commerdal function

= Build a customer focus, demand led marketing and
communication programme ta better engage our customers
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Risk number: 3

Poor sentiment towards the autsourcing sector could lead to
fewer opportunities, increased scrutiny and an adverse effect on
our reputation

Impacts on:
. Customer
@ Technology

Mitie’s reputation may be affected by the activities and results of
other companies operating in our sector, as well as any negative
publicity for our business. This has been particularly heightened
since the liquidation of Carilion pic In January 2018. This has
resulted in increased scrutiny of companies in the outsourced
facilities management sector, regarding their financial health,
operational performance and long-term prospects. In addition, it
has increased debate, predominantly in the public sector, about
the benefits and viability of outsourced contracts. We also
operate a number of government contracts which attract very
high levels of metfia scrutiny, for example immigration

remaoval centres.

If we are unable to demonstrate our ability to deliver the
obligations In our existing contracts and financlal performance In
line with market expectations, we may be unable to retsin
existing cllents or secure new contracts. In addition, any negative
publidity in respect of our performance on public-sector
contracts may have a negative impact on our financlal
performance and reputstion.

Controls and mitigations

« Regular engagement with both public and private sector clients

= Strategic accourt management and increased aross selling to
current customers

» Project Helix transformation programme

* Long-term contract portfolio and spread of client base

= Strong relationships with financlal institutions

* Regular financial performance and balance sheet reviews

Future plans

= Continue to source Connected Workspace technology
platform to provide next generation FM services that increase
customer stickiness, Improve win rates, increase retantion and
provide opportunities for higher margins

» Significantly increase our customer retention focus through
better understanding customer needs {(NPS), improving
operational efficlency and deveiloping expertise and capability
within our commercial function

» Build a customer focus, demand led marketing and
communication programme to better engage our customers
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Risk number: 4

Failure to deliver our transformation programime leading to
lower benefits than anticipated, higher costs and weaknesses in
operational processes

Impacts on:
@ Customer @ Pecple
@ cost @ Technology

To ensure that we develop and grow our business In line with
the new operating model, our transformation programme
{Project Helbx) has been running throughout the year. The
programme contains multiple projects designed to improve and
optimise business processes, controls and operating structures,
with major projects in areas such as Finance, IT, HR and our
Engineering Services division.

The changes being introduced are vital to the future success of
the business, and fallure to adequately manage the programme
of work, identify and manage interdependencies, develop
appropriate solutions and implement the changes and ensure
they are sustainable, could severely limit the pace at which these
changes are delivered. Additionally, the investment required to
implement the projects needs to be closely monitored, to
ensure we deliver the expected operational and financial
benefits and savings In overheads.,

Controls and mitigations

+ Board and Exacutive Leadership Team (ELT} sponsorship and
regular monitoring of the transformation programme

+ Highly experienced programme managers brought in to
establish an overall programme management office, with
effective governance, controls, monitoring mechanisms and
reporting. This ensures regular oversight with dear visibillty of
progress and early warning of any challenges,

* Experienced Individuals within the business dedicated to the
Individual projects to allow focus on the transiormational activity

» Regular communication of progress and awareness of the impact
of changes being introduced to minimise business disruption

« Dedicated risk management and assurance procedures within the
programme to ensure intermal controls are operating effectively

Futwre plans

« Develop a training programme for change management to
bulld and enhance internal capability

+ Create a permanent Enterprise PMO capability to govern,
manage and control all change managemant activities
post-Transformation
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Risk number: 5
Failure to maintain appropriate controls in and svailabllity
of critical IT systems leading to major contract delivery issues

@ rechnology

Technology is becoming increasingly critical to the success of our
business In meeting customers’ expectations. This is particularly
important where we are responsible for looking after data and
critical Infrastructure on their behalf, and any fallure could not
only impact our ability to operate, but also the

customery’ business.

We sre continiing to increase the use of technology with
customers, especlally as we develop our Connected Workspace
offering, and need to ensure we have effective controls and
monitoring in place,

In addition, we are seeking to automate processes and improve
systems across our business to improve efficiency and control. A
number of these initlatives are being delivered through our
transformation programme (Project Hellx); a key sysbem change
aiready delivered ts a work management system in our Cleaning
& Specialist Services division {also utilised by our Security
division). Other significant planned changes include the
implementation of improved HR solutions and a pisnning and
scheduling solution for Engineering Services.

frvestment in technology s critical to delivering on our contract
obiigations and to delivering operational improvements. As cur
dependency on IT solutions increases, we will need to continue
to invest to minimise system fallures and have adequate
business continuity and disaster recovery plans.

Controls and mitigations

» Standardisation and rationalisation of operational and ERP
systems and infrastructure

* Recruitment of highly skilled IT professionals who are familiar
with the new technologies and can use these to de-risk the
curment estate

* Improved cyber and operational controls for existing systems
and included in all new system developments

* Development and testing of effective business contisity and
disaster recovery plans

= Investment strategy and support for technology development

Future plans

» The praposed outsource of routine IT operations to a partner
organisation which has the scale and depth of skilis to run this
more effectively and with lower risk

* The continued migration from the iegacy estate to leverage
new technologles, such as Al, big data, APl management,
open systems etc to iImprove scalability, performance and
resilience

Risk number: 6

Inadequate controls over confidential and customer data andfor
fallure to comply with data protection legistation could lead to
reduced confidence in our abilities to protect data and fines
from regulators

Impacts on:

@ customer

@ vechnology

There has been an increase in the regulations and penaities for
failing to adequately secure the data we hold regarding our
customers, suppliers, employees and others. As with all
organisations we face increased risk of cyber-attacks, maiware
and internal breaches, which could affect ouwr operstional
performance and cause damage to our reputation, it Is

Important that we maintain adequate security controls to
prevent the koss or theft of data we hold.,

In particular, we have a programme of work and dedicated team in
place to ensure we are compliant with the Genersl Data Protection
Regulation {(GDPR}, which came into foroe in May 2018.

Information Is an important asset for the business and needs to

be protected at all imes from ditclosure or misuse. We handle

information In many forms and have formal secure technical and

procedural controls In place to mitigate risks to the Information. The

sequre processing, maintenance and transmission of sensitive and

confiderdial data is achieved through the integrity, confidentiality and

avallabiity of our systemns. Appropriately applied Information security

helps to ensure business continuity and minimise disnuption by

preventing or minimising the Imipact of sacurity breaches. Fallure to

do this would ralse questions about how we handle information with

care, reduce confidence in our abilities and potentially expose us to

significant fines from regulators.

Comrols and mitigations

» Centralised information security team in place and
experienced new Chief Data and Security Officer recrulted

« Information Security Management System (iSMS) in place and
certified to 1IS0/1EC27001:2013 for key information assets

= IT security controls in place to proactively test, monitor,
identify and respond to cyber threats

« Cyber Essentials accreditation

« Cyber insurance policy

+ Ongoing Security Awareness For Everyone (SAFE) programme

¢ Information security conskiered for all new critical activithes
and products

Future plans

* Adoption of new, and aptimisation of existing, secutity
functionality to respond to the evolving cyber threat landscape.

+ Further embedding the principles and procedures of Privacy
by Design into core BAU activities

« Transitlon of legacy emall gateway functionality into the
strategic toolset

« Implementation of Single Sign-On (S50}, delivering security
and end-user experience benefits

= Redesign of Jolners-Movers-Leavers controls In line with new
HR transformation activities and toolsets
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Risk number: 7

Fallure to adhere to sufficlently high standards in health, safety
and environmental management resulting in harm to our
employees, fines and damage to our reputation

Imnpacts on:
.Cusmmer
@ reople

The nature of the services we perform for our clients means that
there Is potential for cur employees, our partners and members
of the public ta be exposed to health and safety risks, and for
environmental damage. It is essential that we maintain very high
health, safety and environmental (HS&E) standards to manage
these risks.

We are completely committed to ensuring our people operate In
safe conditions, hard is not caused to others who may be
affected by our activities and prevention of damage to the
environment. Effective management of these risks is essential to
the success of our business. Fallure to do 3o could lead to
significant harm to individuals and the environment and result in
prosecution, action by regulators, fines and substantial damage
10 our reputstion.

Controls and mitigations

« A professional and skilled HSSE team

« New Director of QHSE appointed and revised operational
made! intraduced with clear roles and responsibilities

+ Regular training and communication delivered at appropriate
levels throughout the company

+ Improvements in incident recording, monitoring and reporting

+ Certified HS&E management systems to OHSAS 18001 and
15014001

+ Clear and standardised KPis introduced to monitor progress
and Improvements

* HSSE performance reviews conducted at divisional and
Board meetings

Future plans

» implementation of QHSE Culture program (LiveSafe)
specifically designed to develop QHSE cultural maturity across
the organisation

« Implementation of systems and processes which ensure
effective sharing of QHSE learnings across the organisation
and industry
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Risk number: 8

Inability of our business to attract and retain sufficient talented
resources with a resultant detrimental effect on our operational
and financial performance

Impacts on:

.Customef

.People

To achieve our objectives and operate successfully we must
attract, develop, motivate and retain talented individuals. If we
fall to maintain a skilful workforce there will be an adverse
impact on our operational and financial performance, and
customer satisfaction.

it is important to have a variety of views and experience within
the business and to attract specific technical expertise to
enhance our customer offering. it is also essential that we
develop and support the current and future leaders In our
business. This will help ensure we have the right culture in the
business to maintain high standards of working and an effective
system of governance and control.

Controls and mitigations

¢ Launch of Vision and Values

» Updated and improved training pontal developed and
deployed during the year

+ Competitive remuneration, terms and conditions

« Personal development plans related to annual performance
appralsals

« Succession planning and talent management

» Regular employee communications and offers

Future plans

¢ Partnership with 3aaa developed to utilise the Apprenticeship
Levy to bulld capability and attract talent

¢ Implementation of employee and manager self-serve
technology to enhante employee experience

« Digital learning suite to be rofled out

« Action planning from engagement survey results

* Creation of resourcing centre of excellence to enhance
candidate experience




Risk number: 9

Inability to maintain access to sources of funding due to
cancerns over our financial strength could have a significant
Impact on our performance and cliert relationships

Impacts on:

@ customer

@ Technoiogy

It s important that we maintain a range of sultable sources of
finance, including banking facilities, private placements and
supply chain funding, in order to maintain a strong liquidity
position, Fajlure to do 50 would restrict our abllity to grow efther
organically or through acquisition, and affect our ability ta meet
our financial commitments, We need sufficient funds to be
available to pay our suppliers, invest in our business and, most

importantly, pay our staff on time, as this is our most

significant cost.

We continue to pursue initlatives to improve our finandlal

position and given the concern about the viabflity of companles

operating In our sector, we need to continue to demonstrate

good financial discipline to maintain access to appropriate

sources of funding.

Controls and mitigations

* Maimenance of strong banking, debt and equity relationships

* Committed fong-term funding facilities

* Focus on appropriate payment terms with customers and
supply chaln

* Strong focus on and manitoring of cash collection

* Daily monitoring of bank balances

» Regular forecasting of cash flow

* Regular financial performance and balance sheet reviews -
which have been enhanced during the ysar

* Regular monlitoring of working capital

¢ Policy on provisions

Fyture plans

s Streamiine our order to cash process

« introduce incentives linked to cash collection

Risk number: 10

Failure of a significant counterparty (e.g. supplier, banker) to
deliver contractual requirements resulting in financial penalties
and reputstional damage

Impacts on:
@ customer

Ta meet our contractual commitments and succeed as a
business, we are reliant on our abllity to manage our
reiationships with third parties including insurers, suppfiers and
banks. Poor performance or fallure of one of these
counterparties could have a significant impact on our
operational and financial performance, and damage our
repytation and dient relationships.

It is important that we maintaln effective ongoing relationships

with aur significant counterparties and monitor thelr

performance, and develop contingency plans as necessary.

Controls and mitigations

« Ongoling credit monitoring of significant counterparties

« Annual material counterparty risk reviews and Board approval

+ Regular contact with eternal finandal and commencial
mariets

« Business continulty plans developed

+ Maintenance of sufficient committed debt facilities to
minimise the impact of any adverse financlal conditions
caused by counterparty fallure

Future plans

= Exercise continued vigilance in monitoring and managing key
counterparty relationships
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk number: 11
Non-compliance with emerging legal and regulatory frameworks
leading to fines, prosecutions and damage to our reputation

@ People

The Group Is subject to a wide variety of laws and regulations.

These include employment, and anti-bribery and corruption

laws, National Minimum Wage and the Apprenticeship Levy.

Fallure to comply with applicable legal and regulatory

fromeworks may resutt in significant fines, prosecutions,

debarment from public sector contracts and nevocation of

icences, as well as damage to our reputation. This could harm

ouwr prospects of winning future bids and retaining

existing customers.

itis important that we maintain strong governance and oversight

10 ensure we continue to comply with legal and regulatory

frameworks and that we respond to any changes that are

Introduced. it is also necessary to communicate the

requirements to our employees to ensure they are fully aware

and can demonstrate compliance.

Controls and mitigations

» Group functions (including Company Secretariat, QHSE,
Finance, Lagal and HR)} monitor requirements and assess the
Impact on the Group

= Training and awareness Is provided to employees for changes
in laws and regulations

+ Ongoing compliance monhtoring is undertaken and
management ks required to confirm compliance

+ Management oversight by Group and divisional leadership teams

» External experts consulted for specialist advice

¢ Code of conduct maintained and deployed to employees

+ Extarnal regulatory audits

+ Whistieblowing service launched and externally hosted

« Tax reporting framework in place to ensune compliance with
the Senlor Accounting Officer rules

= Group-wide policles and processes maintained in the Business
Management System (BMS)

Future plans

¢ Revised Group risk governance architecture will be rolled
out during 2018

« Digital tearning sulte to be rolled out

= Recrultment of additional subject matter experts to
Group functions

* Ongolng review of BMS to update policies and process

56 www.mitie.com | The exceptionol, every day




Viability statement

The Group’s principal markets and strategy are described in

detall in the Strategic Report (pages 1 to 56). The key factors

affecting the Group's prospects are:

« Mitie is the leading FM business in the UK with 45 of the market;

¢ the outsourcing market is relatively insensitive to economic cydes;

» Mitie has a dear vision for its technology centric growth strategy;

* Mitie Is making good progress in its transformation
programme; and

» Mitie has 3 diverse portfolio of biue-chip and public sector
cllents, the largest of which constitutes only 7.4% of revenue.

in accordance with section €.2.2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016, the Directors have assessed the
prospects of the Group over a three-year perfod to March 2021.

The Directars belleve that a three-year period is appropriate for
their viabllity assessment as it Is supported by Mitie's stratagic,
budgeting and business planaing cycles and is relevant to the
duration of the Group's existing contracts with customers which
Is around three years on average. it therefore represents a
timeframe over which the Directors believe they can reasonably
forecast the Group's performance.

n making this statement, the Directors have carmied out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business mode, future
performance, solvency or fiquidity. This included the avallablity
and effectiveness of mitigating actions that could realistically be
taken to avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence of the
undertying risks. tn considering the likely effectiveness of such
actions, the condusions of the Board's regular rmonitoring and
review of risk management and internal control systems, as
described on pages 69 and 70, were considerad.

In adopting IFRS 15, Mitie reported net labilities of (£24m)
at FY 17/18. This change does not affect forecast cash flows,
liquidity, or the ability of the Group to meet its obligatlons as
they fall due in the future and therefore does not Impact
this analysis,

In undertaking its viability assessment, as a base case, the Board
used the agreed budget for FY 18/19, which includes analysis of
the forecast performance of the Group's existing contract base,
axpectation for future growth including sales targets and
expected win rates, and overhead cost base. Based on this
budget, further projections for viabllity putposes have been
made using prudent assumptions:

modest revenue and margin growth beyond Fy 18/19;

no majar changes in working capital;

customer involce discounting continues to decrease over time;
future dividends in fine with current policy;

no changes to Group structure; and

no additional capital beyond current committed debt facilities.

s o o ¢ 9

The resulting financial model| assesses the ability of the
Comparny to remain within the financial covenants and liquidity
headroom of its existing committed faclltties. During the forecast
period, £40m of the US Private Placement notes mature and the
model assimes these are not refinanced. The Group also utilised
£76m of invoice discounting at 31 March 2018, which the Group
s not dependent upon for liquidity, covenant compliance or
viability purposes in the base case scenario.

A range of scenarios that encompass the principal risks were
applied to the hase case and are set out in the table below.
The analysis also considered a reverse stress-test scenario to
fllustrate the reduction in operating margin required to cause a
breach of leverage covenant, in combination with the reduced

revenue and operating cash scenarios,
Prindpal
Sconario el
1 Loss of major contract —lost revenue and 1,4,5
operating profit in all fture periods
2  Major dient inscivency - lost revenue, 10

operating profit and cash flow; plus one-off

costs equivalent to three months’ revenue
3  Catastrophic working capital outfiow — £400m S
4  10% revenue reduction 3,457
5  Margin erosion 1,78
11
n/a

6  Reverse stress test— revenue loss, margin
erosion and working capital cutfiow in
combination to covenant breach

In each of scenarios 1-5, the Group would be able to continue
operating within debt covenants, iquidity headroom and
maintain dividends In line with curvent policy. Scenario 6
required such an extreme set of factors in unison that It is
considered to be a very remote likelthood and therefore does
not represent a realistic threat to the viabllity of the Group.

The Directors considered mitigating factars that could be
employed to counter the negative effects of the crystallisation
of each of these risks. The main actions included the short-term
scaling down of capital expenditure, asset disposals, reductions
In cash distributions or ralsing equity.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation
and meet its labifities as they fall due over the three-year
period considered.
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Our customers’
business, is our
business

We are a partner, trusted for
our expertise and for putting
our customers at the heart
of everything we do.

Hyun
Workplace Consultant,
Professional Services
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Board of Directors

{mage removed Image removed image removed
Derek Mapp Phil Bentley Pauvl Woolf
Non-Executive Chairman Chief Executive Offficer Chief Finandial Officer
Board Committees Board Committees Board Committees
Chalrman of the Nomination Committee Chairman of the Results and Investment Member of the Nomination, Results and
Date of sppolntment 1o the Bosrd Committees Investment Committees
May 2017 Member of the Nomination Committee Dete of appointment to the Board
Other current appointmaents Date of appointment to the Board November 2017
Derek is chair of Informa pic and November 2016 Other current appointments
Huntsworth pic. He will step down from Other current appointments None
his role as chairman, and from the board, roles
of Huntsworth pic once a suitable None Past
replacement is found. Derak is chair of Past roles Paul was previously CEO of Virgin Active
Imagesound Limited, 3aaa and Satmon Phil was the group chief exscutive officer M;g:ﬁ;;ﬂﬁ’::mﬁ
Developments Limited, which are all of Cable & Wireless Communicstions Plc 8 s

privately held companies. Derek also has a
number of other business interests.

Past rolas

CEQ of Tom Cobleigh PLC, chair of
Leapfrog Dey Nurseries Limited, chair of
The East Midlands Development Agency,

chalr of Sport England and chairman of the
British Amateuy Boxing Association.

Skdiis and exparience

= Experienced chalrman and entrepreneur.,

» Extensive career in ownership,
managerial, operational and
commercial rofes in service industries.

= Waaith of commercial and governance
experience within various sectors.

+ Promotes robust debate and an open
and engaged culture.

from January 2014 unti Its sale 10 Liberty
Global pic in May 2016, From 2007 to
2013 he was managing director of British
Gas and was on the board of Centrica plc
from 2000 to 2013, having held the roles
of group finance director {2000-2004) and
managing director, Europe (2004-2007).
He was a non-exacutive director of IMI plc
from October 2012 to December 2014 and
Kingfisher pic (2003-2010).

Skifts and experience

* Executive and non-executive experience
with FTSE 100 public companles for
over 15 years.

* Strategic and commerdial experience,
at both national and global level.

* Extensive executive and leadership
exparience from across industry.

& Extensive financial, audit and rigk
management systems experience.

* Acoountamt by profession, with a master’s

degree from Oxford University and an
MBA from INSEAD, Fontainebleau.
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Birds Eye iglo Group and CFO of the
Auatomobile Association.

Skills and axperience

o A highly-regarded leader with
experience across a broad range of
industry sectors.

& Aproven track record in operational,
financial and strategic oversight and
exgcution.

e Extensive turnaround experience.

* Qualified as a chartered accountant
with a degree from Oxford University in
Philosophy, Politics and Economics.
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Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat Jack Boyer, OBE Philippa Couttie
Independent Non-Executive Director independent Non-Executive Director independent Non-Executive Director
Board Committees Board Conmmittees Board Committess

Member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees

Date of appointment to the Board
June 2017

Other Gurent appointments

Chief omastive, Infrastructure Services &
Cloud Services UK, jreland and Northemn
Europe at Capgemini SA, a French publicly
listed muitinational corparation, and a
member of its UK management board.

Past roles

Senlor roles at Capgemini SA; head of
Enterprise Solutions, EMEA and head of
London Development Centre at Infosys
Technalogies Ltd. Prior ta joining infosys,
Nivedita was a consultant in the corporate
fAinance division at KPMG india.

Sidils and experience

» Significant international management
experience having worked across the
UK, Eyrope, the US and india.

& Vast experience in advising clients
on technology sokutions with a view
to enabling them to increase
shareholder value.

* Several years of (T consulting and IT
outsourcing experience managing large
complex contracts.

» Strong sales orientation having sold
global tachnology and digital solutions
to global clients.

¢ Qualified as a chartered accountant
with a degree in Economics,

Chairman of the Remuneration Conwnittee
Member of the Nominaton Committee

Date of sppolntment to the Board
June 2013

Other cument appointments
Non-executive director and member of
the nomination, remuneration and audit
committees of TT Electronics PLC. Board
member of the Sir Henry Royce Institute
for Advanced Materials. Chairman of
Academies Enterprise Trust.

Past roles

Former chainman of lika pic; non-executive
director and chairman of the remuneration
committee of Laird PLC; deputy chairman
of the Advanced Materials Leadership
Council (BEIS); council member of the
Engineering and Physical Sclences
Research Council and the Innovate UK
Energy Catalyst. Previously founded and
was chief executive officer of companies in
the engineering, telecommunications and
biotechnology sectors. Investment banker
at Gokiman Sachs and strategy consultant
at Bain & Co.

Skilis and experience

o Director of FTSE 250, AIM and private
companies, and chairman of AIM
companies and private companies.

« Chief executive and entrepreneur with a
track record ¢f steering successful
corporate innovation, growth and
globalisation in multiple sectors.

e Significant experience in mergers and
acqulsitions, IPOs and financial markets
in the UK, US and Asia.

e MBA,
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Member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees

Date of appointment to the Board
Novemnber 2017

Other current appointments
Member of the House of Lords, party whip
and member of the Polling and Digital
Media Select Committee.

Past roles

Philippa spent five years leading
Westminster Coundil, prior to which she
served as the cabinet member for Housing
and the cabinet member for Finance. She
was also the deputy cabinet member for
Children’s Services. She joined the Council
in 2006. Before progressing her career in
public service, Philippa was a director at
Cltigroup Capital following Its takeover of
Schroders, where she headed up its
principal finance business. Prior to joining
Schroders, she was chief executive of
Comerstone Communications, a
subsidiary of Birkdale Group plc.

Philippa has served as a non-executive
director on a number of boards since
2006. These include the Royal Parks, the
London Local Enterprise Partnership
Board, chairing the West End Partnership,
and sitting on the governing body for
imperial College-whilst also chairing its
audit commilttee.

Sidils and experience

e Bxtensive experience in both the public
and private sectors at the most sendor
level.

» Ennchled and joined the House of Lords
in 2016.

« A degree from the University of St
Andrews in Psychology.



Board of Directors continued
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Jennifer Duvalier Larry Mirst, CBE Mark Reckitt
tndapendent Non-Executive Director Senior independent Director Independent Non-Executive Director
Board Committees Board Committees Board Committees
Member of the Remuneration and Member of the Remuneration and Chairman of the Audit Committee
Nomination Committees Nomination Committees Member of the Nomination Commitiee
Date of appointment to the Board Date of appointment to the Board Date of appoietment to the Board
July 2017 February 2010 July 2015
Other current appointments Other axTent appointments Other current appolntments
Non-executive director at GMG pi, the Chalrman of the imperial College Data Non-executive director and chairman of
body which governs strategy and Sclence Institute Advisory Board.

commerdial operations of the Guardian
Media Group. She is also a member of the
Councll of the Royal College of Art, and
chair of its remuneration committee.

Past roles

Until March 2017, Jannifer was executive
vice president, People, for ARM Holdings
pic, the global technology business, and
was an executive committes member with
responsibifity for Peopie and internal
Communications activity. From August
2007 to August 2013,

she was Group People and Cutture
Director at UBM pi, and was Group HR
Director at Emap pic from October 2003
10 August 2007.

Skills and experience

e Skill areas include leadership
development, talent management and
succession planning; mantoring; HR
strategy; organisation development
and change management; employee
engagement; intemational
communications; corporate social
responsibility and partnerships;
executive remuneration; executive
team and board effectiveness.

o MA (Hons} from Oxford Uiniversity in
English and French.

Community interests indude acting as an
ambassador to Everywoman and Black
British Business. Member of the National
Research Council for Cyber Security.

Past roles

Until his retirement from 1B8M in 2010,

Larry was chalrman of IBM (EMEA) ar!
heid a number of other senior positions
during his 33-year career with 1BM,

He reprasented IBM before the European
Commission and ather authorities.
Chairman of the Transition to Teaching
Committee; a commissioner for the
Government's Employment and Skills
Coundl; chairman of the UK Trade and
Investment Exeqitive Board; chairman of
e-skills, the Sector Skills Councli; member
of the British Alrways International
Advisory Board; a private sector Business
Ambassador, appointed by the then Prime
Minister; member of the South African
President’s Advisory Council.

Untif September 2016, Lafty was a
hon-executive director and chalrman
of the remunaration committee of
ARM Holdings pic.

Skills and experience

* Served on both government and private
sector boards at sentor level.

» Significant expertise in the global
information technology industry, in
particutar in relation to defining and
exetuting the strategies required 10
drive business sucoess.
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tha audit committee at both Cranswick plc
and Hili & Smith Holdings plc.

Past roles

Nan-exetutive director and chairman of

the audit committes of 1 0 Wetherspoon

pic; group strategy director, Smiths Group
pic; divisional president, Smiths

Interconnect; interim managing director,

Green & Black’s; chief strategy officer at

Cadbury pic. Marik siso held a range of

strategy and finance roles at Cadbury

since joining In 1589, Inckuding finance
director of Cadbury UK. Prior to joining

Cadbury, Mark spent six years in

investment banking and retaliing.

Skills and experience

» Significant intemational strategic
experience.

* Experienced non-executive director and
audit chair at FTSE 250 companies.

* Finance leadership of large scale
complex divisions whilst at Cadbury plc,

¢ Extensive strategic leadership at both
Cadbury pk and Smiths Group plc,
impleménting large scale change
programmes.

* (n depth experience in mergers and
acquisitions across multiple
Intemational and product markets.

o Chartered accountant.




image removed image removed Image rermoved
Mary Reilly Roger Yates Peter Dickinson
Independent Non-Executive Director Iindependent Non-Executive Director General Counsel and Company Secretary
Board Committess Board Commitiees Board Committees
Member of the Audit and Nornination Member of the Nomination Committes None
Committess Date of appointment to the Board Date of appointment
Date of sppointment to the Board March 2018 March 2617
September 2017 Other current appointments Other current appoimtments
Other current appointments Non-exacutive director of Jupiter Fund None
Non-exacutive director of Essentra pic, an  Management pic, JPMorgan Elect pic and Past roles

International suppller of specialist plastic,
fibre, foam and packaging products. She is
also non-executive director and chair of
the audit committee of Travelzoo, a US-
listed publisher of travel, entertamment
and local offers, and of Ferrexpo Pic, an
inon ore mining company,

Past roles

Mary was a non-executive director and
chair of the audit & risk committee of

the Department of Transport in the UK, of
Crown Agents Ltd, an international
development company, and of Cape plc, a
global industrial services company.

Mary was also a partner at Deloitte LLP
for over twenty years, including a5 audit
partner, UK Manufacturing, and Head of
Outsourcing. She has akso served 3s a non-
executive director on a number of boards
since 2000.

Sidils and experience

¢ Accounting, finance and international
management experience.

» Chartered accountant with a degree
from University College London in
History.

St James's Place plc, where he Is also chair
of the remuneration committee.

Past roles
Roger started his career in asset
management at GT Management in 1581
and held positions of increasing seniority
at Morgan Grenfell, LGT and Invesco. He
served as chief executive of Henderson
Group plc from 1999 to 2008 and as chief
executive of Unicredit’s asset
management arm, Ploneer investments.
Roger’'s non-executive roles have included
F&C Investments, |G Group pic and Electra
Private Equity pic.
$kilis and experience
« Substantial board experience, a strong
business track record and extensive

knowledge of the finance and
Investment community.
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Peter was a partner at the global law
firm Mayer Brown International LLP
(and s predecessor firm) between 1995
and 2017.

From 2015 until March 2017, Peter
co-headed Mavyer Brown's global
Technology Transactions practice.

Between 2005 and 2015, Peter was the
head of Mayer Brown's Corporate practice
In London and, in addition, between 2008
and 2015, Peter was the co-head of Mayer
Brown's global Corporate practice, with
specific responsibliity for strategy.

Skills and axperience

» Substantisl experience advising on
corporats advisoty,
mergers arvd acquisitions, joint ventures
and other significant commercial
transactions including large scale
muitHurisdicional outsourcing
projects,

« Qualified solicitor with a degree In law
from Southampton University.



Chalrman’s introduction to Corporate Governance

Chairman’s introduction to
Corporate Governance

Image remaved

Derek Mapp, Chairman

As a Board, we are dedicated to delivering and maintaining the
highest lavels of governance. The Board i comtinually seeking to
adapt and nespond to meet its nesponsibifities to sharehoiders
and other stakeholders for the Groug’s activities and its long-
term sucoess.

The Board Is kept up to date on all matters of key governance

by way of a comprehensive report prepared by the Company
Secretary for each Board meeting, and communication during the
periods between meetings with both the Compaty Secretary and
the wider teams where necessary.

There have been many corporate govemance consultations,
updates and modifications released during the year, inckuding the
Financial Reporting Council's review of the UK Corporate
Govermance Code {the Code). Proposed revisions to the Code
remmnains high on our governance agenda and the Board will
continue to monhtor the changes and adapt whene necessary to
maintain compliance.

Statement of compliance with the Code

The value of good governance is clearly recognised by the Board
as an area of great importance.

1 can confirm on behalf of the Board that the Group has comglied
throughout the year with ak of the principles and the relevant
provisions set out in the April 2016 editlon of the Code, which
can be found on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.fre.org.uk. Details of how we have appiied the principles
and complied with the provisions are explained throughout the
Annual Report and Accounts. in this section, we explain how the
Code Is implemented via Mitie's governance framework
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Board composition

Since my appointment as Chalrman in July 2017, the composition
of the Board has been further reviewed, leading to several key
appointments during the year. Extemal advisors were engaged to
assist and support the process, further detalis of which are set out
on pages 84 to B7 as part of the Nomination Committee report.

Following the appointment of Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat
inJune 2017, in July 2017, we announced the appolntment of
Jennifer Duvalier and Mary Rellly as Non-Executive Directors
Joining the Board in July and September respectively. in November,
we welcomed Paul Woolf as Chief Financiat Officer and

Philippa Couttie as a Non-Executive Director,

Additionally, as announced In February 2018, we appointed
Roger Yates as a Non-Executive Director from 1 March 2018,
Roger will succeed Larry Hirst as Senior Independent Divector
upon Larry’s retirement from the Board at the Armual General
Meeting (the AGM) after more than eight years” service.

Mark Reckitt will stand down from the Board at the 2018 AGM
after three years” service. Mary Redlly will succaed Mark as chaic
of the Audit Committee,

During its reviews of the compasition of the Baard and succession
planning, the Board is mindful of both the Hampton-Alexander
review and the Parker review. Further detalls on thess, and of the
Group’s policy on diversity, are Included in the Nomination
Committee report on pages 84 1o 87,

The new appointments have significantly strengthened and
widened areas of expertise and experience on the Board, Fuli
biographical detalls of each member of the Board are set out on
pages 60 to 63,

An overview of the activities and the effectiveness of sach of our
Board Committees is explained further on pages 72 to 109.

External auditor change

During the year the Soard carried out a compatitive tender
process for the provision of audit services. As a result, Deloitte
LLP resigned as the Company’s audior with effect from

19 September 2017, and the Board appointed BDO LLP to fill the
casual vacancy until the forthcoming AGM, when shareholders
will have the opportunity to vote on their appointment.
Further detall can be found in the Audit Committee report

on pages 72 to 83,




Regulatory update

As announced in August 2017, the Company Is subject to an
angoing review by the Financial Conduct Authotity (the FCA} in
connettion with the timeliness of a profit warning announced by
the Coimpany in September 2015 and the manner of preparation
and content of the Company’s financial iInfformation, position and
results for the year ended 31 March 2016. The Company is fully
cooperating with the FCA, and will update the market on
compietion of the investigation,

In Novemnber 2017, we announced that the Company had been
advised that the Finandal Reporting Coundil’s Corporate
Reporting Review team’s review of the annual report and
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016,
which was initiated in October 2016, had been concluded and
that they did not intend to pursue the matter further.

Remuneration policy review

The remuneration poliy was approved by shareholders at the
AGM In 2015, and In accordance with the Code we will present an
updated remuneration policy to shareholders for approval at the
2018 AGM. Further Information is included on pages 88 to 109.

In conclusion

Although there have been challenges during the past year,
Including in the outsourcing sector in general, significant steps
have been made towards delivering on our strategy, and the
Board remains committed to delivering shareholder vatue in the
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Tha Board

Board members

Every company shoukd be headed by an effective Board.

All Directors are expected to allocate sufficient time to the
Company to discharge their responsibilities effectively and,
whene possible, attend aif Board meetings and the AGM.

Any time commitment matters are addressed by the Chairman
with the Director concerned.

The members of the Board are set out befow and their
accompanying blographies are set out on pages 6010 63.

Chalrman Derek Mapp (from 26 July 2017
{Non-Executive) Roger Matthews {until 26 July 2017)
Bosrdmembers  Phil Bantley
{Exacutive) Paul Woolf {from 13 November 2017)
Sandip Mahajan (until 13 November 2017)
Board members Nivedita Xrishnamurthy Bhagat
{Non-Executive) {from 1 June 2017)
Jack Boyer
Philippa Couttie (from 15 November 2017)
Jennifer Duvaller (from 26 july 2017}
Larvy Hirst
Mark Reckitt
Mary Reilly {from 1 September 2017)
Roger Yates (from 1 March 2018)
Note:
1. Darck Joined the Board 85 Non Exccutive Chairman-elect on 9May 2017 and
bacame Chalrman on 26 July 2017,
Key purpose of the Board

The Board ks collectively responsible and accountable to
shareholders for the sustainable jong-term sucoess of the
Company. The Board provides leadership and direction to
management within a framework of controls enabling risk
to be adequately assessed and managed.

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for the Group
proposed by the Executive Directors on an annual basis and
reviews aspects of the strategy at 8oard meetings during the
year. When setting Group strategy, the Board considers a

wide range of matters inchuding, but not imited to: finance;
shareholder retums; the Group's corporate structure; market
trends; competitive environment; private/public sector approach;
intermational aspects of the business and opportunities; and

people and talent.
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Key responsibilities of the Board

The forsnal schedule of matters reserved for the Board was
reviewed and adopted by the Board in March 2017, and can be
found at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-govemnance. The
schedule sets out in detail the key matters snd responsibitities
that are set aside to be dealt with exclusively by the Boand,
which include:

« satting the Group's Iong-term objectives and commercial styategy;

¢ approving material changes to the Group'’s corporate, capital
and control structures;

* approving the Half-Year Report and the Annual Report
and Accounts;

» approving business plans and budgets and monitoring

performance agalnst them;

ensuring that a sound system of internal controls, including

finandial, operational and compliance controls and risk

management systems, is maintained;

+ reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of those risk and
control processes, with the assistance of the Audit Committee,
through intermal audit;

* approving material acquisitions, disposals and business start-
ups {(including any material transactions outside the normal
course of business);

+ agresing changes to the structure, size, composition and
divertsity of the Board and ensuring adequate succession
planning for the Board and senjor management;

» undertaking a formal and rigorous review annually of
its own performance and that of its Committees and
individual Directors;

+ determining the division of responsibifities between the

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and approving the

terms of reference of Board Commitbees;

making arrangements for dialogue with shareholders and

canvassing shareholder opinion;

= approving resolutions and corresporxiing documentation to
be put forward to shareholders at generai meetings;

» approving Group policies relating o share dealing, the coda of
conduct, haaith and safety, corporate social responsibility
sthical trading; and :

» approving new material banking facilities, the appointment
of principal professional advisors, the annuai renewal of the
Group's insurance arrangements, and material changes to the
rules or statement of Investment principles of the Group's
pension schemes, as well as considering the leve! of funding
required for these schemes,

The Directors continue to be mindful of their legal duties to act in
8 way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote
the success of the Company for its shareholders, having regard
also to cther stakehoiders.




Frequency of Board meetings
During the year ended 31 Manch 2018, there were 12 scheduled
Board meetings.

Attendance
Number of scheduled meetings inthe year: 12
Derek Mapp! 10/10
Roger Matthews? 6/6
Phil Bentley 11/12
Paul Woolf* 3/3
Sandip Mahajan* 9/9
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat® 9/9
Jack Bayer 11/12
Philippa Couttie® 3/3
lennifer Ouvalier” 5/6
Lacry Hirst 12/12
Mark Reciitt 10/12
Mary Relily* 5/5
Roger Yates* 1/1
Notes:

1. Derek Mapp was appointed to the Board on 9 May 2047.
2. Roger Matthews resignad from the Board on 26 july 2017.
3. Paul Woolf was sppoirted to the Boerd on 13 November 2017.

9. Roger Yates was appolnbed to the Board on 4 March 2008,

The Baard wishes to clarify that, due to the changing
environment during the year, several Board and Committee
dates were rascheduled at short notice resulting in Mark Reckitt
and Jack Boyer being unable to attend one Board meeting each.
Mark was absent from one further Board meeting due to ifiness.

Jennifer Duvalier was unable to attend one Board meeting due to
a longstanding commitment preceding her appointment to the
Mitle Board.

As advised In September, Phil Bentley was absent from the
businass for a period of time due to liness which resulted in his
non-sttendance at the September Board meeting. Peter Dickinson,
Genersl Counsel and Company Secretary, occupied the role of
acting Chief Exacutive Officer during Phit's absence.

in addition, two ad hoc Board meetings were held during the year, to
consider various matters induding the appointment of the Chalrman.

Key aveas of business

In addition to the key responsibliities described above, during the
vear the Board spent time discussing:

* developments in corporate governance;

+ the Market Abuse Regime;

+ whistleblowing;

¢ the delegated authority register and contracting guidefines;
* principal risks and viabiity;

¢ risk management;

« funding and liquidity;

* gender pay reporting; and

+ the FCA’s investigation in connection with the timeliness of a
profit waming announced by the Company in September 2016
and the manner of preparation and content of the Company’s
financial information, position and results for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Division of responsibiiities of the Chalrman and the

Chief Executive Officey

Whiist the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are collectively

responsible for the leadership of the Group and for promoting

the highest standards of integrity and governance, there is a

clearly defined and effective division of accountability and

responsibility between them.

They have an open diakogue and meet regularly between Board
meetings to ensure a full understanding of business lssues and
facilitate efficient decision making.

The document setting out this division of responsibilities is avaifable
on the website at www. mitle.com/investors/oorporate-govermance.

The Chalrman
The Chairman Is 2 Non-Executive Director and Is responsible for:

» chairing the Board and ensuring lts effectiveness in all aspects
of its role, including the regularity and frequency of meetings;
+ halsing with the Company Secretary to set Board agendas, taking
into account the issues and concerns of all Board members;

= ensuring there is an appropriate delegation of authority from
the Board to the execytive management;

« managing the Board to ensure sufficient time is allocated to
promote healthy discussion and open debate, supported by
the right level and quality of information to assist the Board In
reaching its decisions;

« facilitating the effective contribution of Non-Executive
Directors and encouraging active engagement by all members
of the Board;

« ensuring constructive relations between the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors;

+ ensuring that new Directors participate in a full, formal and
tallored induction programme;

+ ensuring that the performance of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors is evaluated at keast once a year, and
acting on the results of such evaluation; and

* maintaining suffident contact with major shareholders in
order to understand their Issues and concerns, in particular
in relation to governance, strategy and remuneration, and
ensuring that their views are communicated to the Board as
awhole.

The Chairman holds meetings with the Non-Biecutive Directors,
without the Executive Directors being present.

During Phil Bentley’s absence due to iliness, the Chairman
provided support to Peter Dickinson in his role as acting
Chief Executive Officer and to the Executive Leadership Team
and others by joining several operational meetings, attending
the head office in London on a regular basis, maintaining
consistent dialogue with senior management and making
himself available as required.

The Chairman is also available to consuit with shareholders
throughout the year and will be available at the 2018 AGM.
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The Board continued

The Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for all aspects of the
operation and managemant of the Group and s business within
the authorities delegated to hirm by the Board. He Is specifically
responsible for:

* developing Group objectives and propasing and implementing
strategy, having regard to the Group’s responsibiities to its
shareholders, customers, employees and other stakeholders;

* recommending to the Board an annuaf budget and strategic

and financial plan and ensuring their achievement following

Board approval;

optimising the use and adequacy of the Group's resounces;

= examining all investments and major capital expenditure
proposed by subsidiary companies and recommending to the
Board those which, in a Group context, are material in either
nature or Qost;

* evaluating, approving and exacuting material contracts,
Iinvestments Including technology investments, acqulsitions,
disposais and new business opportunities;

* ensuring at all times that the Group's risk profile, indluding
the health and safety performance of the business, ks in line
with the extent and categories of risk identified as acceptabie
by the Board:

= making recommendations on remuneration poficy, on other
remuneration related matters and In respect of the
appolntment of Executive Directors to the various Board
Committees (other than the Nomination, Audit and
Remuneration Committees);

= setting Group HR policies, induding management development
and succession planning for senior management and approving
the appointment and termination of employment of members
of that team; and

e ensuring the effective Implementation of Board decisions, and
regularly reviewing the operstional performance and strategic
direction of the Group’s business.

The Chisf Finandal Officer
The Chisf Financial Officer is responsible for:

* leading, directing and overseeing all aspects of the finance and
accounting functions of the Group, including financial
reporting, tax, treasury, strategy, performance snalysis and
financial planning, financia systems and the development of
the back office and management information of the Group,
and managing the processes for financial forecasting, budgets
and consolidated reporting;

= evaluating, approving and advising the Board and the Executive
Leadership tearn on the finandal and commercial impact of
material contracts and transactions {including mergers and
acquisitions), technology westments in support of the
development of the Group, long-range planning assumptions,
investment retum metrics, risks and opportunities and the
impact of changes in accounting standards;

¢ overseeing and directing the Group's Risk, Insurance, Pensions,
Intemnal Audit and Assurance functions and managing the
relationships with the extarnal auditor, key financial
instirutions and advisors to the Group;

* ensuring that effective iInternal controls are in place and that
the Company complies with appropriate acoounting
regulations for financlal, regulatory and tax reporting; and
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« providing an underpin to all aspects of the Group’s governance
framework, the application of its delegated authorities and Hs
investment activities

The Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors review proposals for the strategic
direction of the Group, constructively challenging and probing
proposals presented by the Executive Directors based on their
breadth of knowledge, experience and Individual skils and
contributing to the formulation and deveiopment of strategy.

They are responsible for monitoring high level corporate
reporting and satisfying themsehves as to the integrity of finandal
information and the aperation of key controls. They are required
to maintain an effective understanding and oversight of the
Group's principal risks and the assursnce in place relating to
those risks, including the results of the internal audit programme.

The Non-Executive Directors play a key role in determining the
remuneration policy for the Chairman, the Becutive Dirsctors,
the Company Sacretary and membars of senior management and
take: a primary role in Board succession planning. They have a
responsibliity to exercise their independent siill and judgement in
carrying out their duties.

The Ssnior Independent Director

The role of the Senlor Independent Director Inciudes acting as a
sounding board for the Chairman, serving as an intermediary for
the other Directors when necessary, conducting the Chalrman’s
annual performance evaluation and leading any new Chairman
appointment process. The Senlor Independent Directar also
acts as chairman of the Board, in the absence of the Chairman,
where necessaty, The Senlor independent Director is available
2s an alternative point of contact for shareholders should

they have concerns which have not been resoived through

the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or
Chief Financlal Officer, or for which such contact Is Inappropriate
In the circumstances.

Evaluation of the performance of the Board and its
Committees

A performance evaluation of the Board and its Committees is
camied out annually to ensure they continue to be effective and
that each of the Directors demaristrates commitment to his/her
respective role and has sufficient time to meet his/her
commitment to the Company.

In line with the Code recommendations for an externally-lad
independent evakiation every three years, the performance
evaluation of the Board was externally faclitated during 2017.
During 2018 the Chairman conducted a Board performance
evaluation, which involved one-to-one meetings with each of the
Directors, faciitated by a questionnaire devised by the Chairman
and completed by each Director in advance,

The Chainman shared his conchusions with the Board at its
meeting in June 2018.

The evatuation of the Chairman was facilitated by the Senior
independent Director in conjunction with the General Counsel
and Company Secretary.




Director election and re-slection

The performance of each Director is reviewed as part of the
annual Board evaluation process an the Board is satisfied that
each of the Directors continues to operate effectively and to
demonstrate clear commitment to his/her role. Paul Woolf,
Jennifer Duvalier, Mary Reilly, Philippa Couttie and Roger Yates
will stand for election at the 2018 AGM.

Phil Bentley and the remaining Non-Executive Directors, except
for Larry Hirst and Mark Reckitt, will submit themselves for re-
election at the 2018 AGM.

The terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors and the
Executive Directors’ service contracts are avallable for inspection
at Mitie's registered office, Mitie’s head office in London and at
the AGM.

Director induction process and training

All Directors receive a personally tallored induction to Mitie which
includes:

* meetings with the Executive Direttors and other key members
of the senior management team;

* areview of the Group's governance policies, structure and
business, including details of the risks and operating issues
facing the Group;

= visits to divisional offices and key client sites; and

= 2 briefing on key contracts.

In order Lo ensuse that Directors’ skills and knowledge qie
regularly updated, briefing notes are circulated on matters such
as changes in the regutatory and governance environment. Visits
to different business sites and offices are arranged in order to
help all Board members gain » deeper understanding of the
business. The Board also receives regular updates and
management presentations on the strategic development,
operational and financial performance of the Group.

Members of the Board are given access to an online board portal
which, as well as holding copies of all recent Board and
Cormmittee reports and minutes, has a reading room where the
Directors can aocess a Board Handbook contalning essentiat
information about the Group, induding:

+ the Company’s current Articles of Assacistion;

+ the Iatest Annusl Report and Accounts;

= Board and Committee terms of reference;

« guidance on directors’ statutory duties;

« governance and regulatory guikielines;

+ the Group's approved delegated authorities; and

* an gverview of the Group’s directors’ and officers’ liability
Insurance arrangements.

The Handbook was last reviewed and updated in early 2018 and
will continue to be subject to annual review.

Each Director has access to all avaitable e-earning modules via
Mitie's Laarming Management System, is actively encouraged to
complete relevant modules and is notified when new modules
become avaliable. EHJeaming Is avallable for matters such as
the Market Abuse Regime, Bribery Act, Data Protection and
Modern Slavery.

Board accountability and assurance explained

Risk management approach

During the year, the Board has continued to oversee the
Improvernents being implemented by the management team to
acidress the underlying issues raised during the comprehensive
review of the Group's balance sheet conducted in the prior year,
and the approach to governance, risk management and internal
control. These have included simpiification of the organisational
structure, clarity of reporting lines for the central functions,
notably HR, Legat and Finance, cessation of the "Mitie Model
arrangements, outsourcing of the back-office finance
transactional processes to Genpact and continued
standardisation and simplification of processes and procedures In
the Group. In addition, a new Group-wide delegated authority
register {DAR) has been deployed which clarifies the
accountabilities and authority to take decisions on specific
matters within defined financial kmits, at levels fromn the Board to
divisional leadership. This heips to disseminate the Board's risk
appetite. Similarly, authority registers are also being
implermented in each divisiun, wiilh follow the same principles
as the DAR. This structure should ensure a consistent approach to
acceptance and management of risk across the business. The
whistieblowing line, provided by an external party, has been
launched during the year, with all reports being reviewed and
investigated. This aiso enhances the identification of risks.
Irmprovernents in IT systems have continued 10 bring the business
onto consistent platforms, with improving ma
information and visibiity of common risks and effectiveness of
controls. The Internal Audit function has targeted its work at
areas of the business where risk management and internal
controls are suspected of requiring improvement, which has
helped to improve the risk and control frameworks.

The Group’s approach to risk is set out in more detall below. The
approach to risk management has been evolving inthe past year,
and ertin e i he reviewed and developed by the Board and
Exacutive Leadership Team, in line with the business structure
and risk profile. The Board understands that effective risk
management and a sound system of intemal control are essential
to the achlevement of the Group's strategy and supporting
objectives. The Audit Committee has continued to focus on its
review of the risk management framework to increase its
understanding of the nature of the risks faced by the Group and
how they are addressed.
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The Board continued

Risk culture

1t Is recognised that the risk management culture within the
business Is equally as important as an effective risk management
framework. In support of this, the ‘One Mitie’ Vision and
Values have been developad and launched, and are being
communicated to 2l employees. As well as helping to achieve
common ways of working and clarity of approach for customers
and employees, they also help set out, together with the code
of conduct {One Code), the framework upon which Mitie’s risk
culture Is built. Emphasis Is placed on the importance of
embedding risk management into all key dedisions, such that
opportunities to grow the Group are effectively balanced with
affective risk management decision making. This means that
opportunities may continue to be exploited, provided risks have
been properly identified and the right controls established or,
in some cases, potential opportunities are declined if they sit
outside the Group’s tisk appetite.

One Code sets out the expected behaviours for all employees and
supply chain partners and establishes zero tolerance in specific
areas as part of an established ethical business framework. The
Group continues to review and reaffirm Its code of conduct with
employees and supply chain partners to ensure awareness of the
vision, values and expected behaviours is maintained.

Risk management processes

The Group’s risk management framework provides 2 flexible and
adaptable approach to the kientification of risk across all areas of
the business, to meat the demands of the dynamic and fast
evolving environment In which the Group continues to operate.
Ultimate responsibility for risk management lies with the Board,
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, who further delegates it
to the Executive Leadership Team, with accountabilty and
responsibility assigned to specific risk cwners. The Group risk
profile is reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and General Counsel in advance of formal review and
approval by the Board. This information Is captured in risk
registers at business and functional level, as well as for large
contracts, which are subsequently consolldated into strategic,
operational, financial and regulatory risk categories within the
oversll Group risk register maintained by the Group Risk function.

Risk identification and assessment

When considering the risks that pose a threat to the achieverment
of the Group’s strategy, the Board takes both internal and external
perspectives into account to ensure a thorough identification
process ocours, The internal view takes into account factors such
as the changing and developing business profile, operational
processes, technology and people, while the external view includes
the economic position, political factors and sector and geographical
risks. A top down and bottom up approach ensures the systematic
Identification of significant risks to the business. Once identified,
risks are assessed using standard Impact and likstihcod ratings to
quantify the risk to the achlevemant of business objectives. The
Group employs risk management software to help deliver its
enterprise risk management agenda as well 85 enhancing risk
reporting and aversight. Risk registecs are forrmally reviewed twice
a year and approved by business unit managing dinectors.

Risk assassments are based on a 5 x 5’ scale ranging from minimal
0 catastrophic, with any risks falling into the Group's upper limits

having mandatory mitigation plans with the expectation that these
risks are managed down to acoeptabie levels.
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Risk mitigation

Each identified risk has a defined control owner who is
responsible for developing and implementing a risk mitigation
plan. As part of the risk review process, each control Is required
to be reviewed and formally assessed for its effectiveness in
mitigating risk, In order to strengthen the oversight of risk
management and internal control, audit and risk govemnance
meetings have been introduced at business unit level,

The terms of reference for the operation of these meetings are
aligned with the Audit Committee’s objectives, and once the
process is fully operational, summary reports of the matters
reviewed will be provided to the Audit Committee. The agentia
requives business units to review their top-level risks and the
progress of assoclated mitigation plans as well as assess any
changes to the external environment and thelr consequent
Impact on business units’ risk profile. in addition, reports from
the internal Audit function and other interal or external
assurance providers are discussed, with the objectives to share
best practice and |dentify common or emerging risk themes.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the control environment ks
undertaken at both business and Group level, with the Audit
Committee formally reviewing performance throughout the year
and advising on the effectiveness of the risk management system
in place.

Risk monlitoring and review

Principal risks to the business and associated mitigation plans are
presented to the Audit Committes and are monitored on an
ongoing basls.

The risk management framework s designed to manage, rather
than efiminate, the risk of fafling to achieve the objectives and
strategies of the Group and can therefore only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material risk and
loss. The Board, through the Audit Committes, considers the
nature and extent of significant risks In setting the Group's
strategy. Details of the principal risks of the Group are set out on
pages 50 to 56. it should be noted that other risks are identified
as part of the risk management process, but these do not have a
material Impact on the Group’s overall abifity to achieve business
objectives. These risks are managed via the existing risk
ranagement process,

The Audit Committee confirms that this risk management process
has been in place throughout the neporting year and remains in
place up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Acoounts, However, as described, the process is continuing to
evolve and will be subject to review and improvement.




Whistieblowing

ini September 2017 Mitie launched its new independent
whistieblowing sesvice to enable employees, suppliers and third
parties to report any conoesrs or wrongdoing anoryrmously without
any fear of retaliation. The service, which is managed by an
ndependent third party, can be wooessed via a freephone mumber,
a free online app or thiough the service provider’s website,

Details of the new service were communicated to employees via
Mitie’s intranet, emall, payship notes and posters, to suppliers via
Mitie’s sourcing postal and to other third parties via www.mitie.com,

The service and related intermal procedures are structured to
ensure that all reports are reviewed and investigated
independently from the area of the business to which they reiate,
thereby minimising the risk of confiicts arising.

All reports are copled to the Group Legal function, which is
intended to improve transparency ard ensure any trends across
different divisions and functions can be Identified and addressed.
An update on whistieblowing activity is provided to the Executive
Leadership Team as appropriate and to the Board at each

Board meeting.

internal control and assurance

Mitie operates a ‘three lines of defence’ mode! incorporating
Internal controls, risk management and functional oversight,
and internal audit. The implementation of the system of intemal
control is managed by the leadership of each business unit.
Group functions (such as Finance, Legal and HR} collaborate with
business units’ teams 10 promote continuous improvement and
ensure that controls are operating effectively. Mitie’s policies
and procedures are avallable to management and employees
through an intranet portal. A formal review of the internal control
environment Is undertaken by the Head of Internal Audit with
engagement from business units’ leadership teams on an annual
basis. An internat control assessment exercise which previously
operated In the Group is curnently being revised to ensure it
reflects the changes to the butiness structure and risk profile,
and focuses on the key internal controls which manage the risks
faoed by the business.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of intemal
controls through this process, through recelving updates from
specific functions, and via the Independent testing undertaken
by the Internal Audit function as part of its work. During the
year there have been a significant number of intermal control
weaknesses reported to the Aydit Committee in reports
prodused by the Internal Audit function. This has partly been a
result of the internal audit work plan being targeted at aress
known or suspected to have weak or ineffective Intemal controks.
The remedial action plans developed by management to address
these weaknesses are monitored by the Audit Committee to
ensure timely closure of the actions.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function’s authority and responsibilities are
defined in its charter, approved in May 2017. The Internal Audit
function operates independently, reporting directly to the Audit
Committee and administratively to the Chief Financial Officer.
This reporting line offers independence from the audited activities
and allows it to achieve objectivity. The chairman of the Audit
Commiittee oversees the appointment and removal of the Head
of Internal Audit and assesses the function’s performance against
the internal audit objectives. The annual internal audit plan and
budget are approved by the Audit Committee. Any significant
deviation from the approved annual Internal audit plan Is
communicated to the Audit Committee through periodic activity
reports. The results of each intemal audit are documented In an
audht report for internal distribution and action.

The chairman of the Audit Committee and the external auditor,
BDO LLP, have access to allintemnal audit reports that are issued
during the year and the Audit Committee recaives 2 guarterly
detalled update reporting on internal audits completed In

the period.

The Audit Committee also receives regular reports from BDO LLP
arising from 1ts audit work, contributing a further Independent
perspective on the Group’s Internal financial control systems.

Committees of the Board

The Board has five formally constituted Committees: the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Results Committee and the Irvestment Committee,
the scope of which are set out on the following pages.

The Company also has an informal Bid Committee which is
comprised of the Chisf Exacutive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer, the General Counsel and Company Secretary and
members of Mitie’s sales taam. The Bid Committee meets each
week to consider all material bids being submitted.
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Audit Cormmities

Audit Committee

Chairman’s introduction

Image removed

Mark Racidtt, Audit Committee Chairman

The FY 17/18 year was one of transition for Mitie in ways
described elsewhere in the Annual Report and Accounts. Three
new members, Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat, Mary Reilly and
Philippa Couttie, wera appointed to the Audit Committee, BDO
LLP was appointed as external auditor following a tender prooess
held in September 2017 and a new Head of Internal Audit was
appointed in June 2017.

Accounting Review

As noted in the previous annual report KPMG had been
appointed in January 2017 as independent accountants to
review and report on the most material judgements made on
the balanoe sheet amounts in relation 1o long-term complex
contracts, accrued Income, work in progress and mobiliisation.

In addition, KPMG provided support to management in their own
review of the remaining aress of the balance sheet. This work
was undertaken between January and May 2017 and reviewed
by the Audit Committee during the period up to the approval

by the Board on 12 June 2017 of the acoounts for the year ended
31 March 2017.

As part of that work, management made various recommendations
on the changes required to ensure that Mitie’s financial reperting
and control environment would meet the standards required.
These recommendations were reviewed and supported by the
Audit Committee during the early period of the current year and
the progress made in their implementation has been reported

to the Committee during the year,
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The ongoing Project Helix transformation programme involves
simplifying legal structures, standardising procgsses and
rationalising systems. As part of this programme, the Finance
function has been restructured. Management has implemented »
standardised bidding process across the Group and issued updated
commercial standards and customer contracting guidelines.

The Legal function was centralised to ensure greater consistency
of application of the Group's minimum commercial standards.

Core accounting policies were updated and issued, including the
policies in relation to long-term complex contracts, mobilisation
€0sts, accrued income, work in progress, capitalisation and
amortisation of intangible assets and amounts receivable

from customers.

As 3 further result of the review, the internal sudit plan was
reassessed and work programmes were updated to include
business unit reviews, review of specific controls and a sample of
key contracts and processes. The Audit Committee considered
and agreed the scope of the updated plan. An assessment of
communication of values and key messages as part of cuiture was
included in internal audit work programmes and there was
regular engagement with the business leaders to ensure that the
audk plan covered current and relevant risks, and findings were
closed promptly and effectively.

Overall, good progress has been made In strengthening the
finance team at the centre of Mitle, induding the appointment of
Paul Woolf as CFO in November 2017, and in ensuring that
detaiied and dear accounting policies and practices have been
commurikated to the finance teams in all parts of the Group.
Additionally, a start has been made on strengthening the Intemat
Audit tearn with new leadership and tighter standards for the
work undertaken and the reports made by that team, it is
apparent that further work Is required to Implement the
recommendations in alt parts of the Group and the Committee
asked that the internal Audit team focus on areas which were feit
to be at higher than average risk of control weakness, with
consaquent advarse impact for the accuracy and timeliness of
internal reporting and safeguanrding of assets.

As noted elsewhere in this report, management have
implemented a plan to improve the effectiveness of the finance
back office by engaging Genpact to undertake much of the work
previously carried cut by the finance teams at Mitie. The Audit
Committee reviewed and supported the implementation of this
project in the belief that the professionalism of Genpact would
enhance the accuracy and timeiiness of a significant part of the
financial reporting across the Group.




External suditor

In the previous annual report, the Audit Committee reported that
it was satisfied with the improvements made by Deloitte, the
external auditor at that point, following the findings made by the
Audit Quality Review team at the Financial Reporting Councit
(FRC). The Audit Commilttee also concluded that Deloitte had
been effective in their role as external auditor for FY 16/17.

However, because of the Issues encountered during the financial
year It was concluded that a formal tender shoukd commence
such that a new external auditor could be appointed during the
financial year ending 31 March 2019 and, that Deloitte should be
re-appointed as external auditor for FY 17/18,

In July 2017, the Company was informed by Deloitte that they
would resign as auditors no later than 30 September 2017 as 2
result of being informed by the FRC that thelr audits of Mitie for
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016 would be the subject of
investigation. Delolte acknowledged that Mitle were obliged by
law to appoint an external auditor at the AGM on 26 July 2017
and consequently consented to being put forward for election as
external auditor at that AGM, but on the basis that they woukl
resign by 30 September 2017. As a result, the Audit Committee
agreed to accelerate the plans, already In place, for an audit
tender process in order that a new extemnal auditor could be
appointed by 30 Saptember 2017.

At the AGM on 26 July 2017 the reappointment of Deloitte LLP as
external auditor was passed, but with 29.4% of votes against the
resolution, as well as a significant proportion of votes withheld.

The tender process was completed at meetings of the Audit
Committee and Board on 13 September 2017, when the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board that BDO be appointed
as external auditor with effect from 19 September 2017, The
detalled tender process can be found on page 81

Accounting judgements

During the review of the half-year financial report and the
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit
Committee focused on the treatment of long-term complex
contracts and claims made by customers, the disclosure of the
akternative performance measures, the valuation and accounting
treatment of Property Management (which was the subjectof a
sale process that was subsequently terminated), the adoption of
IFRS 15 and judgements associated with the recoverability of
trade receivables and accrued income, provisioning and
contingent llablitties.

In relation to Property Management the Audit Commitbee
considered management’s assessment of the saie process and
the number of bidders at that stage of the process In mid-
November. it also compared the value of the bids to the assessed
value of the prospects of the business together with the value of
claims being made by curment and previous dients of the business.
The Committee challenged a number of the assumptions being
made within the process of valuation of the business and the
provisions for the claims. At the half year, the valuation for
Property Management was redoced resulting in an impairment of
£10.0m against the goodwill. On 5 December 2017 & was
anncunced that the Board had considered all indicative offers
received for the Property Management business, and concluded
that none were at a sufficent level with which to proceed.

The Audlit Committee has considered the valuation of the
Property Management business at meetings held in May and
June 2018, reviewing and challenging management assumptions
about the level of future revenues, profit and cashfiow together
with updated assessments of the daims previously assessed in
June and November 2017, Whilst the Audit Committee
acknowledges that this ramains a profitable business with
potential for profitable growth, it also belleves that the climate
for outsourcing within the social housing sector has deteriorated
during recent months and consequentiy asked management to
use & much mone cautious forecast for the future profit and cash
generation of the business. This has resulted in a further
recduction in the valuation of the Property Management business
and a consequent further Impairment of goodwill of £24.6m

(a total of £34.6m for the year ended 31 March 2018).

As part of the year-end process the Audit Comimittee has also
reviewed and considerad the other materiat accounting
Judgements made by management In the preparation of the
financlal statements.
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Adoption of IFRS 15

A key part of the work of the Audit Cormmittee during the year
has been to assess the work undertaken by management to
adopt IFRS 15, which is concerned with the acoounting for
revenie snd in particular sffects businesses which capitalise costs
incurved in the course of long-term complex contracts as well as
other comtracts. Management undertook a substantial amount of
work to provide an assessment and quantification of the impact
of adoption of IFRS 15, which was supported by a team from EY,
Including resource which had direct experianos of this from other
companies, and gverseen by a steering group which included
Mary Refily, a member of the Audit Committee, who had
extensive ralevant exparience from over 20 years as an audit
partner at Deloitte.

FRC reporting review

As detailed in the previous annual report, the Corporate
Reporting Review team of the FRC had ralsed questions relating
to the impalrment testing of Healthcare goodwill and treatment
of actrued income in the Annual Report and Acoounts for the
year ended 31 March 2016. | am pleased to report that the
Company received confirmation in November 2017 that this
review had been completed by the FRC and that, having taken
Into consideration the various disdosures and accounting
adjustments made In the Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2017, no further action was required. To

date the Corporate Reporting Review team have not sought any
Information from Mitie.
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Condusion

The Audit Committee has consiiered the control erwiwonment,
particularly in light of the perspective brought by new auditors,
both external and internal and, challenged management to
ensure that the higher standards now being applied in some parts
of the business are put in place across all parts of the business,
and that appropriate and consistent accounting judgements

are made.

This has been an Important year for Mitie 85 it seeks to embed
higher standlards of internal controt and more accurate financis!
reporting. The Audit Colmmittee supports management in this
activity snd has asked it to ensure that sufficient financial
resource s made avallable to enable this.

| have been a non-executive director of Mitie and chairman of
the Audit Committee since July 2015 and | balleve that a chair of
Audit Committee who can bring a fresh perspective will bast
serve the interests of sharehoiders and the business.

Accardingly, | have decided not 1o setk re-election at the AGM on
31 July 2018 but will be available to answer any questions that
shareholders may wish to raise at or before the AGM.

Details of the Audit Committee’s work can be found on the
following pages.

Mark




Audit Committee members

Mark Reckitt has been Chalrman of the Audit Committes since
July 2015. Mark continues to be deemed by the Board, as at the
date of this report, to have significant, recent and relevant
financial experience through his qualifications and ongoing
positions. Mark’s biography Is included on page 62.

Mark will stand down as chair of the Audit Committee and the
Board at the 2018 AGM after three years” service. Mary Reilly will
succeed Mark as chalr of the Audit Committee. Mary has a
wealth of experience as a non-executive director and chairing
audit and risk committees, She has extensive relevant and recent
accounting. finance and international management experience.
Mary’s full biography an be found on page 63.

At the date of this report the Audit Committee comprises
independant Non-Executive Directors who are all considered
appropriately experienced to fulfil thelr duties.

Chalrman  Mark Reckitt
Commiitee  Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat (from 1 June 2017)
members

Jack Boyer (unil 26 July 2017)
Phitippa Couttie (from 22 May 2018)
Larry Hirst (until 26 July 2017)
Mary Reilly {from 1 September 2017)

Principal responsibifities of tha Audit Committes

Key purpose of the Audit Committes

The Audit Committee provides effective governance of the
appropetateness of the Group’s financial reporting and the
performance of both the internal Audit function and the external
auditor. The Audit Commitee also supports the Board In meeting
its responsibiiities In respect of overseeing the Group’s internal
control systems, business risk management and related
compliance activities.

The Audit Committee also meets with the external auditor and
the Head of Internal Audit without the Executive Directors
presant. As chairman of the Audit Commilttee, Mark will be
available at the AGM to answer any questions about the work
of the Audit Committee.

Key aress disaumesd and reviewad during yoor

Reporting and externa) audit

* Monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
preliminary results announcements and any other formal announcements
relating to its financial performance, reviewing and reporting to the Board on
significant financial reporting Issues and estimates and judgements having .

regard to matters communicated to It by the external auditor.

* Reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan, nature and scope of work and .

overall summary of key issues and judgements.

* Assessing the effectiveness of the extemal auditor including the
appropriateness and skitls of its audit team and the quality of its services,

* Agreeing the audit fee for the year.

* Results, commentary and announcements.

* Key accounting judgements, iIncluding contract

margins and Impairment reviews.

Changes to acoournting policies and procedures,

¢ Golng concern and the viability statement.

Fair, balanced and understandable assessment

in refation to the Annual Report and Accounts.

External auditor effectiveness,

s External auditor reports on planning and
executing their half-pearly review and

Reviewing summary financial statements, significant financial returns to
regulators and any financial information contained In certain other documents,
such as announcements of 3 price sensitive nature.

Reviewing the Half-Yaar Report and Annual Report and Accounts, including the
fair, balanced and understandable statement, statements concerning intermal
controls and risk management, all other material information presented with
the financlal statements including the strategic report, the viability statement,
the corporate govemance staterents (insofar as they relate to the audit and
risk management), and recommending the same for Board approval.
Reviewing and challenging, where necessary, accounting policies and key
areas of accounting Judgement.

Considering and making recommendations to the 8oard, to be put to
shareholders for approval at the AGM, in relation to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s external auditor.

Reviewing and monitoring compliance with the non-audit services policy

and maintenance of external auditor independence

full-year audit, Inchuding their final opinion
and remuneration,

* Responses 1o audit findings and
recommendations for control improvements,
including reviewing the external auditor’s
management letter,
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Audit Commiitee continued

Principal responsiiiities of the Audit Committes

Ksy L d end

d during year

Risk and internal control

* Keeping under review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal
financlal controls and internal control and risk management systems {being the
systems established to identify, assess, manage and monhor finandal and
other risks).

* Providing advice on how, taking into acoount the Company’s position and
principal risks, the Company’s prospects have been assessed, over what period,
why the period Js regarded as appropriate and whether there Is a reasonable
expectation that the Company will be able to continue In operation and meet
fts liabiiities as they fall due over the sald period, drawing attention to any
qualifications or assumptions as necessary.

» Reviewing the Group’s consolidated risk register prior to its approval by
the Board.

* Reviewing the adequacy and security of the Group's arrangements for its
employees and business partners to ralse concems, in confidence, about
possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters {ensuring that
these airangements allow proportionate and independent investigation of
such matters and appropriate follow up action}.

* Reviewing the Group’s procedures for detecting fraud.

= Reviewing the Group’s systems and controls for the prevention of bribery.

Identification of the Group’s principal risis and
mmovement in exposures,

Status of key risk Indicators Including any
breaches of thresholds.

Review the effectiveness of the risk
mlm"m“ internal control systems,
Including the effect of the migration of certain
finance functions and processes to Genpact.

* Fraud risk assessment.
* Cyber security.

Whistieblowing procedures.

Internal sudit

* Monltoring and reviewing the role and effectiveness of the Group's Internal
Audtt function, reviewing the internal audit plan and ensuring the intemal
Audit function has adequate resources and appropriate access to information
to enable it to perform its work effectively.

* Reviewing key intermal audit reports and findings.

» Considering management’s response to any rmajor internal or extermnal sudit
recommendations,

= Monitoring the effectiveness of the external auditor and risk management
systems and functions.

Annual internal audit plan, including
consideration of its alignment to the principal
fisks, conslderation of emerging areas of risl,
coverage acrass the Group and review of the
Group's processes and controis.

Review of the execution of the internal

sudit pian and tha resultant audit reports
and findings.

internal audht effectiveness.

= Annual intemat controls overview,

Other

« Ensuring the Group's compliance with the Competition and Markets
Authority’s Statutory Audit Services Order, in particular with regard to
audit tender.

-

Effectiveness of the Committee.

The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are available at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-govemance.
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Frequency of Audit Committee meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee met
nine times. Invitations to attend meetings are normally extended
to the Group’s external auditor, the Chalrman, the Senior
Independent Director, the Chief Evecutive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Director of Group Finance and the Head of
intemnal Audit.

Attendance
Number of scheduled meetings in the year: 9
Mark Reckitt 9/9
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat* 6/6
Jack Boyer? 3/4
Laryy Mirst? a/a
Mary Reilly’ 5/5

Notes:

1. Nivadita Krishramurthy Bhaget wes appcinted to the Cormmittee on 1 June 2017.
2. lack Boywr stood down from the Commities on 26 July 2017,

3. Larry Hirst stood down from the Committee on 26 July 2017,

4. Mary Relily was appointed 20 the Committes on 1 September 20117,

Philippa Couttie was not appainted to the Committes untit 22 May 2018

The role of the Audit Committee ~ financial reporting
The primary role of the Audit Committee in relation to financial
reporting is to review with both management and the external
auditor the appropriateness of the Half-Year Report and Annua)
Report and Accounts, concentrating on, amongst other matters:
» the consistency of, and any changes to, significant accounting
poiicies and practices both on a year-on-year basis and across
the Group;
= the darity and completeness of disclosures and the context in
which statements are made;

* the methods used to account for significant or unusual
transactions whene different approaches are possible; and

» whether the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s
performance, business model and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committes considers reports from
the Chief Financial Officer and also reports from the external
auditor on the outcomes of the half-year review and independent
year-end audit.

Significant issues considered by the Audit Committes

during the year

The Audit Committee pays particular attention to matters it
considers to be important by virtue of their size, complexity, level
of judgement required, or potential impact on the financial
statements and wider business model, and matters pertaining to
govermance. identification of the issues deemed to be significant
takes place following open, frank and challenging discussion
between the Audit Committee mambers, with Input from the
Chief Financial Officer, the external auditor, the Head of Internal
Auxdit and other relevant Mitie employees.

The Audit Committee considered the following significant matters
during the course of the finandal year. In all cases, papers were
presented to the Audit Committee by management, setting out
the material matters of accounting estimates and the judgements
associated with each ibem. The external auditor provides a paper
that sets out views on sach area of judgement.

The Audit Committee discussed the papers with management
and sought the views of the external auditor on each matter and
for each area of judgement concurmed with the treatment
presented by management In the Annual Report and Accounts.
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Audit Committee continued

sue How sddressad
Adoption of The Audit Committee received regular updates from the project team and steering group and supported the
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue  recommendation from the steering group and management that Mitie adopt IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts
from contracts with customers’ with effect from the year ended 31 March 2018, using the cumuiative sffect method. The profect
withcustomers’  team was supported by a team from EY, including resource which had direct experience of this from other
Considerationof  companies and all the work was reviewed and audited by the external auditor.
the processand  The adoption of IFRS 15 has led to significant changes to the Group’s revenue recognition policies, a significant
disclosures for restaternent of the opening equity position as at 1 April 2017 and the creation of new categories of contract assets
the adoptionof  and fabiiities. The impact of such early adoption Is a reduction of £108.2m in the opening net assets of the Group
IFRS 15 as at 1 April 2017. Further detail on this significant change Is disclosed within the Finance Review on pages 46 and
47 and Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group’s dccounting policy for revenue has been newritten to reflact the adoption of #RS 15. This new policy Is
included in full in Note 1(a) to the consolidated financial statements. The new policy also includes the treatment of
accounting for contract fulhiment assets, pre-contract costs and deferred income.
The steering group reviewed the material kidgements applied by management as part of the year-end close
process. In the context of IFRS 15, the steering group reviewed the kay jJudgements applied to how revenue ks
recognised on long-term contracts; from discounts, variations or other scope changes, where significant
Judgement needs 10 be exercised by management dhe to uncertainties over contyactusl terms and ongoing
negotiations with clients; and to the appropriate phasing and recognition of upfront payments from customers,
inchuding design and development fiees. in addition, the steering group reviewed the key judgements applied by
management in the recognition of contract assets as part of the transition to ¥FRS 15.
The new revenue recognition policy includes disclosure of the significant judgements and estimates in relation to
its appiication and the Audit Committee is satisfied that these have been properly disclosed. The Audit Committee
is satisfied that the disclosures given within the accounts are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the
methodology of accounting for reventie across the Group.
2017 accounting  In January 2017, the Audit Committee asked management to conduct a detatied balance sheet review with
review independent expert support. The Audit Committee engaged KPMG to review and report on the most material
Update and judgements made on the batance sheet amounts in relation to long-term complex contracts, accrued income,
implementation work in progress and mobilisation. In addition, KPMG provided support to management, who carried out a review
of findings of the remaining areas of the balance sheet.

Af the conclusion of the review in june 2017, managerment made a number of recommendations on the changes
required to ensure that Mitie’s financial reporting and control environment meet the standards required.

Since june 2017, members of the Audit Committee have been briefed by management on the progress of these
changes as necessary.

The ongoing Project Helix transformation programme involves simplifying legal structures, standardising processes
and rationalising systems. As part of this programme, the Finance function has been restructured. Mangagement
has implemented a standardised bidding process across the Group and issued updated commercial standards and
customer contracting guidelines. The Legal function was centralised to ensune greater consistency of application of
the Group’s minimum commerdial standards. Cona accounting policies were updatad and issued, including the
policies in refation to long-term compléx contracts, mobilisation costs, accrued income, work in progress,
capitalisation and amortisation of intanglble assets and armnounts receivable from customers. Twice-yearly comract
Issues reporting and impalrment review processes have been formalised and carried out.

As a further result of the review, the internal audit plan was reassessed and work programmes were updated to
include business unit reviews, review of specific controls and a number of key contracts and processes. The Audit
Committee considered and agreed the scope of the updated plan.
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lssua How addressed
The valuation The Group has made a number of acquisitions in previous periods and carries goodwill as an intangible asset on its
of goodwill batance sheet in respect of the businesses acquired {see Note 14).
Reviewing the The Group considers the carrying value of al goodwill on at least an annual basks, or when an indicator of
carrying value impairment has occurred. The valuation and impainment review of goodwill Is assessed for each Individual cash-
of goodwill, generating unit (CGU) and considers the balance sheet value of the goodwill compared to the net present vale of
with a focus on the post-tax cash flows that are expected to be generated by that CGU. The approach involves an estimation of
Property the future cash flows expected to be derived from each CGU and the selection of appropriate discount rates,
Managementin  which are then applied to the cash flows to calculate a net present value,
the context of The assumptions underpinning the review of the carrying value of goodwill were considered by the Audit
the terminated Committee. The cash flow forecasts used in the review were derived from the most recent CGU budgets which
sale process. have been reviewed and approved by the Board and the long-term business plans of the Group. The assumptions
underpinning the review and the sensitivity of changes in key assumptions were considered by management and
presented to the Audit Committee.
At the half year the Audit Committee considered a paper regarding the carrying value of the Property
Management goodwill and concurred with the conclusion that an impairment of £10,0m should be made. When
this paper was prepared there was an active sale process for Property Management resutting in the business being
disclosed as a discontinued operation and therefors the carrying value of goodwilt was considered with reference
to the offers received from potential purchasers. Subsequently, the business was withdrawn from sale and the
sale process was terminated on 5 December 2017.
For the year ended 31 March 2018 the Audit Committee has considered a further paper ragarding the carrying
value of the Property Management goodwill, including sensitivities, and concurred with the conclusion that an
additional Impairment of £24.6m should be made. In the absence of an active sales process for the business this
paper considered the carrying value of the goodwill on a value in use basis resulting in a total impairment charge
of £34.6m for the year {(Nate 13),
The Audit Committee noted the substantial change in the forecasts for the Property Management business since
the half-year, driven by genera! negative sentiment in the social housing sector and the reduction in local authority
work following the tragedy at Grenfell Tower.
Usa of The Company’s performance measuras continue to include some measures which are not defined or specified
Alemative under IFRS. In particular management have introduced rmeasures referred to as ‘profit before other iterns’,
Parformance ‘adjusted revenue’, ‘adjusted operating profit’, ‘adjusted cashflows’ and ‘adjusted net assets’ as key measures to
Meastires review current performance against the prior year by removing the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 in FY 17/18
(APMS) and of the prior year adjustments in FY 316/17, as well as asset write-downs of a non-recurring nature, which
include those identified during the 2017 Accounting Review.
The Comemittee noted the guidance issued by the FRC In relation to the use of APMs and, supported by the
challenge of the extemal auditor, considered whether the performance measures used by management provided
& meaningful insight for shareholders into the results of the Group.
The Audit Committee then alsa reviewed the treatment of iterns considered for separate disclosure.
With the support of the external auditor, the Audit Committee reviewed the proposed disclosure of APMSs in the
Annual Report and Accounts ahead of their approval by the Board.
The Audit Comimittee also continued to support the judgements made by management regarding the Rems
considered as being exceptional and requiring separate disclosure. The Audit Committe concuded that dear and
meaningful descriptions had been provided for the APMs used. It was also concluded that the relationship
between these measures and the statutory IFRS measunes was clearly explained, supported the considered
understanding of the financial statements and that the Audit Committee had ¢onsidered that they had been
accorded equal prominence with measures that are defined by, or specified under, IFRS.
Potentialimpact  The Group will be required to comply with the requirements of IFRS 9 Finandial instruments” for the year ending
of IFRS 9 and 31 March 2019 and IFRS 16 Leases” for the year ending 31 March 2020.
WFRS 16 The Audit Committee has consiierad papers prepared by management in respect of these acoounting standards and the
Consideration of  disclosures made in Note 1 to the consolidated financial staterments.
the disciosures The Audit Committee concurs with management’s assessmant that IFRS 9 will have no significant impact on the Group's
made Inrespect  financial statements and that IFRS 16 will result in a substantial change in the presentation of the Group’s income
ofthe impactof  Staternent and Statement of Financial Poskion, however pending further detailled analysis a quantitative disclosure in
FRS9andIFRS 16 respect of IFRS 16 ks ot appropriate at the present time.
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Audit Committee continued

] How sddrassed

FRC guidance The Audit Committee has considered guldance issued by the FRCin January 2018 following Carilion plc entering
Consideration Rquidation and have reviewed the conclusions reached and disdosures made by management in the context of
of the sector- this guidance,

specific guidance  The Audit Comnittee concurs with management's conclusion that the disclosures presented in the Annual Report
Issued by the FRC  and Accounts are consistent with this guidance.

following the

coflapse of

Cariilion pic.

Actounting for Following the conciusion of the Accounting Review in June 2017, management have put in place detailed
material accounting policies and procedures for the Group which improve cansistency and reduce the latitude for the
contracts application of accounting judgernents to routine matters.

The Group For the year ended 31 March 2018 management operated a structured process for identifying the material
operates abroad  acoounting judgements made in arriving at the results and reported these 1o the Audit Committee for
portfolio of its consideration.

complex In relation to material contracts the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by managemesnt In respect of:
contracts; the * PFl fifecycle surpluses;

sccounting for  » provisioning for commerdial settiements/disputes;

“"‘:"‘e@m = disclosunss In respact of contingent flabilites;

umn.:erphmdhv * the need for provisions in respect of potentially onerous contracts; and

assumptions of * the recoverability of trade recelvables and accrued income.

fudgements

made by

managemant in

respect of the

outcome of

future events,

Other meterisl in relation 10 other accounting judgements the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
accounting n respect of:

Judgewents * contingent liabilities related to compliance with National Minimum Wage legisiation;

The judgements  « contingent liabllities related to the Group's participation in multi-employer pension schemes;
associsted with & provisions related to indemnities provided as part of the disposal of the Healthcare business; and
provisioning. » disciosure of other temns.

liabilities, and The Audit Committee reviewed the information provided by management as well as the views expressed by the
disclosure external auditors. The Audit Committee chatienged mnanagement on a number of matters relating to the
matters. contingent labilities and was satisfied that such matters had been comectly accounted for.
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How sddressed

Following Delcitte confirming in July 2017 that it would resign as the Group's auditor no later than 30 September
2017, a tender process was started and an auditor Sefection Committee was formed.

The Sefection Committee was led by the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mark Reckitt, and comprised the other
members of the Audit Commiktee, the Chief Financlal Officer and the Director of Group Finance.

Consistent with the FRC "Audit Tenders Note on Best Practice’ issued in February 2017 the tender process was not
limited to the ‘Big 4. Deloitte was not invited 1o tender.

During July and August, Mark Reckitt, together with senior members of the Mitle team, met audit partners at PwC,
EY, KPMG and BDO in order to assess whether they were able to participate in the audit tender process. Both PwC
and EY declined to participate, as, dua to the nature of non-audit work carried out for Mitie during FY 16/17 and
FY 17/18, they were not deemed independent under EU rules. Both KPMG and BDO confirmed that they were
independent and willing to participate in the process.

The Selection Committes reviewed and approved Request For Proposal documentation and a data pack to be
issued to both participants, which provided detalled information to support the submission of quality and accurate
bids by partidpants.

Both participants then had the opportunity to spend time with various management stakeholders to obtain a
rmore detalled understanding of the Group and existing management processes and challenges to better inform
their tender submission. These meetings induded time with the Chief Financial Officer, Group Finance, Tax,
Treasury, Internal Audit, Risk, General Counsel and Company Secretarial, IT, as well as the managing director and
finance directaor of each of the operational businesses.

The bids submitbed were subject to review by the Selection Committee. Bath firms then met with the Selection
Committee to present thelr proposals with a question and answer sassion then led by the members of the Audit
Committee present.

The Selection Committee reviewed the tender submissions and scored them independently based upon the
quality and relevant sector experience of the proposed team, depth of the team and the wider arganisation
relevant to the Company, cultural fit, proposed approach to the transition plan and wider audit and potential for
audit efficiency and effectiveness.

The Selection Committes recommended BDO LLP as the prefermed exbermal auditor for the Company. The Boand
ratified the decision of the Selection Committee and announced the decision to the London Stock Exchange in
September 2017.

Review of the

The Audit Committee considered the evidence that supports the ability of the Directors to condude that the
Group has adequate financlal resourcas to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can prepare its
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Audit Committee considered the future prospects and
perfurmance of the Group Including: the future business plans of the Group; the potential Impact of acquisition
activity and possible changes to the composition af the Group; the projected future cash flows of the Group; the
avallabiltty of core and anclllary financing facillties and compliance with related covenants; the projected drawn
positions and headroom available on the core committed financing facilities; and those matters reviewed in
connection with the Viability Statement. it aiso reviewed and considered the disclosures on the matter of going
concern and viability in the Annual Report and Accounts and considered them to be appropriate. Details of the
condusions arrived at by the Directors in preparing the financial staternents on a going concern basis can be found
in the Directors’ report: other disclosures on pages 113 and 114, as can the details of the conclusions arrived at by
the Directors In assessing the viabliity of the Group. The more detailed assessment of the Group®s long-term
viabifity Is set out in the Viabliity Statement on page 57.
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Audit Committes continued

internal audit During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed and challenged the scope of work undertaken by the Intemal

development Audit tearn and resources available to it, following 2 review undestaken by the new Head of Imemnal Audit. The

Review of the focus of the internal audit work has been on areas of high risk and where internal controls are suspected to be

focus of the weak. The audit work has also focused on areas identifled in the Acoounting Review of the balance sheet as well

intemal audit as on the quality of internal controls in Group-wide processes. The plan Is kept under regular review to ensure It

workplan and reflects the risk profile of the business,

resources The Audit Committee also requested that the internat Audit team expand its coverage, with an increased number

avaflable to of audits Inchuded as part of the plan which was approved for the year ending 31 March 2013. Audits of the

the team commercial process and accrued income are also planned in the coming year. The internal Audit team has started
to increase its nesources In terms of hoth numbers and skill-set, with recruitment still ongoing due to a competitive
macket for intarnal auditors, and continues 10 use Grant Thomton resource to support the delivery of the internal
audit plan.
The Head of internal Audit also outiined plans to introduce a programme of bringing talented managers from all
parts of the business in to assist with specific audits and for longer-term secondments. This will help to improve
the understanding of the importance of effective risk management and Internal controls across the business. The
Audit Committee also recelved regular updates on developments in the internal control ervironment and
assoclated improvement activity.

Review of An assesssnent of communication of values and ey messages as part of culture was included in intemnal audit work

intemal audi prograrnmes and there was reguiar engagernent with the business leaders to ensure that the audit plan covered

findlings current risks and that rejevant findings are dosed prompily and effectively.

Consideration The internal Audit function inckuded an increased number of contract audits in the FY 17/13 plan, covering bids,

ofthe financial and operstional perforrance. This Included the approach to contract risk management, evidence: that

concusionsand  financial models have been appropristely reviewed and approved, and reviews of any financlal Improvement plans to

recormmendations  ensure thay had sufficient evidence to support the assertions and had been properly reviewed and approved. As part

arising from ofthe contract audits, there has also been an enhanced focus on contract obligations, variations, wark in progress

the Internal sudit  and amourts recognised in relation to long-term complex contracts. Further reviews were undertaken spedifically on

work conducted  bid management.

during the period A significant number of intemnal audits reported to the Audit Committee were rated as efther unsatisfactory or
requiring significant improvement. The Audit Committee reviewed these and sk other internal adits reported to the
Audit Committee in six meetings held up to and induding June 2018 and challenged management to ensure that all
recommendations made in the reports are implemented on a timely basis. It ls clear that further work is needed
1o ensure that all finance staff across the Group are properly trained and managed and support the actions of the
CFO to ensure that the Group provides sufficient resource to inplementt alk remalning recommendations.
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BExternal audit

Each year the Audit Committee reviews the pesformance of the
external auditor in respect of audit related services and non-audit
related services and Is committed to ensuring the independence,
effectiveness and objectivity of the extemnal auditor.

Tendering of external audit services

R was reported in the Annual Report and Accounts 2017 that the
Committee had decided to commence a forma! tender for a new
external auditor to be in place for the year ending 31 March 2018,
The detalled tender process followed can be found on page 81,

The Audit Committee corfims that the Group is in compliance with
the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation {Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Process and
Audit Commiittee Rasponsibiities) Order 2014,

Extemnal auditor effectiveness
The Audit Committee monitored the conduct and effectiveness of
the external auditor through its assessment of:

= the experience, expertise and perceptiveness of the auditor;

+ the planning and execution of the agreed audit plan and quality
of audit repoets; and

* the conduct of the auditor Including the Audit Committee’s
experience of interaction with the auditor, which included
meetings held in the absence of management.

Non-sudit services provided by the extemnal suditor

The Audit Committee has appsoved a non-sudit services policy that
ensures the external suditor remains independent and objective
throughout the provision of their independent sudit services and
when formulating thelr audit opinion. In onder to retain the
flexibility of utilising the external auditor to provide non-audit
services, the following criteria must 2iso be met.

These are such that the external auditor does hot:

= audit its own work;

» make management decisions for the Group;

* Create 3 conflict of interest; or

+ find itsaif In the role of adhocate for the Group.

The non-audit services policy identifies the various types of

non-audit services which might be required and determines

the analysis to be undertaken along with the fevel of authority

required before the external auditor can be considered for such

work. Further, the policy Is consistent with the FRC's ethical
standards policy.

When considering the appointment of the external auditor for non-

audit services, the following factors are taken into account:

* the quality of work provided by the external auditor;

* represemtations provided by the external auditor regarding
indapendence and objectivity, along with bnternal controls
implemented by them when providing non-audit services;

 the level of the external auditor’s understanding of the Group;

& the nature of the work being performed; and

= the commercial and practical circumstances of particular types of
work required.

Non-audit services provided to the Group for the year ended

31 March 2018 included tax and other audit related services.
Further detalls can be found in Note 6 to the financial staternents.
The Audit Commites considered reports from both management
and the extemal auditor, none of which raised concerns about
auditor independence.

A summany of the fees paid to the external auditor fs given in
Note & to the financial statements, The Audit Committee
conifirms that the requirements of the non-audit services policy
have been met throughout the year.

Assurance

In accordance with internal Control: Guidance for Dinectors and
saction C.2.3 of the Code, the Board performs a formal annual
assessment of the operation and effectiveness of the system of
intemal control, covering all material controls Including financial,
operational and compllance controls, and updates this assessment
prior to the signing of the Annual Report and Accounts.

These activities are monitored at executive level to ensure that
control changes are implemented appropriately and that they are
effective. The Head of Internal Audit oversees the application of
control environment improvements and attends Audit
Committee meetings to provide regular updates on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and the results of
the internal audit process.

Features of the internal control an risk management systems that
ensure accuracy and reflability of financlal reporting include: a
cukure of good governance, intagrity, competence, faimess and
responsibility; Group level policies and procedures to support the
business by providing an operational internal control framework;
and clearly defined responsibilities, delegated In accordance with
the Group's delegated authorities and authorisation registers.

Accountabliity for intemal conrol and risk menagement systems ks
devolved into each division and any control weaknesses within
divisions are investigated and resolved. Management and the
Committee seek to ensure that their cause is understood and
mitigating actions are taken to imit the potential for recuimence. In
view of the work of the Internal Audit function, managerent and
the external auditor, it is considered unlikely that 2 weaknass within
a particular division would have a significant impact on the Group.

As noted above the Group has taken significant steps to improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of ks back-office activities. Whilst
this project is in progress, there is an inherent increase In risk and
therefore additional controls are in place to monitor this.

Review of whistieblowing procasses

Part of the Audit Committee’s role Is to ensure that appropriate
procedures are in place in reiation to whistieblowing and to review
on an annual basis the Group's whistieblowing policy.

To ensure that whistieblowing arrangements remalined effective
and independent of management across the business, Miie
outsaurced &s “Speak up” service to an independent third-party
provider. The new service was launched in September 2017, and
can be acoessed via a freephone number, a free onfine app or
through the service provider's website. Further detail can be found
on page 71.
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Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman’s introduction

Image removed

Dersk Mapp, Nomination Committee Chairman

Nomination Committee members
At the date of this report the Nomination Committee comprises:

Chalvman  Derek Mapp (from 26 July 2017)
Roger Matthews {until 26 July 2017)

Committee #hil Bentley {from 26 July 2017)
members  paul Woolf (from 14 March 2018)
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat (from 14 Manch 2018}
sack Boyer {from 14 March 2018) *
Philippa Couttie {from 14 March 2018)
Jennifer Duvalier {from 14 March 2018)
Larry Hirst
Mark Reckitt {from 14 March 2018) *
Mary Reilly tfrom 14 March 2018)
Roger Yates {from 14 March 2018)

* Wiark Rnckitt and Jack Boyer s3ood down fron the Narminstion Commitiee on
26 July 2017. Both reoined the Comemittes on 14 Murch 2018 per the Chalman's
decision thet all Board mernbers shauld focom part of the Nomination Commitiee.

Key purposa of the Nomination Committes

The Nomination Committee evaluates the composkion, diversity,
experiance, skifis and independence of the Board
and its Cormmittaes. This allows appropriata batance to be
maintained and ensures the continued effactiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee also ensures that appropeiate
succession plans for the Non-Executive Directors, Executive
Directors and the Group's senior management are also kept

under review, taking Into account the challenges and opportunities
facing the Group, and the skdils, expertise and diversity required
for the fukure.
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The role of the Nomination Committee is to ensure the Board Is

appropriately balanced in terms of its composition, considering
matters of skilfs, experience and diversity.

| firmiy believe that the responsibiiities of the Nomination
Committee are matters for all Board members to consider.

Accordingly, the Nomination Committee is now comprised
of the whole Board and, in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code), membership continues to be

a majority of independent Non-Executive Directors, all of

whom are considered to be appropriately experienced to
fulhl their duties.

Key responstbiiities of the Nomination Committee

The key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

» making recommendations to the Board regarding suctession
planning for Directors and other senlor executives, and in
particular for the key roles of Chainman, Chief Exacutive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer;

* reviewing the structure, size and composidon of the Board

{including its sidiis, knowfedge, experience and diversity)

and making recommendations to the Board with regard to

any changes;

kaeping under review the leadership needs of the Group in order

10 ensure & continues to compete effectively in the marketplace;

» making recommendations to the Board conceming the following:

» potential candidates to fill Board vacancies when they arise;

« membership of the Board Comerittees;

» candidates for the role of Senior iIndependent Director;

* appointment of any Dinector to exeautive or other office;

* reappoirdment of any Non-Executive Director at the
conclusion of their specified term of office (particularly i
relation to those being re-elected for a term beyond six years);

* appointment of the Company Secretary; and

* any matters relating to the continuation in office of any
Director; and

* reviewing the results of the Board performance evaluation
pracess that relate to the compesition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee's Terms of Reference are avallable at

www.mitle com/Investors/corporate-governance.




Key activities during the year

The Notmination Committee reviewed the compasition and
chalrmanship of the Board and each of its Committees.
The Nomination Commitiee is satisfied that the Board's
composition and diversity has been appropriate throughout
the year, having regard in particular to the integrity, skills,
knowledge and mxperience of Its Directors and the size and
nature of the business.

The Nomination Committee recognises the importance of
planning for the future and the sucocession planning process.
During the year, the Nomination Committee continued to
consider its ongoing succession planning and refreshing of the
Board. As announced on 13 November, Paul Woolf was
appointed to the Board as Chlef Financlal Officer with immediate
effect, in place of Sandip Mahajan, who held the role of Chief
Financial Officer from February 2017 urtil his resignation from
the 8oard in November.

Paul's previous experience as a chief executive officer, chief
financial officer and chief operating officer In both public and
private companies brings additional sidlls to both the Beard and
the Executive Leadership Team. The ongoing ability to attract
high-callbre executive talent to Mitie reflects the Board's
conviction that, looking to the future, there are significant
operational and growth opportunities for the Group.

In accordance with the Code, Paul will stand for election at the
2018 AGM.

The Nomination Committee worked with executive search firms
JCA Group and Russell Reyniokis Associates to find additional
Non-Exacutive Directors with key skill sets to complement those
of existing Board members.

Nelther search firm has other connections with the Company.

Work with the JCA Group resulted in the selection of Jennifer
Duvaller, Mary Rellly and Roger Yates as potential Non-Executive
Directors and the search with Russeil Reynolds Associates
resulted in the selection of Philippa Couttle.

After careful consideration, the Nomination Committee
recornmended the appoimtmant of each candidate to the Board.
The appointment of Jennifer was announced on 18 fuly with
effecy from 26 July 2017, the appointment of Mary on 25 July
with effect from 1 September 2017, the appointment of Phillipa
on 8 November 2017 with effect from 15 November 2017,

and the appointment of Roger on 23 February with effect from
1 March 2018.

sennifer, Mary, Philippa and Roger will stand for election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, In accordance with
the Code.

Frequency of Nomination Committee meetings
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination
Committee met three times.

Number of schaduled meetings in the year:
Derek Mapp'

Roger Matthews?

Phil Bentley®

Jack Boyer*

Larry Hirst

Mark Reckitt®

5%5535.»?

Notes:

1. Derek Mapp wars appoinied to the Commities on 26 July 2017,

2. Roger Metthews resigned from the Bosrd on 26 July 2017.

3, #hil Bentiey was appointed to the Committee on 26 July 2017.

4, Juck Boyer stood down from the Committes on 26 July 2017,

S, Mark Reckitt stood down fram the Commitiee on 26 July 2017.

Mambers sppointed 1o the Nominetion Covmitiee on 14 March 2018 do not sppeer
In the shove table a3 there were Ro hrther schaduled meelings in the yaar anded
31 March 2018,

Roger Matthews did not attend the Nomination Committee
meeting in May 2017 as the meeting considered the appointment
of his sucoassor,
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Nominaton Committee continued

Diversity and Inclusion

Mitie has a Group-wide Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
that dlearly states its commitment to the inclusion and diversity
of all employees at all levels, up to and including Board level.

The Board retains a key focus on diversity of skills, gender and
experience in s membership, and the Nomination Committee
considerad the voluntary recommendations provided in the
Parker Report into Ethnic Diversity and the Hampton-Aleander
Review on Women in Leadership Positions during the year.

On appointment, the Chairman made it an objective of the
8oard to increase female representation on the Board.
Aocordingly, both JCA Group and Russell Reynolds Associates
focused their search on firkling the highest calibre female
candidates whilst remaining cognisant of the skills, knowledge
and experience required to ensure that the Board remains
sppropriately balanced.

The Conmilttee Is pleased to report that as at 31 March 2018 36%
of the Board are female. Further, 15% of the Bxecutive Leadership
Team are female,

The Board ensures that the Group’s employment practices and
polices are designed to recrult, motivate, retain, train and
develop the very best people, recognising that this can be
achieved only through offering equal opportunities regardiess
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation or
any other aspect of diversity.

Mitie is very proud of its rich and diverse culture and
backgrounds — these create ideas and Insights. Everyone has
a voice and is treated as an equal

An employee diversity network strategy was documented in
January 2018, with network leads elected to represent ethnic,
gender, UGBT and disabllity diversity. The networks forntally
launched in Q1 2018-19, with a face-to-face and virtusl events
calendar - in addition to an online network platform on which to
interact and share ideas, The purpose of the networks is to
champilon diversa policies and practices and to support Mitie's
akm to create a place to work where evaryone feels included and
valued. The networks will work closely with the Mitie Foundation
to execute the principal strategies of increasing apprenticeships
and applications from diverse backgrounds, particularly Into front
line operational and delivery roles. The network will also work
closaly with the HR function to advise on enhancements to key
policies including maternity snd parentsl leave, transgender
integration and disabliity.
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Female

36%

Exscytive Leadership Team

Female

15%




Further details of the Group’s commitment to diversity and the
diversity of Mitie’s people can be found in the sustalnability
section of our website at www.mitie.oom. A breakdown of
empioyee diversity as required by the Companies Act 2006 can
be found on page 39 of this report.

Derek Mapp
Chalrman of the Nomination Com

Results Committee

Overview and purpose

The Resuks Committee assists the Board in approving
matters such as half-year and preliminary results
announcements, other routine, non-material
announcements and sharehelder communications.

The Results Committee, which comprises the Chief
Executive Officer, as chair, and Chief Finandial Officer,
met twice during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Investment Commiittee

Overview and purpose

The Investment Committee facilitates the internal
approvals process by approving matters as delegated
by the Board and referring recommendations for Board
approval, The Invastment Committee, which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, as chalr, and Chief

Financial Officer, did not meet during the year ended
31 March 2018.
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Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the Remuneration
Committee Chairman

Chalrman’s Introduction

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors’

remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2018. itis

split into three main parts:

« Exscutive remuneration at a glance, This sets outa
summary of our approach, including how we Intend to
operate under the new policy and remuneration outcomes
during the year.

* The remuneration policy. Our existing policy has been in
place since 1t was approved by 94% of shareholders at the
2015 AGM. We are therefore presenting the new policy for
approval at the 2018 AGM. The policy review and the main
thanges are described below,

« The annual report on remuneration, This details how we
implemented our current policy in FY18 and how we
intend to apply the new policy in FY19,

The Remuneration Committee has addressed a number of
issues during the year. | have describad below the approach
the Committee has taken, together with the context in which
key decisions were made.
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Remuneration review and new policy

Over the last year, the Committee has reviewed the
remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors and the
management team, to make sure they best support the Group’s
business strategy, reflect best practice and are aligned with
shareholders’ interests, This included consulting with major
shareholders and investor hodies. Their input from the 2017
AGM and during recent consultations has been incorporated into
the development of the new policy.

The Committee believes in an approach 1o executive pay which
aligns with value creation for shareholders. if the value created
for shareholders is below our expectations, we believe that
executives should recelve reduced or na variable pay. Conversely,
if shareholders enjoy strong retums, we believe it is right that the
exetutives responsible for creating that value should share in
those returns too.

Given the Committee's actions in recent years in setting
stretching targets, holding executives to account for achieving
those targets and exerdsing negative discretion In lapsing awards,
wa feel wa have a strong track record in taking a responsible and
appropriate approach to executive pay.

This approach Inforrmed how we reviewed the policy and the
main outcomes of the review are set out below:

= No increase In quantum. Maximum incentive opportunities
remain the same for the next policy cyde. No increase in
salaries for FY19.

« Deferrsl provisions strengthened. 50% of the annual bonus is
to be deferred. Previously, the bonus was delivered in cash up
to 100% of salary, with only any excess deferred.

» |ncorporation of hest practice festures. We are enhancing the
post-vesting holding period to two years for LTIP awards,
strengthening malus provisions and introducing clawback
provisions acrass the Company’s incentive plans.

* Shmplification. Reduction in the number of LTIP performance
measures from four to two, with FY19 awards based 50% on
adjusted EPS and 50% on cash conversion.

Further detail is provided in the Executive remuneration at a
glance section after this statement, and the new policy is
provided in full in our policy report.

Chief Financial Officer succession

As announced on 13 November 2017, Paul Woolf, former CEO of
Virgin Active Health Clubs, Joined Mitle as Chief Financial Officer
and was appointed to the Board with immediate effect. Sandip
Mahajan, who had heid the vole of Chief Finandal Officer since
February 2017, stepped down from the Board. Our single figure
table includes details for Paul and Sandip In relation to their
respective times in the role.




Full details of Paul’'s remuneration arrangements — which comply
with the Company’s existing remuneration policy —are provided in
this report. In summary, they include: {i) a base salary of £430,000
which will not be increasad in FY1; (il) an annual bonus
opportunity of 120% of satary; and (i} regular annual LTIP awards
of 1S0% of salary. Nate that Paul's FY18 LTIP award was 75% of
salary.

Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Director on 13 November 2017
and is expected to remain an employee until November 2018. His
July 2017 LTIP award will vest at the usual time, subject to the
performance conditions, pro-rated for his period of erployment.

Remuneration decisions and outcomes

Salary

With regard to ficed pay, it has been agreed that salaries for the
Executive Directors will not be increased for FY19 and so will
remain £900,000 for Phil Bentiey (since appointment in
November 2016} and £430,000 for Paul Woolf (since
appointment in November 2017).

Voluntary waiver of FY18 bonus

FY18 bonus outcomes would have ordinarily resulted in pay-outs of
38% of the maximum (arising from operating profit, revenue,
customer performance and strategic objectives), Notwithstanding
this, both Phil Bentiey and Paul Woolf expressed in advance their
wish to voluntarily waive arty FY18 bonus, prior to award.

interaction with November 2016 LTIP award
Following his appointment, Phil Bentley recetved an LTIP award in
November 2016. This award vests subject to the extent to which
the annual bonus targets that apply for FY13, FY19 and FY20 are
met and a borus pald. In the event Phil eamns a bonus in one of
these years, 25% of the award vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is
eamed in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is eamed in all
three years. In any event, no vesting will actually occur until 2020.

in Nght of the voluntary waiver discussed above, for the purposes of
performance assessment under the Novernber 2016 LTIP award, it
is deerned that the annual bonus targets that apphed for FY18 have
been met and therefore a bonus in one of the three years has been
achieved to date.

Bonus oppartunity for FY19

For FY19, Phil Bentley’s maximum bonus opportunity will remain
at 160% of salary and Paul Woolf's maximum bonus opportunity
will remain at 120% of salary.

The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are all
Non-Executive Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Committes met three times.

Attendance
Chaleman lack Boyer 32
Committee members Larry Hirst 3/3
Jennifer Duvalier! 12
Roger Matthews? 11
Mark Reckitt® 1/1

Notes:

1. lennifer Duvalier was appointed to the Committee on 26 July 2017.
2. Roger Mstthews resigned from the S8oard on 26 July 2017.

3. Mark Reckitt stood down from the Cammittes on 26 July 2017,

The Committee has responsibility for determining the remuneration
of Mitie's Executive Directors and the Chairman, taking into acoount
the need to ensure Executive Directors ane properly incentivised to
perform in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Committee’s terms of reference are available at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance/

The Commitiee regularly consults with the Chief Executive and
the Group HR Director on various matters refating to the
appropriatensss of rewards for the Executive Directors.

However, the Chief Executive and other Executive Directors are
not present when matters relating directly to their own
remuneration are discussed. This is also the case for other
exgcutives attending Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary attended the meetings as Secretary to
the Committee. The Chief Executive and Group HR Director
attended the meetings by invitation only.

Corporate governance developments

The Committee is mindful of wider developments in corporate
governance bast practice, Mitie’s gender pay gap disclosures are
avatlable on the government portal, as well as on the website.
We are also monltoring the renewal of the UK Corporate
Governance Code with Interest, and our intention Is to comply
with the revised provisions when they are finalised, particularly
with reference to pay ratios.

Conclusion

We will be seeking approval for the Directors’ remuneration
report (advisory vote) and the policy report {binding vote) at the
2018 AGM. | welcome your views and feedback on either item,
which can be emailed to me at jack.boyer@mitie.com.

Jack Boyer
Chalrman of,
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration at a glance
Key principles of the policy
Mitie’s remuneration policy is based on a number of principles:
Reward should be aligned with The performance-related incentive arrangements are designed to align the
the sharehoider experience interests of executives with thase of shareholders and 1o promote the Group’s long-
T SUCORSS
The majority of the package At Executive Director and senior management levels, the majority of reward
should be performance-related opportunity is provided through performance-refated incentives linked to the

Group's strategic goals and taking account of the Group's attitude to risk; reward
under these incantives is linked to both individua! and Group performance

The policy shouid be The overall remuneration policy is designed ta be comprehensive without becoming
comprehensive and simple overcomplicatad and to encourage executives to concentrate on profitable growth

Exscutive iIncantives and link to strategy
The following table sets out how the intended measures across the incentive plans for FY19 support the Group's strategy and KPts:

Unk ta Sustained and renewed Strong cosh-generative Focus on people {ustomers at the heart
strategy profit growth business Quality dtient base wd culture of the business
Annual + 35% operating + 35% organic ¥ 10% erpioyee v 10% Net Promaoter
bomnus profit revenue growth engagameant Score
¥ 10% individual
objectives.
Lmp ¥ 50% adjusted v S0% cash
EPS canversion

The table below highlights the key features of the new policy and our approach which aligns the Executive Directors’ remuneration
arrangements with the shareholder experience:

Our philosophy ~ “The Committee belleves in an approach to executive pay which is
commensurate with value creation for sharehoiders.”

Our track record In

taking a responsible Sharahouang gukdetines deta of LTiP holding period of
and salaryin Bonus rral —50% £wo years —

a chimn '"m’" conjunction with the bonus into shares time t |""b"“'
pr'n‘: " 1o of enhanced malus and for st least two years "
negative discretion) clawback provisions
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All empioyee incentive svangements
The Company also operates SAYE and SIP arrangements, allowing employees to participate in share ownership and to share in
corporate success over the medium term.

Summary of the new policy and how we intend it to operate
This table summarises reruneration arrangements for Executive Directors (Phil Bentley as CEQ and Paul Woolf as CFO) for FY18 under
the current policy approved by shareholders at the 2015 AGM, alongside how we intend to apply the new policy in FY19, subject to

shareholder approval at the 2018 AGM.

Ata glance FY18 operation under current policy FY19 oparation under new poficy
Base salary CEO: £900,000 CEO: £900,000
CFO: £430,000 CFO: £430,000
Maximum bonus Policy maximum: 160% of salary for CEO and 135%  Policy maximum: 160% of salary for CEQ and 135%
opportunity for other Executive Directors for other Exetutive Directors
FY18 operation: FY19 operation:
CEO: 160% of salary CEO: 160% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary [prorata) CFO: 120% of salary
Bonus geferral Bonus delivered wholly in cash up to 100% of salary  50% of bonus deferred into shares which vest after at
with the remainder deferred into shares which vest  least two years ~l.e. enhanced deferral provisions
after two years
Bonus performance Current policy is for financial to be the majority New palicy is unchanged.
measures — mix {>50%) and strategic the remainder FY19 mix: 70% financial, 30% strategic
FY218 mix: 70% financial, 30% strategic
Bonus performance Financial: operating profit and revenue fFinancial: organic revenue growth, operating profit

measures — metrics

Strategic: as disclosed later in our Annual Report

on Remuneration

FY18 mix: 50% operating profit, 20% revenue, and
15% each on NPS and individual strategic objectives

Strategic: Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engagement, individual

FY19 mix: 35% organi revenue growth, 35%
operating profit, and 10% each on NPS, employee
engagement and individual strategic objectives

Maximum LTIP Policy maximum: 200% of salary Policy maximum:; 200% of salary
opportunity FY18 operation: FY19 operation:

CEQ: 200% of salary CEO: 200% of salary

CFO: 150% of salary {pro-rata) CFO: 150% of sakary
LTI performance FY18 mix (grantad in July and November 2017): 30%  Simplification to two measures, adjusted EPS and
meatures cash conversion, 25% EPS, 25% strategic and 20% cash conversion. Policy still to allow for flexibility on

relative TSR measures and weightings.

FY19 mix: 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion

LTI halding period Practical operation of post-vesting holding period,  Enhancement of post-vesting holding period to

of two years after vest

but no specific period defined within policy
FY18 operation; 50% released after three years, 25%
after four years and 25% after five years

two years and formal incorporation into policy
FY19 operation; shares releasad after five years
{three year vesting plus two year holding period)

Share ownership 200% of salary 200% of salary

requirements

Malus and dawback Malus provisions in place Strengthened malus provisions and introduction of
provisions dawback provisions
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Summary of remuneration outcomes for the year ending 31 March 2018

The following provides a summary of incentive outcomes and the single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors. Full
details can be found later in our Annual Report on Remuneration.

Annual bonus in respect of FY18

Phil Bentley and Paul Woolf both voluntarily waived their annual bonus in respect of FY18. Notwithstanding this, the measures and
targets are set out in the table below, together with a commentary on the amounts which would otherwise have been determined on
a formulaie basis and an assessment of the strategic objectives, had the bonuses not already been waived.

The table below reflects the notional out-turn of 38.0%. As the financial performance ranges excluded the Impact of IFRS 15, the
formulaic gut-turn has been assessed on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15:

Performance

measurs Weighting Performance range Out-tumn

Operating 50% of the award  £85.8m threshold The out-turn was £77.1m resulting in a hypothetical outcome of 0% of

profit £95.3m target the maximum for this element, being 0% of the maximum bonus
£100.0m maximum  Opportunity.

Revenue 20% of the award  £2.00bn threshold The out-turn was £2.199bn resulting In a hypothetical outcome of
£2.23bn target 65% of the maximum for this element, being 13.0% of the maximum
£2.33bn maxinwm bonus opportunity,

Customer Net 15% oftheaward  +1pts threshold The out-turn was +17pts resulting in a hypothetical outcome of

Promoter Score +3pts target 100% of the maximum for this element, being 15% of the maximum
+5pts maximum bonus epportunity.

Strategic 15%of theaward - The Committee set strategic objectives relating to: customers; costs;

cbjectives financial; people; technology; governance; and Drocesses as set out in the

Annual Report on Remuneration. The Committee considered that the
objectives had been substantially met and that 10% out of a passible 15%
of the award would otherwise have been awarded to the CEO and CFO.

2015 LTIP awards vesting in 2018

Neither Phil Bentley nor Paul Woolf were granted 2015 LTIP awards, as these awards were made prior to their appointments. As such,
they have no LTIP awards vesting in 2018.

Single figure for FY18
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Bxecutive Directors and former Executive Director for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 and their comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2017,

Year Salwy Berafits  Annusl bonus LIp Pension Total
Phil Bentley 2018 £900,000 £23,549 - - £180,000 £1,102,549
2017 £375,000 £29,073 - — £75,000 £479,073
Paul Woolf 2018 £166,136 £686 - - £16,614 £183,436
207 - - - - - -

Former Director
Sandip Mahajan 2013 £197,576 £10,240 - - £39,515 E247,231
2017 £44,000 £2,063 - - £8,800 £54,853
Total rerumeration 2018 £1,533,216
2017 £533,936

Further information on the above Is provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
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The Company’s remuneration policy

This report

We have prasented this Directors’ remuneration report in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013. The report aiso describes how the Board has complied with the provisions set
out in the Saptember 2014 edition of the UK Corporate Govemance Code relating to remuneration matters.

At the 2018 AGM two resolutions relating directly to this report will be proposed: a binding vote on the revised Directors’
remuneration policy as set out in our policy report below and an advisory vote on the Annual Report on Remuneration.

The Independent Auditor has reporied on certain parts of this report and stated whether, in his opinion, those parts of the report have
been propetly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Those sections of the report that have been subject to audit are
clearly Indicated.

Directors’ remuneration policy report

Changes ta the policy

The following tables and accompanying notes in this section of the report set out the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors. The policy Is intended to apply, subject to approval by sharehciders, for three years from the 2018 AGM.

Following a review In which major shareholders were consulted, changes have been made to the policy approved by sharehoiders at
the 2015 AGM, as detailed in the Statement from the Remuneration Committee Chairman above. These include the strengthening of
bonus deferral provisions, introduction of clawback provisions and formal incorporation inta the policy of an enhanced post-vesting
holding period for LTIP awards. For the avoidance of doubt, there has been no increase in maximum incentive opportunities. Minor
drafting changes have also been made to clarify the Committee’s intentions for the operation of the policy.

The key principles of the policy

The remuneration policy promotes and embeds the Company’s remuneration principles. The key principies of this policy are:

Shareholder aligned The performance-related incentive arrangements are designed to align the interests of
executives with those of shareholders and to promote the Group’s long-term success

Performance-related At Executive Director and senlor management levels, the majority of reward opportunity is

provided through performance-related Incentives kinked to the Group's strategic goals and
taking account of the Group's attitude to risk
Reward under these incentives is linked to both individual and Group performance

Comprehensive and simple The gverall remuneration policy is designed to be comprehensive without becoming
overcomplicated and to encourage executives to concentrate on profitable growth
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The Company's remuneration policy continued

The policy
The key elements of the policy, to be approved at the 2018 AGM, are set out below.
Purpose and
link to strategy Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
Base salary Salaries are generaily reviewed Base salary increases will be broadly N/A
Set at lavels to annuafly, effective from 1 Aprit. The  in line with the average increase for
attract and retain review is influenced by: the salaried non-contract UK
indwiduals of the « the individual’s role, experience  employees whose salaries Mitie
callbre required to and performanoce; determines, although on occasion
drivethe visionand = business performance and the other specific circumstances such as
direction of Mitie, wider market and economic changes of responsibiiities,
conditions; progression in role, experience, or a
» the range of Increases across the  Significant increase In the scale of
Group; and the role ,:tr;d‘{;:;‘s:;, value andl:;
. comple: roup may a
Tt v be aven o coniertion.
and size adjusted FTSE 250
camparator organisations,
Benefits The Group provides a range of Benefits are set at a level which the  N/A
To aid retention benefits which may include a Commitbes considers:
and be competitive  company car/car allowance, private  « is appropriately positioned
within the fuel, private health insurance, éfe against comparable rofes in
marketplace, assuranca and annual leave, companies of a simHar size and
Benefits are reviewed periodically complexity in the relevant
against market and new benefits market; and
may be added and/or amendedas o provides a sufficient level of
required to support the attraction benefit based on the role and
and retention of key talent. individual circumstances (for
Addrtional benefits may be awarded  example, relocation).
n certain recruitment The Committee retains discretion
crcumstances which may include to approve a higher cost than
relocation expenses, housing currently incurred where factors
allcwance and school fees. Other outside the Company’s control have
benefits may be offered if changed materially (e.g. madical
considered appropriate and inflation) or in exceptional
reasonable by the Committae. drrumstantes (e.g. relocation).
94 www.mitig.com | The exceptionol, eveny doy




Purpose and

link 10 stritegy Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
All Employee Executive Directors are eligible to ~~ N/A N/A
Share Schemes participate in any all-employee
To provide share plan operated by the
opportunities for Company, in ine with HMRC
the Directors to guidelines currently prevailing
voluritarily invest {where relevant}, on the same basis
inthe Companyon  as other eligible employees.
the same terms as
other employees.
Pension Executive Directors will be eligible  The pension cash allowance for N/A
To aid retention and  to participate in the defined Executive Directors will be
provide competitive contribution pension scheme or determined based on the
retirement benafits. 10 receive a cash allowance in Committee’s assessment of

lieu of a pension contribution, competitive levels needed to attract

and retain such individuals, but wilt
be capped at 20% of sa‘ary.

AnnualBonus Plan  Measures and targets are set Maximum bonus opportunity is Bonuses are based on stretching
Toincentiviseand  annually and pay-out levels are 160% of salary for the Chief financial and strategic objectives as
recoghise execution determined by the Committee after Executive and up to 135% of salary  set at the beginning of the year and
of the Company’s the year end based on performance for any other Executive Director, assessed by the Committee at
strategy on an against those targets. the end of the year, with the
annual bass, The Committee may, in underlying aim of encouraging
Rewards the exceptional circumstances, amend and rewarding the generation
achievement of the bonus pay-out should this not, of sustainable returns
annual financialand  in the view of the Commilttee, to shareholders.
strategic goals. reflect overall business performance The Committee has discretion
Deferral provides or individual contributior. to determine the appropriate
alignment with 50% of the bonus is compulsorily weightings each year depending
shareholder deferred into shares which vest on business priorities. The financial
interests. after a minimum of two years measures will represent the

{normally subject to continued majority of the bonus, with any

employment). strategic objectives representing

Dividends are accrued on deferred
shares and paid in cash.

Matus and clawback provisions {as
detailed below this table) will apply

the balance, These elements
are additive.

For the strategic element of the
award, payment at threshold
performance s zero. At the

to bonus awards made after the

2018 AGM. threshold performance level
under the financial element, a
banus of no more than 60% of
salary is payable.
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The Company’s rermuneration policy continued

Purpose and
link to strategy Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
Long Term Annual awards {in the form of Awards may be made uptoa Performance over at least three
Incentive Plan nil-tost options, conditional share  maximum level of 200% of salary financial years is measured against
To motivate and awards or cash settlements) are for any Executive Director. strerching objectives set at the
incentivise delivery  made with vesting dependent upon beginning of the performance
of sustained the achievement of performance period which have the underlying
performance and conditions over three years. aim of encouraging and rewarding
provide alignment  Award levels and the framework for the generation of sustainable
with sharehokder determining vesting are reviewed retums to shareholders.
Interests. annually to ensure they continue to Vesting under the LTIP depends on
support the Group’s strategy. the achlevement of performance
The Committee has the discretion to conditions. Awards attributable to
decide whether, and to what extent, each performance condition vest at
targets have been mat, and, ifan 25% on achievement of the
exceptional event occurs that minimum performance threshold,
causes the Committee to consider rising to 100% for achieverment of a
that the targets are no longer defined upper performance level.
appropriate, the Committee may
adjust them.
Awards will be subject to an
additional helding period of at
least two years,
Dividend equivalents are paid In
cash on or afper the date shares
are received.
Malus and clawback provisions
(as detailed below this tablej will
apply to LTIP awards made after
the 2018 AGM.,
Share ownership Executive Directors are required, N/A N/A
To ensure alignment  over time, to build and maintain a
of interests between  Minimum shareholding in the
Executive Directors  Company worth 200% of salary.
and shareholders.  They are required to retain half of
the post-tax shares vesting under
the LTIP and other share schemes
until the guideline is met.
Chainman and Fees are normally reviewed every  Fees are set at a level which: N/A
Non-Executive three years. + refiects the commitment and
Diractor fees The fee structure is as follows: contribution that is expected
To attract and ¢ the Chairman Is paid an ali- from the Chairman and the Non-
retain high-calibre inclusive single fee for 2l Executive Directors; and
individuals. Board responsibilities; + s appropriately positioned
Non-Executive o the Non-Executive Directors are against comparator roles in
Directors do not paid a basic fee, plus additionat companies of a similar size
participate in any fees for chairmanship of and complexity in the
incentive schemes. committees; relevant market.
» fees are currently paid in cash but  Actual fees are disclosed in the
the Company may choose to Directors’ remuneration report for
provide some of the feas in the relevant financial year.
shares; and Aggregate fees/value of benefits are
= benefits, induding expenses, can  capped at the amount set out in the
be provided i considered Company's Articles of Association,
Necessary on a case-by-case basis.
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Malus and dawback provisions

The malus and clawback provisions under the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP may be operated if it comes to light within two years that
information used to determine performance was materially inaccurate and resulted in & material overstatermnont of the award or in the
event of any actfomission by an individual that would give grounds for summary dismissal {with no time limit). For the avoidance of
doubr, the clawback provisions apply to any cash payments made and/or any vested shares under bonus deferral or the LTIP in respect
of awards made after the 2018 AGM.,

Clawback provisions are such that:

» cash bonus amounts can be reclaimed for a period of up to two years after payment; and
= vested share awards under the deferred element of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP can be reclaimed for a period of up to two years
after vesting (effected through the operation of malus provisions during the holding period}.

Malus and clawhack will apply in four main circumstances:

¢ misstatement of results or an error in the caiculation of performance;
» misconduct;

= reputational damage; or

failure of risk management or control.

Discretions retained in operating the incantive plans

The Committee will operate the Annua! Bonus Plan and LTIP according to their respective rules and the above policy table. The
Commivtee rerains discretion, consistent with market prdclice, in a number of respects, in relation te the pperation and administration
of these plans.

These discretions include, but are not limited to, the following:

» the selection of participants;

+ the timing of grant of an award/bonus opportunity;

« the size of an award/bonus opportunity subject to the maximum limits set out in the policy table;

* the determination of performance against targets and resultant vesting/bonus pay-outs;

« discretion required when dealing with a change of control or restructuring of the Group;

» determination of the treatment of leavers hased on the rules of the plan and the appropriate treatment chosen;

= adjustments required In certain circumstances {e.g. rights Issues, corporate restructuring events and special dividends); and

the annual review of performance measures, weightings and targets.

In relation to both the LTIP and Annual Bonus Plan, the Committee retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different
measures if svents occur {e.g. material acquisttion and/or divestment of a Group business) which cause It to determine that the
conditions are no longer appropriate and the amendment is requined so that the conditions schieve their original purpose and are not
matcrially less difficult to satisfy, Any use of these discretions would, where relevant, be explained in the Directors’ remuneration
report and may, where appropriate and practicable, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders.

In addition, for the avoldance of doubt, in approving this policy report, authority is given to the Company to honour any commitments
entered Into with current ot former Ditectols under previous polices, Detalls of any payments to funmer Directors will be set out in the
relevant report as required by reporting regulations.
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The Company’s remuneration policy continued

Remuneration scenarios for Executive Directors

Under the Company’s policy, a significant proportion of remuneration i linked to parformance. The charts below show how much

the Executive Dircctors could carm under Mitie’s remuneration policy (as datailed above) under different perfermance scanarios.

The following assumptions have been made:

+ minimum performance {below threshold) — fixed pay onty, cormprising safaries effective as at 1 April 2018 and the full year effect of
ongoaing benefits and cash allowances In lieu of pension contributions;

* on-target performance —fixed pay plus an on-target bonus and 25% cf the maximum possible LTIP award vesting. On-target bonus

for FY1$ represents 50% of the maximum bonus; and

maximum performance —fixed pay plus maximum bonus for FY19 of 160% of salary for the Chief Executive and 120% for the

Chief Financial Officer (structured 70% financial targets and 30% strategic/other) and maximum LTIP awards {of 200% of salary

for the Chief Executive and 150% for the Chief Financial Officer).

The scenarios do not indude share price growth or dividend assumptions.

Phil Bentiey, Chief Executive Paul Woolf, Chief Financial Officer
(£'000) (£'000)
Minimum Minkmum
N I
On-target On-target
Maximum Maximum
10|

L i S — L 1 [l i —_ 1 J

[ 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5000 O 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
M Foed [[] Bonus Il TP Wl ¥o=d [ ] Bonus il LTIP

Composition of Compuasition of

package package

%} Fined Bonus. Lne Total (%) Fined Bonus e Total
Minimum 100% - - 100%  Minimum 100% - - 100%
On-target 48% 32% 20% 100%  On-target 53% 29% 18% 100%
Maximum 25% 33% 42% 100% Maximum 29% 32% 39% 100%
Value of package Value of package

(£'000) Fced Bonus Lne Totl  (€'000) Faed Borus TP Total
Minimum 1,1025 - - 1,1025  Minimum 4746 - - 474.6
On-target 1,1025 7200 450.0 22728  On-target 474.6 258.0 1613 8939
Maximum 1,1025 1,440.0 1,8000 4,3425 Maximum 474.6 $16.0 6450 1,635.6

Executive Directors’ service contracts

All Executive Directors are appointed on rolling service coantracts but are subject to annual re cicction at the AGM in accordance with
the Code.

Under the service contracts, the Company is required to give 12 months’ notice of termination of employment; Phil Bentley Is required
to give 12 months’ natice and Paul Woolf is required to give 6 months” notice.

For Executive Directors, if notice i3 served by either party, the Cxecutive Director can continue to receive basic salary, benefits and

pension cash allowance for the duration of their natice period during which time the Company may require the individual to continue
to fulfil thelr current duties or may assign a period of garden leave.

8
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With respect to the current Chief Executive and Chief Finandial Officer’s contracts, the Company has the right to make a payment In
lieu of notice equivalent in value up to 12 months’ salary payable either in monthly instalments or as a lump sum. The Company will
also pay for any benefit for which the individual would have been eligible until the date of cessation had full notice been given.

The Executive Diractors’ service contracts are available for inspection at Mitie's registered office, Mitie’s head office and at the AGM.
There are no ather provisions for cornpensation on termination of employment set out within the contracts of the Executive Directors.

For future Executive Directors, notice periods will not exceed 12 months, save in exceptional circumstances; should a notice period
longer than 12 months be necessary the Committee would expect this to reduce to 12 months over time.

The effective dates of the service contracts of the cuirent Executive Directors are set out below:

Date of agreement
Phil Bentley 9 October 2016
Paul Woolf 13 Novernber 2017

Bxternal appointments

The Board recognises that the appointment of Executive Directors to non-executive positions at other companies can be benefidal for
both the individual director and the Group through the broadening of their experience and knowledge, and individuals are entitled to
retain any fees eamed in respect of these appointments. The Executive Directors did not hold any non-executive positions at other
companies during FY18.

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration and sppointment tenms

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors receive an annual fee which is paid in monthly instalments. The Chairman’s fee is set by the
Remuneration Committee and the fees for the Non-Executive Directors are approved by the Board, on the recommendation of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive, The Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic fee with an additional fee for the Senior Independent
Director and for chaling a Committee, together with expenses incurred In cafrying out their duties on behalf of the Company. Non-
Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the Company’s share schemes, Annual Bonus Plan or the pension scheme.
They do not receive any ancillary benefits.

The terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are avallable for inspection at Mitle's registered office, Mitie’s head office
and at the AGM, The Non-Executive Directors are engaged for an initiat term of three years which is terminable on either three or six
months’ notice and thereafter on a rolling term. They are also subject to annual re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Code.

Non-Executive Directors’ engagement terms
The engagement terms of the current Non-Executive Directors are set out below:

Date of w'::u-: Notice

Additional duties commencement term period

Derek Mapp Chairman; Chairman of Nomination Committee 9 May 2017 3ymars 3months
Larry Hirst? Senior Independent Director 1 February 2010 Syears 3 months
Jack Bayer Chairman of Remuneration Committee 1 June 2013 3years 3 months
Mari Reckitt? Chairman of Audit Committee 1 july 2015 3years 3 months
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat 1 June 2017 3years 3 months
Jennifer Duvalier 26 July 2017 3years 3 months
Mary Reilly 1 September 2017 3years 3 months
Philippa Couttie 1S November 2017 3years 3 months
mm‘ Senlor Independent Director-elect 1 March 2018 3years 3 months

Notes:

1. Larry Hirvt is scheduled to retire from the Board st the 2018 AGM on 31 iy 2018 and it ks intended that Roger Yates will become Senior independent Director at that date.
2. Mark Reckitt will stand down from the Board at the 2018 AGM sfter thiee years’ sarvice. Mary Relly will succeed Mark as chair of the Audit Conwnittee,

How the executive pay policy differs from that for other Mitie employees

The remuneration poiicy for the Executive Directors is more heavily weighted tawards variable pay than for other employees, ensuring
that the greater part of their pay Is conditional on the successful defivery of the Group's business strategy. This helps create a clear link
between the value created for shareholders and the remuneration received by the Directors. The LTIP is fimited to the most senior
employees. For employees beiow this level, variable pay may consist of share-based awards and annual borius (both of which wili be
based on role), and UK based employees (and Irish based in the case of SAYE) have the opportunity to participate in the SAYE and SIP
share schemes,
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The Company’s remuneration policy continued

How employment conditions elsewhere in the Group are taken into account

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for overseeing the remuneration policy for the Group as a whale and is mindful of pay
and employment conditions in the wider workforce within the Group and externally when determining executive remuneration. When
conskiering base salary intreases, benefits and pension pravision, the Committee reviews overall levels and increases offered to
employees across the Group. The Committee also reviews information with regard to share awards made to other senlor management
of the Group, noting that: (i) all UK based employees (and Irish based in the case of SAYE) can participate in the SAYE and 5IP share
schemes; and (I} participation In the LTIP is himited to a selection of senior executives. However, consistent with general practice, the
Committee does not consult with emgployees in preparing the policy or its implementation.

How shareholder views are taken into account

The Committee is committed to a continuing discussion with major sharehoiders and obtains their views when any significant changes
to remuneration arrangements are being proposed.

Policy on loss of office

The rules of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP set out what happens to awards if a participant ceases to be an employee or Director of
Mitle before the end of a vesting period, with the relevant service contracts also determining the general treatment of Executive
Directors on cessation.

Regarding the annual bonus, in the event that the participant ceases to be an eligible employee before the date the bonus is paid or is
subject to notice of termination of employment on the bonus date, all entitlement 1o the bonus In respect of that financial year shal}
be forfeited, unless the Committee In its absolute discretion determines otherwise. Deferred shares wilt vest in full on the date of
cessation for ‘good leaver’ reasons, otherwise the shares will lapse on cessation of employment.

Generally, any outstanding LTIF awards will lapse on cessation of employment, except in certain dreumstances. Specifically, if the
Executive ceases to ba an employee or Director as a result of death, injury, disability, redundancy, retirement, the sale of the business
or company that employs the individual or any other reason al the discretion of the Committee, then they will be treated as 2 ‘good
leaver’ under the LTIP rules in which case awards will vest either on cessation or, for leavers within the first three years, the first normal
vesting dates subject to the performance conditions and, if tha Cormmittee determines, a pro-rata reduction, A good leaver has 12
months to exercise their vested awards structured as options following the cessation of employment.

In addition, and consistent with market practice, in the avent of termination of an Executive Director’s employment, the Company may
settle any claims that may arise and pay a contribution towards the individual's legal fees and fees for outplacement services as part of
a negotiated settlement. Any such fees would be distlosed as part of the detail of termination arrangements, Should it become:
necessary to make additional payments in respect of such professional fees that were: not gscertained at the time of reporting, the
Company may do so up to a level of a further £10,000. For the avoidance of doubt, the policy does not include an explicit cap on the
cost of termination paymenits.

Policy on the recruitment of a new Director
For a new hire, the Committee will typically align the Executive Director’s remuneration package to the above remuneration policy.

However, where appropriate, the Committee retains discretion to make decisions outside of policy to facilitate hiring key talent as set
out below.

Base salary will be set based on the Individual’s role and experience, with consideration given to intemal equity.

Benefits will be provided in line with those offered to other employees at the similar level, with relocation expenses/arrangements
provided If necessary. In the case of new Executive Directors, individuals wilt be given a cholce of either participation in a defined
contribution pension scheme or a cash allowance in lieu of pension,

The maximum level of variable pay that may be offered on an ongoing basis and the structure of remuneration will be in accordance
with the approved policy detailed above {i.e. for the CEO an aggregate maximum of 360% of salary — 160% annual bonus and up to
200% for LTIP, for the Chief Finandial Officer an aggregate maximum of 335% of salary — 135% annuai bonus and up 1o 200% for LTIP).
This limit does not include the value of buyout arrangements.

The above policy applies to both internal promotions to the Board and external hires, For external hires, if It is necessary to buy out
existing incentive pay or benefit arrangements {which would be forfeited on leaving their previous company), this would be provided
taking into conslderation relevant factors such as the commercial value of the amount forfeited from the pravious empioyer, the
performance conditions (e.g. the likelihood of achieving those) and timing (e.g, where the award is in the vesting cyc'e). Buyout
awards, if used, will be granted using Mitie’s existing share plans, although, ¥ necessary, additional buyout awards may be made on
more bespoke terms regarding matters such as vesting and performance conditions as permitted under the Listing Rules [provision
9.4.2.). The Committee has placed a maximum limit on any such buyout awards which it may be necessary to make; these will not
exceed the commercial value of the amount forfeited from the previous smployer.

In the case of an internal promotion to the Board, any outstanding variable pay awarded in relation to the individual’s previous role will
be allowed to pay out according to its terms of grant.

On appointment of a new Chalrman or Non-Executive Director, his or her fee will be set taking Into account the existing fee structure.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Exacutive Director remuneration {subject to audit)
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors and former Executive Director for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 and their comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Year Salary Beneftts  Annual bonus LTIP Penslon Total
Phil Bendey 2018 £900,000 £22,549 - - £180,000 £1,102.549
2017 £375,000 £29,073 - - £75,000 £479,073
Pau! Woolf 2018 £166,136 £686 - - £16,614 £183436
2017 - - - - - -
Former Director
Sandip Mahajan 2018 £197,576 £10,140 - - £39,515 £242,231
2017 £44,000 £2,063 - - £8,800 £54,863
Total remuneration 2018 £1,533.216
2017 £533,936
Hotes;

::LMWH\:CWMIMdesﬂ#ﬁmdﬂﬁwmuumbumﬂ.mmmnmhmwemmhbmmum Exwcutive Director
this date,

Sandip Muhejan stepped down from the Board on 13 November 2017, having been appointed to the Board on 10 Februsry 2017, The information in the table above confitms
his eamings between these dates s an Executive Director.

Benefits relate to the oost 1o the Company of private medical cover, tar allowance and financial/tax planning advice.

Bonus payshle in respect of the financisl year indudes any deferred slament at face value 8t the date of award. Further information about how the level of the award for the
year ended 31 March 2018 was determined is provides) on pages 102 and 103.

The pension benefit discosed shove comprises cash alowances in Beu of pension contributions for Phit Bentiey and Sandip Mahajen at 206 of salary and for Paul Woolf st 108%

of salary.
Non-Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit}

The fees for the Non-Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and thelr comparative figures for the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 are sat out balow:

08" 2017

£000 £'000
Derek Mapp? 201 -
Roger Matthews® 62 185
Larry Hirst 59 59
Jack Boyer 50 60
Mark Reckitt 60 60
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat! 43 -
Jennifer Duvalier® a5 -
Mary Rellly® 30 -
Philippa Couttie” 20 -
Roger Yates® 5 -
Total 575 364
m:

L AN armounts were paid in cash and no other benefits were received in the year.

2. Defek Mapp Joined the Board on 9 May 2017 & Chainman-elect and tock over as Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee at the AGM on 26 July 2017,
3. Roger Matthews stepped down 2s Chalrman at the AGM on 26 July 2017,

4. Nivedita Krishnamurthy Shagat joined the Bosed on 1 June 2017.

5. Jennifer Duvalier joined the Board at the AGM on 26 July 2017,

6. Mary Rellly joined the Board on 1 September 2017,

7. Philipps Couttie joined the Board on 15 November 2017.

8. Roger Yates joined the Board on 1 March 2018 &5 Senior Independent Director-slect.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Base salary and benefits
Commencing 1 November 2016, and to be first reviewed in April 2020, the annuat base salary for Phil Bentley is £900,000.

Commencing 13 November 2017, and to be first reviewed in Aprit 2018, the annual base salary for Paul Woolf was £430,000.
The review of Paul Woolf's base salary in April 2018 resulted in no change in base salary.

Commencing 18 January 2017, the annual base salary for Sandip Mahajan was £320,000.
A review of Non-Executive Director fees was undertaken by the Board in March 2018 which resu'ted in no change to fees,

£000
225
52

Chairman fees?

Non-Exacutive Director core fees®
Additional fees:

Senior iIndependent Director
Chaimman of a Committee

o B8}

Notes:

1. The core fees of £52,000 per annum paid to aach Non-Exscuaive Director (inchuding the Chaltmian) will total £399,000 for the year ending 31 Match 2015. Total fees induding
additional duties are expected 10 amount to £557,000 for the year ending 31 March 2019 (E575,000 actual for the year ended 31 March 2018}.

2. TheCh 's fee ks indl of the Non-E Director core fee and no additional fees are pakd to the Chairman where he i 8 craiman or is & member of other
Commiteees. The fee shown for 2018 was the annual fee for Derek Mapp.
3. For Non [ Shackial fe prise the core fee and addiional supplemental fees for the Sentor independent Director and for dhairing Committees where

greater responsibifity nd dme commitment are requined.
Benefits are as described in the remuneration policy table. No changes are planned for the year ending 31 March 2019.

Annual Bonus Plan

Awards in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 were considered under the Annual Bonus Pian. Phil Bantiey was eligible for a
maximum borius apportunity of 160% of base salary, On joining the Company In November 2017, Paul Woolf became eligible for a pro-
rata bonus for a maximum opportunity of 120% of base salary, Sandlp Mahajan was originally efigible for a maximum bonus
opportunity of 100% of base salary but following his stepping down as Chief Financial Officer in November 2017 is no longer efigible to
recelve a bonus under Mitle’s Annual Bonus Plan for the year ended 31 March 2018. He may be eligible for an alternative discretionary
bonus at a reduced level for his contribution to the Company since stepping down from his role as Chief Financia) Officer,

The awards were structured by reference to performance against a blend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic
targets (the remalning 30%). At the threshold level of perfarmance, 30% of the maximum bonus opportunity is due, 70% of the
rmaximum bonus cpportunity Is due at the target level and 100% at the maximum level. Between these points the out-turn is
determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

whilst fhil and Paul were eiigible to receive a bonus, mindful of shareholders’ experience gver the year, they requested that they
should not be considered for bonuses and this waiver was accepted by the Committee. Hawever, for the purposes of the performance
assessment under the November 2016 LTIP award made to Phil Bentiey, it Is deemed that a bonus has been achleved in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2018 arxt therefore bonus in one of the three years has been achleved to date.

The table below therefore reflects the out-turn of 38.0% which would otherwise have been determined as the outcome had it not
been for the bonus walver. As the financial performance ranges exduded the impact of iFRS 15, the formulaic out-tum has been
assessed on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15:

Performance

messure Weighting Performance range Out-turn

QOperating 50% of the award  £85.8m threshold The out-turn was £77.1m resulting in a hypothetical outcome of 0% of

profit £95.3m target the maximum for this element, being 0% of the maximum bonus
£100.0m maximum  OppoTtunity.

Revenue 20% of the award  £2.00bn threshold The out-turm was £2.199bn resulting in a hypothetical outcome of
£2.23bn target 65% of the maximum for this element, being 13.0% of the maxinwum
£2.33bn maximum banus opportunity.

Customer Net  15% of the award  +1pts threshold The out-turn was +17pts resulting in a hypothetical cutcome of

Promoter Score +3pts target 100% of the maximum for this element, being 15% of the maximum
+5pts maximum bonus opportunity.

Strategic 15% of the award - The Committee set strategic objectives relating to: customers; costs;

objectives finandial; people; technology; governance; and processes as set out

below. The Committee considered that the objectives had been
substantially met and that 10% out of a possible 15% of the award would
otherwise have been awarded to the CEO and CFO,
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The strategic objectives set for the CEO and CFO were as follows:

CEO
Strategic objectives
Customers Launch ‘Beyond FM' strategy and win shareholder support for portfolio rationalisation; and
complete kfetime value analysls by customer and agree segmentation/strategic account management approach.
Costs identify a £50m run rate on savings by leading the transformation of the Group's cost base.
Financial Restore balance sheet debt/equity financing strength.
People Rebuild new Executive Leadership Team; inculcate new team values and culture and replace Mitie eamout Model.
Technology Launch technology solutions (i} within Mitie office footprint to showtase Mitie's credentials; (if) to simplify
Mitie’s internal processes to improve customer service; and {ili) to build a ‘Connected Workspace’ capability.
CFO
Strategic objectives
Governance Create reputation for strong control environment and robust guardianship; and
ensure capital structure is robust, sustainable and can underpin the wider strategy.
Processes Establish ‘Single Mitie Way’ process models and implerment them with high levels of compliance.
Costs Identify a £12m run rate on savings by leading the transformation of the Group’s Finance function.
People Recrult and promote the best available finance talent; ensure they are highly engaged and demonstrate
continuous improvement.
Technology Establish a coherent finance technology/systems landscape that has a low cost of running and is robust.
The bonus structure and assessment refiecting the walver was as follows:
Financial performance Non-finandial performance Total bonus payable
%of %of %of Kol % of Kof
salary salnry salary %of salary salary salary % of Tota! Deferred
payaiie at paysbie at payable st salary payable at paysbie st payable st salary bonus Cash shares
threshold twpet maximum  paysble  threshold target  maxmum  payable £000 £000 £000
Phil Bantiey 336 784 112.0 4] 124 336 48.0 0 2] e [}
Paul Woolf 25.2 58.8 84.0 [} 108 25.2 36.0 o 0 0 o
Sandip Mahajan 21.0 49.0 70.0 0 9.0 21.0 300 0 [+] 0 0
Noe:

1. Paul Woolf's satary percentages reflect his bonus opporturity before pro-rating.

The Annual Bonus Plan will be operated on similar terms for the year ending 31 March 2019. Phil Bentley’s maximum bonus
opportunity for FY19 will remain at 160% of base salary and Paul Woolf's at 120% of base salary. Awards will be payable by reference
1o performance against a blend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets (the remaining 30%). However, if none
of the financlal targets have been achleved, no bonus will be payable by reference only to the strategic targets, 50% of any bonus
entitiement will be deferred. The targets are at present commercially sensitive and so are not disclosed in this report, However, as
above, details of the targets will be disclosed in next year’s report.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

LTIP awards grantad in 2017

Awards granted in 2017 were subject to the same structure as the LT awards made in July 2016, The awards will vest in 2020
depending on performance. The performance canditions applicable to the 2017 awards are as follows:

Performance Vesting of portion of the sward

measure Weighting Performance rnge {performance perind three years ending 31 March 2020)

Eamnings Per 25% of 5% — 10% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as

Share {EPS} the award appropriate, is less than 5% pa. If EPS growth |s equal to 5% pa, 25%
growth of the award will vest, If Mitie achieves 10% EPS growth pa, all the

awards wilt vest. Between these two points the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a linear siiding scaie basis.

Relative Totat 20% of Outperformance against Zero vesting if Mitle’s TSR growth is less than the median of the
Shareholder the award the Business Support Benchmark. if Mitie’s TSR growth is equal to the median of the
Return (TSR) Services subsector of Benchmark, 25% of the award will vest and if it exceeds the
the FTSE 350 Support Benchmark median TSR by 10% pa or movre, all the awards will vest.
Services index (the Between these two points the proportion of awards vesting will be
Bernchmark) determined on a linear sliding scale basis. An underpin condition for
underlying finandial performance also applies.
Strategic objectives  25% of the Zero vesting if the stratagic objectives are not met. Straight line
award vesting between zerp and maximum based on Remuneration
Committee assessment of performance against objectives.
Cash converslon 30% of 75% —85% pa Zero vesting If cash conversion i less than 75% pa. At 75%, 25% of
the award the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves 80%.

Full vesting for this portion will occur if 85% pa is achieved. Between
75% and 80% and 80% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesting
will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

The strategic objectives are linked to the Company's strategy and include objectives relating to: customers; costs; finandial; people; and
technology. Financial performance targets for the 2017 LTIP award were set before the Company adopted IFR5S 15 with effect from 1
April 2017. To reflect the impact of IFRS 15, the Committee will consider adjusting EPS and cash conversion targets appropriately,
ensuring that they are not materially easier or harder to satisfy than the original targets. Any amended targets determined by the
Committee will be disclosed to shareholders in the next Directors’ rermuneration report.

What was granted in 2017 {subject to audit)

Number Fate value Performance % vesting at
Award Type of shares (£000) % -of selery conditions Perf h i
Phil Bentiey  Performance  Nilcost 669,393' 18000  200%
Paul Woolf  Performance  Nil-cost 143269 3225 75% conditions are set T""‘“’:n’;‘:"" 5%
LMPNov17  options out in the table 31’:;';'1 202“‘6
Sandip Mahajan Performance  Nilcost 148754 4000 125% above

LTIP Jul 17 options

Notes:

1 Number of shares was calculated based on the sverage dosing share price for up to five business days preceding the date of grant giving a share price of 268.9p.

2. Number of shores was calculated based on the average dosing share price for up to flve business days preceding the date of grant giving a share price of 225.1p.

The performance conditions that are to apply to awards made in 2018 will be simplified to two measures: (1) EPS; and (il) cash
conversion, each accounting for 50% of the award. The grant of these awards to the Executive Directors will be made following the
2018 AGM. Target ranges for 2018 LTIP awards will be set by the Committee and disclosed in our stock exchange announcement
detailing the grants. All Executive Director awards will be subject to a post-vesting holding period of two years.
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Details of LTWP vesting in July 2018 (2015 award)

As disclosed in 2017’s Annual Repart on Remuneration, in accordance with the rules of the relevant LTIP, accelerated vesting applied
to the 2015 {and 2016) LTIP grents for Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter, The Commiittee determined that these awards
should lapse in their entirety following exercise of negative discretion by the Committee. No current Executive Director has 2015 LTIP
awards.

The Committee assessed the outcome of the 2015 LTIP awards (based on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15) granted to senior
management under the plan in operation at the time against a basket of performance measures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measure Weighting Performance range {performance period three years ending 31 March 2018)

Earnings Per 20% of 3% - 8% pa Zero vesting If EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as

Share {(EPS} the award appropriate, is less than 3% pa. If EPS growth Is equal to 3% pa, 25%
growth of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves 8% EPS growth pa, all the

awards will vest, Between these two points the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Relative Total 20% of Outperformance against Zero vesting if Mitie’s TSR growth is less than the median of the
Shareholder Return  the award FTSE 350 Support index. If Mitie’s TSR growth is equal to the madian of the index, 25%
(TSR) Services index of the award will vest and if it exceeds the index median TSR by 10%

pa or more, all the awards will vest. Between these two points the
proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding
scale basis. An underpin condition for underlying financial

performance also applies.
Organic revenue 30% of the 3% - 6% pawitha Zero vesting If organic revenue growth Is less than 3% pa. if organic
growth award financial underpin revenue growth is equal to 3% pa, 25% of the award will vest. If
based on the Mitie achleves 6% organic revenue growth pa, all the awards will
achievement of vest. Between these two points, the proportion of awards vesting
target margin will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis. Entire portion of
of 5.5% pa award is subject to Mitie achieving an average 5.5% margin in
the performance period.
Cash conversion 30% of 75% —35% pa 2Zero vesting if cash conversion Is less than 75% pa. At 75%, 25% of
the award the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achleves 80%,

Full vesting for this portion will occur if 85% pa s achieved. Between
75% and 80% and BO% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesting
will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

The Committee detarmined that the 2015 awards should lapse in their entivety following exercise of negative discretion by the
Committee.

Loas of office payments (subject to audit)

On 13 November 2017, Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Director of Mitie Group pic and tock up the role of Chief Financial
Transformatlon Officer. Sandip s expected to remain an employee until 12 November 2018. A summary of Sandip’s departure terms
was made available on the Company’s website in the relevant Section 430{2B) Companies Act 2006 statement.

For the period to 12 November 2018, Sandip will receive his salary and contractual benefits, Sandip wili not be eligible 10 receive a
bonus under Mitie’s Annual Bonus Plan for the year ended 31 March 2018 (which afforded him a maximum bonus opportunity of
100% of base salary), He may be eligible for an alternative discrationary bonus at a reduced level for his contribution to the Company
since he stepped down as Chief Financial Officer. Options over 148,754 shares awarded under the LTIP will be pro-rated by reference
to his period of total employment and vest subject to performance conditions and the rules of the LTIP. Sandip will not be eligible to
receive further grants under Mitie's LTIP. Legal fees of up to £1,000, excluding VAT, will be paid directly to Sandip’s legal advisors. if
Sandip or the Company elects to terminate his employment before 12 November 2018, then he will receive salary and contractual
benefits in lieu of notice to that date subject to mitigation in the event that Sandip takes up a remunerated executive position
elsewhere prior to 12 November 2018. No other payments will be made.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Payments to past Directors [subject to audit)

in last year’s report, the Remuneration Committes noted that, as a consequence of prior year adjustments to the accounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016, it would determine what rights might be available to the Company to recover the bonus and
other awards made 10 each of Ruby McGregor-Smith and Sizanne Baxter in respect of FY16. The matters which gave rise to the

prior year adjustments are now the subject to the ongoing investigation by the Financial Conduct Authority {(FCA}, which the Company
disclosed in its announcement on 29 August 2017, In that announcement, the Company reported that the FCA had commenced an
investigation in connection with the timeliness of a profit warning announced by the Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner
of preparation and content of the Company’s financial information, position and results for the period ended 31 March 2016. The
Company has been advised by its external lawyers that as any daim against Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter would cover
the same matters, facts and circumstances which are the subject of the FCA investigation, any formal steps to recover bonuses or
other awards should be deferred until after the FCA have reached their findings. It is currently anticipated that the FCA will conclude its
Investigation during the course of FY19,

Ho payments have been made to past Directors other than as previously disclosed in last year’s report. A total contribution of £76,000
and £70,000, excluding VAT, was paid to Ruby MoGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter respectively in respect of legal and outplacement
fees incurred In connection with their departures.

Change In CEO pay for the year comparsd to UK salaried employees
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chief Executive and Mitie's UK salaried non-contract population, which is
considered the most appropriate group for comparison purposes.

% Selary  Benefits 8onus
Chief Executive® 00% -249% 0.0%
Average pay based on Mitie’s UK salaried non-contract employees® 4.2% 11.3% 2.2%
Notey:

1. Phil Bentley became Chief Executive from 12 December 2016. 7o facilitabe 3 year-on-year comgarison, the change In CEC percentage shawn s the change in Phil Bentiey's
salary, benefits and bonus between £¥17 and FY18 on an annuaiised basis.
2 muMhmmumhMWw“mwmmwiwmmhdummmwm

e those who mwmmwmdaanmwwuwddmmﬁ
3. Indades car/ear mmwmwm
Relative spend on pay

The table below shows the total cost of remuneration in the Group, compared with the dividends distributed and share buybacks.

Yearended  Year ended
31 March 31 March

m8 w7
£m £m Change
Aggregate employee remuneration 1,119 1,174 A4.7%
Equity dividends and share buybacks 5 62 -91.9%

Assassing pay and performance

The table below provides a summary of the Chief Executive’s single figure remuneration over the past nine years, as well as the
pay-out and vesting levels of variable pay plans ih relation to the maximum opportunity. The chart below shows the historical
TSR performance over the same period. These indices (FTSE 250, FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350) have been chosen as
they are widely recognised and Mitie has been a member of these indices during the period:
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2017

Ruby 2017
McSnegor- i

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Smith? Bentiey® 2018
Single figure remuneration  £1,703,031 £2324,443 £2431,773 £2,105331 £1,447,266 £1525824 €1448161 €530628 £A790T3 1102548
Annual bonus element
(actual as 3 % of max) 100% 100% 100% 85% 90% SO 3% o% walved waived
LTIP element (actual
westing a5 a % of max) 200% 0% 87.2% 57.2% 0% 5% 69.5% % na nfa
Note:

1 Ruby McGregor-5mith stepped down as Chief Executive ort 12 December 2016, Phil Benthey joined the Board on 1 November 2016 and assumed the position of
Chief Executive on 12 December 2016 The figures sbove include Phil Bentley’s remuneration from 1 November 2016

The reparting requirements state that the time period for the above TSR chart should be lengthened to ten years over time and we
have therefore incli:ded a ten-year chart below:
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o8 o8 L) b » 1 1 s % ” 18
— pgtie = FTSE250 s FTSEIS0SS s FTSEISO
Share ownership (subject to audit)
Number of Parcantage Percentage
shares value of salary of target
ownad as at of target Target heldasst  schieved as at Complisnce with
31 March 20181 holding sharcholding 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 share ownership guidelines
Phil Bentley? 1,852,656 £1.800,000 926,328 400% 200% Achieved
Paul Wool@ 48,967 £860,000 400,037 24% 12%  Not achieved but compliant
Sandip Mahajan* 0 £640,000 297,702 % 0%  Not achieved but compliant

Notes:

1 Indudes shares owived by connected persons.

2 v:luedtumwkm«mnmﬁxmm.lnmmmwsmmmmmMmmmfmmnm
2016. His target shareholding Is the value of his target holding divided by the share price of 194.3p on 21 November 2016.

3 Inamﬂﬁnu%hmw:mmm,PnIWodfismlﬁbmmmmmwmmdwmmashmd
200% of bese salary. His tanget shareholding Is cakculated using the average closing share price of 215.0p for the five business days prior to the start of the financisl yesr
ended 31 March 2018,

4, VMO'Whﬂﬁ"hm&:fbugnhrvfars:muﬂjmﬂishrutshrﬁﬂﬁmkulmmmwmpdudllsmformﬁuehﬂmdlwpru
10 the start of the finandal year ended 31 March 2018, Sancip resignad from the Board o 13 Novenber 2017; his shareholding abowe ks at that date.
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Annual Report on Remuneration comtinued

Directors’ outstanding share interests (subject to audit)
Tha following tables provide the outstanding share interests for the Executive Divectors:

Directars’ Interests In nil-cost options granted under the Mitie Group plk: 2015 Long Term incentive Plan

Options Options
gutstanding outstanding Eprllast
asar asat norma)
Year of 31 March  Grented n Lapsed Exercisedin 31 March Exercise exarcise
yrant 2017 yoeard inyear yesr 2018° price date
Phit Bentiey Nov 2018* 879,077 - - ~ &79077  Nilcost May 2020
Jui 2017 - 669,393 - ~ 669393  Nilcost Jjul 2020
Paul Woolf Nov 2017 — 143,269 - ~ 143269  Nilcost Nov 2020
Sandip Mahajan® Jul 2017 - 148,754 - ~ 148,754  Nilgcost Jul 2020

Notes:

1. The performance oriteris applicable to the November 2016 sward run to 31 March 2020 and are finked 1o the achievernert of 3 bonus payment in the three financial yesrs
ending 31 March 2020. If Phil earms 3 bonus in ane of these years 25% of the award vests, 67% vests if a bonus s samed in two of the years and 300% vests if » bonus is
aamad in all three years.

The parformance Criteria applicable to the 2017 awards are provided an

The maeket price of the Company’s shares ac at 31 March 2018 was 159.0p. mwammmmmnmmm 2p and 148L6p respectively.

rwn

. Awerds ane subject 1o an additional holding period.
5. Sandip Malwian resigned from the Board on 13 N ber 2047; his ding shore interests above are at thas date.
Directors’ share ownership
Number of ordinury shares Number of ordinery
beneficially owned shavas beneficialy ownad
a1 at 31 Mavch 2018 as 2t 31 March 2017
(o date of cessation ¥ sarier) {or date of sppointment H later)
Executive Directors
Phil Bentley 1,852,656 1,852,656
Paul Woolf! 48,967 0
Sandip Mahajan® [1] 0
Non-Exeanive Directors
Derek Mapp® 140,000 ]
Larry Hirst 25,000 25,000
Jack Boyer 5,000 5,000
Mark Reckitt 4,000 4,000
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat* 0 (i}
Jennifer Duvalier® 18,469 18,469
Mary Rellty® 0 0
Philippa Couttie? 0 a
Roger Yates* (] 0
Roger Matthews® 100,000 100,000
Notes:
1. Paul Woolf was sppointed to the Board on 13 Nowember 2017.
2, Sandip Mairajan resigned from the Board on 13 fioverber 2017 his sh iding sbove is shown at that date and at 31 March 2017

3. Darek Mapp was appolnted to the Board on 9 May 2017,

4. Nvedits Krishramurthy Bhagat was appcinted to the Board on 1 june 2017.

5. lennifer Duvaller was sppointed to the Board at the AGM on 26 July 2017.

€. Mary Reilty was appointed to the Board on 1 September 2017,

7. Philppa Couttie was appointed to the: Board on 15 Novermber 2017.

8. Roger Yabes wis appointed to the Board on 1 March 2018

9. Roger Matthews nesigned from the Board oh 26 July 2017; his shareholding above is shown at that data and at 21 March 2017,
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Share dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guidelines of 10% of issued ordinary share capital in respect of all employee
schemes and 5% in respect of discretionary schemes. In calculating compliance with these guidelines the Company aliocates available
headroom on a ten-year flat-line basis, making adjustments for projected fapse rates and projected increases in issued share capital.

LTP and deferred bonus awarts are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Graup ple Employea

Benefit Trust. The potential dilution of the Company's issued share capital is set out below in respect of all awards granted in the last
ten years under the Company’s equity-based incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the allotment of new shares or
treasury shares.

Share dilution at 31 March 2018

Délution
All share plans {maximum 109) 6.5%
Discretionary share plans [rmaximum 5%) 3.2%
Sharehalder voting

Mitie remains committed to ongoing shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes. Where there are
substantial votes against resolutions in relation to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Group seeks to understand the reasans for
any such vote, and will detail here any actions in response to it.

A resolution to approve the Directors’ remuneration policy as set out in the Company’s Annual Report for the year ended

31 March 2015 was passed at the Company’s 2015 AGM. The Company’s revised remuneration policy as set out on pages 93 to 100
will be put to the Company’s 2018 AGM. At the Company’s 2017 AGM, a resciution was passed to approve the 2017 Directors’
remuneration report {excluding the summary of the Directors’ remuneration policy). The results of the votes on these rasolutions were
as follows:

Vores in Votes Votes
Number of votes favour against withheld
2015 Directors’ remuneration policy — 2015 AGM 205.1m 14.0m 21.4m
53.6% 6.4% -
2017 Directors' remuneration report — 2017 AGM 246.3m 21.2m 9.7m
92.1% 7.9% -

Note:
L Votes withhedd are not counted in the caladation of the proportion of votes for or against a resolution.

Remuneration Committes and Its advisors

The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisors where appropriate.

FIT Remuneration Consultants (FiT) were appointed by the Commitiee in December 2013 to provide independent agvice

on executive remnu neration. Following a retender process and the resignation of Deloitte LLP as Mitie's auditor, the Committee
appointed Deloitte LLP as independent remuneration advisors in September 2017. The advisors attended Committee meetings and
provided advice and analysis of executive remuneration. During their tenure, the advisors provide no other services to the Company
(save in relation to services connected to executive remuneration and share plans) and also comply with the Code of Conduct for
Remuneration Consultants. The advisors’ total cost of advice to the Committee for the year was £88,752, being £30,252 for FIT and
£58,500 for Deloitte LLP (such fees being charged in accordance with thelr standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the advisors and was satisfied that the advice the Committee received was
objective and independent, given that no other services were provided to the Company.
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Dirsctor’s report: othar disclosures

The Directors present their annual repart, together with the
audited financial staternents of the Group and the Company,
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The following information Is incorporated into the Directors’
report: other disckysures by reference:

= Strategic report on pages 1 to 57;

= The Chairman’s intreduction to corporate governance on
pages 64 and 65;

» The Board repoit on pages 65 to 71;

* Audit Committee report on pages 72 to 83;

s Nomination Committee report on pages 84 and 87;

* Directors’ remuneration report on pages 88 to 109;

« Directors’ responsibilities statement on page 116; and

* Notes to the financial statements as detailed in this section.

For the purposes of compliance with paragraphs 4.1.5R{2) and
4.1.8R of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the
FAnancial Conduct Authority, the strategic report and this
Directors’ report: other disclosunes {inciuding the sactions of the
Annual Report and Accounts incorporated by reference)
comprise the management report.

Principal Group activities

The Company is the hokding company of the Group. The principal
activity of the Company Is to provide management services to the
Group, The Group's activities are focusad on the provision of
strategic outsourcing services, The detalied strategy for the
Group can be found on page 15 of the Strategk report. Further
details of the subsidiary undertakings of the Company sre listed
in Note 40 to the financial statements.

The Group operates In the UK, the Republic of ireland,
Guernsey, Jersey, Germany, France, Finland, Narway, Sweden,
the Netherlands, Spain, Poland, Switzerland, Belgium, Nigeria,
Kenya, Ghana and the UAE.

Shares and shareholders

Share capital and powers of shareholders

The Group ks financed through both equity share capital and debt
Instruments. Detalls of the Company’s share capital ave given in
Note: 31 1o the financial statements and the detail of its debt
Instruments Is set aut in Note 26 to the financial stataments.

The Company has a single class of shares being 2.5p ordinary
shares (‘Ordinary Shares’). Ordinary Shares have no right to any
foced income and each Ordinary Share has the right to one vote
per share at general meetings of the Company. Under the
Company's Articles of Association {the “Articles’), holders of
Ordinary Shares ane entitied to particigate in any dividends pro-
rata to thelr holding.

I accordance with the Articles, the Board may propose and pay
interkm dividends and recommend a final dividend for approval
by the shareholders at the AGM. A final dividend may be declared
by the sharehoklers in a generat meeting by ordinary resolution,
but such dividend cannot exceed the amount recommended by
the Board.

The Articles can be amended in accordance with their provisions,
the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation. A copy of the

Articles is avaliable 3t www.mitle.com/investors/corporate-
governance.
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Powers of the Company to issue or buy back its
own shares
At the 2017 AGM, shareholders authorised:

» the Directors to allot Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £3,001,210, representing one-thind of
the issued share capital {excluding treasury shares) as at
7 June 2017, and up to a further aggregate nominal amourt
of £3,001,210, in connection with an offer by way of a
rights issye;
= the dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares
up to an aggregate nominal value equal to £450,181, equating
1o 5% of Mitie's issued share capital (exciuding treasury shares)
and 4.88% of the issued share capital including treasury shares,
each as at 7 June 2017;
the dis-application of pre-emption rights over aliotted shares
up to an aggregate nominal value of £450,1B1, equating to 5%
of Mitie's issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) and
4.88% of the issued share capital incuding treasury shares,
each as at 7 June 2017, in connection with the financing (or
refinancing. if the authority Is to be used within six months of
the original transaction) of an acguisition or specified capital
investient; and
* the Company to make market purchases of its own shares
up to a total of 36,014,523 Ordinary Shanes (reprasenting
10% of the lssued share capital as at 7 June 2017 {excluding
traasury shares)).
These standard authorities will expire on 30 September 2018 or
at the conclusion of the AGM in 2018, whichever I the earlier.
Further detalls of these authorisations are available in the
notes to the Notice of 2017 AGM and shareholders are referred
to the Notice of 2018 AGM, which contains similar provisions in
respect of the Company’s share capltel (avallable at
www.mitle com/investors/shareholder-information}.

The Company acknowledges that, whilst the following resolutions
were passed, a significant number of votes were received against
each of them at the 2017 AGM as follows:

= directors’ authority to allot {32.92%)

* disapplication of pre-emption rights (23.18%)

= additional authority to disapply pre-emption rights (20.25%).

Sharehalder consultation was undertaken during the year, and

the Company continues 10 engage with those shareholders who
elther withheld their vote, or voted against these resolutions, to
improve understanding and, if possible, sliay any such concems
for the future,

Further, at the 2018 AGM, tha Directors intend to seek puthority

to aliot shares up to an amount representing 10% of the issued
share capital {exciuding treasury shares) only.

During the year, the Directors utilisad the above authorities to
allot 4,593,089 Ordinary Shares to an aggregate nominal amount
of £114,827 to minority shareholders in consideration for shares
purchased in connection with Mitie Modet invastments {further
information Is contained in Note 33 to the financial statements).

The Company chose not to undertake any market purchases of its
own shares during the year.




Following the exercise of awards under the Mitie Group plc 2011
Save As You Earn Scheme and the Mitie Group plc 2001 and 2011
Exacutive Share Option Schemes 1,531,985 Ordinary Shares were
distributed from treasury. The total number of Ordinary Shares
held by the Company in treasury as at 31 March 2018 therefore
reduced t0 7,748,108 {representing 2-1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 March 2018).

Significant Interests in the Company's share capital
As 3t 31 March 2018, the Company had been notified of the

following significant holdings of voting rights In its Ordinary
Shares under the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules:

% of share

capital at the
Number of date of
Ordinary Shares notification
Siichester International

Investors LLP 62,210,238 17.00%

Aggregate of Standard Life
Aberdeen PLC 39,937,487 10.91%
FMR LLC 18,792,147 5.14%
Harris Associates LP. 18,393,003 5.12%
Brandes Investment Partners LP 18,117,242 5.05%
Heronbridge 18,366,728 5.00%

Changes that have occurred between the end of the period under
review and 5 June 2018, the latest practicable date before
approval of the report, are as follows:

% of share

capital at the

Mumber of date of

Ordinary Shates nctification

FMR LLC 19,684,002 5.38%

Detalls of the Directors’ interests in the Company’s share
caphal are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
107 and 108,

Restrictions on the trading of Mitie shares

Certain Ordinary Shares Issued in consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of shares held by minority
shareholders in subsidiaries of the Group under the Mitie Mode|
have contractual restrictions placed upon them. These
restrictions prevent reciplents from salling those Ordinary Shares
and/or attach claw-back provisions, which typically apply for a
maxinm period of two years from allotment.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of any shareholding

or on the Wansfer of shares, which are both governed by the
provisions of the Articles.

The Directors are not aware of any agreements entered into by
Company shareholders that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities or on voting rights. No person has any
spedial rights of control over the Company’s share capital.

The Group operates a Share Trading and Insider Dealing
Procedure which provides a framework to ilentify persons who
may have access to Inside information relating 1o the Company
and explains the rules applicable to them for dealing in Company
shares. Individuals who may have access to such information are
informed Individually and required to read, understand and
follow the procedure.

Employee share schemes and plans

Details of employee share schemes and long-term incentive plans
are set out in Note 3§ to the financial statements. Detalls of
awards made during the year to, and held by, Executive Directors
are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 104
and 108,

Sharsholder engagament

The Board is committed to an ongoing. proactive dialogue
between the Company and its shareholkders. A full programme,
led by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer with
support from the Investor Relations team, of formal and informal
events, institutional investor meetings and presentations is held
throughout the year in order to maintsin regular dialogue. This
programme alms to ensure that the performance, strategies and
objectives of the Group are clearly communicated to the
investrnent community and provides a forum for institutional
shareholders to address any corporate govermnance issues.

The Board receives an investor relations report at each Board
meeting detailing corporate news, share price performance, sell-
side coverage, investor relations activity and major movements in
the share register. The Board is also regularly updated and Is
provided with investor feedback, stockbroker and
detailed analyst reports following the hatf-year and full-year
results presentations. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring
that the Board is made aware of the Issues and concerns of the
major shareholders.

The Chairman and Senlor independent Director are available for
additional meetings with shareholders upon request. The Board
encourages an ongoing dialogue between the Directors and
investors and all Directors were present at the 2017 AGM.

Latest Group information, finandal reports, corporate
govemance and sustainability matters, hatf-year and full-year
results presentations, major sharehaolder Information and all
announcements are made available to sharehaiders vis the Mitie
website (www.mitie.com) which has a specific area dedicated to
investor relations.

Significant agreements — change of control

There are a number of agreements with provisions that take
effact, aker or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company, such as bank facility agreements and other financial
arrangements and employee share scheme rules. None of these
are considered to be significant in tarms of their likely impact on
the normal course of business of the Group. The Directors are not
aware of any agreements between the Company and is Dinectors
or employees that provide for compensation for loss of office or
employment that vocurs solely because of a change of control.
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Director’s report: other disclosures continued

Directors

Board of Directors

The members of the Board, and their biographical details
{incfuding details of Committee chairmanships and other
positions held), are set out on pages 60 to 63, To comply with the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code), the Directors with
the exception of Larry Hirst and Mark Reckitt will submit
themselves for election or re-glection at the AGM on 31 July 2018
and details are provided in the Notice of AGM which is available
2t www.mitle.com/investors/sharsholder-services.

During the year, Non-Executive Director independence was
considered by the Board. The Board determined that, as at

31 March 2018, all Non-Executive Directors were independent
i mind and judgement and free from atty material telationship
that could interfere with their ability to discharge their duties
effectivaly.

Director development

The Chalrman meets with both the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors to discuss specific director development and training
needs. The annual Board evaluation also addresses these
requiremants and ensures that the appropriste level of
knowledge, understanding and expertise is maintained on

the Board.

Director appointments

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors,
the Company is governed by its Articles, the Code, the Companles
Act 2006 and related legislation.

Directors’ conflicts of Interest

The Board has a formal policy on the declaration and
management of Directors’ confiicts of interests, In accordance
with the Articles, which has operated effectively during the year.
Any patentia! situation or transactional conflict must be reported
as soon as possible to the Chalrman, the Chief Exequtive Officer
and the Company Secretary. Where a potentiaf conflict is
authorised {under the statutory powers and powers granted
under the Articles to the Boand), such conflict Is kept under
ongoling review.

Director indemnities

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance,
providing appropriate cover for any legal action brought against
its directors and/or officers. The Articles extend the protection
provided to directors in respect of any litigation against directors
relating to their position as a director of the Company, and
specifically provide that the Company may indenmify dinectors
against any hability incurred In connection with any negligence,
default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the
Comparny and that the Company may fund defence costs.

Accordingly, in line with best practice, deeds of indemnity have
been executed indemnifying each of the Directors and the
Company Secretaty in respect of thelr positions as officess of the
Compary, in addition to the directors” and officers’ insurance
cover. The indemnities, which constitute a quailfying third-party
indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies
Act 2006, remain in force for all current Directors and the
Company Secretary.
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Indemnities of the same, or similar form have akko been executed
indemnifying a number of directors of the Group’s subsidiaries.

Individual Directors would still be kable to pay damages awarded
to the Company in any action against them by the Company, to
pay any criminal or regulatory fines imposed against them and to
repay their defence costs {to the extent funded by the Company)
If thelr defence was unsuccessful.

Executive Disectors are permitted to acompt appointments
outside the Group provided permission s sought from the
Chalrman and the Chief Executive Officer and that the additional
appointments do not interfere with the Director’s ability to
discharge his duties effectively. Neither Phll Bentiey nor Paul
Woolf held any non-executive pasitions at companies during

FY 2018.

Executive Directors are entitied to retain fees eamed from any
external appointments. The commitments outside the Group of
the Chairman and each Non-Executive Director are detalled on
pages 60t 63.

Staternent of the Directors In respect of the Annual

Report and Accounts

As required by the Code, the Directors confirm that they consider

the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair,

batanced and understandable and that it provides the

Information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s

position and perfonmance, business model and strategy. When

arriving at this position the Board was assisted by a number of
processes including the following:

» the Annual Report and Accounts is drafted by senlor
namagement with overall co-ordination by the General
Counsel and Company Secretary to ensure consistancy across
the relevant sections;

« areview is undertaken to assess whether the Annual Report
and Accounts s fair, batanced and understandable using a set
of pre-defined indicators (such as consistency with intemally
reportad inforrnation, investor communications and relative
performance in the industry);

* comprehensive reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and
Accounts are undertaken by the Executive Directors and other
senior management;

* anadvanced draft Is reviewed by the General Counsel and
Compary Secretary and external advisors; and

« the finat draft is reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to
contideration by the Board.

Employees and communications with employees

Details of Mitie’s employment policies, consultation practices and
how it communicates with its employees are included in the
Sustainabifity and People sections of our wabsite.

Disabled persons
Detalls of the Group’s approach to employing, training and

developing the careers of disabled people can be found inthe
Sustainabifity section of our website.

Future developments
The Strategic report sets out the Board's view on the future
development of the Group.




Research and development
Given the nature of the Group’s activities, it does not carry out
any material research and development work.

Political donations

The Company intiuded a resolution In its 2017 Notice of AGM in
relation to the ability to make political donations. Although
Mitie’s long-standing policy of not making any political donations
will continue, it s possible that certain routine activities (induding
charitable donations) undertaken by Mitle might unintentionally
fall within the wide defindtion of payments constituting political
donations and expenditure as set out in the Companies Act 2006.
The resolution, which was duly passed, granted the Company the
relevant statutory authority until the 2018 AGM subject to a total
aggregate cap for Mitie and Its subsidiary companies of £50,000.

Finance

Financial results and dividends

A detailed commentary on the operational and financial results
of tha Group for the year is contained within the strategic report,
induding the Finance review on pages 44 t 49,

The loss before tax from continuing operations for the financlal
year is £24.7m (2017: £58.2m loss).

The Directors declared an interim dividend of 1.33p per Ordinary
Share (2017: 4.0p) with a total value of £4.8m (2017: £14.1m)
which was paid to shareholders on 7 February 2018 The
Directors recommend a final dvidend of 2.67p per Ordinary
Share with 3 total vatue of £9.8m {2017: £nil) based upon the
number of shares in issue as at 5 une 2018, The final dividend for
the year will be pald on 6 August 2018, subject to shareholder
approval at the 2018 AGM, to shareholders on the register on

22 June 2018. The total dividends per Ordinary Share for the year
ended 31 March 2018 Is 4.0p {2017: 4.0p).

The Company operates a Dividend Re-investment Plan (DRIP)
which allows shareholders to build their holding by using the cash
dividend to purchase addhional ordinary shares in Mitie. Further
details on the operation of the DRIP and how to apply ¢an be
found in the Shareholder information section and are available
from Mitie’s Registrar.

During the year, the trustees of the Company’s Employee Benefit
Trust walved dividends on Ordinary Shares held by the trust.

Financing liabilities

The Group's financial instruments Include bank borrowing
faciities, finance leases, overdrafts, US private placement loan
notes and performance guarantees. Various derivatives are
used to manage interest, cutrency and other risks when
necessary or material,

The principal objective of these instruments is to raise funds
for general corporate purposes and to manage financial risk.
Further details of these instruments are given in Note 27 o
the financial statements.

Disclosure of information under Listing Rule 9.8.4

The annual report is required to contain certain information
under Listing Rule 9.8.4. Where this information has not been
cross-referenced within the Group finandal statements, it can be
found In the following S

Details of long-term * Directors’ remuneration

incentive schemes report on pages 88 to 109 and
Note 36 to the finandial
staterments

Director’s voluntary walver of  * Directors’ remuneration

emoluments report page 102

Shareholder waivers of ® Directors’ report: other

dividends and future dividends  disclosures on this page

In respect of shareholder waivers of dividends and future
dividends, in addition to the agreement by the trustees of the
Mitie Group pic Employee Benefit Trust to walve dividends
payable on the Group's shares it holds for satisfying awasds under
various Mitie Group pik share plans, in accordance with Section
726 of the Companies Act 2006 no dividends can be paid to the
Company in respect of the shares it holds in treasury.

The remalning disclosures required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 are not
applicable to the Company.

None of the shareholders Is considered to be a Controlling
Shareholder {as defined in Listing Rule 6.1.2.A).

Going concem

The Directors acimowiedge the Financial Reporting Council’s
‘Guidance on Risk Mansgement, intermnal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting’ issued in September 2014,
The Directors have considered principal risks and uncertainties
affecting the Group which are described on pages 50t0 57.

The Directors have considered the Group's financial position with
reference to latest forecasts and the actual performance for the
period. The Group benefits from a well-diversified portfolio of
service offerings and has a broad, diverse customaer base,

The Group currently operates wefl within the financial covenants
associated with its committed funding lines. These include
£191.5m of US Private Placement debt maturing in December
2019, December 2022 and December 2024. The Group ako
benefits from a committed multi-currency revolving credit facility
of £275.0m, which will mature in July 2021. Together with the US
Private Placerments, this gives the Group total committed funding
of £466.5m), of which £219.3m was undrawn at 31 March 2018.

The Group's US Private Placements and bank debt contain certain
financial covenants, The primary ratios are net debt to EBITDA
and EBITDA ta net finance costs. These covenants are tested on a
roling 12-month bas!s as at the March and September reporting
dates. Ax 31 March 2018, both covenant tests were passed. The
Group i forecasting to remain within its banking covenants over
the next twelve months and has stress-tested these calculations
for reasonable possible adverse variances In trading and

cash performance.

After making enguiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for at least twelve months and the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting In preparing the condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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Director’s repott: othar disciosures continued

Viablity statement
This staternent is detalied in full on page 57.

In accordance with provision €.2.2 of the 2016 edition of the
Code, the Directors have assessed the viabifity of the Group over
a three-year period to 31 March 2021 taking into account the
Group’s current position and the potential impact of the principal
risks set out in the Strategic report, Based on this assessrnent the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group s and
will continue to be viable.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each of the Directors in office as of the date of approval of this
Annual Report and Accounts confirms that:

= so far as he/she is aware, there is no relevant audit information
{being Information required by the Company’s auditors in the
preparation of thelr report) of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware; and

« he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ougiv to have taken
as 2 Director to make himsetf/herself aware of any relevamt
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors
are aware of such information.

This confirmation is given, and should be interpreted, In
accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

Culture

Mitie has appointed a new axeartive management team and
adopted A new stritegy. As part of that strategy, a new ‘Mitie
Way' of doing business and ‘One Mitie’ unitary approach to
working with our dients has been developed. The Mitie Way has
many elements including purpose, vision, culture, values and
branding. The vision has been defined and Bunched and seeks t
Instil One Mitie and Mitie Way approaches to everything we do at
Mitie and for cur clients. The new culture covers all aspects of the
business, from ‘who we are’ to ‘what we do’ and ‘how we do it/
and incorporates the elements of Mitie's existing One Code which
includes health and safety, sustanabifity, diversity and equality,
bribery and corruption, conflicts of interest, and financial and
non-financial accounting and reporting. The Mitle Way purpose
and values ara being rolled out across the organisation in 2018,

Mitle is comumitted fo reducing its carbon emissions and environmental impact; we believe that to achieve this effective reporting is
key as it improves transparency and drives enviconmental pesformance.

The Group has continued to report total GHG emissions annualty using the financial control approach. Mitle's methodology aligns with
Defra's Environmental reporting guidelines and uses the government’s GHG reporting conversion factors to quantify emissions.

Absolute emissions reductions have been achieved of 16.4% against our 2010 baseline and 6.7% against previous year.
Our organisational carbon intensity has also decreased by 34.7% against our 2010 baseiine year and 5.4% aghinst previous year.

Further information can be found below:

Absolute emissions
% Change % Change
2009/10 against sgaingt
Emissions {Baseline) 2036/17 2017/18 baseline  previous yesr
Total Scope 1 {t002e)° 41,343 37,923 25974 -13.0% -5.1%
Emissions from fuel combustion across fleet 40277 37,128 35272 -12.4% S5.0%
Emissions from gas combustion st occupled bulldings 1,066 795 702 -34.1% -11.7%
Total Scope 2 {r00¢) 3,490 2,048 1,524 -56.3% -32.2%

Emlssions from the purchase of electricity across

occupied bulldings 3,490 2,248 1,524 56.3% -32.2%
Total Scope 1 & 2 {1C0s0) 44,033 40,171 37,948 -16.4% 6.7%
Intensity
% Change % Change
against against
Emissions ratio 2003/10 2016/17 2017/18 Dase yasr  previcus yesr
200efEm revenue (Scope 1&2) 2607 17.99 1700 -34.7% - 54%
*  Refrigerant data has been eaduded due 10 difficulties obtaining acourste dats on o sites, this taly is ot consitsered material.

90% of total scope emissions can be attributed to the fleet; over the last few years Mitie has focused on improving vehicle efficiency
through the use of more efficient vehicles, the installation of telematics and the provision of driver training. Across its buiidings the Group
has also procured 100% renewabie electricity tariffs and made 3 number of improvements such as the instaliation of LED iighting.

Further information on these calculations can be found in the GHG Methodology staternent available on our website ww.mitie.com.
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Environmental data
Further details on the Group's erwironmental performance can be found in the table balow:

% Change % Changa

2009/10 against againat

{Baseline) 2016/17 2017/18 baseline  previous yesr

Electricity consumed across accupied buildings (kW) 9,091,141 6,624,127 5,540,091 -39.1% -16.4%
Gas consumed across ocoupled buildings (kwh) 7,980,537  5A493,067  4,949461 -38.0% -9.9%
Fuel used by fleet for business trave! (kwh) 184,088,382 168,213,139 154,681,158 -16.0% ~8.0%
Total organisational energy consurnption (kKWh) 201,160,060 180,330,333 165,170,710 -17.9% B.A%
Water consurned across occupied buildings (m3) 25,306 45,214 40,012 36.5% -115%
Total waste generated across occupied buildings (tonnes) 1,436 861 877 -38.9% 1.9%
Total waste to landfil (tonnes) 989 349 336 -66.1% -3.9%
Total waste recycied {tonnes) 447 512 542 21.2% 5.9%
Recycling rate 31% 59% 62% +30.7% +2.3%

Current reporting period
01/04/2017 - 31/03/2018

Mitle depends on its local communities to provide the engaged and talented people it needs to defiver great service and In retum Mitle
supports them through a wide range of initiatives. Over the past year, Mitie has donated time and money, raised awareness and funds,

and hosted a range of events for local people to participate in and enjoy.
AGM

Mitie’s AGM will be held on 31 July 2018 at 11:30am at Mayer Brown International LLP, 201 Bishopsgate, London ECZM 3AF,

By order of the Board

Ka 9—%2 .
e

6June 2018
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Director's repont: statement of Directors’ responsibilites

Staternent of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report, the remuneration rsport and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annpual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that faw the Directors are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with international Financlal Reporting Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the
European Union and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Acoepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Acoounting Standards and applicable taw] including FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financlal statements unless they ars satisfled
that they give a true and falr view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss for the Group for
that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+ select suttable accounting polickes and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable snd prudent;

» for the Group financial statements state whether they have been prepared In accordance with IFRSs as sdopted by the European
Union, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained In the financial statements;

+ for the Parent Company financlal statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disciosed and explained in the Parent Company financial statements;

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is insppropriate to presume that the Group or Parent Company
will continue in business;

« prepare a Directors’ report, a strategic report and Directors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006,

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the 1AS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and hence for taldng reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the annual neport and
acoounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced, anduntbtshndabbandpmﬂeﬂutﬁmmﬂonmawhrslwehddﬁsmm
the Group's performance, business model and strategy.

Website publication

The Directors ane responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financlal statements are made avallable on a website, Financial
statements are published on the Parent Company’s website in accordance with legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions, The maintenance and

integrity of the Company's website is the responsibliity of the Divectors. The Divectors' responsibility also extends to the ongoing
integrity of the financial statements contained thevein.

Directors’ responsibilities pursuant to DTRA.1
The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge:

» the Group financial staterments have bean prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the JAS Regulation and give a true and fair view of the assets, Kabifities, financial
position and profit and loss of the Group; and

+ the annual report includes a fair review of the developtnent and performance of the business and the financial position of the Group
and the Parent Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

Bvﬁrommnmm '\h(_\ fpﬁk

Phil Bentiey
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
6 June 2018 6June 2018
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independent auditor’s repart to the members of Mitle Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mitie Group ple {the ‘Parent Company’} and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) for the year
ended 31 March 2618 which comprise the Consolidated income Statermnent, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income,
the Consolitated and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Comparty Statemess of Changes in Equity and
notes to the financial statements, inckading a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and intemational Fnancial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent
Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opindon except for the effects of the matters described in the Basls for qualified opinlon paragraph the financial statements:

» give 3 true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of the Group's loss
for the year then ended;

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union;

* the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

» the finandial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the
Group finandial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

Basis for qualified opinion

The financhal statements have been qualified on the basis that they do not agree with the requirement contalned in 1AS 1 o present a
third balance sheet for the year ended 31 March 2016. Subsequently we have been unable to determine the financial impact of sty
line Wem reclassification adjustment that may have arisen from this re-presentation to the Income statement for the year ended

31 March 2017. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as described within Note 1 to the basls of preparation for the financlal statements,
had these adjustments been presented in accordance with IAS 1, they would have had no impact on the reported net assets for the
year ended 31 March 2016 or the reported loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs {UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financia! statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, Including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in acoordance with these requirements. We befleve that the audit evidence we have
obtalned Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts for our qualified opinion.

Conclusions relating to prindpal risks, going concern and viability statement
We have nothing to report in respect of the following Information in the annua report, in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

» the disclosires in the annual report set out on pages 50 to 56 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

* the Directors’ confirmation set out on page 70 in the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the princpal
risks facing the Group, Including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

« the Directors’ statement set out on page 113 in the financlal statements about whether the Directors considered it appfopriate to
adopt the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the Directars’ identification of any material
uncertalinties to the Group and the Parent Company’s ability to continue to do so overa period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial statements;

« whether the Directors’ statement relating to going concem required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3)
is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

. themmcmrs'mhnaﬁonsetanonpag:S?hmeammIreportastohowﬁeyhaveusessedﬂtepmspectsoftheﬁroup,mer
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate and their statement as to whether they have a
masombleexpemﬂmﬂntmeﬁrwpwﬂlbeabhmmnthuelnoper:ﬂonandmaetmIlabllltlesasmevfalldueumﬂnpndodof
their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.
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Independent auditor's repost to the members of Mitie Group plc continued

Summary of audit approach

Key audit matters

The key audit matters for the current year and level of jJudgement are as below:

Transition to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
Contractual disputes and provisions

Appropriateness of revenue and profit recognition

Recoverabliity of aged or disputed debtors and accrued Income
Impairment of goodwill in the property management division
Presentation of ‘othet items’ In the consolidated income statemant

R G o

The level of judgement and impact on the finandal statements is as follows:

Materiality We based materiality on profit before other items at £3.4m

Scoping The scope of Gruup audit incorporated all component divisions with fimited exceptions where
desktop review procedures were performed. Our audit testing covered 95% of Group revenue
and 95% of Group total assets

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financlal
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters, which are detailed below, inchuded those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement tesrn, These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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Transition to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customess

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

As detalled In Note 1 to the Group financial statements the Group
has early adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from controcts with austomers.

The adoption of IFRS 15 has resulted in significant changes to
fevenue recognition policies and the recognition of contract
fulfiiment assets such as mobifisation.

The Group has elected to apply the curnulative adjustment
approach and therefore the cumulative impact of the prior
year restatements is refiected within opening reserves to the
cufrent year.

The adoption of IFRS 15 raquires significant judgement over the
recognition of revenue and contract fulfilment assats. This
requires interpretation of complex contractual terms including
consideration of performance conditions.

There Is a risk that the adjustments to the opening reserves are
misstated or incomplete and also that the disclosures made to
the Group financiel stetements do not adequately explain the
impact of the adoption of IFRS 15.

As part of the work on transition to IFRS 15 the Group engaged
third party experts to provide support to management.

The Group also put in place a detailed control framework and
quality control procedures, supported by the third party
spedalists andt internai audit.

The contracts were divided into four distinct categories based on
size and complexity - the focus of the third party specialist was
on the first two categories which contained the largest and
highest risk contracts. The third category was reviewed by the
divisional teams through the use of questionnaires designed to
identify the key attributes that may result in an adjustment. The
first three categories accounted for approdmately B0% of the
Group’s revenue,

The remaining category was subject to review based on
identifying characteristics that would result in an adjustment to
revenue recognition,

With support of our internal technical specialists we have
addressed the matter as follows:

Control environment - We reviewed the process undertakan,
control erwironment and quaiity control procedures in place in
respect of the process to adopt IFRS 15. We ensured the
procedures were appropristely structured to obtaln all necessary
information and calculate the adjustments required. We atso
attended a number of IFRS 15 steering committee meetings.

Work of experts - We assessed the work performed by the third
party experts through reviewing their work and holding a number
of meetings with them. Following the completion of these
procedures, we considered the reliance we were able to place on
their work as an expert.

Testing - We substentively tested a sample of the contract reviews
(including those whese no adjustment was recorded) from each of
the four categories, we corroborated the key polnts to contracts,
held meetings with the necessary finance and contract
management team members to chalienge assumptions and
judgements made. We tested a sample of the remalning contract
fulfilment assets recorded on balance sheet after the IFRS 15
adjustments had been recorded to ensure completeness of
adjustments and that appropriate audit evidence was In place to
support the assets,

Retiability of data — We tested the extraction of contract related
data from original source used to derive the adjustment made to
the opening reserves,

Disclosures — We have reviewed the adequacy of the disdosures
including compieting the required audit work under previous
revenue recognition standards to reflect the discosure
requirements of the cumutative approach.

Annual report narrative — The use of the cumulative approach
provides no directly comparative basis for assessment against prior
year, we reviewed the annual report narrative in respect of
performance for the year to ensure it is falr, batanced and
understandable.

Acocounting policies ~ We reviewed the accounting policies
established by the Group by reference to the requirements of
FRS 15.

Discussion with Audit Committee — We discussed with the Audit
Commitiee the judgements being applied and the representations
being sought from the Beard. We also attended a number of
steering committee meetings which were attended by
managerment and a member of the Awudit Commiittee.

Observations: We are satisfied that the transitional adjustments to IFRS 15 are materially complete and accurate.
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Independent suditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group plc continued

Contractual disputes and provisions
Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

The Group Is subject to certain contractual disputes as well as a
material legal claim which are ongoing at the yearend and
require specific consideration as to whether provisions or
contingent flability disclosures are required.

The Group is also subject to the Plumbers pension scheme, which
Is a complex multi-employer pension scheme. The trustees of the
scheme are currently unable to cakufate the lab#Hity that refates
to the Group, induding the impact of orphaned llabéities and also
whether a Section 75 liabfity has been crystallised,

The Group operates a number of low margin and previously
Identified onerous contracts; there is a risk that the provislon for
onerous contracts is not compiete.

There Is a risk that provisions and contingent Rabliity disciosures
are not complete or accurate (see Notes 28, 34 and 37)

In respect of the contractual disputes and legal claim we have held
discussions with in-house counsel and where necessary &temal
legal counsel.

We have read appropriate intemal and extemal documentation
to evaluate contractual claims and disputes, including reviewing
management’s material dispute register and the material
judgements and estirmate papers prepared by management.

As part of our procedures we also assessed the controls over
the preparation and completeness of the papers.

in respect of the Plumbers pension scheme we have neviewed
correspondence and pubiicly avallable information in respect of the
Plumbers pension scheme and challenged management as to
whether a provision is required and to the completeness of the
disclosures given.

In respact of potentially onerois contracts we inspected a sample of
low margin and new lange contracts to determine whether onerous
contract provisions should be recorded —this included critically
assessing the assumptions over future costs and project initiatives,
For all matters we have reviewed the disciosures intiuded In the

financial statements to ensure that they are complete and are falr,
balanced and understandable,

Observations: We are satisfled that the provisions recorded and disclosures made are complete and accurate,
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Appropriateness of revenue and profit recognition
Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Auditing standarts require us to make a rebuttable presumption
that the fraud risk from revenue i a significant risk. Management
incentives, bonusas and market consensus increases the fraud risk.
The risk is compounded bry the adoption of IFRS 15 in the year —the
Impact of which in the current year is disclosed within Note 1.

A significant proportion of the Group's revenue is derived from long
term contracts. The contractual terms underpin the measunement
and recognition of revenue and profit and the Group s therefore
required to make operational and financial assumptions.

Judgements include:

* Interpretation of complex contract terms;

» Mobilisation and pre contract costs capable of being capitalised;
« Allocation of revenue to performance conditons; and

+ Combining of obligations where the services are refatad.

‘The nature of the Group's activities also gives rise to significant
amount of variable work which is recorded as accrued unbliiied
income with a corresponding profit recognition. Accrued unbilled
income at the 31 March 2018 and totalled £129.3m.

There is a risk that revenue may be recognised even though R is
not probable thet consideration will be collected which could be
due to uncertainties gver contractual terms and ongoing
negotiations with customers.

We have tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls
over the contract process including contract monitoring, billings
and approvals, the general IT controls over certain of the systems
used to generate the information and management’s review and
approval of the contract accounting applied.

We have also completed the following audit procedures:

* Reviewed the basis of revenue recognised against the
requirements of IFRS 15 and challenged the key judgements
made by management;

= Obgained a sample of contracts to confism that revenue had
been appropriately recognised and for a sample of fived revenue
contracts recalculated the expected revenue for the year;

+ Tested a sample of contract related assets to supporting
documentation;

» Tested a sample of accrued income balances to supporting
documentation which included assessing proof of works,
customer acceptance, reviewing customer cofrespondence
where necessary and ensuring cut-off had been appropriately
applied.

We ako challenged management over the disclosures included In

the financial statements and the clear distinction between billed

and unbilled amount to ensure that they are complete and are fak,
balanced and understandable.

Recoverability of aged or disputad debtors and accrued income

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Material amounts of the billed and unbilled work remain
outstanding for more than three months as resohution of open
issues remains ongoing on various contracts.

The aged nature of these balances increases the risk of
recoverability, particularly where there is disagreement

or dispute.

Trade debtors and accrued income are disclosed in Note 19 to
the financial staterments. Credit risk associated with trade debtors
Is disclosed In Niove 28 to the financial statements.

There is significant management Judgement involved in assessing
the recoverability of these balances, taking into consideration the
Group's contractual rights, available evidence of work performed,
as well as the status of ongoing commercial negotiations.

This judgement is compounded by system limitations which
require 2 manual ageing of unbilled accorued income balances,
increasing the risk of error.

In the current year the Group has recognised & bad debt provision
of £17.3m in respect of aged and disputed billed balances which
has been recorded in administrative expenses.

For a sample of aged balances at the year-end we have challenged

the validity of the recorded debtors and accrued Income as well as

the completeness of the bad debt/accrued income provision by a

number of methods including:

= Confirming aged balances to post year-end cash receipts;

= Obtaining external confirmation of the balances;

» Reviewing client approval of works orders or contractual
commitments;

» Reviewing evidence of work performed and status of
negotiations;

s Manually testing the accuracy of aging of accrued income;

» Completing analytical procedures

» Reviewing customer correspondence; and

» Reviewing in-house legal counsel reports.

» Completed analytical procedures to consider consistency in the
provisioning methodology compared to the prior year.

Observations: We are satisfied that the carrying value of trade receivables and accrued income is materially comect.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitle Group pic continusd

Presentation of ‘other items’ in the consolidated income statement

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Consistent with the prior year management have presented
profit before other items in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The presentation i intended to show the
financial results in a way that reflects the underlying profitability
of the Group and therefore exciudes the results from ftems such
as restructuring, impalrment and other costs and income
conskfered exceptional In nature, A detailed breakdown of other
Items together with explanation Is inciuded In Note 4 to the
financial statements.

There is judgement in evaluating whether a transaction meets
the definition described in the Group’s accounting policy and
whether its presentation is ‘fair, batanoad and understandable’,

Fallure to disclose clearly the nature and impact of material
‘other lteny eamings may distort the reader’s view of the
financial result in the year.

We have assessed the design and implementation of relevant
controls over the financial statement review process by
management and the Audit Committee,

We have benchmarked the items induded within other ibems by
reference to:

+ [ndustry peer Group;

* The guidanoe published by the Financial Reporting Council in
their thematic review; and

+ Tha guidance included in the “Guidelines on Alternative
Performance Measures”, issued by the European Securities and
Markets Authority (ESMA).

Having regard to the benchmarking we have:

» Understood the compasition of other ltems identified by
management;

* Agreed a sample of ltems to supporting docurmentation;

« Challenged management’s rationale for the indusion of certain
tems particularly around the areas of higher judgement such as
restructuring and dual running costs;

+ Determined whether the costs recognised as ‘other items’ meet
the criterla of the accounting policy and are consistent with the
prior year;

¢ Reviewed the income statement for any material credits that are
considered to meet the Group policy of being dassified as an
other kem;

» Challenged the appropriateness of disclosure of these batances
both in note 5 and in the remainder of the annual report; and

» Consulted with our intemal technical spaciafists.

Ohservations: We are satisfied that the other ltems ara not materially misstated and that the disclosures given in Note 5 and the
remainder of the annuatl report are fair, balanced and understandable.
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Impalrment of goodwill in the property division
Matter identified How we addressed the matter

In accordance with LAS 36 impoirment of Assets the Group is With the assistance of our vaiuation specialists, we have challenged
required 10 CATTY cut an annual impalment test of the Group’s  the reasonableness of management’s key jJudgements and our

leht:fhidabmummrdbalau prior to work included:

impairments of £343.9m. Of this amount £70.2m s recorded in =~ | nt's h .
Evaluating management’s historical forecasting accuracy;

the property management division cash generating unit (CGU}. | Assessing one-off ftems which manage has identified as

The property management division has performed below budget  Impacting the cusrent year and the risk of these items being

In the current ang prior year, Set against a backdrop of an pervasive in the business;

increasingly challenging market place following a high profile » Benchmarking growth rates to applicable market data;

oorpor;:fahreasmllad'mchalemarblmﬁbmﬂ!e public . c1allenging the discount rate applied;

sector the goodwll has been impaired by £34.6m to £35.6m -

i 23 e e e

There is inherent yncertainty involved in forecasting the « Challenging the forecast revenue and margin assumptions by

future cash flows of the division and calculating the net present reference to current performance, avaiiable market data and

value, including: accuracy of prior year forecasting:

* Profit margins; * Reviewing the allocation of central costs;

« Revenue growth; + Assessing whether the forecasts adopted in the impairment

= The impact of changes in market conditions; review were Board approved and are consistent with those used

» The uncertainty around final account settiements, commercial i the going concem and ionger-term viabBity assessment; and
daims and pension provisions; and + Completing sensitivity analysis and ensuring completeness of
» The selection of an appropriate discount rate. disclosures In the financial statements.

Observations: We are satisfied that the Impairment is not materially misstated and that the disclasures adequately disclose the
Inherent risk and uncertainties.

The previous auditors report In respect of the financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2017 also included key audit matters
that have been femoved in the current year In respect of: effect of potential prior year restatements, healthcare division disposal and
management override of controls. New and recurring risks when compared to the previous auditor’s report are also identified above.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materlality both in planning and performing our audit and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We
consider matefiajity to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable USers that are taken on the basis of the financial statements. Importantly, misstatemnents below these levels will not
necessarily be evajuated 2s immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements and the particular
circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whale.

Based on our professional judgemeant, we determined matertaiity for the Group financial statements to be £3.4m and for the parent
company to be £2 6m. Performance matariality was calculated based on 65% of our materiality. We determined this percentage by
reference to the number of components, the errors identified in the prior year and due to this being our first year as auditors. This
compares to £3.8y materiality applied in the prior year by the previous auditor.

The materiality we applied in respect of the Group financial statements equates to 5% of profit before other tems and tax. We
consider this to the be most appropriate performance measure for the basis of determining matariality as It removes the Impact of
non-recurting items impacting the underlying profit of the Group. The adjustment removes the impact of “other Rems” detalied In
Note 5 to the Group financial statements.

We set companent materiality between £0.7m and £1.4m (2017 - £1.9m and £2.7m - as determined by the previous auditor} based on
the overall skze and respective risk of each component.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £170,000, as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee
on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial staterments.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Mitie Group pic continued

An overview of the scope of our audit
As detailed elsewhere in the annual report we accepted appointment as statutory auditors in September 2017,

We wene aware, as we entered the tender process, of the ongoing FRC regulatory issues relating the to Group, both in respect of the
FRC’s assessment of the 2016 financial statements (which conduded in November 2017) and the launch of an investigation by the FRC
into the predecassor audit firm’s audits in 2015 and 2016,

We were also aware of the independent balance sheet review commissioned by new management in the prior year, which resulted in
significant prior year adjustments to the 2016 financial statements. During the course of our tender the FCA launched an investigation
into the timeliness of profit wamings during 2015716 which remains ongoing.

As part of our procedures in conskiering appointment, during the course of the tender we werne provided access to refevant
documentation in respect of the prior year audit and in particular we considered the independent balance sheet review. We also met with
ey management and certain members of the Board to understand both the business in the context of an audit and aiso to understand the
changes being made 1 address financial reporting and control emvironment matters, Over fifty hours of individual meetings were held and
attended by the lead and supporting audit partner, in addition to the time assessing information provided.

During the tender meetings held, in light of the high level of judgement required In respect of percentage of completion accounting
and the well-publicised issues within the outsourcing sector relating to this area, we discussed with the business their intent to early
adopt IFRS 15 Revenue from contract with customers.

Following our appointment, the FCA announced in November 2017 that it had closed its review of the 2016 financial statements and as
2 result opened an investigation undes the Accountancy Scheme into their preparation, and in January 2018 the FRC issued guidance
to boards of companies in the support services sector in the light of the coliapse of Carillion. As part of our appointment we were
entithed to, and took up, the opportunity to review the previous auditor’s files.

Al of the above information was used as part of our risk assessment in setting our audit approach In this first year of our audit of the Group.

The Group operates through a number of legal entities which form reporting components — the reporting components are consistent
with the segmental analysls as disciosed in Note 3 to the financlal statements. Audits were performed over all components with the
exception of certain non-significant parts of the components, Inchuding overseas entities, which were disaggregated and subject to
desktop review procedures.

The audit procedures were carried out over 95% of Group revenue and S5% of Group total assets.
Total revenue Total assets

I | Full sudit Désktop review

95% 5%

reviaw

Desktop
5%

The Group audit team set component materiality levels as detailed above with work on ali components being performed by the Group
suditors under the direction and supervision of the Group engagement partner. With the exception of the non-significant components
the Group engagement partner visited ali component locations and attended various telephone conference meetings through the
planning, fisldwork and completion stages of the audit.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information inciuded in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financlai statements does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, corsider whether the other information is materially inconsisterd with tha financial statements or our knowdedge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent materiat
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement In the financial staterments or a material
misstatement of the other information. if, based on the work we have performed, we condude that there is a material misstatement
of the othay iInformation, we are required to report that fact.

Other than the matter idertified in the Basis for qualified opinion section above, we have nothing to report in this regard.
inthis context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility to specifically address the following ltems in the other

Information and to report as uncorrected material misstatements of the other information where we condlude that those ltermns mest
the following conditions:

= Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 112 —the statement given by the Directors that they consider the annual report
and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's performanoe, business mode! and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtained In the audit; or

s Audit committee reporting set out on pages 72 to 83 — the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee; or

+ Directors’ staternent of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 64 — the parts of the Directors’
statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compliance with the UX Corporate Governance Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor In accordance with Listing Rule 9.8,10R{2) do not properly disclose 3
departure from a relevant provision of the UX Corporate Governance Code.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration repost to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the Directors’ report for the finandial year for which the financial statements are
prepared Is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and lts environment obtained in the course of

the audR, other than the matter identified in the Basis for qualified opinion section above, we have not identified matertal

misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

Other than the matter identified in the Basls for qualified opinion section above we have nothing 10 report in respect of the following

matters in refation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you i, in our opinlon:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, of returns adeguate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

= the Parent Cornpany financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in sgreement
with the acoounting records and returns; or

* certain disdosures of divectors” remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received aif the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Independent suditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group plc continued

Resporaibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities staterment set out on page 116, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such intamal control as the Dinectors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of finandial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial staternents, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's abliity to continue
as a going concem, disdosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to tease aperations, or have no realistic altemnative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whols are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to Issue an auditor’s report that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK} will always detect 8 material misstaternent
when R exdsts. Misstatemnents can arise from fraud or error and are considered matesial i, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsilflities for the audit of the financial staterents is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at: wwwi.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matters which we are required to address
Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee on 19 September 2017, we were appointed to audit the financial staternents
for the year ending 31 Manch 2018 and subsequent financial periods. This Is the first year of our engagement.

The non-audit services prohibited by the #RC’s Ethical Standand were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and we
remain independent of the Group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion Is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This report Is made solely to the Parent Company’s mermnbers, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them In an auditor’s report and for po other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent ny's members as a body, for our audit work, for this

report, or for the opinlons we have formed. J /%

Scott Michaugiton (Senlor Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

6 june 2018

BDO LLP s a Bmited Habllity partnership registered in England and Wales {with registered numbar 0C305127).
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Consolidated income stalement

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Restated
s 07
Rl Othar Bafore Other
other Rems Remg* Tolsl  other items Herny? Totad
Notes #m £m fm £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 22037 -~ 2,287 21234 -~ 21234
Cost of sales (1,894.8) - 1894.8) (1.893.6) -~ {18936}
Gross profit AWR9 - 0.9 2298 -~ 2298
Administrative expenses (220.1) {97.9) (318.0) {(236.7) (36.6) (2733
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 18 08 - 0.8 06 - 0.6
Opevating {loss)/profit 36 89.6 197.9} [8.3) (6.3) (36.6) {42.9)
Investment revenue 8 0.2 - 0.2 - - -
Finance costs L] {16.6) - {16.6} {15.3) -~ {153}
Net finance costs (16.4) - (16.4) {15.3) - {15.3)
{Loss)/profit hefore tax 3 732 {97.9) (24.7) (21.6) (366)  (58.2)
Tax 1o {12.0) 10.7 (1.3) 33 41 7.4
{Loss)/profit from continuing operations
after tax 61.2 (87-2) {26.0) {18.3) {32.5) (50.8)
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations 5 - - - {11.49) {121.0) (1324}
{Loss)/profit for the year 612 {87.2) (26.0) {29.7) (153.5) (383.2)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 60.1 (87.2) (27.) {30.5) (153.5) {184.0)
Non-controlling intarests 11 - 11 0.8 - 08
612 (87.2) (26.0) {29.7) (153.5) (183.2)
{Loss}/esmings per share (EPS) attributable to
equity shareholdars of the parent
From contirsing operations:
bask 12 16.8p {7.6)p {5.5)p (14.7p
diluted 12 16.8p (1.6)p {5.5)p (14.7)p
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic 12 16.8p 7.6)p 8.7p (52.4%
Diluted 12 168p .6)p (LT)_p (52.:&
Notes:

1 Other ibems sre s described in Nowe 4.

2. TheGroup has applied IFRS 15 tcing the cumulatihve effect method. Under this method, she Zompanstive information & not restated, Sew Nobe 1.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Restated
mnr
£m

Loss for the year

{183.2)

Irerns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit pension lability 37
Income tax (charge)/credit relating 1o items not redassified

(35.4)
5.5

(29.9)

items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or lass
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations
Gains on hecige of a net investment taken to equity

Net gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges arising during the year
(ncome tax credit relating to items that may be reclassified

01
04
0.1
0.1

13
0.1
(4.8}
0.3

0.7

(3.1)

mwm[{mﬂqm&\uﬂdm

170

{33.0)

Total comprehentive expense for the finandial year

(216.2)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-comroling interests

{10.3)
11

(217.0)
0.8

Note:

1. The Group has appled IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, Under this method, the Inko 1 not restated. See Note 1.

128 www.anitis.com | The exceptional, evary day




Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 March 2018
Restated
ans amn
. Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 309.6 3439
Other intangible assets 14 383 532
Property, plant and equipment 15 336 323
interest In joirt ventures and assoclates 16 08 0.6
Derjvative financlal instruments 27 61 -
Trade and other recevables 17 - 503
Contract assets? 20 18 -
Deferred tax assets 21 36.7 222
Total non-aarent assets 4269 5025
Quirent assets
Inventories 2 69 68
Trade and other recelvables 17 386.0 3956
Contract assets? 20 0.4 -
Dertvative financial instruments 27 - 358
Current tax assets 63 121
Cash and cash equivalents 23 59.8 129.1
Total current assets 4594 . 5794
Total assets ) 8863  1,0819
Current Kabilties
Trade and other payables 24 (496.8) {574.5)
Deferred income 25 (46.2) -
Financing kabilities 26 ©5 (3108
Provisions 28 (252) {20.4)
Total current lisbllities {569.0) {805.7)
Net current Kabilities {109.6) {326.3)
Non-current liabiitles
Trade and other payables 24 - (3.4)
Deferred income 25 (18.8) -
Financing liabilities 26 (258.5) (1.3)
Provisions 28 {6.3} (6.4)
Retirement benefit liabilities 37 (56.8) {74.2)
Deferred tax labilities 21 10.3) (1.1)
Total non-current Kabilities {(341.3) (86.4)
Yoral Kabilities (910.3) {992.1)
Net (Nabilities)/assets {24.0) 89.8
Noteg:
1 The Group has apphied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comperative irformation is not restated. See Note 1.
2 a3 31 March 2018, contract essets comprises contract fulfiment costs capitalised in accordance with IFRS 15 and the Group's irternal sccouniing policy.
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Consolidated balance sheet continued

As at 31 March 2018
Rastated
018 207
Notas £ £m
Equity
Share capltal 3 93 9.2
Share premium account 32 1306 130.6
Merger reserve 32 104.2 918
Own shares reserve 32 (43.8) 142.2)
Other reserves 32 113 103
Hedging and transiation reserve 32 73) {8.0)
Retained losses (z28.7) (104.2)
Equity attributable to sguity holders of the parent {24.0) 875
Non-controlling imerests - 23
Total squity (24.0) 89.8
Note:

1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Linder this method, the comparative information ks not restated. See Note L.

The consolidated financlal statements of Mitie Group plc, company registration number SC019230 were approved by the Board of

Directors and authorised for Issue on 6 June 2018. They were signed on its behaif by:

Phit Bantley Paul Woolf
Chief Executive Officer Chilef Financial Officer
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Conzolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Share Own Hedging snd Norr
Share  premium Mesrger shares Other  wanslstion  Aetained controling Toud
capital  acoount reserve reserve  reservest reserve eamings Yoial iMaat aquity
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m ™
AL 1 Apri| 2016 93 1277 801 {488) 99 (46) 1850 3586 29 36LS
LosS for the year - - - - - —  (184.0) (184,0) 08 (183.2)
Other comprehensive expense - - - - - (34) (296) (33.0) - {33.0)
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - 34) (2136 (217.0) 08 (21632)
Shares issuad 0.1 29 11.7 - - - - 147 - 14.7
Dividends paid - - - - - - (374) (374} {D.1} {32.5)
Shane buybacks {02) - - {02) 0.4 - {24.4) [24.4) - (24.4)
Share-based payments - - - 6.8 - - 24 922 - 9.2
Acquisitions and other movements
in non-controlling interests - - - - - -  {(162) (162) (13) {17.5)
_n_l_t.}i. March 2017 92 130.6 91.8 {42.2) 103 {8.0) (104.2) 878 23 0s
Batance at 1 April 2017 9.2 130.6 918 {42.2) 103 (8.0) (104.2) 825 23 : %}
Impact of change in accounting
policy! - - - - - - _(082) (1082) - 1083
Adjusted balance at 1 Aprtl 2017 92 13086 918 (42.2) 10.3 (8.0) (2124) (20.7) 23 {1s4)
Loss for the year - - - - - - {27.1) (22.1) 11 (26.0)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 0.7 16.3 17.0 - 17.0
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - 0.7 (10.8) {10.1) 1.1 (9.0)
Dividends paid - - - - - - {a.8) (2.8) - {ag)
Share-based payments - - - 69 10 - 0.3 82 - 82
Acquisttions and other movements
in nan-controlling interests 0.1 - 124 (8.1) - - {1.0} 34 (3.4} -
At 31 March 2018 93 1306 1042 {434) 113 {7.3) (228.7) (24.0) -  [24.0)
Notat:
1 The Group has applied {FRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information i not reststed. See Note 1.
2 Other resarves indude the share-based peyments. reserve, the revalustion reserve and the capital redemption reserve. Ses Noke 12.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Restaved
1] 2017
Noves £ £m
Operating loss — continuing operations =.3) (42.9)
- discontinued operations -~ (135.2)
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments expense 36 46 62
Defined benefit pension charge 37 31 4.3
Past service cost and curtallments 37 19 -
Defined benefit pension contributions 37 A7 {2.4)
Acquishtion costs 4 - 1.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 128 141
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 135 238
Share of profit of joint ventures and assoclates 16 t0.8) (0.6}
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 13,14 45.0 109.2
Loss on disposal of businesses 02 304
{Gain}/loss on dispasal of property, plant and equipment {0.1} 1.0
Operating cash flows bafore movemants in working capital &7.2 9.1
{increase)/decrease in inventories fo.1) 3.2
(Increasa)/decrease in receivables {a3.2) 60.2
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets 2.3) -
Decrease In deferred income arising on contracts (12.8) -
(Decrease)/increase in payables (21.2) 730
(Decrease)/increase in provisions 4.5 56
Cash {used n}/generated by operations 39 (7.9) 151.1
income taxes received/{paid) 1L6 (15.3)
Intarest paid {13.5) {12.7}
Acquisition costs 4 - {0.3)
Nat cath {outflow)/eflow from operating activities {9.8)} 1228
investing activities
Interest received 0.2 0.1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 {158} {14.5)
Dividends received from joint ventures and assodates 06 06
Purchase of other intangibie assets 14 {9.0) (12.4)
Disposais of progerty, plant and equipment 16 10
Dispasal of subsidiaries, including cash dispased 5 87 1.7}
Net cash outflow from Iimesting activities 132.1) {26.9)
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Consolidated stamtement of cash flows continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Restated
s 2017
Mokes [ £m
Financing activities
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (L5} {1.6)
Proceeds on Issue of share capital - 0.1
Private placement notes repaid and associate hedges settied {60.2) -
Proceeds from new borrowings 383 1.7
Proceeds from re-issue of treasury shares 32 34 24
Purchase of non-controliing interests 3 3.0) (1.4)
Share buybacks 3 - (24.4)
Equity dividends paid 11 (4.8} (37.4)
Non-controlling interests dividends paid - {0.1)
Other financing items - 04
Net cash outflow from financing activities {27.8) (60.3)
Net [decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents £69.7) 356
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1291 93.1
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 0.4 0.4
Net cash and cash equivelents st end of the yesr 23 508 129.1

The above statermnent of consolidated cash flows includes cash flows from both continuing and discontinued operations. Fu rther details

of the cash flows relating to discontinued operations are shawn in Note 5,

Raconciliation of net cash flow to movernents in net debt Notes ’n‘: mé:
Cash deivers
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents {69.7) 356
increase in bank lcans {38.3) a7
Movement in private placement notes and associated hedges 60.2 -
Decrease in finance leases 15 12
Non-cash drivers
Non-cash movement in bank loans ©.7) -
Non-cash movemert in private placement notes and associated hedges 03 (4.2)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 04 04
{increasej/decrease in net debt during the year {46.3} a1
Opening net debt (147.2) (1783)
Closing net debt 30 {193.5) {147.2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(») Basls of preparation

The Group's financlal staterments for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted for use in the European Union snd therefore the Group’s financial staterments comply with Articie
4 of the EU IAS Regulation,

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain finandal instruments which are
required to be measured at fair value.

Whilst the Property Management business was previousfy classified as a discontinued operation in the FY2018 Half Year Report, there
are no active sales processes at yearend and henoe it s no longer dassified as a discontinued operation.

Prior year restatement

The prior year comparatives have been restated due to an accounting ervor in respect of an under accrual of costs with a
cormresponding increase in accrued income and revenue. The impact on the prior year bafance sheet is an increase in accruals and
accrued income of £14.6m and a decrease in revenue and cost of sales of £2.9n within the income statement, The Directors recognise
that the under accrual of costs and understatement of accrved income may also be apparent in the 2016 balance sheet. However as
disclosed In the 2017 accounts, an extensive review was undertaken, which led to bath prior year adjustments to 2016 and material
adjustrnents being recognised in 2017 arising from changes to accounting estimates.

in addition, as a result of the 2016 financial statements being subject to judgements and estimates made by the then Directors at that
time, the current Directars consider ik is not appropriate or meaningful to attenpt to quantify of represent any errors, and as a result
the balance sheet for the year ended 31 Manch 2016 has not been represented. Notwithstanding this, management note that any
error of the nature ientified, were It present in the year ended 31 March 2016, would not have any impact on dosing net assets for
that year nor wouid it have any impact on the reported loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Going concern

As outlined in the Directorx” Repart, the Directors have concluded that whilst the Group IS in a net current liabllity position at year end,
it has adequate financial nesources to continue In operation for the foreseeable future and can prepare ks financial statementson a
going concem basis. The Directors have considered the future prospects and performance of the Group including: the future business
plans of the Group; the potential impact of acquisition activity and passible changes 1o the composition of the Group; the projected
future cash flows of the Group; the availability of core and anditary financing facilities and compliance with related covenants; the
projected drawn positions and headroom available on the core committed financing facilities; and those matters reviewed in
connection with the Viabllity Statemest.

The Directors have also reviewed and considered the disclosures on the matter of going concern and viability in the Annual Report and
Accounts and have considered them to be appropriate.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Accounting standards that are newly effective in the current year

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistant with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s anmual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 except for the following amendments,
which were effective for the first time in the curment year but had no impact on the results or financial position of the Group:

* Amendments to IAS 12 ‘income taxes’- clarification of requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses on
debt nstrument financial assets measured at fair value;

* Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Cash flow statements’ — disclosure initiative; and

* Amendments resulting from annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle.

The Group has early adopted IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers’. The impacts of adopting the new accounting standard
are detalled below.

Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been appiied by the Group
The following standards and interpretations have been lssued but are not yet mandatorily effective {and in some cases have not yet
been adopted by the EU) and have not been applied by the Group:

* JFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’;

* IFRS 16 "Leases’;

« |FRS 17 ‘Insurance contracts’;

* Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-basad payment’ — classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions;
* [FRIC 22 ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’;

* |FRIC 23 “Uncertainty over income tax treatments’;

+ Amendments to [FRS 9 ‘Prepayment features with negative compensation’;

* Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint vermures’; and

* Annual improvements to IFRS’s 2015-2017 cycle.

The Directors have considered the impact of IFRS 9 and 1FRS 16 as noted below. The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the
other standards listed abowe will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group In future periods.

RS 9 Financial Instruments’ Is effective for the Group starting 1 April 2018 and replaces the current requirements of LAS 39

‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’. The main changes introduced by the new standard are new classification and
measurement requirements for certain financlal assets, a new expected loss model for the impairment of financial assets, revisions

1o the hedge accounting model, and amendments to disclosures. The changes are generally to be applied retrospectively, Given the
nature of the financial assets and llabiltties currently beld by the Group and its hedging arrangements, the changes are not expected to
have a significant impact on the finandal statements.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ will be effective for the Group starting 1 April 2019 and will replace the current requirements 1AS 17 ‘Leases’. An asset
for the right to use the leased item and a Nabliity for future lease payments will be recognised for all leases, subject to krnited
exemptions for short-term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs of leases will be recognised in the income statement spiit
between depreciation of the lease asset and a finance charge on the lease Kabliity. This is similar to the existing accounting for finance
leases, but substantively different to the existing accounting for operating leases under which no lease asset or lease fability Is
recognised and rentals payable are charged to the Income statement on a straight-line basis. Following the sarly adoption of IFRS 15,
the Group Is currently considering the adoption date for IFRS 16 and is continuing Its assessment of the Impact that the application of
the standard will have on the Group’s financial statements. it remains too early to fully determine the impact on the Group's financial
statements as this will be Influenced by the composition of the lease portfolio and the relevant discount rates at the date of adoption.
Detalls of future commitments under the Group's current operating leases are set out in Note 35, Beyond the information above, it Is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 16 until 2 detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments continuad
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Early adoption of IFRS 15

The Group deckied to early adopt IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, with a date of Initial application of 1 April 2017. As
a result, the Group has changed its scoounting policies and updated its intemal processes and controls relating to revenue recognition.
The Group has applied #FRS 15 using the cunmulative effect method - i.e. by recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS
15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017, calculated only for those contracts that were not compileted as at

1 April 2017. Therefore, the comparative Information has not been restated and continues 1o be reported under 1AS 18 ‘Revenue’ and
I1AS 11 ‘Construction contracts’,

iFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to ail sales contracts as outined below. It is based on the transfer
of control of goods and servioes to customers and reptaces the separate modets for goods, services and construction contracts.

Sdentify the contractis) with a customer

identify the parformance obligations in the contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations In the contract

Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

Setombebwismemnemmmmmuammmmmrwmlmmdmmmm

Revenue recognition policy under IFRS 15
The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexity across its service lines so accordingly, a range of methods are
used for the recognition of revenue based on the principles set out in IFRS 15. Revenue represents Income recognised in respect of

services provided during the pericd based on the delivery of performance obligations and an assessment of when control is transfermed
{o the custorner.

Step 1 - identify the contract{s) with a customer

For all contracts with customers, the Group determines If the arangement creates enforceable rights and obfigations. This assessment
results n certaln Framework arfangements or Master Service Agreements {MSAs) not meeting the definttion of a contract under

IFRS 15 unless & specifies the minimum guantities to be ordered. Usually the wark order and any change orders together with the
Framework or MSA will constitute the IFRS 15 contract.

e
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Duration of contract

The Group frequently enters ko contracts with customers which contain extension periods at the end of the initial term, automatic
annual renewals, and/or termination for convenience and break clauses that could impact the actual duration of the contract. As the
term of the cantract impacts the period over which amortisation of contract assets and revenue from performance obligations may be
recognised, the Group applies judgement to assess the impact that such ciauses have in determining the relevant contract term. In
forming this jJudgement, management considers certain influencing factors including the amount of discount provided, the presence of
significant termination penalties in the contract, and the relationship, experience and performance of contract delivery with the
customer and/or the wider Industry, Iin understanding the likelihood of extension or termination of the contract.

Contract modifications
TheGrDup‘smﬂmamﬁequmﬂvamndedbrwmwsm«mummmduscwm“d variations. A contract
modification takes place when the amendment creates new enforceable rights and obligations or changes the existing price or scope
(o both} of the contract, and the modification has been approved. Contract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral
agreement, or imphied by customary business practices.

If the parties to the contract have not approved a contract modification, revenue ks recognised in accordance with the exsting
contractual terms. If a change in scope has been approved but the corresponding change in price is still being negotiated, the Group
estimates the change to the total transaction price.

Contract modifications are accounted for as a separate contract If the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct goods or
services and the change in contract prioe refiects the standaione seliing price of the distinct good of service. The facts and
circumstances of any modification are consjdered in isolation as these are specific to each contract and may resukt in different
acoounting outcomes.

Step 2 - identify the pesformance obligations in the contract

Performmance obligations are the contractual promises by the Group to transfer distinct goods or services to a customer. For

arrangements with multiple components to be delivered to customers such as in the Group’s Integrated fadiities management

contracts, the Group applies judgement o consider whether those promised goods and services are:

I.  Distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations;

li. Combined with other promised goods or services until a bundie is identified that is distinct; or

. Pﬂ'tdaseﬂuofdb‘liﬂaoodsaﬂdawlo&sthataresuhshnthﬂvﬂnsameandhmtl'lesamepattemdfmnsfermrﬂmel.e.
where the customer is deemed to have simuttaneously received and consumed the benefits of the goods or services over the life
of the contract, the Group treats the series as a single performance obligation.

Step 3 ~ Determine the transaction price
Ateommuinmpuon,mwulmrmcuonpﬂoelsdemnnlned,belmdeamumwumthmsmupmmheenuﬂedandhas
rights under the current contract. This includes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any varizble consideration,
up or down, resuiting from e.g. discounts, rebatas, service penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the
expected value method and is only recognised to the extent it Is highly probable that a subsequent change in its estimate would not
resuk in a significant revenue reversal.
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Notes to the consolikiated finandal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Step 4 — Allocate the transaction price to the performance abligations in the contract

The Group allocates the total transaction prios to the identified performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone sefling
prices. This is predominantly based on an observable price or a cost plus Margin alvangemant.

Step S — Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

For each performance obiigation, the Group determnes if revence will be recognised over ime or at a poirt in time. Where revenue is
recognised over time, the Group applies the relevant output or input revenue recognition method for measuring progress that
faithfully depicts the Group's performance in transferring control of the goods and services to the customer.

Certain long-term cantracts use output methods based upon surveys of performance completed, appraisals of results achleved, or
milestones raached which aliow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of
the goods and services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods and services under the contract,

Under the input method, measured progress and revanue are necognised in dinect proportion to costs incurmed whene the transfer of
comtrol is most closely aligned to the Group's efforts in delivering the service,

Where deemed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expedient within [FRS1S, aliowing revenue to be recognised at the
amaunt which the Group has the right to invoice, where that amount corresponds directly with the vakue to the customer of the
Group's performance completed to date.

if performance obligations do not meet the criteria to recognise revenue over time, revenue is recognised at the point in time when
control of the good or service passes to the customer. This may be at the point of physical delivery of goods and acceptance by a
customer or when the customer ohtains control of an asset or service in a contract with customer-spedified acceptance criteria.

Long-term complex contracts

The Group has a number of long-term complex contracts which are predaminantly integrated facilities management amangements.
Typically, these contracts Invoive the provision of multiple service lines, with a single management team providing an Integrated
sesvioa. Such contracts tend to be transformational in nature where the business works with the clent to identify and implement cost
saving initiatives across the life of the contract.

The Group considers the majority of services provided within integrated facilities ranagement contracts meet the definition of a serfes
of distinct goads and services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time, The series constitutes
services provided In distinct time Increments (e.g. monthly or quarterly) and therefore the Group treats the serles of such services as
one performance cbligation,

The Growp atso delivers major project-based services under fong-term complex contracts that include performance abiligations under
which revenue Is recognised over time as value from the service Is transferred to the customer. This may be where the Group has a
Jegally enforoeable right to remuneration for the work completed to date, or 2t milestone periods, and therefore revenue will be
recognised in line with the associated transfer of control or milestone dates.

Repeat service-based contracts (single and bundied contracts}

‘Yhe Group operates a number of single or joint-service line arrangements whiere repeat services meet the definition of a series of
distinct services that are substantially the same (e.g. the provision of cleaning, security, catering, waste, and landscaping services), They
have the same pattern of transfer of vakue to the customer as the series constitutes core services provided in distinct time increments
{e.g. monthly or quarterly). The Group therefore treats the series of such services as one performance obligation.

Short-temm service-based amangements

The Group delivers a range of other short-term service based performance obligations and professional services work across certaln
reporting segments for which revenua is recognised at the point in time when control of the service has transferred to the customer.
This may be at the point when the customer obtains control of the service in & contract with customer-specdified acoeptance criteria

e.g. the delivery of a strategic operating model or report.

Sales of goods are recoghised when goods are delivered and control has passed to the customer,

Other revenue

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
canying amount.
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1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Contract assets

Pre-controct costs

The Group incurs pre-contract expenses (e.g. lagal costs) when It s expected to enter into a new contract. The Incremental costs to
obtain a contract with a customer are recognised within contract assets ¥ it is expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to
obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardiess of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the
period.

Contract fulfilment costs

Costs incurred to ensure that the project or programme has appropriate organisational, operational and technical infrastructures, and
mechanisms in place to enable the delivery of full servioes under the contract target operating model, are defined as contract
fulfitment costs. Only costs which meet all three of the criteria beiow are included within contract assets on the balance sheet:

i.  the costs directly relate to the contract {e.g. direct labour, materials, sub-contrators);
fi. the Group is bullding an asset that belongs to the customer that will subsequently be used to deliver contract outcomes; and
HL the costs are expected to be recoverable Le. the contract ks expected to be profitable after amortising the capitaiised costs.

Contract fulfiiment costs covered within the scope of another accounting standand, such as inventories, intangible assets, or property,
plant and equipment are not capitalised as contract fulfiiment assets but are treated according to the other standard.
Amortisation and impairment of contract assets

The Group amortises contract assets (pre-contract costs and contract fulfiiment costs) on a systematic basis that Is consistent with the
entity’s transfer of the related goods or services to the customer. The expense is recognised in profit or loss in the period.

A capitalised pre-contract cost or contract fulfilment cost is derecognised either when it is disposed of or when no further economic
benefits are expectad to flow from its use or disposal.

The Group is required to determine the recoverabllity of contract related assets at each reporting date. An impairment exists if the
carrying amount of any asset exceeds the amount of consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the
assoclated goods and services, less the remaining costs that refate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevant
contract. In determining the estimated amount of consideration, the Group uses the same principles as it does to determine the
contract transaction price which includes estimates around variable consideration. An impaimment Is recognised immediately where
such losses are forecast.

Accrued income and deferred income

The Group's customer contracts inchide a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term
contracts under which it recelvas payments throughout the term of the arangement. Payments for goods and services transferred at a
point in time may be at the delvery date, in arrears or part payment in advance.

Where revenue recognised at the period end date is more than amounts invoiced, the Group records accrued income for the
difference. Where revenue recogrised at the period end date ks less than amounts involced, the Group recognises deferred income for
the difference.

Certain arrangements with customers include a contractual obligation to make redundandes for which the Group Is reimbursed for the
costs incurred. Revenue is not recognised on these transactions. iastead, the Group expenses all redundancy costs in the period they
are Incurred and any relmbursement credit is matched against the associated cost included in the Income statervent up to the value of
the redundancy cost Incurred. Any cash payments received from the customer in excess of the relmbursement cost of redundancy are
deferred over the contract term and unwound in line with the other services being delivered.

Where price step-downs are required in a contract and output Is not decreasing, revenue is deferred from inkial years to subsequent
years In order for revenue to be recognised on a consistent basis.

Providing the option for 2 customer to chtaln extension periods or other services at a significant discount may lead to a separate
performanca obligation where a material right exists. Where this is the case, the Group allocates part of the transaction price from the
original contract to deferred income which is then amortised over the discounted extension period or recognised immediately when
the extension right expires.

The following disclosures show the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group’s primary financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated finandial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant acoounting policies continued

Consolidated balance shest RS 15 achustments £m. u;n-n
As at 31 March 2018 » adoptionof  Regtated

reported RIS 2007

#m A 8 C [*] E F G £m £

Non-current assets
Goodwill 309.6 - - - - - - - 3096 3439
Other intangible assets 383 - - - 10 - - - 39.3 53.2
Property, plant and equipment 336 - - - 02 - - - 338 323
Interest in joint ventures and associates 08 - - - - - - - o3 8.6
Derivative financial nstruments 6.1 - - - - - - - 61 -
Trade and other racaivables - 182 86 - - - - - 268 503
Contract assets 18 - - - {18 - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 36.7 - - - - - - {190 17.7 2.2
Total non-current assets 4269 182 8.6 -  [0.6) - - (190) 4343 5025
Current sasets
Inventories 69 - - - - - - - 69 68
Trade and other receivables 3860 200 119 (0.2) - 311 - — 4488 3956
Contract assets 04 - - - (0.4) - - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - - - 358
Curment tax assets 6.3 - - - - - - {2.8) 35 121
Cash and cash equivaients 59.8 - - - - - = - 598 1291
Total current assets 4594 200 119 [0.2) (04) 311 - (28 5190 5794
Total assets 8863 382 205 (0.2) (1.0) 311 - {218) 9531 11,0819
Curvent isbiities
Trade and other payables {496.8) ([0.7) - (38.0) - - 07 —~  {53A8) (574.5)
Deferred income (46.2) - - 462 - - - - - -
Financing liabllities {0.8) - - - - - - - {081 (3108)
Provisions {25.2} - - - - - - - {25.2) (204}
Total current Rabliities {565.0) (0.7 - 82 - - 0.7 ~  [S60.8) {905.7)
Net carrertt Rabliities {1096} 193 119 80 (04) 311 07 (28) (408) (3263)
Non-current Rabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - - - - - - {(3.4)
Deferred income {18.8) - - 188 - - - - - -
Financing liabilivies {258.6) - - - - - - - (2588 (13}
Provisions (6-3) - - - - - - - {63} (6.4}
Retirement benefit habilities {56.8) - - - - - - - {568} (742}
Deferred tax Rabllities {0.8) - - - - - ~ — {o.8) {1.1)
Total non-current labilities {341.3) - - 188 - - - - {3225) (864}
Total Kabiities 3103) (0.7) - 270 - - 0.7 - (883.3) (992.1)
Nat [lsbilities)/assets 2400 375 205 268 (1.0} 311 0.7 (218) (2] 89.8
Notes:

athod. Undes this method, the comp k ts not

1. The Group has spplied IFRS 15 using the cumulativa effect
74 el bl

2 The Group has d 201
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Consolidated income statement RS 15 adjustments £m Salances
For the year ended 31 March 2018 ™ m Restated
reported of IFRS 15 20172
£m A 8 C D E F G &m Em
Continuing operations
Revenue 2,203.7 (76) 06 (31) - &1 (06) - 21991 21234
Cost of sales {1,894.8) - (86) ©5 10 05 @©.2 ~ [1,906.6) (1.893.6)
Administrative expenses (220.1) - 36 03 - - - - (62 (236.7)
Share of profit of joint venture
and associates 08 - - - - = = - 08 0.6
Operating profit/{loss) before other items ~ 89.6 (76) (44) (33) (10} 46 (08) - 771 (6.3)
Other hems {97.9) (5.1} - - - - - — {103.0) {366)
Operating profit/(loss) after other tems (83) (127} (44} (33) (10} 46 (0.8) -  (259) (429)
Net finance costs (16.4) - - - - - - - (164) (153)
Tax {1.3) - - - - - -~ 32 19 74
Total from continuing operstions (260) (1270 (a4) (33) (1.0) 46 (0.B) 32 (404) (50.8)
Total from discontinued operations - - - - - - - = -  {1324)
Loss for the year (260) (127) (44) {(33) (1.0) 46 (08) 32 (404) (183.2)
Naotes:

1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comperative information is not restated.
2 The Grougr has restated 2017 income statement snd bafance sheet as per Mote 1, page 134

The following table detalls the impact on net assets as at 1 April 2017 and on the revenue and loss for the year recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2018, as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15:

Loss for the

Net assets Revenue yoor

£m £m m

Balances without adoption of IFRS 15 898 2,199.1 (40.4)
IFRS 15 adjustments:

A—POC accounting {50.2} 76 12.7

B — Mobilisation assets (24.9) (0.6} 44

C - Design and development and other upfront fees {30.2) 31 a3

D —Contract assets - - 1.0

E—Work in progress {26.5) (6.1) (4.6

F — Contracted discounts including extension discounts {1.5) 06 0.8

G-Tax 25.0 - 3.2)

As reported total (18.4) 2,203.7 {26.0)

Adjustment A — POC accounting

IFRS 15 Introduces the concept of performance obligations which are the contractual promises by an entity to transfer goods or
services to a customer, Under RS 15, revenue Is recognised on a contract specific basis and in line with the satisfaction of
performance obligations. This i & change from the Group’s previous accounting policy and the use of a percentage of completion
model to measure the proportion of contract costs incumed for work performed to date compared to the total estimated contract
costs. Percentage of completion accounting does not provide an appropriate representation of the satisfaction of performance
obligations on these long-term complex contracts and consequently, is no longer applied.

The Impact of this is a decrease in reserves of £50.2m to derecognise the percentage of completion asset held as accrued income on
fong-term complex contracts at 1 Aprt 2017 and a £12.7m credit to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 comprising £7.6m to
reverse the unwind of the asset movement, and £5.1m to reverse a percentage of completion asset write-off Included within other

items. The reversal of the asset write-off follows the net impact of a write-off of £6.6m in relation to the loss of two contracts which
was offset by a £1.5m credit 1o reinstate a previously written off asset. These balances, which were presented in Other ttems, would
not have been recognised under IFRS 15 as percentage of completion accounting would not have been applied.
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statements continued
For the year ercied 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Adjustment 8 — Mobllisation assets

IFRS 15 specifies that certain costs to fulfil a cantract are to be capitalised as contract assets if relevant criveria are met. The Group has
determined that the existing mobilisation asset, whilst appropriate under the previous accounting standard, does not meet the more
stringent criteria under IFRS 15.

The Group has therefore derecognised the asset (inchsding £3.9m recognised in prepayments within trade and other recaivables) as at
1 April 2017 leading to a decrease in reserves of £24.9m.

The adjustment to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a credit of £4.4m to reverse additions and write back amortisation on
the mobifisation balance written off.

Adjustment C —Design and development and other upfront fees

On certain contracts, the Group receives upfront, non-refundable payments from the customer to cover significant costs incurred by
the Group during the initial phase of the contract. Under IFRS 15, costs incurred from these transition and mobilisation activities, which
are more than administrative in nature, are assessed to determine whether they form a separate performance obligation. Where such
costs do not form a separata performance ohifigation under the contrack, any upfront payments receivad from the customer are
aliccated to the performance obligations of the contract, defermed and recognised over the life of the other services.

The Group has determined that £30,1m of revenue previously recognised should be presented as tdeferred Income at 1 April 2017
leading to a decrease in reserves by the same amount, The adjustment to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a £3.3m credit
following the rephasing of upfront payments.

Foliowing the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group has presentad deferred income fram contracts with customers separately on the batance
sheet, The balance of pre-IFRS 15 current deferred Income amounting to £46.2m has been reclassified as a result.

Adjustment D — Contract assets

IFRS 15 specifies that certain costs to fulfil a contract are to be capitalised as contract assets if relevant criteria are met. The Group
capitaliised a balance of £1.2m during the year ended 31 March 2018 (comprising £1.0m and £0.2m that woukl otherwise have been
recorded in other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment respectively) that related to resources to allow it to deliver
services under its contracts for which control had passed to the customer on instaliation. This amount has been recognised on the
balance sheet as an addition to contract assets under IFRS 15.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group capitalised costs of £1.0m that were previously expensed and which relate to assets
10 be used to deliver future contract ottcomes.

Adjustment E - Work in progress

Under IFRS 15, reverwe is only recognised when control has passed 1o a customer and it can be reliably measured. income which was
previously recognised under [AS 11 and 1AS 18 has baen remeasured against the more stringent criteria in (FRS 15, resulting in an
amaunt being derecognised where it cannot be reliably measured.

The Group has therefore derecognised the asset held on balance sheet within accrued income leading to a reduction in reserves of
£26.5m at 1 April 2017. The impact to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a debit of £4.6m.

Adjustment F — Contracted discounts including extension discounts

‘Where a contract provides the option for a customer to obtain an extension périod at a significant discount, this may lead to a separste
performance obligation where a material right exists. If a separate performance obligation exists then there would be an alocation of
the transaction price from the original contract through the option pariod. A balance is therefore adjusted in reserves and recognised
in defermed income with the unwind necognised over the extension period {or immediately if the option expines).

The Group has recorded a reduction of £1.5m in reserves at 1 April 2017 to reflect the material right with the balance recognised in
defarred income, which will be unwound as future services are delivered. The impact to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018is a
credit of £0.Bm.

Adjustment G —Tax

Due to the changes in the pattern and timing of revenue recognition under IFRS 15, an additional deferved income Hability is
recognised on the balance sheet from 1 April 2017, via a charge to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017. Further, certain assats
previously held in accrued income and recognised through the Income staterment in earlier periods have been derecognised from

1 April 2017, again via a charge to the opening balanoe of equity at 1 April 2017,

A tax deduction is available at 1 April 2017 for the one-off transitional adjustments recognised in opening equity. This tax deduction
gives rise to tax losses at 1 April 2017, creating a deductible temporary difference for which a deferred tax asset of £25.0m is
recognised at 1 April 2017, leading 10 an Increase In reserves by the same amount. The tax impact of the WFRS 15 adjustments on the
Joss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a charge of £3.2m, of which £1.0m arises on the adjustment to other items.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

b) Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s IFRS financlal infformation are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial state ments comprise the financial statements of Mitie Group plc and all its subsidiaries, The parent
company has applied FRS 101 ‘Reduced disclosure framework’ in the preparation of its individual financial statements. FRS 101 applies
IFRS as adopted by the European Union with certain disclosure exemptions.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control Is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from
the date on which control ks transfemed out of the Group. The results, assets and kabilities of joint ventures and associates are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial staternents of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to bring the accounting policies usad into line with those used by the Group,

All inter-company balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from inter-group transactions, have been eliminated
in full.

Imerests of non-controlling interest shareholders are measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets and labilities recognised. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
acocounted for within sharehalders’ equity. No gain or loss Is recognised on such transactions and goodwill is not re-measured. Any
difference between the change in the non-controlling interest and the fair value of the consideration paid or recelved is recognised
directly In equity and attributed to the equity hokders of the parent.

Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance
The financial statements contain all the information and disciosures required by the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
obligations that apply to the Group.

In the financlal statements the Group has elected to provide some further disclosures and performance measures, reported as ‘before
other itemy’, in order to present its financial results in 2 way that demonstrates the performance of continuing operations excluding
the results from restructuring and acquisition related costs, and the atmortisation or write-off of acquired intangible assats and
goodwill. Results before other lbems is 8 non-statutory measure.

‘Other items’ are defined as iberns of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material or unusual in nature or
of such significance that they require separate disclosure on the face of the income statement in accordance with 1AS 1 ‘Presentation
of financial staternents’. Should these Tems be reversed disdosure of this would also be as other items.

Separate presentation of these items Is Intended to enhance understanding of the financlal performance of the Group in the period
and the extent to which results ane influenced by material unusual and/or non-recurring itermns.

Further detall of other tems is set out In Note 4 to the financial statements.

In addition, following the guidelines on Akernative Performance Measures (APMs) sued by the European Sacurities and Markets
Authorities (ESMA), the Group has included an APM appendix to the financial statements on pages 204 and 205. These APMs are
measures which disclose the adjusted performance of the Group without the adoption of RS 15 and excluding specific tems which
are regarded as non-reanTing. The Directors believe that these are useful for users of the financial statements in helping to provide a
balancad view of, and relevamt information on, the Group’s financial performance as the Group has appiled 1FRS 1S in the 2018
financial statements using the cumulative effect method through an adjustment to the opening balance of equity as at 1 April 2017
and has not restated the comparative information for the 2017 financial year. In aidition there were a number of significant
restatements recorded in the 2017 financial statements.

Foreign currency

The finandial statements of each of the Group’s businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business.
Transactions in curvencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange
prevailing at that date.

Norrmonetary iterns carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translited at the rates prevalling at the date when
the fair value was detarmined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary ftems, and on the retransiation of monetary items, are included in the
income statement for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the consolidated finandlal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

On consolidation, the assets and liabliities of the Group’s foveign operations, including goodwilt and fair vakie adjustments arising on
thelir acquisition, are translated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are
translated into steriing at average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differances arising are recognised directly in equity in the
Group's hedging and transiation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity
refating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred In connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance costs are
recognised in the income statement in the period In which they are incurred, with the finance charges relating to the direct cost of
debt Issue spread over the period to redemption using the effective interest method.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and defemred tax.

The tax currently payable Is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported In the Incore
statement because it excludes ltems of inoome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible, The Group’s kability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been anacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax i the tax expected to he payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Rabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
batance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generatly recognised for afl taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets ane recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and Rabilitles are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition {other than in a business combination} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying smount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed st each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer
probabie that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calcuiated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the Hability is settied or the asset

is realised, based upon tax rates and legisiation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, In which case
the deferned tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabiiities; or when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxstion authority and the Group intends to settie s current tax
assets and Habllities on a net basis.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries Is accounted for using the acquisition mathad. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabifities incurred or assumed, and equity Instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed. The aoquiree kientifiable assets, labiiities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-
current assats (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for resale in accordance with IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets hedd for sale and
discontinued operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and itially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, kabliities and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquired identifiable assets, lisbillties and contingent Jiabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Where applicable, the consideration for an acquisition inciudes any assets or liabikties resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, measured at fair value at the acquisition date, Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of
acquisition where they result from additional information, obtained within one yesr from the acquisition date, about facts and
circumstances that existad at the acquisition date. All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified
as an asset or lisblity are recognised in accordance with LAS 39, etther in the income staternent or a3 a change to other comprehensive
Income. Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recognised.

Any business combinations prior to 1 April 2010 were accounted for using the standards in place prior to the adoption of

IFRS 3 {revised 2008} which differ in the following respects: transaction casts dinectly attribatable to the acquisition formed part of the
acquisition costs; contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the Group had a present chiigation, the economic outflow
was more tikely than not and a refiabie estimate was determinable; and subsequent adjustments to the cantingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill,
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Changes in the Groyp's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accourrted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any differance between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the falr value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Comgpany.

When the Group kses control of a subsidiary, 2 gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is cakculated as the difference between: (i}
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and {ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in refation to that subskitary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or fiabilities of the subsidiary |.. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost Is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under [AS 39, when applicable, of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill
Goodwill arksing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's Interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and labilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill Is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. it is
reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment s recognised immediatedy in the income statement for the period and is

not subsequently reversed.

For the purpase of impairment testing, goodwill |s allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units {CGUs) expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is bess than the cantying
amount of the unit, the impalrment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwili allocated to the unit and then
1o the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camrying amount of each asset in the unit. On disposal of a subsidiary the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the cost less expected residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives and is calculated on a straight-line
basls as follows:

Freehold buildings and long leasehold property S0 years
Leasehald improvements period of the lease
Plant and vehicles 3-10 years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tanglble assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
axtent of ahy impalrment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent fram other assets, the Group
estimates the retoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of falr vatue less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing vaiue in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset {or OGU) ks estimated to be Jass than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{or OGU} Is reduced to is recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU] is increased to the revised astimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased catrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had na impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or OGU} In prior years. A reversal of 2n impairment loss is
recognised as income Immediately.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

intangible assets
Intangible assets identified in a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Customer relationships are amortisad over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate
benefits. These currently range from four to eight vears.

Software and development experxiiture is capitalised as an Intangible asset If the asset creatad can be identified, if it s probabile that
the asset created will generate future economic benefits and if the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Other acquisition related intangibles Include acquired software and technology which are amortised over their useful fves which
cyrrently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs includes internally generated intanglble assets and are
amortised over their useful fives of between five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

Following Initial recognition, the carrying amount of an intangible asset is its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment fosses. Intangible assets ave reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently when there Is an
indication that they may be impaired. Amortisation expense Is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a
straight-ine basls over its useful life.

Joint ventures and associates
The Group has an interest In joint ventures which are entities in which the Group has joint control. The Group also has an intarest in
associates which are entities in which the Group has significant influence.

The Group accounts for its interest In joint ventures and associates using the aquity method. Under the equity method the Group’s
share of the post-tax result of joint ventures and associates is reported as a single line ltem In the consolidated Income statemeant.
The Group's interest in joint ventures and associates is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of net assets,

Inventories
inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs represent materials, direct labour and overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present condition and lacation.
Net realisable value is bated on estimated selling price fess further costs expected 1o be incurred to completion and estimated selling
casts, Provision is made for obsolete, slow moving or defective items where appropriate.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financlal labilites are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group beromes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group derecognises financial assets and liabilities only when the contractual rights and
obligations are transferred, discharged or expire.

Assets that are assessed not to be individually Impaired are subsequently assessed for kmpairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables includes the Group's past experience of collecting payments, the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period as well as chservable changes in national or loca) economic conditions
that cormelate with default on receivables.

The carnrying amount of the financial asset Is reduced by the impairment foss directly with the excaption of trade receivabies where the
canying amount s reduced through the use of an allowante account. When a trade recelvable Is considered uncollectable, It is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the aliowance
sccount. Changes in the carrying amount of the aliowance acoount are recognised in the income statement,

Financial agsets comprise loans and receivables and are measured at initial recognition at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost, Appropriste atfowances for estimated imecoverable amounts are recognised where there s objective evidence that the asset s
impaired. Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes Invalve.

The Group uses 2 non-recourse customer Invoice discounting facility under which certain trade recelvable balances are scid to the
Group’s refationship banks. The trade receivables sre sold without recourse to the Group, and therefore the trade receivable balance
is derecognised.

Financial Babllities comprise trade payabies, financing llabilities, bank and other bommowings, and deferred contingent consideration.
These are measured at Indtial recognition at fair value and subsequently at smortised cost with the exception of derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value, and deferred contingent consideration which s measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the likely future obligation. Bank and other borrowings are stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of
transaction costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settement or radamption and direct issue costs, are accounted for
on an accrualks basis in the income staternent.
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1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting polidies continued

included within the Group’s trade creditors balance are amounts relating to payments due 10 UK suppliers whao make use of bank
provided supply chain finance arrangements to allow supplier early payment. Amounts are settied in accordance with each suppliers’
normal payments terms and payments continue to be classified within cash generated by operations. The Group does not receive any
additional guarantees and doss not pay any interest in relation to these amounts.

Equity Instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge acoounting

The Group uses detivative financial instrurnents, including cross-curmency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchangs contracts,
to manage the Group's exposure to financial risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange. Derivative financlat instruments
are inltially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their

fair value, determined by reference to market rates, at cach balance sheet date and included as financial assets or kabilities as
appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement immediataty uniess the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of

the hedge refationship,

The Group may designate certain hedging instruments induding derivatives as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of
netinvestments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitrnents are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the reiationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
itam, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on 2n ongoing basls, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that Is used in 2 hedging
refationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged ltem.

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the
fair value of the hedging instrument and the change In the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the ine of the
income statement relating to the hedged item, Hedge accounting ks discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship,
the hedging instrument expires or Is soid, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment
to the carrying amount of the hadged Item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to the income statement from that date.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributabie to a particular
risk associated with elther a recognised asset or lability or a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changas in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated In
equity within the Group’s transiation and hedging reserve. The gain or loss refating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the income statement.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in
the periods when the hedged hrem Is recognised In the Income statement, in tha same line as the recognised hedged item. However,
when the forecast transaction that Is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financlal asset or a non-financial liability, the gains
and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included In the initial measurement of the cost of the
non-financial asset or non-financial llabifity. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the
hedging Instrument expires or is sokd, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge acoounting. Any gain or loss recognised
in other comprehensive income at that time ks accumulated In equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the Income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occour, the gain or loss accumulated In
equity is recognised immediately In the incomne statement.

The exceptional, everydoy | www.mitie.com 147



Notes to the consolidated financial stataments continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant acoounting policies continued

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges are dassified as net Investment hedges when they hedge the forelgn curmency exposure to changes in the Group’s share in the net
assets of a foreign operation. Hedges of net investments in forelgn operations are accountad for simiarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain
or loss on the hedging Instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and
ancumuiated In the Group’s transtation and hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion Is recognised immediately
in the income statement. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in equity
ave reclassified to the Income statement In the same way as exchangs differences relating to the forelgn operation as described above.

Leasing

Finance leages, which transfer to the Group substantially al the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the falr value of the leased item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments sre apportioned between the finance charges and reduttion of the lease lability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Jlabllity, Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated Iife of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases, Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Any lease incentives are amortised on a straight-fine basls over the non-cancellable period for which the Group has contracted to lease
the assat, together with any further terms for which the Group has the option to continue to lease the asset i, at the inception of the
lease, it Is Judged to be reaspnably certain that the Group will exercise the option.

Provisions

Provisions are recognisad when the Group has & presant obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settie the obligation and & refiable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
Insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presentad in the Income staterment net of any reimbursement. if the effect of the time value of
money ks material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Gability. Where discounting Is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of ime Is recognised as a borrowing cost.

Onerous contract provisions (OCPs) arise when the unavoldable costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed the remuneration
expected to be received. Unavoidable costs include total contract costs together with a rational allocation of shared costs that can
bedirectly linked to fulfilling contractual obiigations which have been systematically aliocated to OCPs on the basks of key cost drivers
except where this is impracticable, where contract revenue [s used 35 a proxy to activity. The provision Is calculated as the lower of the
terrmination costs payable for an sarly exit and the expected net cost to fullfll the Group's unavoidable contract obligations. Where 2
customer has an option to extend a contract and i is likely that such an extension will be made, the expected net cost arising during
the extension period is included within the calculation. However, where a profit can be reasonably expected in the extension period,
no credit is taken on the basis that such profits are uncertaln given the potential for the customer to either not extend or offer an
extension under lower pricing terms.,

Share-based paymenmts

The Group operates a number of executive and employee share option schemnes. Equity-settied share-based payments to smployess
are measyured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value exciudes the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions, For grants of share options and awards, the fair value as at the date of grant it calculated using the Black-Scholes
model, Monte Cario modal or the share price st grant date, and the cormesponding expense is recognised on a straight-fine basis over
the vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventuslly vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expacted to vest as a result of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions. Save
As You Eam {SAYE} options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute to the scheme, resulting in an acceleration of
the remainder of the related expense. Restricted shares are issued attached with 2 condition that the relevant reciplent continues thelr
employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares If the recipient leaves
employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Own shares

Own shares relste to shares gifted to the Employee Trust by the Company. The cash cost of own shares creates an own shares reserve.
When options issued by the Employee Trust are exercised the own shares reserve is reduced and a gain or loss Is recognised in
reserves based on proceeds less weighted-average cost of shares initially purchased now exercised.

Included in the own shares reserve are restricted shares which are ssued as part of acquisitions made by the group. The restricted
shares are issued attached with a condition that the relevant recipient continues their employment with the Group for a ficed vesting
period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the reciplent leaves employment with the Group prior to completion
of the vesting period of the shares.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates & numbar of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees. Payments to the
defined contribution and stakeholder pension schames are charged as an expense as they fall due.

In addition, the Group operates and participates In a number of defined benafit schemes. In respect of the schemes in which the
Group participates, the Group accounts for its fegal and constructive obligations over the period of Its participation which is for a
fived period only.

For the defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projectad unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses on ebligations, the return on scheme assets
{excluding interest) and the effect of the asset celling (if applicable) are recognised in full in the period in which they ocour, They are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Current service cost and past service cost {induding curtaiiments) are recognised in the income statement, in either administrative
expenses or ather items, whilst the net interest cost Is recognised in finance costs.

The retirement banefit liability recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resutting from this calculation is imited to the present value of avallable refunds
and reductions in future comributions to the plan.

The Group participates in four multi-employer pension schemes. For three of these schemes the Group’s share of the assets and
liabliitles is minimal. The fourth scheme Is the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry Pension Scheme {the Plumbing Scheme)
a funded multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers,
with circa 400 remaining. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the
assets and liabllities of the scheme which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as If
they were pald to a defined contribution scheme.

For schemes where sufficent information is not available to use defined benefit accounting, no liabiiity is recognisad on the balance
sheet, however, the obligations are disclosed as contingent habilities in Note 34.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Revenue under 1AS 11 and IAS 18 in relation to prior year

Revenue represents income recognised in respect of services provided during the period (stated net of sales taxes) and is eamed
predominantly within the Unitad Kingdom. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be refiably measured, When revenue is recognised but has not yet been billed accrued income
arises. Deferred income arises when the Group has billed dients in advance of recognising revenue.

All bid costs are expensed through the Income statement up to the point where contract award or full recovery of the costs is virtually
certain. The confirmation of the preferved bidder for a contract by a dient is the point at which the award of a contract ks considered to
be virtually certain.

Revenue from a contract to provide setvices Is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet
date. Revenue from time and material contracts Is recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours and tasks are delivered and
direct expanses incurred. In other cases, the Group distinguishes between the following types of contract:

Revenue recognition: repeat service-based contracts {single and bundled contracts)

Revenue Is recognised on a stralgt-line basis unless this is not an accurate reflection of the work performed. Where a straight-ine
basis Is not appropriate, for mample if specific works on contracts represent a significant element of the whole, revenue Is recognised
based an the percentage of completion method, hased on the proportion of costs incurred at the balance sheet date relative to the
total estimated cost of completing the contracted work.

Costs incurmed, after the confirmation of preferved bidder, that are specific costs incurned to ensure that the project or programme has
appropriate organisational, operational and technical infrastructures and machanisms in place to enable the delivery of full services
under the contract target operating model ane defined as mobilisation costs. These costs are included within trade and other
receivables on the balance sheet provided that the costs relate directly to the contract, are separately identifiable, can be measured
reliably and that the future net cash inflows from the contract are estimated to be no kass than the amounts capitalised.

Such costs may be incurred when a contract s awarded, or when there is a subsequent change in the scope of contracted services. The
mobitisation costs ane amortised over the contracted period (including any contracted extension periods), generally on a straight-line
basis, or on 2 basis to reflect the profile of work to be performed over the contracted period if the straight-line basfs is not considered
to be appropriate for the specific contract to which the costs relate. If the contract becomes loss making, any unamortised costs are
written off and the expected loss is provided for immediately.

Revenoue recognition: long-term complex contracts
The Group has a number of long-term contracts for the provision of complex project-based services, predominantly integrated faclities
management contracts. Thesa are contracts which are transformational in nature and usually five years in initial duration.

In this context, transformational means that the cost to the client over the life of the contract is reduced as a result of significant
transformations in service provision. Typically, these contracts are priced to average the annual charge to the client over the contract
period and involve the provision of multiple service lines, with a single management teamn providing an integrated service.

Where the outcome of such complex project-based contracts can be measured reliably, rewenue and costs are recognised by reference
10 the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date. This is measured by the proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to date compared to the total estimated contract costs using the percentage of completion methodology.

Contract costs used to detenmine the stage of completion are recognised in the income statement as expensas in the period in which they
are incurrad and include transition costs, which ane similar in nature to mobilisation costs under repeat service-Based contracts. Transition
costs are expenses incurmed in the performance of transitioning services provided after confirmation of preferred bidder and before
commencement of full services under the contract target operating model; no profit margin is recognised for these transition costs.

Contract costs also inclute transition costs arising when there is a subsequent change in the scope of contracted services and include
budgeted cost savings. Where the outcome of a complex project-based contract cannot be estimated rellably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent that it Is probable that contract costs will be recovered. Full provision Is made for all known or anticipated
losses on each contract immediately as losses are forecast. in a number of long-term complax contracts, the achievement of certain
key parformance indicators (KPis) is a significant miestone which enables revenue to be recognisad. KPis are generally measured
contemporaneotsly with the performance of the service, rather than being measured over a long period or retrospectively.
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2. (ritical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated finandial statements under IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts recognisad for assets and Rabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses
incurred duting the reporting period. Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The judgements and estimates which have the most significant effect on the reported result for the period and upon the carrying value
of assets and Habilitles of the Group as at 31 Manch 2018 are described below,

Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies, which are set out under IFRS 15 tn Note 1(a) for the financlal year ended 31 March 2018 and
under IAS 18 and IAS 11 in Note 1(b} in respact of prior years, are ceniral to how the Group measures the work it has performed in
each financial year,

The Group'’s current policy under IFRS 15

Due 1o the size and complexity of the Group’s contracts, management is required to form 2 number of key judgements and
assumptions in the determination of the amount of revenue and profits to record, and related balance sheet items such as contract
assets, accrued income and deferred income to recognise (refer to Note 1(a)). This includes an assessment of the costs the Group
incurs to deliver the contractual commitments and whether such costs should be expensed as incurred or capitalised.

in addiition, for certain contracts, key assumptions are made:

L  concerning contract extensions and amendments which, for example, directly impact the phasing of upfront payments from
customers which are recognised in deferred income and unwound over the expected contract term; or

#. where options are granted to customers leading to the recognition of a material right.

These judgements are inherently subjactive and may cover future events such as the achlevernent of contractual performance targets
and planned cost savings or discounts.

The Group's prior year policy under IAS 18 and IAS 11

The revenue recognised for certain long-term complex project-based services was based on the stage of completion of the contract

activity. This was measured by comparing the proportion of casts incurred, which include transition costs reflecting costs incurred in
the performance of transitioning services, against the estimated whole-Jife contract costs. This required significant judgements to be
made In forecasting the outcomes of the long-term contracts.

Particular judgement was required In evaluating the operational and financial business plans for these contracts to forecast the
expected whole-life contract bilings, costs and margin and to assess the recoverability of any resulting accrued income through the Hée
of the contract. In forming the judgement around expected whole-life contract billings, account was taken of potential deductions
from and increments to revenue arising from the application of performance related measures under contracts,

This required management to apply judgements and estimates that drew on the knowiedge and experience of the Group’s project
managers and delivery teams together with the Grougp’s commercial and finance professionals. Whilst there may have been a broad
range of possible cutcomes based on the relevant circumstances of the Individuat contract, the Group had controls in place whereby all
significant contracts were reviewed on a monthly basis and reforecast quarterly.

The amounts recognised as revenue, profit and contract assets were sensitive 10 changes In assumptions, for sxample:

« Revenue measurement — in ine with the Group’s revenue recognition policy for long-term compilex contracts, revenue was
recognised on these contracts to the extent that the outcome of the project could be reliably measured. For long-term complex
contracts this required judgements to be made on which elements of the contract could be accurately forecast. These contracts
would usuafly comprise fixed revenue straams, variable works and project works. Project works were not included as part of a long-
term complex contract on the basis that these amounts were discretionary and consequently could not be reliably forecast.
Therefore, these projects were accounted for separately, The revenue streams that could be reliably forecast comprised the foed
elements {for example for ongoing cleaning and security services) and variable works,

= Contract profitability and costs to compiete — long-term complex contracts are transformational in nature ard there s 2
commitment to work in partnership with the diant from the outset of the contract to drive significant cost savings and efficiencies
throughout the fife of the contract. During the mohilisation of a contract a target operating model is developed. This target
operating model shows how the services that are part of the contract will be delivered during the contract and Is subjectto a
continuous review/improvement process throughout the duration of the contract. The target opersting model, cast saving
initiatives identified and revenue pipeline were combined into a financiad plan for the individual contract. Only cost saving initiatives
that were considered to be reasonably certain in terms of timing and scale were included in the ptan. Management’s abifity to
accurately forecast the costs to complete the contract involved judgements around cost savings to be achleved over time,
anticipated profitability of the contract, as well as contract specific performance KPis, Where a contract was anticipated to make a
loss, these judgements were also relevant in determining whether or not an onerous contract provision was required and how this
was to be measured.
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Notas to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

= Renegotiation of terms — the Group often entered Into renegotiations of existing contract terms such as the timing or the
specifications of the services to be defivered. Depending on the outcome of such negotiations, the timing and amount of revenue
recognised may have been different.

« Recoverability of contract related assets — linked to the profitabliity of contracts above, management was also required to determine
the recoverability of contract related assets, aconed Income and accounts receivable. Judgement was required in determining
whether or not the future economic benefits from contracts were sufficient to recover these contract assets.

Profit before other items

“‘Other items” are itens of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identifled on the face of the income
statament to assist In understanding the underlying financial parformance achieved by the Group. Determining whether an item
should be classified as other lterns requires judgement as to whether an item 1s or is not part of the undertying performance of

the Group.

Other items after tax of £87.2m {2017: £153.5m) were changed to the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2018.

An analysis of the amounts induded in other items is detalled in Note 4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
tmpairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units (CGUs) to which the
goodwill has been aliotated. The vatue in use calcutation Involves an estimation of the future cash flows of OGUs and also the selection
of appropriste discount rates to calculate the present values of those cash fiows.

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 March 2013 was £309.6m (2017: £343.9mj; see Note 13, A sensitivity analysis has been performed
and the Board has concluded, with the exception of the Property Management CGU, that no reasonably foreseeable change in the key
assumptions wotiid result In an impairment of the goodwill.

Due to a deterioration in market conditions which is expectad to impact the performance of the Praperty Management CGU further
sensitivity testing was performad. On the basis of this review the Board concluded that a further impairment of £34.6m was required
and this has been recorded during the year as outiined in Note 13. The impacts of changes in key assumptions underpinning the
sssessment of the carrying value of the Property Management goodwill are set out in Note 13.

Recoverabliity of aged debtors and accrued income

The Group has material amounts of billed and unbiled work outstanding at year end as outitned in Nate 17, Where balances become
aged or subject to dispute the risk of recoverability increases. As a consequence there is significant management Judgement involved
In assessing the recoverabiity of these balances which Involves consideration of Group contractual rights, work performed as well

as the status of ongolng commercial negotiations. In the current year the Group has recognised a valuation allowance of £17.3m
(2017: £16.2m} In respect of aged and disputed balances.

Provisions and contingent Habilites

The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and clalms that are in the ordinary course of
business. Judgerments are required in order to assess whether these legal proceedings and daims are probable and the Hability can be
reasonably estimated, resulting in a provision or, atemnatively, whether the Rems meet the definktion of contingent liabiities.

Provisions ave Rabllities of uncertain timing or amount and therefore in making a reliabie estimate of the quantum and tming of
liabilities judgement Is applied and re-evaluated at each reporting date. The Group recognised provisions at 31 Manch 2018 of £31.5m
{2017: £26.8m). Further details are included in Note 28.

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations
The net pension Bability at 31 March 2018 was £56.8m {2017: £74.2m).

The measurement of defined henefit obligations requires judgement. It is dependent on material key assumptions including
discount rates, life expectancy rates, and huture contribution rates. see Note 37 for furthar detall and a sensitivity analysis for the
key assumptions.

The Group also participates in four multi-empicyer defined benefit pension schemes, Including the Plumbing & Mechanical Services
{UK} Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). The Group has a potential exposure to Section 75 employer detxs In respect of
the Plumbing Scheme, Due to the Inherent uncertainty regarding the amount of any Bability this has been disclosed as a contingent
liability, see Mote 34 and Note 37.
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3. Business segment information

The Group manages its business on 2 service division basis. At 31 March 2018, the Group has the following seven strategic divisions
which are its reportable sagments and the information, as reported, Is consistent with information presented to the Board. Revenue,
operating profit before other items and operating profit margin before other items are the primary measures of performance that are
reported to and reviewed by the Board, who s the Group's chief operating decision maker.

The Information presented for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated to reflect changes in management reporting,
implemented in 2018, of certain business unit activities transferring between Engineering Services, Security, Prafessional Services and
Cleaning & Environmental Services and the splitting of Public Services into Care & Custody and Property Management.

Restated
2018 20074
Oparsting Opersting
profit/fom) Opaeating profit/liass) Operating
bufore  margin bafore beforecther  mangin bedore
Revarus otheriems®  cther leww® Reverue Wemy other hams?
Em £m » £rn £m x
Engineering Services 340.7 458 54 789.1 (8.5) {0.6)
Security 432.0 Py A3 64 403.7 178 44
Professional Services 90.2 6.5 2.2 96.6 6.7 69
Cleaning & Environmental Services 4064 215 53 3956 65 16
Care & Custody 59.9 19 3.2 464 22 4.7
Catering 137.1 56 41 134.3 4.7 35
Praperty Management 237A 73 31 2577 {4.5) {2.7)
Corporate centre - {26.5) - - {35.2) -
Total from continuing operations 22037 89.6 41 2,1234 6.3} {0.3)
Healthcare - - - 59.2 {12.0) {20.3)
Total from discontinuad operations - - - 59.2 {12.0) {20.3)
Total 2,203.7 9.6 4.1 2,182.6 {18.3) {0.8}
Notes:
1. The Group has appiied IFRS 15 using the cumuiative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information i not restated. See Note 1.
2. Other liems are &5 described in Note 4.
3. Nosingle austomer acoounted for more than 10% of external revenue in 2018 oF 2017,
4. The Group has restated 2017 Income statarment and balance sheet as per Note 1, page 134.
A reconciliation of segment operating profit/(loss) before other items to total loss before tax is provided below:
a9 2007
m £m
Operating profit/(loss) before other items 89.6 {63)
Other lterns? (97.9) {36.6}
Net finance costs {164) {153}
Total from contivuing operations {24.7) (58.2)
Operating loss before cther kems - (12.0)
Other items? - 11232
Total from discontinued operations - (135.2)
Loes bafore tax {24.7) (193.4)
Notes:
1 The Group has appiied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Uinder this method, the comparative information is not rastated. See Note 1.

2. Othes tems are as described in Note 4.

IFRS B requires that a measure of segment assats should ba disclosed only If that amount k& rogularly provided to the chicf operating
decision maker and consequently no segment assets are disclosed.
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Notes to the consolidated finandial statements continued
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3. Business sagment information continued

Geographical segments

Restated
s 2007

Opurnting.
profit Opersting (o) Operating
before mangin belove before other mang before
Revenus other Rura® athes e Reverue Harre? other lerrs?
[ £m % £m £m *
Unlted Kingdom 2,093.7 9.3 43 20152 (4.8} {62}
Other countries 1100 03 0.3 108.2 {1.5) (1.4}
Continuing operations 2,203.7 9.6 41 21234 (6.3} {0.3)
United Kingdom - - - 592 {12.0} {20.3}
Other countries - - - = - -
Discontinued operations - - - 59.2 {12.0} {20.3)
Total 2,200.7 296 4.0 21826 {18.3) {0.8)

Notes:

1. The Group hes spplied IFRS 15 wsing the: cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparsdve information s not restated. See Note 1,
2. Other itens ane as described in Note 4.

Disaggregated revenue

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by sector (government and non-govemment) and by contract
duration {contracts with a duration from Inception of less than two years, and contracts with a duration from inception of more than
two years). The Group belleves this best depicts how the nature, timing and amount of revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors. The following table includes a reconcifiation of disaggregated revenuse with the Group's reportable segments.

e

Sechor®  Contract cheation for iiming of revenus recagnition

Mon- Lass than dore sthan

Govemnment govermant Total 2ypers 2yamrs Toral

o fm £m m &m £m

Engineering Services 3306 510.1 8A0.7 7.6 7533 0.7
Security 89 3481 432.0 557 3763 4120
Professional Services 80 822 90.2 [ % § 4.1 902
Cleaning & Environmental Services 298 3166 406.4 - 4064 4064
Care & Custody 599 - 599 - 599 599
Catering 4.6 1325 137.1 16 1355 137.1
Property Management 1944 43.0 2374 144.2 932 Z37A
Continuing operations 2 1A32.5 2,203.7 2952 1,908.5 2,203.7

Notes:

L The Group has applied RS 15 using the cumulative eifect method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and is therefore not presensed as part of
this anaiysis. See Note 1.

2. Sector i defined by the and astomer on ary contrect e, if the Group i 3 sub-coniractor t5 8 canstruction compuny for the uiiding of s public hospital, then the comtract
would be cassified a5 government.
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3. Business segment information continued

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The table below showe the forward order book for each segment at the reporting date with the time bands of when the Group expects
10 recognise secured revenue on its contracts with customers. Secured revenue corresponds to fixed work contracted with customers
and exciudes the impact of any anticipated contract extensions, #nd new contracts with asstomers.

Tokal
Liws than More than soramed

1yuer 1year L

£m #m o

Engineering Services 3833 1,690.9 2,0642
Security 300.1 340.7 640.8
Professional Services 218 53.7 755
Cleaning & Emvironimental Services 2790 3823 6613
Care & Custody 100.8 5693 670.1
Catering 82 26.5 4.7
Property Management 107.7 2410 348.7
Total 1,200.9 3,294.4 44953

4, Other tems

Other ltems are iterns of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income
staternent to assist n understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group.

The Group separately reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programenes, acquisition and disposal costs
including the write-off and amortisation of acquisition refated intangible assets, the results of and costs associated with disposals, and
other exceptional items and their related tax effect as Other items:

ms
Accuisition & Other
Impairsent of Rasiruchure dispotsl  escaptions)
oot costs  selated costs s Totsl
Continuing operations £m £m £m £ 2m
Administrative expenses (34.6) 47.3) {8.4) (7.6} {97.9)
Other tems before tax {34.6) {47.3) (8.8} (7.5) {971.9)
Tax - 28 04 1.5 10.7
Other hams after tant {34.6) {38.5) {8.0} {6.1) (82.2)
2017
Actpisition &
impalment of Restucture: diaposal Healthcare
goodil costs  related costs dispossl Totsl
Continuing operations £m £m £m £m £m
Adrministrative expenseas {15.0) {14.9) {6.7) - {36.6)
Other ltems before tax {15.0) {14.9) (6.7} - (36.6)
Tax - 3.0 1.1 - 4.1
Other items after tax {15.0) (11.9) {5.6) - {32.5)
Discontinued operations
Other ems after tax (81.1) {0.3) (9.2) {304) {121.0)
Total (96.1) {12.2) {14.8) {30.4) {153.5)
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Notes to the consolidated financlal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

4, Other items continued

Impairment of goodwilt
Management has assessed the recoverabllity of the goodwill allocated to the Property Management CGU and has recognised an
imgainment charge of £34.6m (2017: £15.0m). See Note 13 for further detalls.

fmpairment of goodwill from discontinuad operations relates to the impainment of the remaining carrying value of goodwill for the
Healthcare OGU of £nil (2017: £81.1m).
Restructure costs

The restructure costs reiate to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Hellx transformation programme
Inchuding the ransition costs associated with the outsourcing of certain back-office transactional processes,

These costs are analysed below:

208 Continuing  Discontinued am7
Total operations opersticns Totad
£m £ im £m

Redundancy payments (including those i respect of Project Helix

transformation activities?) 4.8) 9.2) {0.3) {9.5)

Cost of change team® {5.5) {3.9) - 3.9)

Expenditure and provisions in respect of property closure® a.8) (23) {0.2) (24)

Expendtture In respect of Project Heltx transformation activities® {21.8) - - -

impairment of intangible assets® {10.4) - — -

Restructuring costs 47.3) (14.9) {0.4) {15.3)

Taxation a8 30 0.1 31

Restruchuring costs net of toation {38.5) (11.9) {0.3) {12.2)

Notes:

L Inchudes £34.7m in respect of the Project Helix transformation activithes.

2. Costs In respect of moles made redundant s a rasult of the Project Heltx transformation snd other projects to the Group's activities.

3 wal coats of Ivolved In ¥he design and esoecution of Project Helt transformation activities.

4. Coxts in respect of praperty dilapidetions, lesse termination, snd sast i Y d g deck 10 vacate cartain of the Grougr's properties =5 part of the
onmrall Project Hellx trarsforrmation.,

5. Espenditune in respact of Projact Halbx transformation projedts indudes. £0.6rm of tacrul costs in raspert of achieving the: few tanget nerrting modal, £8.7m neleted to
sl sur sk g v romhedge trarsfier oosty as part of the tsier of the tasnsasciional back-offie actvities 16 a third-puny provider s £13.0m of professionsl fess in
reapect of advice and consultancy sctivities d with the design and of the Project Helix transformation activitles.

6. impairmant of intangible sasets relate tO Systems and processes which are redundant due to the chishges 10 tha Group's Stratesy induding the outsoundng of trancacilonel
back-offioe activities. Son Noke 14.

Acquisition and disposal related costs

Acrpuisition and disposal related costs from cantinuing npemtions include the impaiment and amortisation charge for aoquisition
related imangibles £2.6m (2017: £5.5m), the charge for restricted shares issued per Note 33 of £3.4m (2017: £nif], the accrual of
contingent conskderation that ks requirad 1o be treated as remuneration Enil (2017: £0.9m), other acquisition costs £nil {2017 €0.3m),
costs of £2.2m (2017: £nil) relating to the aborted disposat of the Praperty Management business, and £0.2m (2017: £30.4m —
induded within discomtinued operations) related to the disposal of the Healthcare divison.

Acquisition retated costs from discontinued operations relate to the impairment and amortisation of acquisition related imtangibles of
£nil (2017: £9.2m).
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4, Other Items continued

Other exceptiona items
Other exceptional items are analysed below:

p T 2017

£m £m
Contract termination receipt? 20 -
Settlernent of contractual dispute? {3.3) -
Pension scheme past service costs (including curtaliments)® {19} -
Regulatory investigation® 2.3) -
IFRS 15 adoption project® {0.8) -
Property diiapidations® {L3) -
Other exceptional ltems (7.6} -
Taxation 15 -
Other exceptional items net of taxation (6.1) -
Naves:

1 mmafmmmmmn-mnmmmmmMmdmmmum.nmmnm
separately due to the size of the payments raceived and the fact that the lass of contracts of this sive is an unusual event for the Group.

2 hmd.mmﬂ.mmmmﬁcmdmm“m*huwmnmzm1.mwmmmmafm
mnuwmsxmmnumumwummmdhm.mummunmmmmmmmn
has not contributed 1 the results in either the cument or prior year, In the interim Finandial Staternents for the six months ended 30 Septernber 2017 this amcunt wes not
separgtely ditdased 85 Other tharmns within the "Loss from discontinuad operations”. Folk Ang the decision not to proceed with the disposal of the Property Management
digion the results of this activity have basn racessified as continuing aperations and consequently separste dsdosure of this smount 33 Other ikems s considered
appropriste to enable understanding of the continuing results of the Group.

3. As e result of the dosure of the Mithe Group Pic Pension Scherve to future acorual, a past service st (induding curtaiiments) of £1.9m has been inqurvedd. See Note 37 for

4, ummmdmmmmmmummmmmmuwsmmumemmw
mmuwsummfwny-mnmmummmmmmnmd-ﬂ-m
announced by the Company on 19 September 2015, the mannes of praparation and content of the Company's financial informition, pasition and results for the perod
m31mmmmmw;mwmmummmwﬁmﬂunmummmm

5. Professionsl fees andinterim steff costs of £0.8m have beeninaurred in respect of the project o adopt IFRS 15 Tevenue from contracts with customne s,

6. As pert of the retionslisation of the Group’s property portiolio a neview of the potentisl Rabilities for leasehold property diiapidetion costs has been carriad out. This review
s resulted in s one-off £1.3m charge.

Healthcare disposal

During the year endad 31 March 2017 the Group decided to withdraw from the domiciliary healthcare market and completed the sale
of the Healthcare division on 28 February 2017. See Note 5 for further details.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries

There were no disposals in the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

In the financial year ended 31 March 2017 the Boand took the decision to withdraw from the domicillary healthcare market. The sale of
the Healthcare division completad on 28 February 2017. The disposal resultad in the control of Enara Group Limited (Enara) and
Complete Care Holdings Limited {Complete Care) passing to Apposite Capital LLP (Apposite) for £2. In addition, the Group agreed to
contribute £9.5m towards the trading losses of the business and the tumaround plan which was pald in full in the financial year ended
31 March 2018. A further £0.2m was incurred in financlal year ended 31 March 2018.

The trading results of the Healthcare business were dassified as discontinued operations in the year of disposal as defined by IFRS 5
‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’.

The net assets of Healthcare at the date of disposal were as follows:

£m
Non-current assets
Other intangible assets 15
Property, plant and equipment 11
Deferred tax assats 0.4
Total non-current assets 3.0
Currant assets
Trade and other recetvables 147
Cash and cash equivalents 1.7
Total current assets 164
Total saeeets 194
Curmrent Rabilities
Trade and other payables {5.3)
Financing liab¥ities {0.1)
Current tax labWities {0.4)
Total carvent Gabliities {58)
Net assets 136
Deferred contribution payable to purchaser 95
Other costs of disposai 73
Total consideration -
Loss on disposal {304)
Net cash autflow arising on disposat:
2007
ém
Consideration on disposal -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 1.7

1.7
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5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries continued

The results of the Healthcare discontinued operations in the year ended 31 March 2017 are presented below:

w17

Revenue 59.2
Cost of sales (488}
Gross profit 104
Administrative expenses (22.4}
Operating losy before other kems (12.0)
Other itemns {1232)
Operating loss before tax {135.2)
Tax 28
Loss from discontinued operations for the year (1324}

Of the £2.8m of tax credits included in the sbove results, £2.2m relates to other items.
The effect of discontinued operations on segment results in 2017 is disclosed in Note 3,
Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 are as

follows:

2017
£m

Net cash flows from operating activities (after tax)
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

88
(04)

92}

6. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit has been arrived at after charging:

Continwting and discontinged opevations

mr

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Note 15)
Amortisation of other Intangible assets {Note 14)
impairment of goodwill {Note 13)

impalrment of acquisition related intangible assets (Note 14)
Iimpakment of other intangible assets (Note 14)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of subsidiary [Note 5)

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables (Note 17)
Wiite-downs of iwentories recognised as an expense
Impairment Jogs recognised on accrued income

Opersting lease rentals

EﬁnmllElngS’E

14.1
238
96.1
10.1
3.0
10
304
139
14
45
32.1

Nobe:

1 The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect mathod. Linder this method, the comparative Information ks not restated, See Note 1.
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Notes to the consolidsted financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

6. Operating profit/{loss) comtinued

A detailed analysis of auditor’s remuneration is provided below:

18 2017

£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audht of the Company’s annual accounts — BDO LLP L] -
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and Its associates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation — 8DO LLP 1,161 -
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts — Deloitte LLP - 40
Fees payable to the Company's suditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation — Deloitte LLP 87 1,037
Total audit fess 1,288 1,077
Other audit refated services to the Group — BDO LP 9 -
Other audit related services 1o the Group — Deloitte LLP - 70
Tax services — BDO LLP ] -
Tax services — Deloltte LLP - 85
Other services - Deloitte LLP - 15
Total non-audit fees 9 170
Total 1,387 1,247
7. Staff costs
iumber of people 018 2017
The average number of peopie employed during the financial year was:
Engineering Services 8,176 8,545
Security 14,8504 13,441
Professional Services 672 333
Cleaning 8 Environmental Services 209 24 454
Care & Custody 1,051 837
Catering 2,505 2,692
Property Management 2230 1,458
Corporate Centre 37 43
Heakhcare - 3A16
Total Group 51,666 56,279
‘The number of people employed at 31 March was:

018 m7
Total Group 48,978 52,798

08 m7
Aregue nprived £m im
Wages and salaries 1,020.7 1,068.9
Social security costs 71 822
Other pension costs 17.0 167
Share-based payments (Note 36) 12 62
Share-based payments acquisition retatad costs (Nates 4 and 36) 34 -
Total 11194 1,174.0
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7. Staff costs continued

Details of directors’ remuneration ks provided below:

2018 207

£m £m

Directors’ emoluments 21 32
Share-based payments 0.6 13
Toktal 2.7 45

None of the directors accrued benefits under the defined benefit scheme, or were2 members of the defined contribution schemes for

the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

The total amount payabile to the highest paid director in respect of emoluments was £1.1m (2017: £0.5m).

8. Investment revenue

018 2017
£m £m
Interest an bank deposits 02 -
9. Finance costs
2018 2017
Continuing operations £m £
interest on bank facilities 32 31
Interest on private placement loan notes 9.1 9.6
Bank fees 20 10
Intevest on obligations under finance leasas - 0.2
Unwinding of discounts on provisions 02 -
Loss arising on fair value hedges 0.1 0.1
Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme assets and labiities 20 13
Tokel 166 153
10. Tax
2008 w17
Contiruing and discontinued operstions £m £m
Current tax {5.6} (0.9)
Deferred tax (Note 21} 69 (9.3)
Tax charge/{credit) for the year 13 {10.2)
Continuing operations 13 (7.4)
Discontinued operations (Note 5) - {2.8)
Tax charge/{credit) for the year 13 {10.2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

10. Tax continued

Corporation tax is cakoulated at 19% (2017: 20%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year. A reconciliation of the tax charge to the
elements of lass before tax per the consolidated income statement elements is as follows:

amp 09
Safcvn Othar Before: Othey
other kems Lo Total  otherivems Ieems Towal

[¢ g and i d op £m £m £n £m £m £m
(Loss)/profit before ax 32 @09 @47 (336) (1598 (1934)
Tax at UK rate of 19% (2017: 20%) 139 (18-6) a.n [{7%)] (32.0} (38.7}
Recondling tax charges for:
Non-tax deductible charges 0s 11 16 04 03 0.7
Share-based payments {0.1) - {0.1) 08 - 0.8
Loss on disposal of business - - - - 6.1 6.1
impairment of goodwill - 6.6 6.6 - 192 19.2
Overseas tax rates {03) - {0.3) 0.1 - 0.1
Impact of change in statutory tax rates 01 0.2 03 12 0.1 13
Prior year adjustments {2.1) - {2.1) 03 = b3
Tox charge/{credit) for the year 120 {10.7) 13 {3.9) (6.3) {10.2)
Effective tax rate for the yeor 164% 10.9% {S3p 11.5% 3.9% 5.3%
Now:
1. The Sroup has applied ¥FRS 15 wsing the cunxiative effect method. Under this method, th rative infonmation s not d See Note 2.

In addition to the amounts charged to the consolidated income statement, tax relating to retirement benefit costs amounting to a
£3.4m charge {2017: £5.5m credit) has been taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income together with a £0.1m credit
relating to share-based payments and hedged items {2017 £0.3m credit).

The effective tax rate on profit before other items is generally hgher than the statutory tax rate due to entertaining costs, commercial
property depredation and slidre-based payrment chaiges 101 beling wholly tax deductille anu Lax lusses incurred overseds, Huwever,

as losses were incurred In 2018 and 2017 the effective rate is lower than the statutory tax vate due to permanent differences such as

those described above. in addition the 2018 figure was impacted by prior year adjustments, whilst the 2017 figure was impacted by a
change in tax rates.

The UK corporation tax rate reduced from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017 and will reduce to 17% from 1 April 2020, This will reduce the
Group's future current tax charge accordingiy. The UK deferred tax assets and Habilities at 31 March 2018 have been adjusted to reflect
these changes. A current tax provision ks recognised when the Group has a present abligation as a result of 2 past eventand Rt is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.

11. Dividends

yE
g

Amoutts recognised as distributions in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 of nil (2016: 6.7p) per share - 233
{nterim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 1.33p {2017: 4.0p) per share
Amounts paid in 2018 and 2017

B
g

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 2.67p (2017: nil) per shave 98 -
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12. Eamings per share

Basic and diluted eamings per share have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33 ‘Earnings per share’.

The cakculation of the basic and diluted EPS is based on the following data:

2008 mn
From condinuing operstions fm (1]
Net grofit/{loss) before ather items attributable to equity holders of the parent 60.1 {19.1)
Other items net of tax &7.2) (32.5)
Net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent {27.1) {51.6)
s M7
From tonBinuing and discontinued operations £m £m
Net profit/{loss) before other items attributable to equity hoiders of the parent 60.1 (30.5)
Other items net of tax (87.2) {153.5)
Net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent {22.1) {184.0)
018 2m7
Number of shares milion millon
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 3579 3510
Effect of dilutive potential ardinary shares: share options 19 37
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted EPS 3558 354.7
2008 017
» p
From continuing operations:
Basic eamings/(loss) before other tems per share? 168 (5.5)
Basl: loss per share {7.6) (14.7)
Diluted amings/{loss) before other items per share®? 168 (55)
Diluted loss per share (7.6} (14.7)
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic eamnings/(loss) before other items per share? 168 (8.7)
Basic loss per share (7.6) (52.4)
Diluted earnings/(loss} before ather itemns per share** 168 8.7)
Dilvted loss per share (7.6) {52.4)

Notes:

1. The Group has applied IPRS 15 using the cumulstive affact method. tinder this method, the comparstive iInformation ks not restated. See Note 1,

2 Other kawne are 35 describad it Nowe 4.

3. Prior yesy ciiuted 1033 per share has been restatad 0 eedude the effects of ant-dilutive potential ordinary chares,
The weighted sverage number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excludes thosa accounted for in the own shares reserve {see

Note 32).

The dilutive potential ordinary shares relate to instruments that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, such as
share aptions. The loss for the year means that the identified potentiatly ditutive shares are anti-dilutive for the purposes of calculating

dilluted earmings per share.
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Nates to the consolidated financis! statements continued
For the year ended 21 March 2013

13. Goodwill

£m
Cost
At 1 April 2016 4655
Change fn consideration C&C Health {0.1)
Disposal of subsidiary (107.1)
Impact of foreign exchange 06
At 1 April 2017 589
impact of foreign exchange 03
At 31 March 2018 3592
Accumulated impalrment losses
At 1 April 2016 26.0
Impairment of healthcara goodwill " 811
Impairment of property goodwilt 15.0
Disposal of subsidiary 1107.1)
At1Aprl 2017 15.0
Impainnent of property goodwil 346
At 31 March 2018 49.6
Carvying amount
At 31 March 2018 3095
At 31, March 2017 3439
Ar 1 April 2016 4395

impairment of Mitie Property Management goodwill

Taking into account the current and forecast market conditions of the Property Management business, the Group has further impaired
the Propenty Management goodwill by £34.6m in the 2018 financial year.

Further detall on the impairment, including sensitivity analysis is presented below.

Impairment of Healthcare goodwill

1n 2017 the Group undertack an impairment review of the goodwill and intangible assets assoclated with the Healthcare business. This
reassessment of the estimate of the recoverable amount of the Healthcare cash-generating unit {C5U) resulted In impairment of the
remaining carrying value of goodwill and acquisition related intangible assets for the Healthcare CGU in the 2017 financial year.
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13, Goodwill continued

Goodwill impairment testing
Goodwill acquired in a business combination Is allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination.

Goodwill has been allocated to CiGis, which align with the business segments, as this is how goodwill is monitored by the Group
internally. The goodwill allocated to the Public Services CGU, which consisted of the Property Management and Care & Custody
activities in the prior year, related only to Property Management and has been assigned as such in the table below. The Group tests
goodwill at least annually for impainment or more frequently I there are indicators that goodwill may be impaired.

A summary of the goodwill halances and the discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from each CGU are a3 follows:

PRt Post-tax distournt Goodwil Gootwil

dsoount rabe nw s 2017

% % £m £m

Englneering Services 98 8.2 1078 107.5
Security 38 82 1017 1017
Professional Services Lo 92 15.7 15.7
Cleaning & Environmental Services 98 82 331 331
Catering 104 8.7 18.7 157
Property Management 13.0 10.6 35.6 70.2
Total 309.6 3439

Key assumptions

The recoverable amounts for each CGU are detenmined by the value In use which is derived from discounted cash flow calculations.
The key assumptions for the value In use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
revenue and direct costs during the forecast period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 0GUs. The long-term growth rates are based on forecast
Inflation. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past performance and expectations of future changes in the market,
ommmh and cost base.

Growth rates and terminal values

For all 0GUs excluding Property Management the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent budgets for the
year ending 31 March 2019 which have been approved by the Board, extrapolated for four future years by an expected growth rate of
1% and a terminal value using a long-term growth assumption of 1.75%.

The assumptions for Property Management are set out below.

Discount rates

The pre-tax discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from CGUs are derived from the Company's post-tax Waighted
Average Cost of Capital, which was 7.7% at 31 March 2018 {2017: 7.3%], and is adjusted for the risks specific to the business being
assessed and the market in which the CGU operates. All CGUs have the same access to the Group's treasury functions and borrowing
lines to fund their operations.
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Notes 10 the consolidated financial statemants continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

13. Goodwill continued

Sensitivity analysis

A sergitivity analysls has been performed and the Directors have concluded that no reasonably foreseeable change In the key
assumptions would result in an impalrment of the goodwill of any of the Group’s CGUs with the exception of the Property
Management OGU which Is described below, In particular a 1% increase in the discount rate or a 1% decrease in the terminal value
growth rate would not result in any change to the Impainment conclusions in any of the CGUs.

Review of the carrying value of goodwill for the Property Management OGU

During the 2018 financial year the Group was engaged in a process to sell the Property Management CGU, by the half-year this process
was sufficiemly well advanced for the division to be reported as a discontinued operation. Subsequently, due to market conditions, this
process was terminated on 5 December 2017 and consequently the division was reclassified as a continuing operation. As noted in the
Operating neview the Property Management business has had a difficult year with market conditions, particularly in social housing,
leading to a reduction in revenue and continued pressure on operating margins.

In this context the Directors have taken a conservative approach to forecasting the future performance of Property Management, with

an assumption of no growth in revenue during the period 1o 31 March 2023, and an improvement In marging of only 25bps compared

to the budget for the year ending 31 March 2019 over the period to 31 March 2023. An improvement in market conditions is

anticipated after 31 March 2023, with growth in the terminal value perdad being in fine with inflation at 1.75%.

Having considered this scenario afongside a range of other scenarias, the Directors concluded that a further impairment of £34.6m

shoukd be made agalnst the Property Management goodwill, resulting in a2 goodwill carrying value of £35.6m at 31 March 2018.

The impalrment testing described above in respect of the Property Management OGU is dependent upon the accuracy of the

assumptions made in respect of future performance, the discount rate, and the growth during the terminal value period.

The table below shows how the impalrment test would be Impacted, all other factors being equal, by:

* an increase or decrease in the discount rate of 100bps;

= achange in market conditions such that year on year revenue growth increases or decreases by 100bps between 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2023;

= achange in projected profitability such that EBIT margin as a percentage of revenue increases ot decreases by 100bps between
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2023;

= an incraase or decrease of 100bps in the growth rate in the terminal value period.

incresse/{decrease in

Impsirment

ncrease of Decresse of

100bps 100bps

£m [

Discount rate 5.1} 6.5
Year on yesr revenue growth FY20 to FY23 17 Ly
EBIT as a percentage of revenue FY20 to FY23 44 {14.4)
Terminal vakse growth rate 4.7 3.7)
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14. Otherintangible assets

Acquisition related
Total  Softwere and
Customer scquishion  development
redstionships Other reisted  expenditure Towl
£m £m £m fm m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 88.4 109 99.3 731 1724
Additions - - - 124 124
Disposal of subsidiary - - - {29) {2.9)
Reclassifications from property, plant and equipment (Note 15) - - - i45 145
impact of foreign exchange - - - 0.2 02
At 1 April 2017 88.4 10.9 9.3 97.3 196.6
Additions - - - 9.0 90
At 31 March 2018 88.4 10.9 993 106.3 205.6
Amortizsation
At 1 Aprif 2016 66.9 92 76.1 31.7 1078
Charge for the year €4 04 68 17.0 238
impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 3.0 30
Impairment of acquisition related intangible assets 10.1 - 10.1 - 10.1
Disposal of subsidiary - - - {1L.4) (r4)
Impact of foreign exchange - - - 0.1 0.1
At 1 April 2017 a34 96 93.0 S04 1434
Charge for the year 22 04 26 109 135
impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 104 10.4
At 31 March 2018 85.6 10.0 95.6 7.7 167.3
Carvying armnount
At 31 March 2018 28 0.9 3.7 346 383
At 31 March 2017 50 13 6.3 46.9 532
At 1 Apefl 2016 21.5 17 3.2 414 64.5

Customer relationthips are amortisad over thelr useful lives based on the period of time over which they arc anticipated to generate:

benefits. These currently range from four to eight years, Other acquisition related intangibles include acquired software and

technology which are amortised over their useful lives which currently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs
are amortised over thelr useful lives of between five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

During the 2018 financlal year the Group has undertaken a reassassient of the useful economic life of software and development

expenditure related intangible assats. As a result of the establishment of 8 new centrai database and the outsourcing of finance

transactional processes, the decision was taken to impair software and development assets that will no longer be in use going forward.
An impairment of £10.4m was recognised within restructure costs In other items in the financial year (see Note 4).

Following the decision to withdraw from the domiciliary heaithcare market, the customer refationships relating to the healthcare
business were impairment tested and an impairment of £10.1m was recognised within acquisition and disposal related costs In other

items in the 2017 financial year (see Note 4).

Reclassifications from property, plant and equipment In 2017 relate to completed software and development expenditure which was

held in plant and vehides whilst being developed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

15. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Leasehold Pant and
properties Propertes vehides Torwt
£m £m £m &m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 18 188 1020 1224
Additions - 03 144 4.7
Reclassifications 1o other intangible assats (Note 14) - - (14.5} {14.5)
Disposals {0.3) (2.3} [25.3) {27.9)
Disposal of subsidiaries - {0.1) {5.3} (54)
Impact of foreign exchange - 0.1 0.2 03
At 1 April 2017 1.3 16.8 715 8.6
Additions 0.2 49 107 158
Redassifications within property, ptant and equipment - 0.2 {0.2) -
Disposals (1.2) (0.8} (24} (4.4)
Impact of fareign exthange - - - -
AR 31 March 2018 03 211 7956 1010
Accumulated depreciation and impalinment
At 1 Aprl 2006 05 98 628 7.1
Charge for the year - 15 126 141
Disposals (0.1) on {25.1) (25.9)
Disposal of subsidiaries - - {#.3) {4.3)
Impact of foreign exchange - - 03 0.3
At 1 Agnil 2017 0.4 106 46.3 573
Charge for the year - 1.7 111 128
Reclassifications within property, plant and equipment - 0.2 (0.2) -
Disposals (0.3) (0.3) 21 wn
impack of foreign exchange -~ -~ - -
At 31 March 2018 0.1 12.2 551 674
Carrying amount
Ax 31 March 2018 0.2 8.9 245 33.6
At 31 March 2017 0.9 6.2 52 23
At 1 April 2016 1.1 9.0 39.2 4.3

The net book value of plant and vehicles heid under finance leases induded above was £0.7m (2017: £2.8m).
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16. interestin joint ventures and associates

The Group has a 30% interest in an associate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a imited Kability partnership registered in the
Unied Kingdom. The Group’s interest in the associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method.

The summarised fimancial information set out below for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been taken from unaudited management
aounts of the associate.

xns w17

£m £m

Revenue 122 123
Operating profit 26 19
Group’s share of profit of associate 0.8 0.6
ma 2017

&m £m

Current assets 38 27
Current liablfities (1.2) {0.7)
Net assets 2.6 pai]
Group's share of interest n associste 08 06

During the 2018 financial year the Group received dividends from Pyramid Plus South LLP of £0.6m {2017: £0.6m).

There are no significant restrictions on the abliity to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or
advances made by the Group.

17. Trade and other recelvables

Restated
2018 s
£m £m
Amounts recaivable for the sale of services 223 2018
Provision for doubthul debts {27.3) (16.2)
Trade recelvables® 205.0 1856
Accrued income® 1314 1425
Accrued income on long-term complex contracts {Note 18} - 50.2
Amounts recoverable on construction contracts - 01
Mobilisation costs {Note 19) - 210
Prepayments 213 2.7
Other debtors 283 238
Totak 386.0 4459
Included In current assets 3860 3956
Inthuded In non-cumment assets® - 50.3
Total 386.0 4459
Nokes:

1 TheGroup hax applied IFRS 15 using the aumulagive effect method. Under this nathod, the comparatve information ks not restated, See Note 1.

2. Asin the prior year, MWMMmMammmmmmmmmmmnuﬂwuemp's
relationship banks. The Group reduced the of di ting from £110.7m as st 31 March 2017 to £26.3m as st 31 March 2018. As these trade recetvables are
mmmummmm:ﬂmmnmm"ﬁmuﬁm

3. Accrued income reletes t revenue recognised, but wnbifiend it the year endl

4. Non-qurrent trade and other retahbles comprise accrued Intome on long-term compiex contracts of £nll {2017: £40.8m) snd mobilisstion costs of £nil (2017: £9.5m) which
are further snglysac In Notes 18 and 19 respettively.

5. The Group has resteted 2017 income statement and balance sheet as per NOte 1, page 134,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

17. Trade and other receivables continued

Ageing of trade receivables:

F T mn

tm £m
Neither impaired nor past due 183.5 1504
Not impaired and less than three months overdue A 268
Not impaired and more than three months overdue 213 154
impaired receivables - 0.2
Provision for doubtful debts 117.3) {16.2)
Totsl 2050 185.6
Movement in the provision for doubtful debts:

ms w7

£m £m
Ar1April 162 4.6
Impairment losses recognised 23 139
Amounts written off as uncollectable {1.2) (0.8)
Disposal of business - {1.5)
At 31 March 173 16.2
More:
1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 using tha cumulstive effect method. Under this method, the jve information s not 1. See Note 1.
The average credit period taken on sales of services was 28 days (restated 2017: 26 days).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approxirmates their fair value.
18. Accrued income on long-term complex contracts

i o

&m £m
A1 Apdl 50.2 706
Impact of change o IFRS 152 50.2) -
Amounts recognised in the income statement - (20.4)
At 31 March - 50.2
Inchuded in current assets - 9.4
included in non-cumment assets® - 408
Total - 50.2
Nates:
1 mmmwmumu—wm“mmwmnMMhmms—hu
2. Following the aduption of IRRS 15, the Group no longar accounts for long-tenn contracts vting the perosntage of compk wing 3pplad previously under

1AS 11, snd has therefore derecognised the asset. See Note 1.
3. At 31 March 2007, E21.2m of the

wes attributable 10 transition costs.
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19. Mobilisation costs

2o0nr

At 1 Apeil
Imgact of change to IFRS 15%

Additions

Amounts recognised in the income statement

286

(20.0}

A 31 March

o EBst

210

includad in current assets
Induded in non-current assets

115
9.5

Total

21.0

Notes:

1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Undey this method, the comparative information is not restted. See Note 1.
2. Mobillastion costs that 4id not eeet IFRS 15 olteris were derecignised as part of the adoption of thie nenw standarel. 5ee Note 1.
3. Under IFRS 15, moblisstion costs ane included as contract sssets whitte they meet the critera to capitalise. See Note 20,

20. Contract assets

At 1 April
Additions
Amortised in the year

At 31 March

REL , |zB

Included In current assets
Included in non-curment assets

Total

0A
13
.2

Contract assets comprises contract fulfiiment costs amounting to £2.2m have been recognised at 31 March 2018, Contract assets are
amortised on 2 straight-line basis over the contract life which i consistent with the transfer of services to the customer to which the

asset relates.

To determine whether future economic benefits from contracts are sufficient 1o recover the contract assets, management has
performed an assessment of the costs to complete the contract. In comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the remalning

amount of consideration expected to be recelved less the costs to provide services under the relgvant contract, management has

determined no impairment ks required at 31 March 2018,
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Notes to the consolidated finandial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

21. Deferred tax
The follawing are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and
prior reporting period:
Retirement imangible Shortaerm
Acoslerated tax benefit astets timing
depreciation Rabilthes acquired  Shane aptiors differences Toral
£m £m £ £m £m £&m
At 1 April 2016 - 14 6.4 (4.4} 13 13 6.0
{Charge)/credit to income 08 51 0.7 33 {0.3) (0.3) 93
{Charge)/credit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive incorme - - 55 - (0.3} a6 58
At 1 April 2017 0.8 65 12.6 {1.1) 0.7 16 211
Impact of change to IFRS 15 250 - - - - - 5.0
(Charge)/credit to income {7.0) {0.3) 03 0.3 0.1} (0.1) 6S)
(Charge)/credit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - - {3.4) - 01 - (3.3)
At 31 March 2018 188 6.2 95 {0.8) 0.7 15 359

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following Is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (sfter offset) for

financial reporting purposes:

wo1r

£m £m
Deferred taxassets 367 222
Deferved tax liabifities {0.8) Ly
Net deferved tax astet 359 211

The Group has unutilised income tax losses of £94.9m (2017: £14.2m) that are avallable for offset against future profits.
In additon, the Group has £0.8m (2017: £0.8m) of capital losses.

A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of certain unutilised losses and allowances to the extent that it Is probable that
taxable profits will be generated in the future and be avallable for utliisation. Defermed tax has been calculated using the corporation

tax rates disclosed in Note 10.

22. Inventories

28 27
£m £m
Materials 689 68

23. Cash and cash equivalents
ams w097
&m £m
Cash ani cash equivalents 598 1291

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less. The camrying amount of the assets approximates their fair value.

inchuded! in cash and cash equivalents are deposits totalling £0.4m (2017: £0.6m) held by the Group's insurance subsidiary, which are
not readily avaitable for the general purposes of the Group.
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24. Trade and other payables

mnrs

q ]
g

18
2447
843
245
1716
476
574.5

Payments received on acoount
Trade creditors 191
Other taxes and soclal security
Other creditors

Accruals

Deferred income?

Total

"]

5745
34
5779

included in current Hablitties
Included in non-current Habilities
Total

Notes:

L The Group ha applied IFRS 15 using the cumulstive effect method. Uinder this method, the comparstive information Is not rastatad. See Note 1.
1. Follgwing the adaption of IFRS 1, the Group has presented defiured income fron contracts with customers saparately on the belance sheet snd is therefore snalyses in
Hote 25,

BB (B Be

3. The Group has restated 2017 income statement and batance sheet as per Note 1, page 134,
Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit
period taken for trade purchases Is 59 days (restated 2017: 72 days).

Included within the Group’s trade creditors balance is £45.1m (2017 £39.5m) relating to payments due to UK suppliers which make
use of bank provided supply chain finance arrangements. During the year ended 31 March 2018 these arrangements were used by
¢.200 suppliers, with a madmum facility avallable of £50.0m. The Group setties these amounts in accordance with each suppliers’

agreed payment terms.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.

25. Deferred income from contracts with customers

me
£m
Inchuged In current liabilities (s8.2)
Included in non-cusrent Kabilities (18.8)
Total {65.0)
Nose:
1. TheGroup has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative inf 1o ot restated, See Nobe 1.
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Notes to the consolidated finandial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

26. Financing liabilities

017

£m

Bank loans - under committed facilities 153
Private placement notes 294.0
Obligations under finance leases {Note 29) 23
Total 3121

included in current kabiities
Included in non-curment Sabilities
Totad

3108
13
3121

BEe (BcEEly

The £275m bank facility and the private placement notes are unsecured but have financial and non-financial covenants and cbligations
wommonly associated with these arrangernents. Subsequent to the prior year end the Groug's lerlers agreed an amendment 1o dhe
covenant calculation definitions. In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 1, it was necessary to dassify the drawn amounts on the
funding armangements as current rather than non-current labilities as at 31 March 2017. The final maturity dates of all facilities
remained unchanged. The Group was In compliance with these covenants as at 31 March 2018 and hence all amounts are dassified in
line with repayment dates.

Included In current financing liabilities are £0.8m (2017: £1.5m) of obligations under finance leases (see Note 29).

With the exception of derivative finandal instruments, all financing liabilities are held at amortised cost. Derivative finandal
Instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contract is entened into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value through profit or loss unless they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied (see Note 27).

At 31 March 2018, the Group had avaitable £219 3m (2017: £257.9m) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which
all conditions precedent had been met. The facilities have an expiry date of July 2021. The loans carry interest rates which are currently
determined at 1.3% over the applicable LBOR.

Details of the Group's contingent liabilities are provided in Note 34.
The weigitted average Interest rates pald during the year on the overdrafts and loans outstanding were as follows:
2007

Overdrafts
Bank ioans
Private placement notes

Private placement notes

Following the Issue on 16 December 2010 of LUS$96.0m and £40.0m of private placement (PP) notes in the United States Private
Placement market, on 13 Dacember 2012, the Group issued a further US$153.0m and £55.0m of PP notes. The PP notes are unsecured
and rank par passu with other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Group. in order to manage the risk of forelgn currency
fiuctuations and to manage the Group’s finanoe costs through a mix of fixed and variable rate debt, the Group has entered into
Cross-currency interest rate swaps. The swap contracts have the same duration and other critical terms as the borrowings and are
considered to be highly effective. The amount, maturity and Interest terms of the PP notes are a3 shoun below. USS96m of these

PP notes were setthed in December 2017 upon maturity, along with the assoclated swaps.

21
1.2

Lhl.E

Tranche Mttty date Amoun Wberest terme Swap kerest
Zyear 16 Decernber 2017 Us$48.0m USS fixed at 3.38% £ fieed at 3.88%
7 year 16 December 2017 S548.0m USS$ fieed at 3.39% £ UBOR +1.26%
9 year 16 December 2019 £40.0m £ ficed at 4.38% nfa
10 year 16 December 2022 USS76.0m USS fced at 3.85% £ fixed at 4.02%
10 year 16 December 2022 US577.0m LSS fixed at 3.85% £ fixed at 4.02%
10year 16 December 2022 £250m £ fixed at 3.87% n/2
12 year 16 December 2024 £30.0m £ fixed at 4.0% n/fa
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27. Financial instruments

Classification
The Group's principal financia! assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and derivative financial instruments. With the
exception of desivative financial instruments, all financial assets are classified as loans and reteivables.

The Group's principal financiat kabilities are trade payables and financing Kabilities. With the exception of derivative financial
instruments and deferred contingent consideration, all Bnancial llabilities are held at amortised cost.

Dertvative financial instruments are measured initially at falr value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value through the income staternent uniess they ara designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can
be applied.

Detaiis of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the bases for recognition of income and expense] for each class of financial asset, financial llabiiity and equity instrument are disdlosed
inNote 1.

Risk management objectives

The Group’s treasury department monikors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group. These risks include
those arising from Interest rates, foreign currendes, liquidity, credit and capital management. The Group seeks to minimise the effects
of these risks by using effective control measures and, where appropriate, derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposines. The use of financial derfvatives is governed by Group policies and reviewed regularly. Group policy is to not trade in
financial instruments. The risk management policies remain unchanged from the previous year.

Interest rate risk
The Group's activities expose it to the financial risks of interest rates. The Group's treasury function reviews its risk management
strategy on a regular basis and will appropriately enter Into derivative financial instruments in order to manage interest rate risk.

interest rate sensitivity
The interest rate sensitivity has been determined based on the exposure ta interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative
Instrurnents at the batance sheet date. All financial fiabilities, other than financing lisbilities, are interest free.

if underlying interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all other variables were hedd constant, the Group's profit after tax for the
year ended 31 March 2018 pnd reserves would decrease/increase by £0.7m [2017: £0.8m).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited expasure 10 transactional foreign currency risk from trading transactions In currencies other than the functional
currancy of individual group entities and some exposure to transiational foreign currency risk from the translation of its forelgn
operations. The Group considers the need to hedge its exposures as appropriate and will enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to mitigate any significant risks.

In addition, the Group has fully hedged the US dollar exposure on its private placement notes into sterfing using cross-cumency interest
rate swaps (see Hedging activities below).

At 31 March 2018 £9.3m (2017; £6.9m) of cash and cash equivalents were heid in foreign curnencies. Included in bank loans were
£15.7m (2017: £17.1m) of loans denominated in forelgn currency.

The exceptional, everyday | www.mitie.com 5



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27. Finandal instruments continued

Uguidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk using a cash flow projection mode! which cansiders the maturity of the Group’s assets and
liabllities and the projected cash flows from operations. Bank loans under committed facilities, which allow for approprate headroom
in the Group’s daily cash movements, are then arranged. Detalls of the Group’s bank facilities can be found in Note 26.

The tables below summarise the maturity profile {including both undiscounted interast and principal cash flows) of the Group’s
financial Kabilities:

Within  Inthe second Ahwe
oneyesr 1o Blth years o yesrs Totnl
Fincial Rsbities at 31 March 2018 £m fm £m £m
Trade creditors 1913 - - 1913
Other creditors 292 - -~ 292
Financing liabilities 656 198.9 315 296.0
Financial llabikties* 286.1 1989 315 5165
M. g Kablities y profie s extlusive of the £6.1m dervative astet which would narturally offset the settiement value of maturing private plscement notes.
Within  Inthe second Alter
oneyesr  tofiith years fve yoars Tatal
Financiel kebiities at 31 March 2017 m £m £m £m
Trade creditors 244.7 - - 244.7
Other creditors 245 - - 245
Financing liabilities 106.2 70.2 181.2 357.6
Deferred contingent consideration 0.3 - - 0.3
Financial labllities* 375.7 70.2 181.2 627.1
*F Ranblinal profie k exiutive of the £35.8m dervatve asset which would naturally offset the: settement vaue of maturing p p hotes.
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and formatty reported quarterly. The value of business placed with financlal
institutions is reviewed on a daily basis.

The Group’s credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is fimited because the external counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by International credit rating agencies and are managed through regular review.

The amounts presented in the batance sheet in relfation to the Group's trade recelvables are net of provisions for doubtful debts.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. Sefore accepting a new customer, the Group uses extemal credit
scoring Systems 1o assass the potential customer's credit quality and define an appropriate credit imit which is reviewed regulariy.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers the credit quality of the counterparty. An allowance for
impairment is made where there ks an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the
recoverabliity of the cash flows. The Directors believe that there Is no further provision required in excess of the provision for doubtful
debts at the balance sheet date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk In refation to trade receivables at the balance sheet date is the fair value of trade receivables. The
Group's custormer base is large and unrelated and, accordingly, the Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk with
any one counterparty or group of counterparties,

Capital management risk

The Group manages its Capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concemns while maximising the
retun to stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt per Note 3¢
and equity per the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s capital structure is reviewed regularly. In 2013, the Board approved a share purchase policy to maintain share numbers at
2 broadly consistent leve! year on year with the aim of ensuring that the interests of shareholders are not diluted by the lssue of shares
that support the Group’s various share schemes, nor by the Issue of shares as consideration for earn outs under the Mitie model.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group bought back 9.1m shares at a cost of £24.4m and subsequently cancelied these
shares. The Group has ceased its practice of buying back shares to offset shares issued under the Mitie Model or future LTIP
arrangements and nill shares were bought back in the year ended 31 March 2018. Further details are provided in Notes 31 and 32,

The Group s not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements with the exception of those applicable to the Group's
captive insurance subsidiary, which is monitored on a regular basis.

176 www.mitiecom | The exceptional, everyday




27. Financdial Instruments continued

Hedging activities

Cash flow hedges

The Group holds a number of cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges on US$153.0m of PP notes. Biannual
fixed interest cash flows denominatad in US dollars arising over the periods to December 2022 from the US Private Placement market
are exchanged for fixed interest cash flows denominated In sterling. All cash flow hedges were assessed as being highly effective as at
31 March 2018.

Fair value hedges

As ot 31 March 2017 the Group held 3 number of cross-currency intenest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges on US$48.0m of
PP notes. Fixad interest cash flows denominated in USS from the US Private Placement market were exchanged for floating interest
cash flows denominated in sterfing. These fair value hedges were assessed as being highly effective as at 31 March 2017 and up untll
their maturity date in December 2017.

Hedge of net investment in foreign operations

included in bank loans at 31 March 2018 was a borrowing of €9.5m (2017: €9.5m) which has been designated as a hedge of the net
Investrnent in the Republic of ireland business of Dalida AV, and is being used to hedge the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk
on this irvestrent. Gains or losses on the translation of the borrowing are transferred to equity to offset gains or losses on the
translation of the net investment.

Derivative financial instruments
The carmrying vakses of detivative finantial instruments at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Amwts Asaats

2018 2017

£m £n

Cross-aurrency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges 61 27.0
Cross-cuimency interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges - 8.8
Derivative financial instruments hedging private placament notes &1 358
Included in current assets - 358
Included in non-current assets (%1 -
Total 6.1 358

Derivative finandial instruments are meaasured at fair value. Fair values of derivative financial instruments are calculated based on a
discounted cash flow analysis using appropriate market information for the duration of the instruments.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, a number of cashfiow hedges were ssttied and aii fair value hedges were settied.
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27. Finandial instruments continued

Finandal instruments fair value discasure
Fair value measurements are classified into three lavels, depending on the degree to which the fair value & observable:

« tevel 1 fair value measurements ane those derived from guoted prioes in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

= Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from other observable inputs for the asset or liabilty; and

+ Lewvel 3 fair value measurements are those derived from vakuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable
market data.

The Directors consider that the derivative financial instruments fall into Level 2. There were no transfers between levels during the
year. All contracts are gross settied,

28. Provisions
Deferred Comeract
Legnl Hesithcare contingent Insurance spediic
..~ proveion  Restuchaing  considerstion reserve costs  Dilapidations Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £&m

At 1 April 2017 20 50 - 03 12.5 6.0 - 63
impact of change in
accounting policy - - - - - 0.2) - (0.2)
Amounts recogrised in the
batance sheet - - - - - - 34 34
Amounts recognised in the
Income statement 32 - 1.2 - 4.0 {1.3) - 71
Utilised within captive
Insurance subsidiary - - - - {0.1) - - (0.1}
Unwinding of discount - - - - - ~ 0.2 02
Utilised n the period {1.1) {1.1) - {0.3) {1.1) (2.2) - (5.7
At 31 March 2018 4.1 49 1.2 - 153 24 36 315
Included in current liabilities 4.1 4.9 12 - 90 2.4 36 252
Included In non-current
llabifities - - - - 63 - - 6.3
Total 4.1 49 12 = 153 4 36 315

The provisions balance indudes the following items;

The legal costs provision refates to professional fees payable and the potential cost of settiement of outstanding dlaims against
the Group.

The Healthcare provision relates to the anticipatad costs of separation of the Healthcare business from the Group, that are anticipated
to crystallise during the year ending 31 March 2019. See Note 5 for more detail on this disposal,

The restructuring provision refates to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Helix transformation
programme including the transition costs associated with the outsourcing of certain back-office transactional processes.

The Insurance reserve provides for the seif-insurad element of fleet and llability claims that will typically settle over three to five years.
This includles a provision for clalms that are expected but have not yet been reported.

Contract specific cost provisions relate to various obligations arising in the ordinary course of providing services in line with
commerdal contracts.

The provision for dilapidations relates to the legal obligation for a leased property to be retumed to the landiord In the contracted
condition at the end of the lease peripd. This cost would Include repairs of any damage and wear and tear.
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29, Obligations under finance leases

Mo iense Prasent value

payments of lease payments

2m3 2017 s 2007

£m £m £m £m

Amourys payable under finance leases:

Within one year 0.8 17 08 15
In the second to fifth years inclusive 0.5 1.2 0.5 13
1.3 29 13 28

Less: future finance charges - (0.1} - -
Present value of lease obligations 13 28 13 28
Less; amount due for settiement within 12 months {0.8) {1.5) {0.8) (1.5)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 0.5 13 05 13

The average remaining lease term Is 20 months (2017: 22 months). For the year ended 31 March 2018, the average

effective borrowing rate was 1.4% (2017; 1.8%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fbeed repayment basis
and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. Al lease obligations are denominated In sterling.

The fais value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount. The Group’s obligations under finance leases are

protacted by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

30. Analysis of net debt

2ms 2017

£ £
Cash and cash equivalents [Note 23) 59.8 129.1
Bank loans {Note 26} (54.3) (15.3)
Private placement notes (Note 26) (2088;  (204.0)
Derivative financial Instruments hedging private placement notes (Note 27) 61 358
Net dabt before cbligations under finance leasas (192.2) {144.4)
Obiligations under finance leases (Note 29) (2.3) {2.8)
Net debt (1935) (147.2)

Net debt excludes amounts in respect of customer invoice discounting referred to In Note 17 and amounts in respect of Supply Chain

Financing referred to in Note 24,
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Natas to the consolidated finandal statements continued
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31. Share caphal

Number

Qrelinmry shares of 250 millon £m
Allotted and fully paid

At 1 April 2016 3721 93

Share buybacks (9.1) {0.2)
issued for acquisitions 6.0 0.1

Issued under share option schemes 0.1 -

At 1 April 2017 3591 92

Issued for acquisitions A6 0.1

At 31 March 2018 373.7 93

During the year nil shares were purchased {2017: 9.1m ordinary shares of 2.5p were purchased at a cost of £24.4m and
subsequently cancelled).

During the year 4.6m {2017: 6.0m) ordinary shares of 2.5p were allotted in respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests at an
Bssue price between 266.3p and 278.8p (2017: 244.4p) giving rise to share premium of £nil (2017: £2.9rn) and merger reserve of
£12.4m (2017: £11.7ra).

During the year nil ordinary shares were allotted In respect of share option schemes (2017: 0.1m ordinary shares were allotted at 2.5p
at a price between 201 0p and 260.2p giving rise to share premium of £0.1m).

32. Reserves

Share premium account
The share premium account represents the premium arising on the issue of equity shares (see Note 31),

Mearger reserve
The merger reserve represents armounts relating to premiums arising on shares issued subject to the provisions of Section 612 of
the Companies At 2006.

The merger reserve increased by £12 4m (2017; £11.7m) in the year ended 31 March 2018 as a resukt of the issue of 4.6m (2017: 6.0m)
ordinary shares of 2.5p for the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Own shares reserve

The Group uses shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy conditional awards under the Group’s LTIP, CSP and DBP share
schemes and shares held in the SIP Trust to provide matching shares under the 51P scheme. During the year the trust distributed 0.7m
(2017: 1.4m} shares at a cost of £1.6m {2017: £3.4m] to satisfy awards under those schermes.

The Company uses Treasury shares to satisfy share options under the Group's ESOS and SAYE share schemes. Proceeds from the issue
of 1.5m {2017: 1.2m) Treasury shares to satisfy options under the Group’s share schemes In the year were £3.4m (2017: £2.4m) ata
cost of £4.3m (2017: £3.4m). The loss of £0.9m has been recognised in retained eamings.

The other movements in the own shares reserve comprise £8.1m {2017: £nif} to recognise the restricted shares issued as part of the
acquisition of non-controliing interests per Note 33 of which £1.0m (2017: £nil} has been released against the share-based payments
reserve when restrictions expired during the year,

The own shares reserve at 31 March 2018 represents the cost of 13.0m (2017: 15.2m} ordinary shares in Mitie Group ple, with 2
weighted average of 13.8m {2017: 16.5m) shares during the year, as well as the £7.1m value of the remaining restricted shares issued
as conslideration to acquire minority interests that is required to be treated as remuneration,

Other reserves
Other reserves are comprised of the share-based payments reserve of £10.4m (2017: £9.4m), the revaluation reserve of £{0.2)m
{2017: £{0.2)m), the capital redemption resarve of £0.9m (2017; £0.9m) and other reserves of £0.2m (2017: £0.2m).

The share-based payments reserve represants credits in respect of the vesting period of equity-settied share-based payment
transactions (see Note 36} and credits in respect of the vesting period of restricted shares issued as part of the acquisition of
non-controtling interests per Note 33,
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32. Reserves comtinued

Hedging and transiation reserve

The hedging and transiation reserve of £(7.3)m (2017: £{8.0)m) inchades balances In respect of the Group’s cash flow hedges (see Note 27)
and transiation reserves of £(0.5)m (2017: £{0.6)m). A net cash flow hetige credit during the year of £0.1m (2017: £4.8m charge) s
inciuded within Other comprehensive income. The hedging and translation reserve also indudes balances arising on translation of the
Group's foreign operations and in respect of net investment hedges of which the combined movement was a credit of £0.6m during

the year.

33. Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions — purchase of non-controlling interests

On 19 July 2017, the Company purchasad the minority 49% shareholding in Source Eight Limited. The consideration paid was £4.0m,
satisfied with £3.0m in cash and £1.0m in unrestricted shares. A further £5.1m of shaces were issued which were subject to sale
restrictions related to continuing employment. Ragarding shares issued, 2,196,708 ordinary shares were lssued, with a nominal value
of L.5p per share in Mitie Group plc (Mitie shares) at a fair value of 278.8p, of which 1,838,028 Mitie shares were subject to sale
restrictions related to continuing employment.

In addition, on 20 October 2017 the Company purchased the remaining minority sharehokiings in five Mite Mode! tompanies,
The consideration pald was £3.4m, satisfied through the issue of unrestricted shares. A further £3.0m of shares were issued which
were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing employment. Regarding shares Issued, 2,396,381 Mitie shares were issued
at a fair value of 266.3p, of which 1,139,687 Mitie shares were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing employment.

The shareholdings purchased, primarily held by certain of the employees and senlor management of the relevant subsidiary
companies, are detalled below:

¢ Mitie Care and Custody Umited (MCCL) — 6.86% of the Issued share capital, comprising 42,505 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a
consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 169,328 Mitie shares;

= Mitle Events & Leisure Services Limited (MELSL) — 24.08% of the issued share capital, comprising 205,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01
each, for a consideration of £0.4m satisfiad by the issue of 144,555 Mitie shares;

» Mitie Facilities Management Limited {lreland) {(MFML) — 5.63% of the issued share capital, comprising 146,000 B ordinary shares of
€0.01 each, for a consideration of £0.2m satisfied by the issue of 72,228 Mitie shares;

¢ Mitle Catering Services Limited (MCSL) — 18.55% of the issued share capltal, comprising 333,677 D ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for
3 consideration of £2.9m satisfied by the issue of 1,072,416 Mitle shares; and

* Mitie Waste & Environmental Services Limited (MWESL) — 27.71% of the issued share capital, comprising 332,500 8 ordinary shares
of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £2.5m satisfied by the issue of 937,854 Mitie shares;

The above aoquisitions have baen completed based on transfer of consideration of the falr value of the shaneholdings of the
respective entities. As part of the above transactions Mitle Group issued unrestricted and restricted shares. The restricted shares are
attached with a condition that the relevant recipient continues in employment with the Group for a foeed vesting period of time.
Restrictions will remain attached to the shares If the reciplent leaves employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting
period of the shares.

As a result of the acquisitions outlined above Mitie Group owns 100% of the ksued share capftal of all of the above entities.

Prior year acquisitions — purchase of non-controlling interests

On 24 Agust 2015, the Company purchasaed empioyee minority sharehoidings in three of its siscoessful ‘Mitie Mode!” businesses:
Mitie Business Services UK Limited (MBSUKL), Mitie Technical Facilities Management Limited {MTFML), and Mitia Care and Custody
Limited {MCCL) in accordance with the respective articles of association end shareholders’ agreements of those companies.

The total maximum consideration for all three purchases amounted to £16.1m. This was satisfied with £1.4m in cash and as to the
remaining £14.7m by the issue of 6,015,255 Mitie shares valued at 244.38 p per share. This was the average of the closing middie
market price for the five banking days immediataly preceding 26 July 2016. Earlier in that financial year ended 31 March 2017,
the Company purchased its own shares in the market to offset this share issue. The purchased shares were cancelied following
their acquisition,

The exceptional everyday | www.mitle.com 181



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

33. Acquisitions continued

As a result of these acquisitions tha Group owned 100% of the issued shave capital of MBSUKL and MTPML, and 93.14% of the Issued
share capital of MCQL. The shareholdings purchased, primarily held by certain of the empioyees and senior management of the
relevant subsidiary companies, are detailed below:

o MBSUKL —27.29% of the issued share capital, comprising 116,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £0.8m.
The consideration was satisfied by £0.1m in cash and £0.7m by the issue of 275,428 Mitie shares;

+ MTFML —8.93% of the ksued share capital, comprising 952,000 8 ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £12.1m.
The consideration was satisfied by £1.0m in cash and £11.1m by the issue of 4,563,029 Mitie shares; and

o MCCL—27.42% of the issued share capital, comprising 170,022 B ardinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £3.2m.
The consideration was satisfied by £0.3m In cash and £2.9m by the Issue of 1,176,798 Mitie shares.

34. Contingent Rabilities

Contractual disputes, guarantees and indemnities

The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to contractual disputes that arise in the ordinary course of
business. There is an ongoing contractual dispute with a client of Mitie"s Property Management business which is potentially of a
material nature {atthough formal legal proceedings have not been comenenced]. Discussions are ongoing between the Company and
the counterparty to determine both liability and potential quantum. The Directors do not anticipate that the outcome of this dispute
will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial posttion, other than as already provided for in the accounts. In appropriate
cases, a provision ks recognised based on best estimates and management judgement but there can be no guarantee that these
provisions (which may be subject to potentially materiat revision from time to time}) will result in an accurate prediction, due to the
uncertainty of the actual costs and Habilities that may be incurted. The Directors will continuee to monitor events as matters progress.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided guarantees and indemnities in respect of performance, issued by financial
Institutions on its behalf, amounting to £21.7m (2017: £23.8m) in the ordinary course of business. These are not expected to resuit
In any material financial loss.

Multi-employer pension schemas

The Group participates In several industry multiemployer defined benefit schemes, including the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK}
Industry “Pensioh Scheme” (Plumbing Scheime). The total contributions to these schemes for the financial year ending 31 March 2019
are anticipated to be £0.1m. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee |5 unable at this time to identify
the assets and Habilities of the scheme which ane attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as if
they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

Whaen the Group (or a subsidiary of the Group) exits such schemes (typically by ceasing to have any active employees in the scheme),
pension legisiation may require the Group to fund the Group's share of the total amount of net Habilities with a one-off cash payment
{a Section 75 debt under the Pensions Act 1995).

On 27 March 2018, the trustee of the Plumbing Scheme provided participating employers with a summary of the draft actuarial
wvaluation of the Plumbing Scheme as at 5 April 2017. That surmmary detailed the results of the valuation on three measures:

« technical provisions - the amount of money the Plumbing Scheme needs to meet all its obligations and pay benefits In respect of
past service as they fall due, based on the scheme assets and the economic position as at 5 April 2017. This measure showed a
surplus of £E45m on llabilities of £1.885bn;

* Pension Protection Fund (PPF) - the amount used ta set the Plumbing Scheme’s PPF levies, The benefits under this basis are lower
than the scheme’s own benefits and the assumptions are prescribed by the Pension Regulator. This measure showed a defickt of
£412m on llabliities of £2.342bn; and

* solvency —this Is an estimate of the cost of insuring afl of the Plumbing Scheme's benefits as st 5 April 2017 with an insurer and is
the bask requined for Section 75 debt calculations. This measure showed a deficit of £658m on labilities of £2.588bn.

The trustee of the Plurnbing Scheme has recently conducted an employer consultation regarding the allocation of Sectlon 75 debts
Including orphan Sabilitles {J.. liabliities in respect of Plumbing Scheme members whose emplovers or former employers are no
longer mambers of tha Plumbing Scheme or are insolvent). This is the second employer consultation carried out by the Plumbing
Scheme in respect of the allocation of Section 75 dabts, The trustee has stated that R is unfikely that any Section 75 debt notices will
be issued before sarly 2019, ¢ the Plumbing Scheme's actuary cannot be instructad in this regard until the calculation methodalogy
has been agreed.

Given these uncertainties it has not been possible to estimate the Group’s potential expasure to Section 75 employer debts in respect
of the Plumbing Scheme within a reasonable range and so the Issue is disclosed as a contingent liability as set out in Note 37,

182 www.mitiecom | The exceptional, every day




34. Contingent liabilitles continued

Employment dalms

There are currently two enquiries being carried out by HMRC in respect of the Group’s compliance with the National Minimum Wage:
both enquiries are at an early stage. At this time due to the nature and complexity of assessing compliance, it is not possible to
estimate the potential exposure, In common with other UK businesses with a lange number of employees operating near the minimum
wage, the Group is at risk of potential deficlency in respect of current and past employees. Work is ongoing to enhance the Group's
payroll systems and processes to reduce the risk of non-compliance in future.

In addition to specific enquiries in respect of compliance with the National Minimum Wage, the Company and ks subsidiaries are,
from time to time, party to employment disputes, daims, and other potential Habiiities which arise in the ordinary course of business.
The Directors do not anticipate that any of the current matters will give rise to settlements, either individually or in aggregate, which
will have a raterial adverse effect on the Group’s financial position.

FAnancdial Conduct Authority

On 29 August 2017 the Company announced that the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) had informed the Company of Its investigation
In connection with i} the timealiness of a profit waming announced by the Company on 19 September 2016, and i) the manner of
preparation and content of the Company’s Anancial Information, position and results for the period ended 31 March 2016.

The Company continues to fully co-operate with the FCA during their ongoing investigation. At this time, the Directors have not received
any notification from the FCA that they will exercise their regulatory enforcement powers against the Cormpany. Accordingly, the Directors
are unable to determine whether the investigation will lead to the impasition of ary fine or other penalties against the Company.

35. Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total outstanding aggregate commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2088 an?

m £
Within ane year 237 24.7
in the second to fifth years inclusive 39.2 306
After five yaars 13.2 7.6
Total 76.1 62.9

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and hire of vehicles and other
equipment. These leases have average durations ranging from three to ten years, No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent remal payments.

Operating lease commitments have Increased during the year, mainly due to new leases entered into as part of the rationalisation of
the Group’s property portfolio.

36. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes. The Group has also awarded performance-related bonuses for Bxecutive Directors
which are deferred in conditional shares under the Mitie Group plc 2010 Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP) and are accounted for as a share-
based payment charge.

Discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP was intraduced In 2007. The conditional awards of shares or rights to acguire shares (the awards) are offered to a smal
number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nil. The vesting period is three years, although for
awards granted In 2015 and subsequently some are subject to a holding period of up to a further two years. if the awards remain
unexsrcised after a period of twelve months from the date of vesting the awards expire, The awards may be forfelted if the employee
leaves the Group. Before the awards can be exercised, performance conditions must be satisfied which are based on movements in a
range of market and non-market measures over a three-year period.

The Mitie Group ple 2001 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exarcise price Is equal to the average market vatue of the shares over the five-day period immediately preceding the date of
grant. The vesting period is three years. if the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options
expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.
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36. Share-based paymants continued

The Mitie Group pic 2011 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares on the business day preceding grant or, if the Remuneration
Committee decides, the average market value of shares over a number of preceding business days (not to exceed 20). The vesting
period is three years, if the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire, Options
may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. Before options can be exercised, a performance condition must be satisfied; the
performance condition Is linked to the percentage growth in eamnings per share over a three-year period.

The Conditional Share Plan (CSP)

The CSP was introduced in 2014. The conditional awards of thares or the rights to acquire shares {the award) are offered to a small
number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nil. The vesting period is determined at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committes and is generally two or three years, if the awards remain unexercised after a period of ten
years from the date of grant the awards expire. The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Non-discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group plc 2011 SAYE scheme

The SAYE scheme is open to eligible UK resident employees, The exercise price is not less than 80% of the market value of the shares
determined using elther: the share price preceding the date on which invitstions o participate In the scheme are Issued or an average
share price over five days preceding the invitation date. The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexercised after s
period of six months from the date of vesting, the options expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee lseves the Group.

The Share Incentive Plan (SiF})

The SIP was introduced in 2011 and is open to all efigible UK resiient empioyees. Under the scheme, eligible empioyees are invited to
invest in partnership shares which are purchased in the market on their behalf and hekd in a separate UK trust, One conditional
matching shane is anardad for every ten partnership shares punchased and has a holding period of three years. Matching shares are
funded by way of market purchases.

Restricted Shares
In addition, in certain cases restrictad shares are issued t0 indlividuals. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the

relevant recipient continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to
the shares if the recipient leaves employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares,

Details of the awards and share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

2018 2017 29 2017

Numbaer of Number of Welghtad Weighted

conditional conditsansl Numbar of erege Number of sverage

share smrds shy vards share optio wswcies price share options excarcise price

{rilllon) {milion) iy "] {onilion) 2

Outstanding at 1 April 590 83 119 258 13.1 262
Gramed during the year 43 46 27 229 29 m
Forfeited during the year (4.5) {25} {4.9) 267 (2.9) 258
Exertised during the year (0.7) (1.4} (1.5) 29 (1.2} 210
Outstanding at 31 March 8.1 9.0 3.2 247 11.9 258
Exercisable at the end of the year 32 240 3.5 213
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36. Share-based payments continued

The Group recognised the following expenses refated to share-based payments:

7
£m

438
14

6.2

Discretionary share plans
Non-discretiohary share plans
Share-based payrnents acquisition related costs

R4

The moverment on the share-based payments reserve, which is part of other reserves, relates to the charge to the income statement

for the year of £4.6m (2017: £6.2m). This comprises of 1} £3.4m In respect of the vesting period of restricted shares issved as part of the

acquisition of minority interests per Note 33 and li) £1.2m of equity-settied share-based payment transactions. The share-based

zfavmentschame for the year is net of income statement credits of £2.9m relating to changes in assumptions relating to the likeiihood
options vesting.

In adtdition, there has been 1) a release of £1.0m against the own shares reserve on the expiry of restrictions attached to restricted
shares issued and il) a release of £2.7m to retained eamings regarding shares options that were previously exercised, lapsed, forfeited
or cancelled.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for awarls and share options exercised during the year was 252p (2017: 234p).
The conditional share awards and share aptions outstanding at 31 March 2018 had exercise prices (other than nil in the case of the
LTIP, CSP, DBP and the matching shares under the SIP) ranging from 201p —254p (2017: 201p — 319p) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 3.6 years (2017: 4.0 years). In the year ended 31 March 2018, options were granted in respect of the
SAYE, LTIP, CSP and SIP. The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted on those dates was £10.6m (2017: £11.1m).

The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-5choles and Monte Carlo models.
The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

2018 2007
Share price (p) 258-318 276-318
Exercise price {p) 0= 2560 0-319
Expected volatikty (%) 23-19 23-30
Expected We {years) 3-4 3-4
Risk-free rate (%) 03)-11 013-11
Expected dividends (%) L8-47 35-47
The inputs into the Monte Carlo model are as follows:

s 2017
Share price (p) 180-267 247-319
Aversge correlation with TSR benchmark (%} 3-27 2635
Expexted volatility (%) 34-37 18-23
Expectad e {years) 3 3
Risk-free rate (X) 0.22-068 0.16-129

Expected volatility was based upon the historical volatility over the expected life of the schermes. The expected life is based upon
historical data and has been adjusted based on management’s best estimates for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.
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37. Retirement banefit schemes

‘The Group has a number of pension arrangements for employees:

*+ Defined contribution schemes for the majority of its employees; and
« Defined benefit schemes which include a group scheme and other smaller schemes.

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes for qualifying employees. The Group has a defined benefit
pension scheme called the Mitie Group ple Pension Scheme (Group scheme] where Mitie Group pk fs the principal employer.

The Group participates in a number of other defined benefit schemes (Other schemas) In respect of certain employess who joined
the Group under the Transfer of Undertakings {Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) or through the acquisition of
subsidiary companies.

Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution scheme is a pension scheme undar which the Group pays contributions to an independently administered fund;
such contributions are based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay. The Group has no legal of constructive obligations to pay
further contributions to the fund once these contributions have been paid. Members’ benefits are determined by the amount of
contributions paid, together with Investment returns earned on the contributions arising from the performance of each individual's
chosen investments and the type of pension the member chooses to take at retirement. As a result, actuarial risk {that pension will be
lower than expected) and investment risk {that the assets Invested in do not perform in line with expectations) are borne by the
employee.

The Group's contributlons are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.

The Group operates three separate schemes: a stakeholder defined contribution plan, which is closed to new members; a self-imested
persondl pension plan, which is dosed to new members; and a group personal pension [GPP) plan. Employer contributions are payable
to each on a matched basis requiring employee contributions to be paid. Employees have the option to pay their share via a salary
sacrifice arrangement. The scheme used to satisfy auto-enroliment compliance is a master trust, The People’s Pension.

During the yaar, the Group made a total contribution to the defined contribktion schemmes of £9.0m (2017; £8.9m) and contributions to
the auto-enrolment scheme of £4.3m (2017: £4.3m), which are included in the income statement charge. The Group expects w make
contributions of a similar amount in the coming year.

Defined benefit schemes
Group scheme

The Group scheme provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payabie for life. The level of benafits
provided depends on members’ length of service and their final pensionable pay.

The Group scheme closed to new members in 2006, with new empiovees able to join one of the defined contribution schemes.
The main Group scheme has now been closed as of October 2017.

Pensions In payment are generally increased in line with RPI inflation, subject to certain caps and floors. Benefits are payable on death
and other events such as withdrawal from active service,

The Group scheme is operated under the UK regulatory framework. Benefits are paid to members from the trust-administered fund,
where the Trustee Is responsible for ensuring that the scheme s sufficently funded to meet curment and future benefit payments. Plan
assets are held in trust and are governed by pension legisiation. if Investment axperience s worse than expected or the actuarial
assessment of the scheme’s liablifities increases, the Group’s financial obligations to the scheme rise.

The nature of the refationship between the Group and the Trustee & aiso governed by reguiations and practios, The Trustee must
agree a funding plan with the sponsoring company such that any funding shortfall is expected to be met by additional contributions
and kwestment outperformance. In order to assess the level of contributions required, triennial valuations are carried out with the
scheme’s obligations measured using prudent assumptions {which are determined by the Trustee with advice from the scheme
actuary}. The most recent triennlal valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2017 and is pending approval.

The Trustee's other duties include managing the investment of the scheme’s assets, administration of plan benefits and exercising of
discretionary powers, The Group works closely with the Trustee to manage the scheme.
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Other defined benefit schemes

Grouped together under Other schemes are a nurmber of schemnes to which the Group makes contributions under Admitted Body
status to dients’ (generally local government or government entities) defined benefit schemes In respect of certain employees who
transferred to Mitie under TUPE. The valuations of the Other schemes are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date.

For the Admitted Body schemes, which are largely sections of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the Group will only participate
for a finite period up to the end of the relevant contract. The Group is required o pay regular contributions, as decided by the relevant
scheme actuaries and detailed in each scheme’s Cantributions Certificate, which are calculated every three years as part of a triennial
valuation. In a number of cases contributions payable by the employer are capped and any excess is recovered from the entity that the
employees transferred from. In addition, in certain cases, at the end of the contract the Group will be required to pay any deficit (as
determined by the scheme actuary) that is assessed for its notional section of the scheme.

Multi-employer schemes

As 2 result of historic acquisition activity and staff transfers following contract wins, the Group participates in four multi-employer
pension schemes. The total contributions to these schemes for the financial year ending 31 March 2019 are anticipated to be £0.1m.
For three of these schemes, the Group's share of the assets and labliiities is minimal,

The fourth scheme ks the Plumbing & Mechanicat Services {UK) Industry Pension Scheme (the ‘Plumbing Scheme’) a funded muiti-
empioyer defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers, with dirca
400 remaining. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and
abilities of the scherme which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as i they were
paid to a defined contribution scheme,

The April 2014 valuation of the Plumbing Scheme Indicated a surplus on & technical provisions basls of £19m, on labilities of £1.47bn.
The Annual Member update issued by the Plumbing Scheme in Gctober 2017 stated that an interim vakation prepared as at April 2016
indicated a deficik, however the draft trennial valuation as at S April 2017 continues to show a surplus on a technical provisions bass.
Details of the draft triennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 are set out in Note 34,

As set out in Note 34 the Group has a potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of the Plumbing Scherne, which has
been disclosed as a contingent liability.

Further information in respect of the Group scheme and Other schemes
The table below sets out the detalls of the latest funding valuation of the Group scheme as at 31 March 2017,

The Group made a total contribution to the Group scheme of £4.4m during the year {2017: £2.0m), including an additional payment of
£3.0m In relation to payment on a letter of credit against the funding deficit. The Group expects to make contributions of around
£5.6m to the Group scheme in the year ending 31 March 2019, including £4.2m against the funding deficit. Employees’ contribution to
the cost of the scheme is generally sattied through a salary sacrifice arrangement.

The Group made contributions to the Other schemes of £0.3min the year (2017: £0.3m). The Group expects to make comtributions of
around £nil to the Other schemes in the year ending 31 March 2019,

Details of latest funding valuation

Group scheme
Dﬂﬁeoflﬂtutfundw valuation 31 March 2017
Assets at valuation date £178.7 million
Funding Rabilities at valuation date £225.3 million
Deficit at vaksation date £46.6 million
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37. Retirement banefit schemes continued

The total contribution rate is between 40.5% and 44.9% of annual pay for the remaining active members. The employer contribution
rate is the balance of the total cost after the deducting the employee rate, which ranges depending on status and samings. The total
contribution excludes any allowances for expenses met by the scheme.

To eliminate the funding deficit the Trustee and the Group agreed that additional contributions (i.e. over and above those required to
cover benefits being accrued} will be paid into the scheme of £58.0m by 31 March 2027, of which £11.9m are due by 31 March 2020,

On 27 Navember 2017, the Group paid the fivst of these additional contributions amounting to £3.0m. Under this recovery plan, if the
assumptions made are borne out in practics, the deficit would be eliminated by 31 March 2027,

The following table sets out detalls of the membership of the Group scheme at 31 March 2017:

Group scheme
Active members — by number 182
Active members — by proportion of funding llability 20.4%
Total pensionable satary roll p.a. £8.4m
Deferred members — by number 853
Deferred members — by proportion of funding liabitty S2.0%
Total deferred pensions p.a. {at date of leaving scheme) £4.6m
Pensioner members - by number 640
Pensioner members — by proportion of funding llabliity 27.6%
Total pensions in payment p.a. £2.7m

Accounting assumptions
The assumptions used In calculating the accounting costs and obligations of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemas, as detalied
below, are set after consultation with Independent, professionally qualfied actuaries.

The discount rate used ta determine the present value of the obligations Is set by reference to market ylelds on high quality corporate
bonds. The assurptions for price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yields on longer-term conventional
govemment bonds and index-linked bonds. The assumption for increases in pensionable pay takes into account expected salary
inflation, the cap at CPI, and how often the cap is likely to be exceeded.

The assumptions for life expectancy have been set with reference to the actuarial tables usad in the latest funding valuations, with a
lower ‘Dast-estimate’ allowance for future improvements to mortatity.

Principal accounting assumptions at balance sheet dates

Group scheme Othar schamnes
w1 2017 2008 2017
% % % %

Key assurnptions used for 1AS 19 valuation:
Discount rate .60 265 2850 255
BExpected rate of pensionable pay increases 310 200 3,10 340
Retail price inflation .10 340 3.10 340
Consumer price inflation 210 240 2,10 240
Future pension increases 3.40 3.40 3.40 3.40
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Group scherme
a8 2017
Yaors Years
Post retirement Hife expectancy:
Current pensioners at 65 — male 880 88.0
Current pensioners at 65 — female 85.0 90.0
Future pensioners at 65— male 23.0 89,0
Future pensioners at 65 —female 90.0 91.0
Uife expectancy for the other schemes is that used by the relevant scheme actuary.
The sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in principal actuarial assumptions ks shown below.
Sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to key assumptions
impect on defined benelit obliigations
Change in Increasa/idecrease) In Inresse/{decranse) in
astumption cbligetions ohigations
% £m

Increase in discount rate 0.1% {2.0M% {5.0)
Increase in RP! inflation™ 0.1% 15% 38
Increase In CP| inflation {excluding pay} 0.1% 0.7% 18
Increase in salary growth 0.1% 0.0% -
Incraase In life expactancy 1year 3.9% 9.8

*  Mchuling other Inflation-linked assemptions {CPI Infiation, pension increasas and sslary growth)
The sensitivity information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when adjusting the results of the
latest funding valuation to the balance sheet date.

Some of the above changes in assumptions may have an impact on the value of the scheme’s investment holdings. For eample, the
Group scheme holds a proportion of its assets In UK corporate bonds. A fall in the discount rate as a result of lower UK corporate bond
yields would lead to an increase in the value of these assets, thus mitigating the increase in the defined benefit obligation to some extent,

The duration, or average term to payment for the benefits due, welghted by fiability, is around 22 years for the Group scheme.

Amounts recognised in financial statements
The tabie below outlines where the Group's post-employment amounts are included in the financial statements.

s 2017
Group Othar Group Other

schama schamas Total scheme schames Totat

£m m fm £m £m £m
Current service cost {L.7) (0.3) {2.0) (3.2) (0.3} {3.5)
Total administration expense {L1} - {11} {0.8) - (0.8}
Amaunts recogriised in operating profit @ {o.3) B3 {4.0) 03) (a3
Past service cost {including curtailments) (19} - {1.9) - - -
Net interest cost (1.9) (0.1) {2.0) (1.3} - (1.3}
Amounts recognised In profit before tax {6.6) (04) (7.0) {5.3) {03) (5.6}

The past service cost {including curtaiments) Is as a result of an increase in liabllities driven by the closure of the main Group scheme.
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Amounts recognised in the consoliklated statement of comprehensive Income are as follows:

2ms 2017
Group Other Group Other
schama schemes Total schame schemes Total
£m €m £m £m £m £m
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising due to changes in
financlal assumptions 86 o8 {52.5} (3.7 (56.2}
Actuarial {losses)/gains arising from liabliity experiance (11) 08 {0.3} 08 - o8
Actuariad gains due to changes in demographic
assumptions 59 02 6.1 - - -
Effect of asset celling - {o.5) {os) - - -
Return on scheme assets, exduding interest income 4.6 0A 50 18.7 13 20,0
18.0 1.7 19.7 (33.0} (2.4} (35.4)

The amounts included in the balance sheet in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

s 207
roup Otiver Group Other
achame schupries Totat scheme schemes Total
£m £m m £mn £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 1823 121 194.4 1778 113 189.1
Present value of defined benefit obligations {237.1) {14.1) {251.2) {2485) {14.8) {263.3)
Net pension liabiRty (54.8) (2.0 {56.8) (70.7) (3.5} (74.2)

All figures above are shown before deferred tax.

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations In the year in respect of both the Group and other schemes were
as follows:

2088 2017
Grovp Other Grovp Other

schame schemes Totel scheme: schames Towl

m fm £m £m £m £m

At 1 Aprit 248.5 148 263.3 1913 10.6 20m.9

Current service cost 17 03 2.0 32 03 35

Irvimrest cost 65 0.4 69 6.8 0.4 7.2

Contributions from scheme members - 0.1 a1 0.1 01 0.2
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising due to changes in

financial assumptions {8.5) {o.8) {94) 525 37 56.2

Actuarial losses/{gains) arising from experience 12 {0.8} 0.3 {0.8) - {0.8)

Actuarial gains due to changes In demographic

assumptions 59 02) {6.1) - -~ -

Effect of asset celling - 0.5 05 - - -

Benefits paid (8.4 (0.2) (8.3) (4.6 (0.3) {4.5)

Past service cost [including curtaiiments) 19 - 19 - - —

At 31 March 237.2 14.1 2512 2485 438 2633




37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

The defined benefit obligations of the Group scheme are anatysed by participant status below:

2018 2017

£m £m

Active 483 85.0

Deferred 1233 103.1

Pensioners 65.5 60.4

At 31 March 237.1 2485
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

2012 207

Group Other Group Other

schame schamas Toesl scheme schemes Totd

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 1778 113 189.1 1569 95 1664

Interest incorme 46 03 49 55 04 59

Actuarial galns on assets 4.5 04 50 18.7 13 20.0

Contributions from the sponsoring companies 4.4 03 47 20 03 2.3

Contributions from scheme members - - - 0.1 0.1 0.2

Expenses paid (1.0) - {1.0) (0.8) - (0.8}

Benefits paid (81) 0.2} (8.3) (4.6) 0.3) (49}

At 31 March 1823 12.1 1944 1778 113 189.1

The history of experience adjustments is as fallows:

Group scheme

2018 2017 2016 2005 2014

Em £m Em £m £m

Falr value of scheme assets 13 1778 1569 162.2 14338

Present value of defined benefit obligations (237.1) {248.5) {191.3) {197.1) {160.8)

Deficit inthe scheme {54.8) (70.7) (34.4) {349} {17.0}

Experience (lnsses)/gains on scheme liabilities (1.1) (1. a1 12 01

Percentage of scheme liabllities 0.5% {0.3)% {1.6)% (o)% (0.1

Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assats 46 187 {6-2) 130 36

Percentage of scheme assets 2.5% 10.5% {4.0% 8.0% 2.5%

Other schesmes

s 27 2018 2015 2004

£&m £mn £m £m £m

Fair value of schame assets 121 11.3 95S 95 16.2

Present value of defined benefit obligations (14.1) (14.8) (10.6} (10.4) (18.3)

Defick in the scheme {20} {3.5) {11) (0.9) 2.1)

Experience gains/(losses) on scheme liabilities 0.8 - - {0.1) 0.3

Percentage of scheme labilities (s.61% - - 0.9% (1.8)%

Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 04 1.3 {0.6) 0.8 (0.3)

Percentage of scheme assets 3.3% 11.5% {6.1)% 8.4% {1.9)%
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37. Ratirement benefit schemes continued

Fair values of the assets held by the schemes were as follows:;

F ] 017

Group Other Group Othar
schame: wchemes Total scheme schemas Total
[ Em £m £m £m £m
Equities 663 7.0 733 66.4 76 74.0
Government bonds 269 - 269 268 16 284
Corporate bonds 290 38 253 217 08 225
Property a5 09 104 162 0.8 17.0
Diversified growth fund 456 - 45.6 46.6 - 46.6
Cash 12.0 04 124 0.1 0.5 0.6
Total fair value of assets 182.3 12.1 194.4 1778 113 189.1

The investment portfolios are diversified, investing in a wide range of assets, in order to provide reasonable assurance that no single asset
or type of asset could have a materially adverse impact on the total portfolio. To reduce volatility, certain assets are held in a matching
portfollo, which largely conslists of government and corporate bonds, designed to mirror movements in cormesponding liabllitles.

Around 67% (2017: 73%) of the assets are hald In equities, property and pooled investment vehicles which seek a higher expected level
of return over the long term.

£nll (2017: £7m) of the property assets represent freehold property; the rest are quoted property investments.

Risks and risk management
The Group scheme, In common with the majority of UK plans, has a number of risks. These areas of risk and the ways ki which the
Group has sought to manage them, ane set out In the table below.

The risks are considered from both a funding perspective, which drives the cash commitments of the Group, and from an accounting

perspective, l.e, the extent to which such risks affect the amounts recorded in the Group's financial statements:

Risk Description

Asset The funding Kiabilities are calculated using a discount rate st with reference to government bond yields, with allowance

volatity for additional retumn to be generated from the investment portfolio, The defined benefit obligation for accounting s
calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields. The Group scheme holds a large proportion
of Its assets (67%) In equities and other return-seeking assets [principally diversified growth funds (DGFs) and property).
The retums on such assets tend to be volatile and are not correlated to government bonds. This means that the funding
level has the potential to be volatile In the short termn, potentially resulting In short-terrn cash requirements or
altemative security offers, which are acceptable to the Trustee and an increase in the net defined benefit llability
recorded on the Group’s balance sheet. Equities and DGFs are considered to offer the best retirns over the long term
with an acceptable level of risk and hence the scheme holds 2 significant proportion of these types of asset. However,
the scheme’s assets are well-diversified by Investing in a range of asset classes, including property, government bonds
and corporate bonds. The Group schema holds 25% of its assets in DGFs which seek to maintain high levels of retum
whiist achleving lower volatility than direct equity funds. The allocation to return seeking assets is monlitored o ensure t
remains appropriate given the scheme's long-term objectives. The investrnent In bonds Is discussed further below,

Changes in  Falling bond ylekis tend to increase the funding and accounting obligations, However, the investment in comorate and

bondyiekls govemnment bonds offers a degree of matching, i.e. the movement in assets arising from changes in bond yiekis partially
matches the movement in the funding or accounting obligations. In this way, the exposure to movements it bond yields
Is reduced.

fnfiation risk The majority of the scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to inflation. Higher inflation wifl isad to higher liabilities
(although caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). The
majority of the Group scheme’s assets are either unaffected by inflation (fixed intenest bonds) or foosely correlated with
inflation {equities), meaning that an increase in inflation will akso increase the deficit.

Life The majority of the scheme's obligations are to provide a pension for the iif of the membar, 5o increases in life

expectancy  expectancy will result In an increase In the obligations.
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Areas of risk management

Although investment decisions in the scheme are the responsibility of the Trustee, the Group takes an active interest to ensure that
pension plan risks are managed efficiently. The Group and Trustee have agreed a fong-tarm strategy for reducing iiwestment risk
where appropriate.

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were contracted out of the State
Second Pension prior to 6 April 1957. At present there ks an inequality of benefits between male and female members who have GMP,
The Government intends to Implement lagisiation to equalise benefits, which could result in an increase in the value of GMP for males.
This would Increase the defined benefit obligations. At this stage, it s not possible to quantify the impact of this change, and therefore
no provision has been made.

Certain benefits payable on death before retirement are Insured.

38. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this Note.

During the year, the Group derived £0.8m (2017: £0.2m) of revenue from contracts with joint ventures and associated undertakings
and received £0.6m (2017: £0.6m) of dividends. At 31 March 2018 trade and other receivables of £0.2m [2017: £nil) were cutstanding
ard loans to joint ventures and assoclates of £ni {2017: £nil} were included in financing assets.

Mitie Group plc has a related party relationship with the Mitie Foundation, a charitable company. During the year, the Group made
donations and gifts in kind of £0.3m {201.7: £0.3m) to the Foundation. At 31 March 2018 £nll {2017: £nil) was due to the Foundation
and the Foundation had £nil (2017: £nil) held within creditors as an amount owed to Mitle Group pic.

No material contract or arrangemnent has been enterad Into during the year, nor existed at the end of the year, in which a Director
had a material interast.

The Group's key management perscnnel Include the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and the Executive Leadership team,
Details of the Divectors’ remuneration Is included in Note 7. The underlying remuneration for other key management personnel,
including the share-based payments charge Is £5.6m (2017: £4.1m).

In the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company noted that, as a consequence of prior year
adjustments to the accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee would detarmine what rights
might be avaliable to the Company to recover the bonus and other awards made o each of Ruby MoGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter
in respect of FY16. The matters which gave rise to the prior year adjustments are now the subject to the on-going investigation by the
Financial Conduct Authority (the “FCA™), which the Company disclosed in Its announcement on 29 August 2017. in that announcement,
the Company reported that the FCA had commenced an investigation In connection with the timeliness of a profit waming anncunoed
by the Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner of preparation and content of the Company's financial information, position
and resuts for the period ending 31 March 2016. The Company has been advised by Is external lawyers that as any claim against
Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter wouki cover the same matters, facts and circumstances which are the subject of the

FCA investigation, any formal steps to recover bonuses or other awards shoulkd be defermed until after the FCA have reached their
findings. It is currently anticipated that the FCA will conclude its investigation during the course of FY19.

Details of transactions with Mitie Group plc Pension Scheme, and other smaller pension schemes, are given In Note 37.
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

39. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

ms 2007
Contruing  Discontinued Comtinuing  Discontinued
oparstions operstions Toead perati Totad
£m tm #m £m £m £m
Cash comversion
Operating loss {83} - {8.3) {42.9} (235.2) {178.1)
Depreciation 128 - 128 136 as 141
Amortisation 135 - 135 24 14 238
impairment of goodwill and Intangible assets 450 - 45.0 180 91.2 109.2
Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation {EBITDA) 63.0 - 630 111 {42.1) {31.0)
Cash (used in)/generated by operations {r.9) - (7.9} 159.9 {8.8) 1511
Free cash flow
Cash (used in}/generated by operations {7.9) 151.1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {15.8) (14.5)
Purchase of other intangible assets (9.0 (12.4)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 16 10
Income taxes recelved/{paid) 116 (15.3}
Interest paid {13.5) (12.7}
Eree cash flow {33.0) 97.2
2018
Othar now-
Opening  Towslcash RMeclessification Totai BU Torsl fair wlus cash Closing
belmce movemant ofssniordabt  movemants dwngss  movements belance
£m £m £m £m fm £m £
Cagh flows. Nancash changss
Long-term bormowings — bank loans - [38.3) {153) 0.3) - {0.4) 54.3)
Long-term bormowings — private placement
loan notes - -| wsm - ma oy (2088
Short-term bomowings — bank loans {153} - 53 - - - -
Short-berm borrowings — private
placement loan notes* {294.0) ns 2168 - 54 - -
Financa lease obligations (2.8} 15 - - - - (1.3)
Financing labilities {312.1) 350 - {0.3) 185 {0.5) {259.4)
Derivative financial instrurments® 538 lll—ﬁ)k - - {18.1) - 61
Net financing sbiities (2763) 234 | - {03} 04 os) _ 253.3)
Mote:
* Cathh these Rems incudes both repsyment of privete ple Taan notes Jnd settiemnent of associated hedges with 2 net cash fiow of £60.2m (017 £l
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40. Subsidiaries

Tha companies set out below are those which were part of the Group at 31 March 2018.

3 voting gt amd  noreies
Compary Country of iInconporasion owmership inberast wvalus owned
Care & Custody {Health) Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Cole Motors Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Creativevents Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Direct Enquiries Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Jabez Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Aviation Security Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
itle Belgium BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Belgium Security BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Built Environment Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Business Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Business Services UK Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Care and Custody Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cavering Services Limited” United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Cleaning & Environmental Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie CRent Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Company Secretarial Setvices Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Comphance Lxd® United Kingdom 100% 200%
Mitle Deutschland GmbH 1 Germany 100% 100%
Mitie Document Solutions Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Bristol) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Servioes (Guernsey) Limited Guemnsey 100% 100%
Mitle Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited Jersey 200% 100%
Mitle Engineering Services (Northern Region) Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Wales) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Engineering Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Erwironmental Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Espafia, 5.L. Spain 100% 100%
Mitle Events & Lelsure Services Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Facilities Management Limited® (refand 100% 100%
Mitie Faciiities Services Umited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle France SAS France 100% 100%
Mitie Group Pension Scheme Trustee Company Umited* Unilted Kingdom 200% 100%
Mitie Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Infrastructure Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Integrated Facilities Management Limived* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie International Limited® United Kingdom 100% 200%
Mitie Investments Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Justice Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Landscapes Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Local Services Limited* United Kingdorn 100% 100%
Mitie Managed Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Nederiand B.V. Netherlands 100% 100%
Mitie Norge Aksjeselskap Norway 100% 100%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

40. Subsidiaries continued

2018 2018

% voring vights and nominal
Compery Country of Incorp rship Intwrast welue owned
Mitie Pest Control (London) Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Pest Control Umited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie P Limited United Kingdam 100% 100%
Mitie Polska Sp.z 0.0. Poland 100% 100%
Mitie Property Management Limited** United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Property Services [UK) Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Reinsurance Comparty Limited Guemsey 100% 100%
Mitie Resources Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Schwelz GmbH Switzeriand 100% 100%
Mitie Sootgate Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security (London) Umited® United Kingdom 200% 200%
Mitie Security Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Services (Retall} Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Shared Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Suoml Oy Finland 100% 100%
Mitie Sverige AB Sweden 100% 100%
Mitle TS 2 Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Facilities Management Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Facilities Management Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Tilley Roofing Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Transport Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Treasury Management Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Trustee Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Waste & Environmental Services Limited® United Kingdom 200% 100%
Mitie Work Wise Umited® United Kingdom 200% 100%
Parkerseli Limited® United Kingdom A00% 100%
Procius Limited** Unlted Kingdom 100% 100%
Robert Prettie & Co Limited® Unhed Kingdom 100% 100%
Service Management International Asia Pacific PTE. Ltd. Singapore W% 100%
Source Eght Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
SourceS Africa Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Sources Delivery (Nigeria) Limited Nigeria 100% 100%
Source8 Services FZLLC United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
UK CRES Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Management Limited® United Kingdomn 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Management Projects Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Broking Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utifyx Healthcare Energy Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Holdings Umited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Umited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Risk Management Limited® United Kingdom 100% 200%
Westthy Thoughts Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%

* Thate antities ware darmnant during the yeer ended 31 March 2018 and will take the essmption from prapaving and fiing financisl statemants for the yesr ended 31 March

2018 foy virtua of seciion 448A of the Companias Act 2006).

£ These subsickarias have taken sdvastage of the sudit exemption under 479, of the Companies At 2006 for the period ended 31 March 2018, As uch, Mite Group: Pic bias
provicied 5 guasrsintet againes s debs and Bableties In these subsidiaries 95 at 31 Marth 2018,

+ Held divectly try the Company.
x Tha Compary holds direct minority irberest in these compenles.
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40. Subsidiaries continued

The registered office of all subsidiaries is The Shard, Level 12, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SE1 95G with the exception of

the following:

Compery Registened ofice address

Mitie Beigium BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marcel Broodthaersplein 8 (box 5), 1060 Brussels
(Sint-Gils), Belgiom

Mitie Balgium Security BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marce! Broodthaersplein 8 (box 5), 1060 Brussels
(Sint-Gillis), Belgium

Mitie Deutschland GmbH MeRstetter StraBe 8, , 70567, Stuttgart, Germany

Mitie Engineering Services (Guernsey)
Livited

Mitle Engineering Services (lersey) Limited

Mitle Espafia, S.1.

Mitie Facilities Management Limited
Mitie France SAS

Mitie Nl Limited

Mitie Nederland B.V,

Mitie Noige Aksjeselskap

Mitle Polska Sp.z 0.0.

Mitie Reinsurance Company Limited
Mitie Schwelz GmbH

Mitie Suomi Oy

Mitie Sverige AB

Service Management Intemational
Asla Pacific PTE. Ltd.

Source8 Delivery (Nigerta) Limited
Source8 Services FZLLC

Martello Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY1 3HB, Guemsey

13 Castle Street, 5t Helier, JE4 SUT, Jersey
Osbome Clarks, Avenida Diagonal, 477, Planta 20, 08036, Barcelorsa, Spain

108 Q House, Furze Road, Sandyford, Dublin 18, Ireland

259 rue St Honore, 75001, Paris, France

Clara House , Office BS, Dunmury Office Park, 37A Upper Dunmurry Lane, Belfast,
Northem Ireland, 8T17 0AA, United Kingdom

Hoofdweg 52A, 3067 GH Rotterdam, P.O. Box 8540, 3009 AM Rotterdam, 3009 AM
Rotterdam, Netherlands

Kongensgate 9, 0153, Oslo, Norway, Norway

Solec 22, 00-410, Warsaw, Poland

Maison Trinity, Trinity Square, S5¢. Peter Port, GY1 4AT, Guernsey
Brandschenkestrasse 90, CH-8027, Zurich, Switzertand

¢/o Ov Visma Services infocon Ab, Pormestarinrine 8, 00160 Heksinkd, Finland
Kungsgatan 55, 111 22 Stockhoim, Sweden, Sweden

65 Chulta Street, #38-02/03, OCBC Centre, Singapore, 049513

235 Ikorodu Road, lupe)u, Lagos, Nigeria
17 The Iridium Buliding, Um Suqueim Road, Al Barsha, Dubat, PO BOX 391186,
United Arab Emirates

No subsidlaries have non-controlling interests that are materkal to the Group.

The Group has a 30% interest In its associate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in the
Unked Kingdom with its registered office at The Point, 37 North Wharf Road, London, W2 1BD.

41. Events after the reporting period ; ‘e o

There are no material post balance sheet events that require adjustment or disclosure in the annual reporL
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Compeny balance sheet
At 31 March 2018
2018 my

Notes £m £m
Nom-aurent assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 44 552.0 5805
Deferred tax asset 46 0.8 03
Total non-current assats 557.8 589.8
Current astats
Debtors 45 S8.2 369
Total curvent assets 98.2 369
Total agsets 6560 626.7
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 47 {82.2) {44.6)
Total current llabllites {82.2) {44.6)
Net aurent assats 16.0 {7.7)
Net assots 5738 5821
Capital and reserves
Share capital 1Y 93 9.2
Share premium account 32 130.6 130.6
Merger reserve 32 1042 918
Own shares reserve 32 {83.4) (42.2)
Other reserves 229 253
Loss for the year {(12.7) (42.6)
Retained eamings 3629 410.0
Equity sharsholders' funds 5738 582.1

The Company teported a loss for the financlal year ended 31 March 2018 of £12.7m (2017 £42.6m).

The finandal staternents of Mitie Group pic, company registration number SC019230, were approved by the Board of Directors and

authorised for issue on 6 June 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:

Lo FeIT—

Phil Bentley Paul Woolf
Chief Exacutive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Share Proft
Share promiem Marger Own sheres Other vl loss
caphial scoount e esarve reserves oot Towl
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 93 122.7 80.1 {48.8) 211 4744 6633
Loss for the year - - - - - (42.6) {42.6}
Shares issued 0.1 29 11.7 - - - 147
Share-bhasad payments - - - 68 38 {2.5) 21
Share buybacks 0.2) - - {0.2) 04 {24.4) (24.4)
Dividends paid - - - - - {32.5) {37.5)
At 31 Masch 2017 9.2 1306 918 {42.2) 253 3674 582.1
Loss for the year - - - - - 127} {127
Share.based payments - - - 69 2.4) 03 48
Acquisitions and other movements 0.1 - 124 (8.1 - - 44
Dividerds paid - - - - - {4.8) 49
At 31 March 2018 93 130.6 1042 {43.4) 229 350.2 5738
As at 31 March 2018, the Company had distributable reserves of £117.5m (2017: £137.3m).
Detalls of dividends pald to shareholders are given in Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements,
Sl
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Nates to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

42. Significant accounting policles

{a) Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are prasented as required by company law. They have been prepared under
the historics) cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial
Reporting Counci.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avallable under that standard
in relation to share-based payments, financial instruments, presentation af a cash flow statement, impairment of assets, standards nat
yet effective, and related party transactions.

Where refevant, equivalent disciosures have been given in the Group acoounts.
As mone fully detalled In the Directors’ report, the Company’s financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis,

(b) Prindipal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarisad below. They have been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding
year.

Investmeants
Fixed asset Investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less any provision for impairment.

Investmens in subsidiaries are reviewed on an ongoing basls for any Indication of impairment and, if any such Indication exists, the
Investment’s recoverable amount is estimated, An Jmpairment loss Is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying value
of an asset exveeds its recoverable amount.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past eventand it Is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a rellable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance comtract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to arny provision is charged to the proft and loss account, net of any reimbursernent. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at » pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the llability. Where discounting is
used, the incraase In the provision due to the passage of time i recognised as a borrowing cost.

Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted st the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax Is provided In full on temporary differences that result In an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a
right 1o pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expacted to apply when they crystallise based upon tax rates and legislation that have
been enacted or substantively enactad at the balince sheet date. Temporary differences arise from the inclusion of items of income
and expenditure in tax compitations in periods different from thase in which they are included in the finandial statements. Deferred
tax i not provided on temporary differences, or on uhremitted eamings of subsidiaries and associates where there & no commitment
to remk these eamings. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is regarded as more lilely than not that they will be
recoverad. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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42. Significant accounting polides continued

Finandal instruments

Trade recelvables are measured at initial recognition at fair value. Appropriate alowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in the profit and {oss account where there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

Interest bearing bank krans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settiement or ademption and diract isuie costs, am accounted for on an accruaks basis in the profit and loss account
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument 1o the extent that they are not settied in the perfod in which they arise.

Trade payabies are measured at amortised cost,
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds recelved, net of direct issue costs.

rinancial assets and financial Babilities are recogniscd on the Company’s bakince shect when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Share-based payments

The. Company operates a number of exacutive and employee share option schemes. Equity-settied share-based payments to employees
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes the effect of non-market based vesting
condidons. For grants of share options and awarus, U falr vahue as at the date of grant b caloulated using the Black-Schules vt Mot
Cario modets or the shere price ot grant date, and the corresponding expense & recognised on a straight line basis over the vesting period
based on the Company's estimate of shanes that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Company revises Its estimate of the
number of equily instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market based vesting condltions. Save As You Eam (SAYE)
options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute 1o the scheme, resulting in an acceleration of the nemainder of the
refabed expense,

The costs of aptions and conditional awards over the Company’s shares granted to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries are
accounted for as a capital contribution within the carrying value of investments in subsidiary undertakings.

Pensions
The Company participates in the Mitle Group pic Pension Scheme. All group companles account for the contributions to the defined

benefit scheme in respect of their employees and as part of a group arrangement one of the Company’s subsidiaries accounts for the
other costs, Income, assets and liabHities of the scheme. Nota 37 to tha consolidatad financial statements sets out details of the 1AS 19

‘Employee benefits’ net pension liabilfity of the scheme amounting to £54.8m (2017: £70.7m).

43. Loss for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own statement of comprehensive
income (Inchuding the profit and loss acoount) for the year. Mitic Group plc reported a loss after taxation for the financial year ended
31 March 2018 of £12.7m (2017; £42.6m).

The auditor’s remuneration for audit services to the Comparty was £40,000 (2017: £40,000).

Detalled disclosures of Directors’ remuneration and share interests are given in the audited section of the Directors’ remuneration
report on pages 101 to 109.
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Notes 10 the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

44. investments in subsidiary undertakings

Shares at cost

At 1 April 2017 690.9

Restructuring 497.3

Acquisitions 73

Capltal contribution re share-based payments 10

Disposals {580.0)
At 31 March 2018 6165

Provision for iImpalrment

A1 April 2007 1014

Charged to income statement -

Disposals (41.9)
At 31 March 2018 59.5

Net book value

At 31 March 2018 557.0

At 31 March 2017 5885

A listing of subsidiaries is given In Note 40 to the consofidated financlal statements.

During the year, the Company underwent a process to rationalise and simplify the corporate structure which included the acquisition

of minority shareholder interests in the remaining Mitie Model companies (see Note 33 to the consolidated financlal statements). The
reorganisation was fadiiitated thwough Mitke Treasury Management Limited {MTML), an existing entity held by the Company acqulring
the majority of the Company’s investments, including #ts principal holding companies, through share for share exchanges. In addition,
minarity interests held by the Cormpany in other Group companies were transferred to the majority shareholder for consideration left
outstanding an intercompany account. No gain or loss arose in the Company as a result of these steps.

45. Debtors
ans 227
£m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 96.3 N2
Other debtors 18 0.7
Prepayments and accrued income 01 0.2
Corporation tax - 4.8
9%.2 36.9
The Dircctors consider that the corrying amount of debtors approximates their fair value.
46. Deferred tax
Shers-beeed
Pyt
thming
caffgrance
£m
Deferred tax asset at 1 April 2017 03
Charge to Income statament 0.5
Deferred taox asset at 31 March 2018 08

202 www.amitlecom | The excaptional, eveny day




47. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2017
£m

54
22
5.2
0.2
19.0
126
446

Overdrafts

Trade creditors

Amourts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Corporation tax liability

Other taxes and social security

Accruals and deferred income

Provisions

BEcEeBsBsk

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors
approximates their fair value,

The Company’s bank overdrafts are part of the Group’s banking arrangements and are offset against credit balances within the Group.
The Company has adequate fiquidity to discharge all current obligations.
For detalls of Group borrowings, see Note 26 to the consolidated financlal statements.

48. Contingemt liabilities

Per Note 40, Mitie Group plc has taken the audit exemption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act.
A parent company guarantee has been provided for these entities under s479C of the Companies Act:

49. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes as described in Note 36 to the consolidated financia) statements.
The Company recognised an expense of £0.4m (2017: £2.4m) retated to the share-based payrment charge for discretionary
share: option schemes.

The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models. The inputs into the Black-Scholes and
Monte Carlo models are as described in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,

50. Related parties

The Company makes management charges to all of Its subsidiaries, whether they are wholly-owned or otherwise, and receives
dividends from its subsidiaries, according to their ability to remit them. Other details of related party transactions have been given in
Nate 38 to the consolidated financial statements,

Under FRS 101 the Compary Is exempt from disclosing key management personnel compensation and transactions with other
companies wholly owned by Mitie Group pic. There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2018
{2017: £nil).
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Appendix ~ Altsrmative Performance Measures (APMSs)

The Group presents APMs as the Group has applied IFRS 15 in the 2018 financial statements using the curmulative effect method through
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017 and has not restated the comparative information for the 2017 finandcial
year. in addition, there were a number of significant restatements recorded in the 2017 finandal statements. The Group presents various
APMs as the Directors belleve that these are useful for users of the financial statements I helping to provide a bakanoed view of, and
relevant information on, the Group's financial performance. These APMs are measures which disclose the adjusted performance of the
Group without the adoption of IFRS 15 (see Note 1 (a}) and exciuding specific ltems which are regarded as non-recurring. The Group
separately reports the iImpairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes, acquisition and disposal costs, amortisation of
acquisition refated intangible assets, exceptional lems and other specific items in the income statement which, In the Directors’
judgement, need 10 be disclosed separately {see Notes 3, 4 and 5 } by virtue of their nature, size and inciderice In order for users of the
financlal statements to cbtain a proper understanding of the financial information and the underlying performance of the business.

Restated
08 mr
APWE prasemied £m £m
Revenue
Adjustad revenue 2,199.1 2,140.0
mpact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 46 -
One-offs:
Adjustment to accrued income on long-term complex contracts - (20.4)
Accrued income, debtors, prepayments included in trade & other receivables - (7.4)
Effects of foreign currency - 11.2
Other one-off items - -
Befare other tems 2,203.7 2,123.4
Other items - -
Total revenue as reported 2203.7 2,123.4
Operating profit
Adjusted operating profit 771 820
Impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 1285 -
One-offs:
impairment and amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14} - {10.5}
Adjustment to accrued income on long-term complex contracts - {20.4)
Accrued Income, debtors, prepayments included in trade & other receivables - {364)
impainment of mobilisstion asset - (5.7)
Other provisions & accruals - (4.6)
Other one-off items - {10.7)
Before other items 206 (6.3)
Adjusted other items {103.0) {36.6)
impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 5.1 -
Other ftams as reported {57.9) (36.6)
Total oparating profit as reported (8-3) (a2.9)
The tota) adjustments presented above impact business segments as follows:
a8 008
Adivstments 1o revenus £m £m
Engineering Services (6.9) 146
Security f0.3) -
Professional Services 0.6 -
Cleaning & Erwironmental Services (0.9) 35
Care & Custody 24 -
Catering - (1.5}
Property Management 0.5 -
Total adjustrments {4.6) 16.6
1. The Group hes d 2017 st bals et &3 pes Note 1, page 134,
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Appendix — Akernative Performance Measures {APMs) continued

018 2017
Adjustments to operating profit [ £m
Engineering Services {103) 375
Security 2.3) g
Professional Services as 26
Cleaning & Environmental Services n 144
Care & Custody 13 07
Catering (0.6) 06
Property Management 05 168
Corporate Centre - 119
Total adjustments (12.5) 88.3
2018 017
impacts of Adiind One-off Adjusted
s »Rs1s cshflows  As eported e cash flows
Adustments $o cash flows £m m £m £m £m £m
Operating loss  — continuing operations {8.3) {17.6) {25.9} (62.9) 883 454
—discontinued operations - - - {135.2) - (135.2)
Adjustments for non-cash and non-operating items 75.5 - 75.5 187.2 (88.3} 989
Operating cash flows before movements
In working capital 672 {17.6) 496 9.1 - 9.1
{increase)/decrease in inventories {0.1) - {0.1) 3.2 - 3.2
(Iincrease)/decrease in receivables (43.2) 13.1 (30.1) 602 - 60.2
{increase)/decraase in contract assets (2.3} 2.3 - - - -
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred income arising
on contracts {12.8) 128 - - - -
{Decrease)fincrease in payables (21.2) (9.1) (30.3) 73.0 - 73.0
{Decrease)/increase in provisions 4.5 (0.2} 43 56 - 56
Cash (used in)/generated by aperations (7.9} 13 {6.6) 151.1 - 1511
Income taxes, interest and acquisition costs
recelved/{paid) {1.9) - (1.9) (28.3) - {28.3)
et cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities {9.8) 13 (8.5) 1228 - 1228
levesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (15.9) 0.2) {16.0) {14.5) - (14.5)
Purchase of other intangible assets {9.0) {L1) {10.1} [12.4) - (12.4)
Other investing activities {2.9) - {1.9) - - -
Net cash outflow from investing activities {52.1) {1.3) {33.4) (26.9) - (26.9)
Net cash inflow from financing activities {27.8) - {27.8) {60.3) - (60.3)
Net (decrease)/incrense In cash and
cash squivalents {69.7) - 9.7 35.6 - 356

Adjustments to the balance sheet are shown in Note 1 on page 140,
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Shareholder information

Overview

HY 18/19 half-yearly results 22 November 2018

Dividends

FY 17/18 interim dividend (1.33p paid] 7 February 2618

2018 final dividend {2.67p proposed):
— ex-div date 21 June 2018
- record date 22 June 2018
— last date for recelpt/revocation of DRIP mandate S July 2018
— payment date 6 August 2018

Annvusl General Meating

2018 Annual General Meeting 31 iy 2018

Ragistared office

Mitie Group plc

35 Duchess Rd

Ruthergien

Glasgow

G73 1AU

Telephone: 0117 970 8800
Email: group@mitie.com
Website: www.mitie.com
Registered in Scotland under
company number: SC019230

Registrars

Link Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Telephone: D871 664 0300°
Website: www.mitie-shares.com

* ralis cost 12p 8 minute plus network
&xtras, lines are open 9.00am - 5.30pm
Mon ~ Fri.
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Dividend reinvestment plen (DRIF)
Mithe has set up a dividend reinvestment
plan {DRIP) to enable you 1o bulld your
shareholding by using your cash dividends
under a standing election to bay
additional shares in Mitie, If you would
like ta recelve further inforrmation,
induding details of how to apply, please
call Link Asset Services on 020 8639 3402
or contact them by sending an email to:
shares@linkgroup.co.uk

Mitle online shars portal

Mitie has launched a shareholder portal
whete shareholders can register and can:

= access information on shareholdings
and movements;

« update address details;

* view dividend payments recelved and

register bank mandate instructions;

sell Mitie shares;

complete an online proxy voting form;

and

» register for e-communications allowing
Mitie to notify shareholders by email
that certain documents are availshie to
view on its website. This will further
reduce Mitle's carbon footprint as well
as reduce costs,

If you wish to register, please sign up at
www.mitis-shares.com

Corporate website

This report can be downloaded in PDF
from the Mitie website, which also
contains additionat generat information
about Mitie. Please visit www.mitle.com
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MITIE GROUP AT A GLANCE

Investing in our strengths

N N -
We use We sent out over ‘ We sall ’ imoge removed
to collect waste pieces of paper of coffee
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T:+44 {0) 330 678 0710
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